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FY 17/18 highlights

£2.2bn

£77.1m

Adjusted operating profit*?

{FY 16/17: £2.1bn} {FY 16/17; £82.0m}
£2.2bn £89.6m
Reported revenue® Reported opesating profit/(lossy*
[FY 16/17: £2.1bn) {FY 16/17: £{6.3)m)
4.0p £4.5bn
Dividends per share Order book'

{FY 16/17: 4.0p) {FY 16/17: £4.4bn)

£193.5m

Nat dabt (st period end}
(FY 16/17: £147.2m)

£286.1m

Net deit (sverage)
{FY 16/17; £335.9m)

¢ Positive adjusted revenue® growth

& Adjusted operating profit™ in line with our expectations

& Good performance from Mitie’s maricet-leading core businesses
& Connected Workspace now in deployment

® Transformation programime progressing well

* Higher transformation cost savings, with assoclated higher cost
of change

* On track t0 exceed three-year cost savings targets
® vestmenis made in customer service and internal capability

® Commercial reorganisation and finance transformation largely
complete; IT and Engineering Services workflow technology
transformation begun

For further information
.Mum\vﬂn o https:/fvrwrw Sinkadin.com/
mitie.com/irvastors companwy/mirief
o Follow us on twitter °\Iu|:hulnnw
@wearemitie youtube.com/user/mitiagrouppic
On tha cover
1. To enable an effertive comparison of our
performance, adjusted revenus and situsted
perating profit are pr d for both FY 17/18
and £Y 16/17 as Akernative Performance
Measuras (APMs). FY 17/18 adjusted numbers
are presented on pre—FRS 15 basis. FY 16717
Image removed djusted rumbers are p d a5 per last
year's APM, for continuing operations.
2. Before other ftems.
3. FY 17/18 reported on postFRS 15 bagls and FY
16/17 on a reported hasls,
4, Theorder book s presered In fine with IFRS 15
requirerments for both £¥ 17/18 and £Y 16/17.
Vicky
Housekeeper,
Cleaning




Our purpose

Our expertise, care, technology
and insight create amazing work
environments, helping our customers
be exceptional every day.

Opportunities
to progress }m
Free to make
dedsions Our promise to A personal prid
our peopie #n our work
Reward for A place to work where
great work you can thrive and be Closer working
your best every day . relationships
Trust and Our promise to
respect our customers Brilkant
A trusted pariner focused on basics
adding value to your bottom
ne, while creating exceptional intelligent use
envirenments for your of technology
customers and people
Insights that
make a difference

Our Vision and Values are built on the simple premise
of ‘The exceptional, every day’ — our overarching
commitment to both our customers and to our colleagues.

The excaptional, everyday | www.mitle.com 1
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We are
One Mitie

image removed

We work as one to deliver a

seamless, unrivalled service.

We are all in it together,

if we can help a customer
or colleague in any way, we
will. We are One Mitie.

Miriam
Reception Supervisor,
Front of House

Tre exceptional, every day | www.mitla.com
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AT A GLANCE

Delivering the exceptional

through a range of services...

Delivering the basics brilliantly gives us the solid foundations
on which to create, build and tailor solutions that anticipate
and meet our customers’ needs.

Adjusted revenue FY 17/18

Property Management Enginsering Services

£237.9m £833.8m

Catering

£137.1m

Care & Custody

£62.3m

Clesning &
Environmentsl Services

£405.5m

£90.8m | £431.7

...to a blue-chip customer base.

Logo mroved | Loge d | Logo § | Logo Loga

Logo removed | Logosemoved | Loge removed | Logo removad | Loga removed
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OUR INVESTMENT CASE

Six reasons to invest in Mitie

We work in partnership with organisations to deliver long-term savings, managing
and maintaining some of the nation’s most recognised landmarks for a range of
blue-chip public and private sector customers. We are the UK’s largest Facilities

Management company employing 49,000 people across the country.
We are changing the future of FM through the pioneering development
of Connected Workspace technology. We are ambitious for the future

and for those who work for us.

kery strength
= Ieelligent use of smart technology
+ No relfance on any single or group

N N N

Exceptional cllents and a High retention rates and Proactive Group
broad range of services significant order book management

« Broad cllent base across both the * Long-term relationships as a trusted + Creation of One Mitie through a
private and public sectors partner supporting our single employing entity and the

* Professional Services provide customars’ stratagles simplification of the group structure
strategic differentiation « NPS score of -10 sets the basaling — + Commitment to strong and

« Our abiiity to self-deliver isa & +17 points Improvemnent over past transparent finandal management

12 months = Strong covenant headroom

« Stable arder book at £4.5bn reparted
under IFRS 15 guidelines

+ Reafigned dividends to
underlying performanca

as Microsoft and Vodafone

of customers
« 35%in public sactor work and 65%in
private sector contracts
innovation and Transformation Winning
technology capabliities programme culture
= Major investment in technology to ¢ One year into threeysar * New Purpase, Vision and Values to
underpin next genaration FM programme, progressing well detiver ‘The exceptional, every day’
s Data anatytics and insight enable and « Discovery done, now In * One Mitie approach to
enhance customer dellvery phase doing business
workplace performance = Majority of back-office « Apiace to work where our
« Connected Workspace offering transformation well advanced employees can thrive and be their
increasingly important to « Investing to generate optimum best every day
customer proposition operating model * We recognise great work, reward and
« Ploneers In FM Innovation o ¢.£50m of overall run-rate savings by celebrate it
s Partnership with market leaders such March 2020 * A 10.7% improvemnent in staff

EE——

turnover in @ transformational year

The exceptional, every day | www.mitie.com 5



Chalrman’s statement

Focused transformation
in a challenging market

Image removed

Darek Mapp, Chairman

“It has been a year of good progress
at Mitie, though not without its

challenges.”

Desar Mitie Shareholder,

Overview

| am delighted to be presenting my first annual revlew to you as
Chairman of Mitie Group pic (Mitie).

This has been a year of discovery, transformation and change for
Mitle, all set against a challenging and, at times, difficult market.
The outsourcing sector has been in the spotiight with the demise
of Carillion, and the challenges faced by many other firms across
the wider sector

Outsourcing and, more specifically, Facilities Management, Is a
relatively new industry where the early benefits derivad from
aconomies of scale and expertise have now, largely, bean eroded
away. Third, fourth and even fifth generation contracts have
resulted in low margins for providers and few cost give-aways for
customers, However, technology and scale remain opportunities
for the sector and what has become clear is that these need to
be delivered In tandem with 2 wholesale industry-wide
commection In the pricing of risk; contracts need to correctly
account for price, quality, certainty and timeliness of delivery.
The collapse of Caritlion, the challenges faced by almast every
other industry participant, a5 well as the fallure of many other
individual contracts to be delvered on budget, on time or at the
quality required, show that wholesale sector recalibration is
needed for the economics of FM to continue to be sustainable.
We are pleased to see that this is already happening; as we
engage with government, prospective customers and existing
clients, the focus is moving subtly away from just cost and
towards value,

6 www.onitecom | The exceptional, every day

Strategy

Wit is a strong resllient business, with a broad and diverse
client base, and a frontline workforce with specialist skills,
expertise and experience. it Is also now one year Into a major
three-year transformation programme under the stewardshig of
CEO, Phil Bentley. All discovery work has been completed and
the business is now firmdy in axscution and delivery mode.

The four-pillared strategy launched in June 2017 Is shaping the
direction of the Group and the business is continuing to make
significant investments in technology, smart analytics and
data-led insight.

Operationally the business has made major strides forward in
the last 12 months, removing complextty, duplication, upgrading
and simplifying processes, professionalising and understanding
the true drivers and levers of the business.

The accounting review completed in June 2017. Recommended
changes to reporting and the contrcl enwironment are
progressing and being monitored by the Audit Committee.

The Financlal Reporting Council’s [FRC) Corporate Reporting
Review of the annual report and accounts of Mitie for the year
ended 31 March 2016 completed in November 2017, with no
further action required of the Company. Although the FRC
continue, under the Accountancy Scheme, to investigate
Members formerly involved with Mitle, including Deloitte {the
Company’s former auditors), neither the Group nor current
management are the subject of this investigation.

We have also provided extensive material for the Financial
Conduct Authority (FCA} investigation In connection with the
timetineass of a profit warning announced by the Company on
19 September 2016 and the manner of preparation and content
of the Company’s financial information, position and results for




the period ending 31 March 2016. We are continuing to
co-operate with the FCA, but at this time have had no Indication
as to when thelr investigation may be concluded.

People & Community

1 would like to acknowledge that this has been a challenging year
for many of the people working at Mitie, especially for those
interacting every day with our customers. Our own
transformation programme, the volatility in the share price and
wider sector turbulence have fuelled the uncertainty that comes
with change. Yet, despite this, the team at Mitie have
demonstrated an unwavering commitment to providing
exceptional customer service and to going the extra mile, and )
would llike to persanally thank them for their dedication and
hard work. The Board and | 3l joined the Mitie management
team in going ‘back-to-the-floor’ for a shit in one of our
businesses, and we were incredibly imprassed by the
commitment and passion our colleagues have in all they do.

The Mitie Foundation, our charitable operation focusing on
employabilty, has had a good year. We continue to excel in
getting those In our soclety that are hard to reach, with
disabiities, with criminal convictions and with significant barriers
to employment, back into work. For the communities in which
we work the Foundation plays a very important role, and our
people and our customers can see the major impact it can have,
both on the lives of the indmiduals finding a job and on those
who are engaged in the process. During the year we have
extended our programme with Uoyxs Bank plc In Scotland, we
have engaged with the Co-op and look forward to working in
partnership with them to support vuinerable people, and we
have continued to work with a number of schoois, prisons and
other charities. We believe that the Foundation s vitally
important to the sustainability of our business and the
continuing role that we wish to play In our communities.

Results

Adjusted revenue grew by 2.8% - a solid result in the first year of
transformation, reflecting the good quality of our core business,
our market-teading positions and the strength of our broad
offering. Adjusted operating profit before other items, although
lower than the comparable FY 16/17 result, was in line with our
expectations and guidance. We delivered cost savings whilst
investing back into our core capabilities and customer service,
We continue to operate comfortably within our debt covenants
and our order book Is strong.

Dividends

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 2.67p, taking
the total dividends for the year to 4.0p. Going forward we expect
the Interim dividend to be approxdimately one third of the
previous full-year dividend. We expect to hoid the dividend flat
until, at least, completion of the transformation progrmmme
when we will review the dividend policy.

Board and Corporate Governance

Since the commencement of my role as Chairman In July 2017,
the composition of the Board has been further reviewed, leading
to several key appointments during the year.

In July 2017, we announced the appointments of Jennifer
Duwvalier and Mary Rellly as Non-Executive Directors, joining the
Board In July and September respectively. In November, we
welcomed Paul Woolf as Chief Financial Officer and Philippa
Couttie as a Non-Executive Director.

Additionally, as announced in February 2018, we appointed
Roger Yates as a Non-Executive Director with effect from

1 March 2018. Roger will succeed Larry Hirst as Senijor
independent Director upon Larry’s retirement from the Board

at the Annual Genersl Meeting (AGM) In July 2018 after more
than eight years’ service. | would like to thank Larry for his long
service to Mithe. Mark Reckitt wiil stand down from the Board at
the 2018 AGM after three years’ service. | would also like to
thank Mark for his contribution to Mitie. Mary Rellly will succeed
Mark as Chair of the Audit Committee.

Our new appointments have significantly strengthened and
widened the areas of expertise and experience on the Board.

Outlook

It has been a year of good progress at Mitie, though not without
its chalienges. The magnitude of the Intenal restructuring and
the number of things that have needed to be Ted’ are far more
significant than was eariler anticipated. However, much of the
heavy-iifting ks now complete, and we ane moving through each
stage of our transformation methodically and systamically.

As the Facilitles Management sector slowly steadies itself, 1 am
confident that Mitle Is Increasingly well placed to be an active
and significant participant in the future of the industry. Our dear
strategy, our focus, our strong management team, our scale and
our market leading positions all play to our advantage. We are
ploneers in the roll-out of technology, and this is further
strengthening our leading positions in UK FM.

We expect to report modest top-line growth {pre-IFRS 15) next
year ahd we remain commiited to medium-term margin
improvement to around 4.5%-5.5% In the future. We remain
confident in our ability to buiid shareholder vaiuve.

Derek Mapp
Chalrman

@
Markat revisw on pp. 10-11
Our investment case on p. 5

Defivering on our strategy on p. 15
Chief Executive’s review on pp. 12-14

Peopie & Community on pp. 38-41
finance review on pp. 44-49
Board of Directors on pp. 60-63
Nomination Committee on pp. B4-87
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Business model

How we deliver value
to our stakeholders

We take care of the essentials brilliantly, so that our

customers can deliver the exceptional every day.

WHAT SETS US APART fRONM OUR PEERS

WHAT WE DO

We are the UK's leading

FM business with market-
leading positions, scale

and a broad customer base.
Our expertise, care, technology
and insight create amazing
work environments, helping
our customers be exceptional

every day.

O

Please see At a glance on p. 4 for the range of services Mitie
provicles and Operating review on pp. 22-31 for information on
our operational performance during FY 17/18

Further reading:

Stlagyinactiononpp. 1519 XPlon pp. 15-17

Srwzstrment case on pp. 5 Culiurn and valuss on pp. 1and 38
Markst review on pp. 10-11 Nk on pp. 50-57

@ Our vision Enginesring
Services
@ Our values
@ Our people and culture Secwity
@ Our specialist UK focus
Profassionsl
@ Our nation-wide Services
reach and full range
of services Clesning &
Environrmental
(6) Our service self-delivery | Services
(7) our flexibility, offering | Care 8
tailored services Custody
Our proprietary Caterl
technology approach h
to innovation
(9) The breadth and diversity | yparaeorent
of our client base

8 www.mitlecom | The exceptionol, every day




WHO WE DELUVER FOR

Employees

We develop a great working environment where
our employees can thrive and be thalr best every day. We are proud
of our people, our diversity and the opportunities we offer for
career development,

Customers

We take cace of the essentiaks brilliantly so that our customers can
deliver the exceptional every day, We Save our customers money,
give them data-led Insight and build close working relationships
with them.

Shareholders

We are a businass In tumaround with strong management, an
excellent customer base and a clear strategy. We are committed to
strong financial management and the creation of shareholder value.

Communities

Through the Mitie Foundation we provide opportunities for ieaming
and employment; we employ 49,000 people in the UK and are

proud of the scale and diversity of our workforce and the breadth of
skills and expertise our employees offer to our clients.

Suppliers

We are committed to the heaith of our supply chain;
through partnership, sustainability and the opportunity
to share our vahies,

The sxceptionnl, every day | waw.mite.com 9



Marioet review

A world of opportunity

We focus on self-delivery across the UK and are increasingly introducing

smart technology in our offering.

FM industry

The UK remains Europe’s largest and most mature FM
market, as well as its most sophisticated. As growth slows,
new opportunities are becoming more kmited and
confined to specialised services. Customers are focusing
an more flexible services and delivery options and are
showing a growing interest in technology, sustainability
and employee wellbeing. As a result, there remains a
significant opportunity in the UK FM sector with an
estimated addressable opportunity of £45bn.

The past 12 months have been turbulent for the FM
industry with the liquidation of Carillion, Caphta’s
snnouncement of its transformation programme, and
heightened scrutiny Into public sector outsourcing
more generally.

KEY MARKET DRIVERS

L

Mitie is the UK's largest facilities manager but with only a

4% market share. We are Jeaders In the development and
application of Connected Workspace technology and are

pioneers of next generation FM services.

Qutsourcing Is typically shielded from economic cycles,
benefiting from increased customer cost-cutting focus in
time of economic slowdown, and from contract expansion
in economic upturns. We belleve our national footprint
and multi-service proposition remain compelling and a
clear differentiator.

Mitie has actively engaged with its customers and
stakeholders during the tast 12 months, providing context
and assurances. We have seen limited impact on our
operational business as a result of competitor or industry
activity, and we remain fully focused on our transformation
programme and the execution of our strategy.

HOW WE ARE RESPONDING

10 www.mitle.com | The exceptional, every day

UK economy

Brexit continues to generate uncertainty within the UK
economy. UK real GDP growth slowed from 1.9% in 2016
to 1.79% in 2017, the weakest since 2012 as consumer
spending slowed and businesses held back on investment.
The expected growth in 2018 Is 1.5%.

The Organisatian for Economic Co-operation and
Development forecasts that economic growth in the UK
is to remain modest at 1.4% in 2018 and 1.3% in 2019,
owing to high uncertainties about the oxticome of Brexit
negotiations. There is little slack in the economy following
years of strong growth, and unemployment is projected
to remain below 5%. Inflation Is projected to fall gradually
1o slightly above the 2% target of the Bank of England by
the end of 2019,

Potential Brexit Impacts are expected to be minimal at
Mitie, though could be felt In wage Inflation and we have
budgeted for Increasing remuneration costs in FY 18/19. In
Catering, our only business-to-customer division, we have
seen some impact from food price inflation. We have
responded to these pressures by offering menu variety
and a wellbeing focus.

More broadly, acrass the Group, we are reshaping our
business with a laser-focus on our key value drivers:
customers, costs, technology and people. The transformation
programme is beginning to deliver significant cost savings
and efficiency gains, which will help us protect our margins.

Public sector services constitute ¢.35% of Mitie's business,
with our biggest client being the Home Office through

the recently won Detention & Escorting contract.

We belleve there are further opportunities for Mitie

in the public sector.




Customer expectations

Customer expectations are evolving with a growing
interest in sustainability, wellbeing and technology,
reducing costs and improving the working environment
and employee satisfaction and health. Customers continue
to want different FM service options induding single-line,
bundied, integrated and managed services.

Customers are increasingly looking at flexible workspace
solutions and demanding rzal-time data, analysis and
insights which potentially lead to improving the
performance of their estate as well as the performance
and wellbeing of their people.

We are developing and embedding across our own and
our customers’ businesses our Connected Workspace
technology. This includes an open source platform which
can integrate with multiple systems and data sources,
perform advanced data analytics and deliver solutions
through easy-to-use customer interfaces. We are
future-procfing the business through technology and
have a number of Connected Workspace partnerships
already deployed.

Our nation-wide flexible offering remains attractive anwd
the self-deltvery model coupled with the smart use of
technology ensures that service expertise and consistent
delivery are at the core of every customer interaction.

We are ambitious for the future of the FM industry, our
customers and our employees. We have set out a dear
strategy to deliver growth and to pioneer next generation
facllities management.

Legislation

As a major empiloyer, we have to comply with the
developing legal and regulatory frameworks in areas such
as taxation, the National Minimurm Wage (NMW) and the
National Living Wage {NLW), the Apprenticeship Levy and
the Modern Slavery Act.

The NLW for workers aged 25 and over Increased by 4.4%
from £7.50 to £7.83 from April 2018. The NMW and NLW
are essential baseline protections for all workers, and the
government remains committed to ensuring that ak those
who are due the NMW or NLW receive it.

The Apprenticeship Levy is required from UK employers to
fund new apprenticeships and charged at a rate of 0.5% of
an employer’s payroll, By law all employers must offer a
workplace pension scheme to eligible employees.

Pressure on margins for our core UK FM business will
likely continue as labour costs increase {driven by rising
NMW, NLW, the introduction of the Apprenticeship Levy
and increases In employer contributions for pension
auto-enrolment), The majority of our existing contracts
already contain a change-of-law clause. However, going
forward all our new contracts will contain such a provision,
helping us protect our margins. We are looking to utllise
the Apprenticeship Levy for frontline staff training and
development. We are also moving beyond a Tabour-plus’
model towards more value-added services, At the same
time, technology plays an increasing role in Mitie's future.

We pakl £4minto the Apprenticeship Levy scheme in
FY 17/18.

The impact to Mitie from workplace pension scheme was
£4m in FY 17/18 and in FY 18/19 it is expected to be £8m.

The exceptional, everydoy | www.mitle.com



Chief Exeoutive’s review

A year of discovery

and transformation

Image removed

Phil Bentley, Chief Executive

Dear Mitie Sharehoides,

| am very pleased to be uptating you on my first full year as CEQ
of Mitie Group pic. it has been a year of discovery, simplification,
transformation and significant change. And | firmly believe we
have made much progress In the last 12 months, bullding the
foundations that will ensure Mitle continues to be atthe
forefront of the UK Faciiities Management industry.

| have two primary roles as a CEO. The first Is to lead and inspire
an incredible Mitie worlforce of 49,000 people the length and
breadth of the country. From gritting the roads overnight when
the winter snows fall, to cleaning and polishing the floors of
some of the UK’'s most iconic Institutions, to providing
sophisticated security schemes for high street retailers, to
feeding Britain's hungry workforce — | have been impressad,
and occasionally humbled in the last 12 months by my Mitie
colleagues going that extra mile.

The second Is to bulld a business that Is fit for purpose and fully
responds to the needs of our customers. We need to be true
partners to our dients, shating in value creation, benefiting
together from advances in technology and together, aspiring to
be truly exceptional in all that we do. That means me getting out
there talking with our customars and in the last year, | have
visited 2 huge number of them. 5o important is the work of our
frontline staff for our customers, that this year | tasked the
100-strong Mitie Group Leadership Team 1o aach undartain a
frontline shift In our operations, Listening, learning, hearing
about the ideas our staff and customers have for how we could
do better Is invaluable in shaping our future.

| beiieve If the strategy s right, our staff are engaged and our
customaers are happy — we have the recipe for success. This will
then dellver long-term sharsholder value.

12 wewanitie.com | The excepticnal, every doy

“We are implementing a major
transformation programme,
addressing challenges and
opportunities as they arise, whilst
focusing on our medium-term
strategic goals.”

Strategy and transformation
The strategy that we set out this time last year has provided a
strong framework for our actions in the last year. We are
executing a wholesale transformation of the Group ina
challenging market. We are actively engaging with our private
and public sector customers, our regulators and our other
stakeholders to help bring about the changes our sector needs
to thrive, and there are a significant number of projects and
deliverables that we are driving forward. By using the four
strategic pillars of our overarching strategy — customey; cost,
and peopie — we have remained focused on the task
in hand and | am confident in our ability to delfiver on
our ambitions,

P> Putting our customers at the heart of our business
We have put a major focus on our customers. Mitle has a diverse
and impressive list of over 3,000 major clients and we firmly
believe making them happy will drive our own business sucoess.
Historically Mitle engaged with #ts customers in a somewhat
fragmentad way, creating confusion for them and making client
servicing as well a3 cross-selling for us, more difficult. To address
this, we have undertaken » full sudit of our customer portfolio;
we have centralised the commercial and sales function so that
our customers have one primary point of contact with the
business; we have implemented one CRM system that gives us
valuable, accurate Insight across our business units; and we are
deploying a standardised internal approach to engagement,
dataflow and reporting. We have also centralised our bid
processes ancl have initiated a formal New Business Committee
for all commarcial opportunities. And we have rolled out a
Group-wide Net Promoter Score programma to understand
what our custormers really think. The outcome of this is that we
have more efficlent, less costly, more customer-focused teams;




and our customers are increasingly enjoying simpler access, ease
of navigation around Mitie and greater visibility of their account
team. We have more stil to do but we expect to reap further
benefits from these actions in the year ahead. Our Net Promater
Score across our top 100 accounts grew by 17 points and the
revenue from our top 40 customers grew 9% year-on-year.

» Transforming our cost base

In June 2017, we launched Project Helix, to kck start changing
the DNA of Mitle. This ambitious three-year programme involves
the simplification of our structure, the standardisation of
internal processes, the rationalisation of our systems and the
removal of spans of management and layers of Inefficiencies.
We knew that there was considerable work to be done, but we
also knew that it wouid deliver signtficant cost savings and
operational upside. The scale of the task Is larger than we
originally anticipated, but we belleve the upside will be

greater t0o.

We have almost completed the full transformation of our
Finance function, including outsourcing our back-office
procasses to Genpact In Kolkata. We are near completion of our
HR restructure with a mew centralisexi HR organisational
structure and 3 new Group-wide HR operational system (SAP),
replacing multipie legacy systems. We have fully collapsed the
highly fragmented ‘Mitie earn-out model’ and we are intending
to move from over SO legal entities towards one operational
reporting entity in FY 18/19, greatly simpitfying our internal
processes and systems, reducing internal recharging and
streamlining almost every aspect of the business. We have built
a small dedicated transformation project office, tasked with the
sequencing and coordination of the Group’s turnaround.
Working closely with the Executive Leadership Team, they will
focus in the year ahead on our IT and Engineering Services
technology transformation programmes.

As at March 2018, this programme has delivered annualised cost
savings of £13.2m, and we expect this to rise to annualised cost
savings of £50m by March 2020.

We are one yaar Into our three-ysar programme and we have
more t0 do here but our ambition remains to be the most
efficient, value-focused technology-led company in our industry.

P Buliding a winning culture and developing and
retaining our people

Mitie is a people business, and our aim Is to build a company

where each of us can thrive and be the best that we can be,

every day.

We have launched our new “Vision, Purpose, Promises and
Values' acrass the organisation under the banner headiine of
"The exceptional, every day’ This articulates and embodies who
we are, what makes Mitle great and where we are taking the
company. It recognises the importance of our people, our
culture, our customers, the role technology plays in our future,
and the Journey we are on. They articulate the glue that binds
us. This is an important step forward as we seek to deliver ‘One
Mitie’. Looking ahead we will be embedding these new values in
all aspects of our organksation, including our annual
performance review, our recruitment, in all our marketing and
customer communications and In our extemal engagement. You
can find further information on our new Vision, Purpose,
Promises and Values on pages 1 and 38.

In the last year, we relaunched our Group Leadership Team
Forum and we have overhauled our internal communications
programme, We were also delighted 1o partner with Salary
Finance, launching an innovative new loan scheme for our staff,
which has had a significant uptake with over 1,400 employees
benefiting, helping our people with financial management and
removing the need for staff to use pay day lenders. As part of
the HR transformation, we have appointed a leading third-party
provider to manage the end-to-end process for hiring temporary
resources. We expect efficiency improvements as well as cost
savings from using the new provider. Looking forwand we will be
rolling out a new Learning and Development programme, an
executive mentoring and development scheme and we will be
looking to simplify reward and recognition across the Group.

In April 2018, we partnered with Aon Hewitt to run Mitie’s 2018
People Survey to set the baseline of our employee engagement,
I am pleased to say that the completion rate was 30% against
19% the year before — almost 15,000 Mitle employees have
responded to the survey. In a period of significant change,
employee engagement improved, but only marginatly, and we
have much mere to do here. We have evaluated the results and
identified the prioritles and will be implementing action plans to
drive the change needed to become a great place to work.

Mitie champions apprenticeships, and this year we employed
555 apprentices across the Group, 540 of whom were supported
through the Apprenticeship Levy. We belleve we are well
placed to offer exceptional opportunities for those seeking
apprenticeships in a wide variety of roles, and we are planning
to Increase the number and variety of apprenticeships that

we offer.

P investing In technology to make Mitie the easiest
company to do business with

Technology will be a core enabler for Mitle and Its customers in

the future. The FM industry s yet to capltalise fully on the

benefits of better technology, but Mitie is at the forefront of

early adoption.

Our Connected Workspace technology — our smart’ propesition
— helps buildings and people perform better. It ploneers the
combined use of sensors, data, expertise and intelligent insight
to give our customers information that Is invaksable, helping
them 1o improve the performance of their estates and their staff,
In the last 12 months Connected Workspace has been part of
29 successful Mitie bids and there are 44 further connected
warkspate propositions in the pipeline. Becoming a technology-
enabled business through our Connected Workspace offering,
we belleve, will be transformational for Mitie. See more on the
Connected Workspace on pages 18 and 19.

Leadership

Our Executive Leadership Team is now almost complete with the
appointment in the |ast year of a new Group CFO, Greup HR
Director, Group Director of Corporate Affairs & Investor
Refations, Group Marketing & Strategy Director and new MDs
for our Engineering Services and Cleaning & Environmental
Services businesses. These appointments have brought valuable
blue-chip and change skills to the senlor team, We have also
attracted a number of experienced senior managers to the
Group Leadership Team during the year and the business Is
benefiting from their expertise, knowledge and diversity.
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Chief Executive’s review continuad

Business performance

This, undoubtedty, has been a year of significant change for
Mitie. We are implementing 8 major transformation programme,
addressing challenges and opportunities as they arise, whilst
focusing on our medium-term strategic goals. This has all been
set against the backdrop of a challenged industry in the
spotiight. Despite this, we have grown our revenues, reduced
our average daily net debt position and won some major new
customers and contracts.

We are part way on our journey and we are making good progress.
Adjusted revenue was 2.8% up st £2.2bn on the prior year,
although adjusted operating profit before other bems recduced to
£77.1m from £82.0m. The order book grew 2% to £4.5bn and is
reported under IFRS 15 guidelines which mandate us to include
only fixed-term contracted work and exclude variable work.

Care & Custody has been the stand-out division this year, winning a
notable £525m 10-year contract t provide Detention 8 Escorting
services for the Home Office. Engineering Services and Security
have also had a good year In terms of revenues and contract wins.
Cleaning & Environmental Services, pleasingly too, has stabifised
sales after a recent decline. Property Management has not
performed as well 3s hoped, though this has in part been a result
of the distraction of a terminated sales process; the business is
beginning now to focus on key social housing opportunities.

Professional Services continues to win consultancy and project
management work, though this has In part been offset by the
full-year impact of waste contract losses in the previous year.
Of particular note is the traction we are now seeing In our

Connected Workspace proposition, moving from pilot phase Into
expansion of initial engagement with a number of customers,
such as a European financial services company, an energy drink
company and a financial services group. Our Technology and
Remote Operating Centre in Bracknall opened this year and
provides a perfect forum to showcase our own smart, connected
technology to dlents.

Balance sheet management has been a core focus for us this year
and will continue to be going forward. We are committed to
reducing our customer irvaice discounting, normalising debtor and
creditor days, asking clients for falr payment terms, streamiining
our billing processes arl defivering faster cash collection, Our
efforts have seen a notable decline in average daily net debt and
we are operating comfortably within our debt covenants,

Looking ahead

Change and transformation are never easy or without challenges.
Mitie is fundamentally a strong business, with great customers,
outstanding staff and a real opportunity ahead of it. We want to
be shaping the FM industry as it continues to evolve, using our
unrivalled expertise, our pioneering technology and our ambition
to propel ourselves forward. We have more to do, but we are on
track and | am pleased with the progress to date, With an uptick
in revenue, a normalising balence sheet, a good order book, a
focused execution plan and experienced leadership, | believe
Mitie is well positioned for growth in the upcoming years.

Phil Bentley
Chief Exscutive

Net Promoter Score (NP5)

NPS overview

The NPS methodology uses direct customer feedback to measure
the willingness of customers to recommend a company’s
products or services to others. We are committed to delivering
axpellent customer experience in support of our purpose to
help our customer be exceptional every day. in FY 17/18,

we started embedding NPS Into our operations as one of our
primary customer-focused KPls.

Qur approach

We conductad research between January and March 2018
with our top 100 customers (who account for over 50% of
our aggregate revenues), asking them to fill in a short online
survey to help us understand their opinions and to capture
an NPS rating for Mitie overall.

How likely would you be to recommaend Mitie to a friend or colleague?

2 I N
10 I N

NPS score 12
months aga

Current
NPS score

Year-on-year NPS
performance

+17 o Detractr

Qur performance: overall Group NPS score

Our NPS is a negative 10; however, it is an improvement
of 17 points in the last 12 months - a meaningful shift in
customers’ views of Mitie and a testament that we are on
the right track to have a positive impact on our customers.

Outiook and next steps

We will roll out a more extensive programme to cover a wider
and deeper section of our customer base. We anticipate that
achieving improvements in NPS will become increasingly
challenging but it is an essential part of our customer
engagement strategy. NPS will be built into our training plans,
ensuring our people are informed and empowered to
consistently deliver a great customer experience.

0 O
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Strategy

Delivering on
our strategy

Our four strategic imperatives frame our objective of growing customer lifetime value

by offering compelling propositions and delivering the basics brilliantly.

Customer

People

r Image removed

« We put our customers at the heart of our
business and have introduced a Net
Promater Score programme to track our
performance

* We build dlose working refationships with
customers to understand their needs and
deliver lifetime value

« We deliver the basks brilllantly so we can
then cross-sel, create, buikd and talior
compelling offerings for customers

Image rernoved

+ We are transforming Mitie Into a place to
work where our employees can thrive and
be their best every day

* We offer opportunities for individual

leaming, development and progression and
reward great work

* We empower our people to be free to make
decislons that improve our customer service,

every day

« Trust and respect among all our
employees irmespective of their seniority
are an essential cornerstone for our success

Cost

Technology

imoge removed ‘|

e Project Hellx Is changing Mitie’s DNA to
make it the most efficlent company in our
industry, with the lowest cost base

* We are embedding the Mitie Way of

doing things consistently across

the Group

We are Instiliing the ‘One Mitle’ culture to

deliver an unrivalled service

Image removed

* We are creating standardised platiorms
and applications across our business and
for our customers

* We are using predictive analytics and
algorithms in a unique way to generate
new Insights and opportunities for our
customers

= We are focused on developing tailored
seamless customer interfaces

* Wa are ploneers in the delivery
of next generation FM

The exceptional, every day | www.mitie.com
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Key Performance indicators

Monitoring our progress

Adjusted revenue’ growth (%)

Daescription
Revenue growth reflects the
health of our order book, our

2.8%

£2,140m £2,199m

Howwe did it

We are one year into our three-year
transformation programme to

Outlook

Our plan Is to achleve
3%-4% revenue growth in

abillity to upsell, pipeline of re-engineer Mitle's DNA_ We are the medium term.
potential opportunities, our bullding 8 world-class commercial
win and retention rates and team, investing In customer service
our broader reputation in and technology to drive customer
the sector. retention and win rates. We are
FY16/17 FY17/18  embedding One Mitie approach to

working with our customners and

winning new business.
Adjusted operating profit™* margin (%)
Description 3 0 b Howwe did it Outiook
The UK FM Industry s a = pS Our unwavering focus is on achleving Our madium-term plan i
mature market characterised 3.8% 3.5% internal cost savings through our 10 improve operating profit
by low margins. Historically, - Project Heltx. in FY 17/18, whilst we margin to 4.5%-5.5%.
Mitie has not been disciplined achieved some of the cost savings we
when bidding for contracts or had targeted, we also invested some of
with ks own costs. this back Into customer service and

internal capabiiities.

FY16/17 FY17/18

Average daily net debt (£m)
Description £ 50 How we did It Outlook
Our balance sheet heakh ls - m We reduced the average daily net debt Proactive management

of paramount imporance to
the long-term sustainability of
our business.

Net debt/EBITDA (x}

£336m
.

FY165/17 FY17/18

by £50m due to the £24m benefit from
higher average nvoice discounting and
improved working capital performance.

will be an ongoing theme.
Over the medium term,
we aim to continue to
reduce our average daily
net debt.

Oescription

Period end net debt/EBITDA
ratio is one of the debt
covenants used to assess our
financlal position.

<3.00x

.1-76" i

FY16/17 FY17/18

Howwe did it

The period-end net debt increased by
£46.3m to £193.5m as we focused on
normalising working capital and
reducing the use of Invoice discounting
at the end of the financial year. We
continue to operate comfortably within
our debt covenants.

1. Revenus and opersting profit margin st presentad on an APM besis: FY 17/18 pre-IFRS 15 and FY 15/17 per prior year APM.

2. Before other hems.

Outiook

Our objective is to bring
average net debt/EBITDA
to within 2x over the
medium term.

3. Order book for both yesrs reported under IFRS 15 guidelnes which mandete us o induds only fed-term contracted work ahd &eiude variable work.
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In the first year of our three-year transformation programme, the year

of discovery, we reviewed and identified relevant indicators to drive

the execution of our strategy and create value for all our stakeholders.

Order book® (Em)

Description 2 4(y How we did it Outiook

We are reporting the order . (o The order book grew 2.4%:; ES order We expect our order book

book under IFRS 15 guidelines £4392m E4,A495m book remained stable while the order to grow moderately

for both FY 17/18 and FY = book within Care & Custody grew as we embed our

16/17. This requives us to significantly on the back of the Connected Workspace

include only fixed-term Detention & Escorting contract win. offering in bids and

contracted work and exciudes These more than offset declines in contracts and drive our

variable work, such as cateting order books in other divisions. core businesses forward.

point-cf-sale. FY16/17 FY17/18

Net promotar scors (index)

Description + 1 7 How we diid it Outiook

NPS Is a measure for gauging Movement of +17 points is a significant This will be a core focus

the customer’s overall improvement and s testament to the and we will be further

satisfaction with a compary’s significant investment we have made developing our CRM

product of service and the in our customers this year. programme, our customer

customer’s loyalty to -10 communications and our

the brand. engagement this year.

FY16/17 FY17/18

Staff turmover (%)

Descrigtion 1 O 7(y How we did It Outioak

We measure the number of = « /' /70 Ourvoluntary turnover has reduced In FY 18/19, we will build an

employess leaving us 27.5% year-on-year due to investment in our the work to date, Introduce

voluntarily over a 12-month 16.8% frontiine managers; we are getting better technology to engage

period against our . better at hiring to common standards with cur employees, roll out

overall headcount. and Introducing SAP Success Factors a new leaming platform to
has improved our onboarding continue to develop talent
experience leading tn a more informed and streamiine hiring.

FY16/17 FY17/18  induction. We have launched new We will be reflecting our
common values, new values in a new set of
Mitie ‘behaviours'.

Learning and developmant spend (E/per head)

Description How we did it Outiook

Our learning and development Using the Apprenticeship Levy We will use a ‘Levy First’

spend per head covers a we have invested more in our people approach to fund training,

combination of compllance year-on-year providing development utilising the new Learning

training and development opportunities allgned to our Hub to facilltate digital

training using Internal and career pathways. learning and ensuring we

external nesources,

NOT
AVAILABLE

FY16/17 FY17/18

FY 16/17: Data unavailable.

The exceptional, every day | www.mitle.com
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Stratugy In action

Shaping the future of a
technology-led Facilities Management

company

Technology, customers and the Connected Workspace

The world of Facllities Management Is evolving fast. The sector
has faced a number of recent challenges, but with those
challenges we believe comes immense opportunity as the
industry takes stock, recalibrates and moves forward. Mitie s
ambitious for its future, Its customers and its employees and has
set out a clear strategy to deliver growth and to ploneer next
generation faciiities management. The Group’s strategy focuses
on four key pillars, customers, peopile, costs and technology. All
will play a critical role in differentiating our business. Mitie’s
vislon Is to deliver the exceptional, every day, through
outstanding customer service, supporting and motivating our
excellent people and, critically, the application of

advanced technology.

We strongly batieve that technology will be the comerstone
upon which our business delivers long-term, sustainable value
for our shareholders and customars. By focusing on our
technology development, we are Improving our own efficiency
and systems, Indirectly enhancing cur service delivery as well as
developing leading-edge technology-enabled propositions
directly for our customers. Mitie is proud to be at the forefront
of technology-enabled next-generation FM.

Our Connected Workspace phllosophy s already being
embedded across our own business and acrass our client
propasition. We are beginning to see the Initial benefits of this
approach as the Connected Workspace has been a core
component of 10% of our significant IFM or multi-service wins.
And we are beginning to see how deployment of this smart
technology is dramatically changing our own, and our clients’
working environments. Connected Workspace s helping
organisations create high performance work environments by
improving the performance of their bulldings and the wellbeing
and performance of thelr people.

18 www.amitiscom | The exceptional, every doy

At lts core, Connected Workspace is @ technology platform of
linked products and services. it includes:

* a‘data lake’ that collects, combines and processes data from
multiple sources and business functions. Advanced analytics
are then applied to this pool of data to provide new insights,
improving buliding performance, people productivity, the
working environment and cost to deliver. It is open sourced so
non-Mitie apps, portals and data sources can also be
connected to the platform;

= an analytical portal through which information, analytics and
insights are managed, communicated ard acted upon. This
provides real-time visibility and management of often large
complex operational estates — In a way that has before now
not been possible; and

» yser apps which provide the ability for bullding users to
interact with their environments.

Mitie's development of the Connected Workspace technology
platform Is marketdeading. it is designed to allow connection to
any external data or workflows, Is highly scalable, is purpose-
buikt for the specific needs of the FM and Corporate Real Estate
industries and has been developed with world-class technology
partners such as Microsoft.

By hamessing dats, creating insights and applying those insights
to Improve the performance of bulidings and people, the
Connectad Workspace tachnology platform: Is demonstrating
significant benefits for both Mitie and our customers through:

* improving cost control and reducing downtime: decisions
become real-time, data-driven and predictive which reduces
the cost 10 serve and increases the performance and
resilience of facillties;

« greater efficiency and higher productivity: previously hidden
data and insights enable processes, systems and resources to
be fine-tuned to optimise efficiency and productivity;

« talent attraction and retention: people are empowered to
adjust their working environments and services to sult their
own personal preferences. Life is made easier as friction is
removed from everyday activity; and

+ improved governance, compiance and reduced risk:
transparency of information radically improves governance as
information, processes and performance are easy to locate,
monitor and evidence.




Image removed

In FY 17/1B, Mitie was awarded a three-year contract with
the Co-op following a2 competitive tender process. Co-op’s
support centre in Manchester, One Angel Square, is one of
Europe’s most sustainable bulldings and is built to a
BREEAM ‘outstanding’ rating, achleving a record BREEAM
score on opening. Demonstrating its commitment to
warking with the Co-op, Mitie will make a significant
Investrent in implementing its Connected Workspace
technology at One Angel Square. Co-op and Mitie will
collaboratively implement tailoned technology to capture
and manage bullding usage data, This includes monitoring
a number of environmental elements such as temperature
and occupancy. Mitie will harness this data and use the
insight to make both the Co-op’s bulldings smarter and the
working lives better for its employees. The initiatives will
improve space utilisation for workstations and meeting
rooms, and enhance employee wellbelng through active
environment control and wellbeing monitoring.

Connected Workspace has been part of 29 successful Mitie bids
and there are 44 further Connected Workspace propasitions in
the pipeling. Further, Mitie cusrently has nine dedicated pilots
deployed, with a further 14 in the planning stage. 5,000 sensors
have been Instalied providing two mililon messages 2 day into
the data kake.

Following the announcement In June 2017 that we were
working with Microsoft to defiver on Mitle’s vision for the
Connected Workspace, the relationship has deepened.

Microsoft has provided the expertise, skills and technology
Infrastructure to support the development and roli-out of the
core Connected Workspace technologles. We have accelerated
the development of Mitie’s Azure-based data lake, the Ingestion
of data from both Internet of Things {ioT) devices and
operational platforms.

Mitle and Microsoft teams have collaborated to ensure
Connected Workspace design and architecture are both open by
design and secure by design, enabling Mitie to integrate with
many building management systems and loT device
manufacturers, as well as acting as an integration platform on
Azure. This strong and strateglc collaboration will allow the
Connected Workspace to enable a safe secure dient experience
for all of our customers.

Becoming a technology-enabied business through our
Connected Workspace offering, we belleve, will be
transformational for Mitie and for the industry as a whole. We
are committed to continuing to reduce costs for our customers,
improve their employee experience, raduce our own cost to
serve and improve the mangin structure of our business, We are
excited about a technology-enabled FM sector, and we are
committed to being at the forefront of the future of Facilities
Management.
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We are built on
integrity and trust

Integrity and trust are at
the heart of all we do.

Our employees are the face
of the company. We treat
others as we would like to
be treated. Our people are
proud to work for Mitie.

Joshua
Groundskeeper,
Landscapes
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Operating review

Operating review

To enable an effective comparison of our performance, adjusted
revenue and adjusted operating profit are presented for both FY
17/18 and FY 16/17 as Alternative Petformance Measures
(APMs). FY 17/18 adjusted numbers are presented on pre-IFRS
15 basis. FY 16/17 adjusted numbers are presented as per last
year's APM, for continuing operations, restated to reflect
changes in management reporting implemented in 2018 for
certaln business unit activities transferring between segments.
The order book is presented for continuing operations In line
with IFRS 15 requirements for both FY 17/18 and FY 16/17.

Engineering Services

Mitie Engineering Services (€5) Is & leading provider of
engineering services In the UK, delivering technical and buliding
maintenance services across a wide range of sectors and real
estate assets.

We focus on customer experience, providing the best
technology-integrated solutions and bullding long-term
customer relationships. To complement our core offering, the
division also supplies specialist services in heating, cooling,
lighting, water treatment and building controls.

Performance
[ BAIMAE W I1EAT Changs %
Revenue Reported™  B40.7 789.1 65

Adjusted®  §33.8 803.7 37

Operating profit/{loss)
before other tems Reported' 458 (45} nam

Adjusted? 355 330 7.6

Order bool® 2,064.22/095.2 (15}

1. FY 17/18 reported on post-FRS 15 beals anef FY 18/17 on a reported besis,

2. Presustad on an Aemastive Performance Measure (APM) basis: FY 17/18
pra-IFRS 15; FY 16717 par prior yaar APM.

3 mmmmmwmumsmm
mandste us o include only fied-term onracted work and anclude
variable work,

Operational performance

N FY 17/18, we enhanced the quality and efficiency of the service we
provide to customers by creating more effective operational teams
and streamiining Internal processes; in FY 18/19 we will be further
investing in state-of-the-art technology to cortinue this programme.
As part of the overall re-shaping of the Engineering Services business,
we have focused on reducing layers and increasing spans of control.
As part of our One Mitie approach we have centralised our Group
Sales team, who service our key national accouts, to ensure our
customers receive the highest quality of care and sesvice.

During the year, we continued to invest in our key client
relationships. We aiso introduced Cliert Operations Exacutive roles
(aligned with the sales structure) to drive clear acoountability for the
overal! performance for our largest and most valuable customers.

To support our growth strategy, we have embarked on a
multi-year transformation as part of the Mitie-wide Project Helix
programme and we are already beginning to see the banefits of
this. In FY 17/18, we faced a number of challenges in our
operational delivery, but we are now starting to see major
improvements in engineer utilisation and service delivery.

We have made notable progress in the following focus areas:

clearly defining our core operational metrics;

sharing best practice on-jab planning for our moblie workforce;
redesigning the crganisation for consistency andd
standardisation; and

listening more to customer feedback.

»

Key stats
* Wa look after 2.5m assets for Our customers.

* W handie c.1m reactive calls every year within ES.
* 2,700 engineers.
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Engineering Services in action

Image removed

We have seen impressive Improvements within our Flest
operations, where we reduced our hire wehicies by 247,
resulting in a 33% cost reduction, We have seen cost savings
of £100,000 through rigorous monitocing and improvemnent
plans, which resutted In fewer accidents and insurance
dhalims. We won the ROSPA award In 2017 for the health and
safety record on two of our big contracts. We have also seen
a 20% reduction in RIDDOR Accident Incident Rate per 1,000
employees over the past 12 months.




As part of the Engineering Services transformation programme,
we launched Mitie Innovate, which was introduced at the end of
2017. A pilot region in London was chosen to test and improve
initiatives before rolling them out to the rest of our national
team, As part of the initial roll-out, we conducted 20+ ride-
alongs with our mobile and site-based engineers to understand
how they went about their day and how we could help provide a
better experience for customers and our frontline teams. In the
eight-week period following the launch of Mitie Innovate, we
saw significant improvements in operational KPts from the
frontline; for example, our engineers were 6% more preductive
(completing more jobs per productive hour), with some
sub-regions improving by 20%. Their travel time reduced by 12%
with some sub-regions showing a decrease by 30%; and the
first-time fix rate improved by 4% with some sub-regions
Improving the first-time fix rate by 13%.

The integration of our core workforoe has created a highly
fiexible and skdlled team with optimal support systems.
Workflow management for scheduling, tasking and billing will
start to be introduced in FY 18/19 and our engineers will receive
enhanced training and tools to enable them to continue to
deliver the highest quality of service,

in the future, technology will be a key enabler for Engineering
Services. It will be deployed to link cutputs to the Connected
Workspace, generating actionable data insights and providing
the most responsive and valued service in the market. By using a
combination of existing building systerns and environment sensors,
along with energy, asset and workplace data, we are providing
tallored solutions to satisfy each dient’s unique requirements.

This year, Engineering Services won a multi-year contract for all
Co-op's corporate sites, a 5.5-year extenslon with Heathrow
Alrport and further work with the Scottish Government. We 2150
retained a significant contract with an NHS Trust. These wins and
extensions offset the previously announced loss of a top-20
contract and of another, dug to a merger.

Financial performance

The Engineering Services diviston reported adjusted revenue
of £833.8m, an increase of 3.7% on the prior year of £803.7m,
driven by good performances from both Its core customer
contracts (growth of 3%) as well as growth in Its projects
business. Adjusted operating profit before other ftets was
£35.5m (FY 16/17 £33.0m) reflecting revenua growth and higher
Bross margins on net new contract wins versus losses. Cost
savings from Project Helix were fargely reinvested back Into
improvermnent in customer service levels, staff training

and tachnology.

Notwithstanding the loss of an important top 20 contract, the
outicok remains positive. We achieved a number of contract
extensions and new business wins during the year, meaning the

order book remains relatively stable at £2,1bn (FY 16/17: £2,1bn).

The business Is also planning a major investment Into Its
workflow technology over the next couple of years which will
improve the experience of our customers whilst also simplifying
the business enabling a reduction in costs to serve.

Outlook

The significant focus within the Engineering Services division for
FY 18/19 will be on our ongoing transformation. We have
commenced the scoping phase, looking into asset and workflow
scheduiing. We are coming to the end of the discovery phase for
the workflow transformation progremme.

The objective of this stage of the transformation is to fully

upgrade our end-to-end service delivery, from job receipts to

billing, via process re-engineering, operational restructure and

technology implementation. This will:

+ improve first-time fix and customer experience by having the
right detalls at enquiry;

¢+ increase efficiency through better resource planning by
matching right-skilled resource to the job;

» protect revenue and increase billing accuracy through
automating time-sheeting and proof of work;

« improve delivery through better engineering capacity
planning, upskilling labour and supply chain management; and

« better engage, inspire and manage our people.

Security

The Security division comprises Security Management, Front of
House, Document Management, and our employee vetting
business, Proclus.

Performance

m TR Fr 16/17 Chonge, %

Revenue feported® 4320 4037 7.0
Adjusted? 4317 4037 &9

Operating profit

before other kems  Reported! 225 178 S54.5
Adjusted’ 252 216 187

Ovder book® 6408 7243 (11.5)

1. FY 17/18 reported on post-iFRS 15 basis and FY 16/17 on a reported basls.

2. Presented on an Akernative Performance Measure (APM) basts: FY 17/18
pra-IFRS 15; FY 16/17 per prior yesr APM.

3, Ordder book for both years reported under IFRS 15 guidelines which mandate
us to Include only fhad-tarm contracted work snd esciude veriabis work.

Key stats
* We monitor 23,000 lone worker devices at MiTec.
* c.7m visitors welcomed by our Front of House teams.

* 13,000 sacurity personnel.
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Oparating review continued

Operatlonal performance

Our Security business is one of the market-leaders in the UK. The
combination of security-related businesses within a single division
allows us to develop our technology capabiities and solutions in a
collaborative and integrated way. Our goal is to build upon and
strengthen our mariet pesition; continue to influence buying
betaviours; and develop longer-term strategic partnerships with our
customers through innovative and technology-led operating modets.

Our strategy ks to provide 2 sustainable, high-quality service to our
austoiners that mitigates the: risks they face through employing
highly skilled personnel, enhanced and supplemented by integrated
technologies. This enables our services to flex and be deployed to
meet our customers’ indhadual risk profiles st any given time.

By providing innovative proprietary technology to drive a
risk-based deployment model, we save management time and
Increase efficiency. This results in effective front-line security
deployment, complemented by the latest technology. Our
clients benefit from a greater return on investment, exellent
customer service and an improved risk framework.

We are cumently the second largest security services provider in
the UK with a ¢.12% market share, We integrate and deliver a
full sulte of servicas and products, including security personnel,
emergency moblle response solutions, fire and security systems
inclusive of CCTV/alarm instaltation, and maintenance and
remote monhoring from cur convergence security oparations
centre {(MITec). This suite of services is supported by a risk-based
approach and industry-leading risk tools. We are the mariet
leading provider in the Transport, Aviation and Retail sectors.

In FY 17/18, Mitle’s Security division has renewed or expanded
several major contracts, including with DP World Southampton,
a major transport sector dlient, a major London Alrport, Fujitsy,
Durham University, Springfieids Fuets Limited and TNT, Customer
retention rate Improved to 93.5% against B4% in the prior year.
Notable new contract awards in FY 17/18 include a UK retaller, a
global delivery services company and The Royal Academy of Arts.
Document Management has had another robust year with client
retention running at 98% and good organic growth. Key new
customers indude a global investment bank and an international
law firm. We have seen the document management business
recognised with two national PFM awards for work with our
clients, PwC and Linklaters. Document Management launched
two new product lines in FY 17/18: document production and
axaminer services, both focused on servicing the legal sector.
The business has continued to develop its national coverage and
now has a full-service offering ranging from managed print
solutions and outsourcing of mall room activities, to a complete
customised restructuring of document workflows and processes.

Our Front of House business, Signature, has had a good year,
refocusing its market offering. The business has progressed
under new leadership and moved towards a closer alignment
with our wider security business, an example of this being the
award of The Royal Academy of Arts contract. Our new identity,
Signature, signifies a clear change in both the culture and future
direction of the business and Is underpinned by several
impactful progremmes to drive growth and sustainability,
particularly In new husiness wins and dient retention.
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Security Services in action
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n 2017, Prodius, our vetiing services business, completed an
impretsive number of chedds for the Aviation industry customers,
vetting 736 pliots, 2,508 cabin crew and 925 ground staft.

Procius, our employee vetting business, which is one of the UK's
largest vetting providers, and the leader In the Transport and Aviation
Sectors for pre-emplayment screening and criminal records checking
services, continues 1o deliver strong growth. In FY 17/18, we saw
increasing demand for our services across exdsting key customers in
the Aviation Sector slong with good contract wins, indudinga
matket leading logistics company, a leading company in the travel
and tourism sector and a Premier League football dub.

The security market remains highly competitive. We continue to
focus on delivering sustainable growth through strong customer
engagemant, the provision of a comprehansive service offering
and the promotion of the benefits of risk-basad technology-led
solutions. We strive to attract and retain our customers through
the provision of exceptional service,

Financial performance

The Security division grew its adjusted revenue by 6.9% In

FY 17/18 to £431.7m. This was achleved through new sales wins
and record low contract terminations (with a retention rate

of 93.5%). Adjusted operating profit before other items
Increased 16.7% to £25.2m with operational efficiencies and the
growing use of technology adding to the impact of the improved
top-line performance. Outside the main security businesses,
good performances from Document Management and Front of
House also contributed to the overall profit growth.

Innovation remains a core focus in Security. inFY 17/18 we
developed and expanded our contract with a leading
supermarket chaln, with the Introduction of SMART risk
technology and 5,000 lone worker devices, aiding the full
implementation of a risk-based deployment model.




Technology-driven accounts now make up c¢.12% of the business.
The order book is £640.8m, down from £724.3m, as the unwinding
of large multi-year contracts more than offset new wins.

Within the Security business, technology and the Connectad
Workspace play an increasingly important role for both our
existing and future customers, We have secured several excellent
technology-enabled contracts from developing existing and new
customers, incduding contract wins with an engineering company
and a tajor UK retailer. The contrel centre for the 10-year Home
Office Detention & Escorting contract won within Care & Custody
will be located at MiTec in Belfast. We saw continued growth of
contracts with legacy Fire customers, a telecommunications
company and a leading finandial services customer, and we also
secured new maintenance customers in the NHS and with Rexel.

Outlook

We are optimistic and ambitious for the year ahead. Our focus
continues to be on growing our Security business, offering
customers tallored solutions, Increasing the use of technology to
ensure a safe environment and provide seamless operations and
utilising data and analytics generated through our proprietary
Connected Workspace offering.

Professional Services

Professional Services {PS) brings together Mitie’s consultancy
services, This inchudes our Energy, Water and Sustainability
business, our Waste and Environmental consultancy and owr
Corporate Real Estate and Risk and Resilience operations. It is also
developing our Connected Workspace offering for the Group.

Performance

£m MATMA FY16/17 Change %

Revenue Reported 90.2 966 {6.6)
Adjusted® 908 966 (60)

Operating profit

before other tems  Reported? 6.5 6.7 {3.0)
Adjusted? 7.0 93 (24.7)

Order book® 755 815 {7.4)

1. FY 17/18 reported on post-iFRS 15 besls and FY 16/17 on a reported basis.

2. Presented on an Ahgrnative Performance Maasure (APM) basiss FY 17/18
pre-IFRS 15; FY 16/17 per prior year APM.

3. Order book for both years reported under [FRS 15 puidelines which mandate
us to include anly fed-term cortracted work and erfute vartabis wark.

Key stats
* Over 1,000 customer bulldings connected ta ROC.

¢ Over 3,000 enargy surverys conducted.
+ £1.1bn-worth of energy bi¥is validated each year.

Operational performance

Energy, Water & Sustainablility develop smarter ways to procure,
manage, comply, govern and optimise consumption. Waste &
Envircnmental focus on a sustainabllity-led ‘resource, not waste’
approach: understanding how waste is created and then looking
at how to avoid producing it in the first place, Corporate Real
Estate Services provide property and real estate services to
deliver exceptional, flexible working environments for our
clients. Risk & Resilience focuses on threat, risk and resilience
consultancy to help our clients manage their risks,

Connected Workspace custamer solutions work to develop and
deliver technology that unlocks workspace potential by harnessing
data to make bulldings smarter and working lives better.

During the year, within our recently established Professiona!l
Services (PS) division, the focus has been to bring together and
align a number of businesses and service offerings, combining
technical skills and teams to lay the foundations for future
growth. This has Included bringing in new senior leaders for our
Occupier Services, Risk and Resilience and Connected Workspace
businesses. In addition, we have added senior business
development staff to help drive sales actively across the division,

The division started FY 127/18 with the headwind of two contract
losses in Waste Management and the immediate focus was on
replacing these revenues, Contract wins during FY 17/18, most
significantly with two major manufacturing clients ensured that
the Waste Management business revenue neturned to growth in
2H 17/18. Notwithstanding the revenue Impact from the prior
year, the Waste Management team has delivered Improved
operating profit through a drive to simplify its cost structure and
focus on profitable revenues.

The Energy component of our Sustainahtiity business has
performed well with significant wins, including a contract with a
major telecommunications provider and a groutd-source
heat-pump project delivering significamt carbon and cost savings
to an engineering client. Consequently, It grew revenue by 16%,
also demonstrating growth In operating profit and margin,
Within the year we have brought our Water Management
business into the PS division to complemant our Sustainability
offering. We are restructuring this business to return it to growth
following the completion of 3 Mitle earn-out and the departure
of the previous management team at the end of FY 16/17,

We continue to win real estate consultancy and project
management work as demonstrated by the award of two new
significant international project management frameworks with
global technology businesses,

Our Connected Workspace offer has moved from early pliot into
deployment stages with a number of clients across Mitie and we
are pleased to report that we have opened our Innovation
Centre in Bracknell. Furthermore, we have agreed and
implemented strategic partnerships with various world-class
technology partners, including Microsoft and Vodafone. Working
across the Group, the PS division continues to define, design,
trial and sell our Connected Workspace technology solutions and
capabilities to assist our clients in Improving the performance of
their buildings and pecple.
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Operating review continued

We have seen significant Interest from existing and potential
customers in all areas of our business In our Connected
Workspace offering. We are now running nine live pilots at
customer sites, with ancther 14 currently In the pipeline. 5,000
sensors have been deployed providing us with two million
readings each day which are fed Into our data lake informing
inslgitt into bullding and people performance and offering
tangible solutions to our customers to Improve results and
save money.

Mitie’s commitment to transforming and improving customer
axperience and service is further demonstrated by the
imvestmaent in consulting services and support by the PS division.
During the year, our professional services colleagues were
deployed to work with our account management teams to drive
improvement In the customer experience and service for many
of our large FM clients, Givan the work carried out to date, we
do not expect the same volurme of investment in internally
focused engagememt to be required in FY 18/19.

Financial performance

The two major Waste contract losses in the prior finandial period
saw the PS division start the year from a lower base, and ovenall
the PS division reported adjusted revenue of £90.8m, down
6.0%. Adjusted operating profit before other items dropped to
£7.0m (FY 16/17: £5.3m), with good performances in Waste &
Sustainabiiity driven by operational efficiency measures more
than offset by imvestment In internal capabilities and In custormer
service, During the year the business also built Real Estate, Risk
Management and International service capabilities further
enhancing our consultancy offering.

The order book stands at £75.5m against FY 16/17 of £81.5m
with this reduction driven mainly by a re-evaluation of cur Water
Management onder book and the unwinding of large muiti-year
contracts, which have more than offset new wins,

Outlook

The division has recorded a number of contract wins at higher
margins during FY 17/18 and, with an energised sales drive to
generate new bhusiness in the year ahead, the division has closed
the year with strong momentum. The revenue pipeline in our
Real Estate Occupler Services consultancy, Connected Workspace
and International service ines has begun to show encouraging
growth; and our technology-led Connected Workspace strategy
continues to support growth opportunities across Mitie.

This momentum has delivered fourth quarter FY 17/18 revenues
8.9% higher than thosa in the first quarter, providing s better
trajectory Into next year,

Our focus is to act as a trusted partner to our dlients, cresting
exceptional environments for their customers and people and
adding value every day, With the provision of world-class
professional services, allied to intelligent use of technologies in
our Industry-leading Connected Workspace solutions, we create
insights and solutions that make a difference.
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Connected Workspace in action

Image rermoved

We are now running nine live pliots at customer sites, with
ancther 14 currently in the pipeline. 5,000 sensors have been
deployed providing us with two million readings each day.

Cleaning & Environmental Services

We are one of the largest cleaning services providers in the UK,
offering a full sulte of cleaning services as well as specialist
services, such as pest control, landscaping and

healthcare services.

Performance

£m IT8 FY 16717 Ohange, %

Revenue Reported” 4064 3556 2.7
Adjusted” 405.5 399.2 16

Operating profit

hefore other items  Reported’ 215 65 2308
Adjusted® 198 209 (53)

Order book! 6613 7360 (10.1)

L FY 17/AR reporwad on post-{FRS 15 basts snd FY 16/17 on a reportad basis.

2. Presented o an Aernative Performanca Measure {APM) basis: FY 17/18
pre-IFRS 15; FY 18/17 par prior yesr APM

3. Owder book for both yewrs reportad undet IFRS 15 guldelines which mendate
us to inciude only fowd-term contractied work and sachude veriable work.

Key stats

* Tan drone flight plots across the country.
« We supply 9.6m toliet rolls per year.

s 22,000 clsaning cpamtives.




Operational performance

Within Cleaning Services we offer cormmerdial and technical
cleaning. Landscape Services comprise commercial grounds
maintenance, hard landscaping, interior plants and winter gritting.
Pest Control Services consist of pest management and control.
Healthcare Services include ceaning, retall catering, security,
receptioh and the provision of helpdesks at healthcare fadilities.

This year the Cleaning & Environmental Services (CES) division
has stabllised following a period of decline; though It continues
1o face significant structural headwinds from service
commeoditisation, low barriers to entry and price competition.
During the second half of the year, we appointed a new
Managing Director for the division, Matthew Thompson, who
has wide Industry leadership experience, including eight years at
Compass Group where he was Managing Director of the UK
Sports & Leisure business, covering sector services, from
catering to cleaning. The division Is undergoing a significant
restructuring, and we expect It to stabilise further this year and
see steady improvement thereafter.

Despite a difficult trading year, the business continued to secure
contracts with high-profile customers, including a new major
muiti-service contract with a major UK retaller and the West
Hertfordshire Hospital NHS Trust and taking on the cleaning
services from Carllion at Heathrow TS, This major contract was
maobilised smoothly at extremely short notice.

The new multi-service contract with the West Hertfordshire
Hospital NHS Trust, worth £55m over a five-year termn with an
optional extension of a further two years, bullds on Mitie’s
existing strong portfollo of NHS dients. As part of the contract
Mithe will be investing in new technology, inciuding new digital
software to enable the helpdesk to communicate more
effectively across fts four sites, we will also be utilising
‘Moptimus Prime’, the next generation in robot cleaning.

As part of the three-year integrated facilities contract with the
Co-op, Mitle will be providing cleaning and landscaping services.

Our client retention rate for FY 17/18 was below expectations.
Our NPS score tells a similar story and, though showing an
improvement against the previous period, is stil negative
overall, The margin challenge in Cleaning Services has been
exacerbated by an unfavourable change in contract mix during
the year, We lost some high-margin contracts and at the same
time mablliised material new contracts. In the short term this
had an impact on the overall profitabHity of the business.

In response to the challenging cleaning sector market
environment, we are simpiifying our management and overhead
structure; focusing on delivering our basic service well; and
Introducing improved technology for better workforce
management. We are in the process of implementing
Workplace+, a hancheld-enabled, all-in-one operations portal
for scheduling, paysiips and supplies. The wide adoption of
Workplace+ will allow the business to better communicate with

our employees, measure and analyse productivity pattemns, and
enable rapid roll-out of best practices.

Financial performance

The CES division reported adjusted revenues of £405.5m (FY
16/17: £399.2m) and adjusted operating profit before other
items of £19.8m {FY 16/17: £20.9m). After a period of decline,
overall revenue was up 1.6% versus prior yeas, but the operating
profit was down by 5.3%.

The industry backdrop for our ¢ore Cleaning business is one of
general margin pressure, in FY 17/18, we saw this in several new
contract wins which, whilst revenue enhancing, were margin
dilutive. We expect to reverse this trend through Project Helix
cost savings together with improved execution under

new manuement.

Qur Landscape Services business had a good year with both
adjusted revenue and adjusted operating profit increasing.

The business retained existing contracts, and acquired new ones,
with particular success in the retall sector which has been a core
target over the past two years.

The Pest Control and Healthcare Services businesses also had a
solid year. Healthcare Services is a mulktl-service Mitle business,
providing not just deaning services, but portering, helpdesk,
In-patient and retail catering. During the year, the Healthcare
business addressed a number of difficult contracts, so we expect
it to show growth over the coming years.

The CES order book stands at £661.3m (FY 16/17: £736.0m) as
the unwinding of large muiti-year contracts more than offset
new wins.

Outlook

We belleve that by focusing on the basics of delivery, simpifying
the division’s structure, implementing new technology that will
enable us to Improve our oversll efficiency and communicate
better with our frontiine, we wiii further stabllise this business
over the coming year. We are focused on defivering profitable
growth in the future. Cleaning ks a highly competitive low-margin
mass-market business, but we believe that we can enjoy slightly
better margins than we have today, We also view cleaning as a
comerstone of our FM offering in building our client
relationships and successfully introducing the breadth and depth
of our services, including our specialist services.
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Operating review continued
Care & Custody

Our Care & Custody business delivers a range of public services
for vulnerable people In secure environments on behalf of the
UK Government.

Performance

£m FIIAE  FYIGAT Chomge %

Revenue Reported® 59.9 464 29.1
Adjusted® 62.3 464 34.3

Operating profit

before other items  Reported® 1.9 2.2
Adjusted? 32 29

Order book* 6701 2104 2185

L. FY 17/18 reported on postIFS 15 basis and FY 36/17 on & rehorted basic

2. Prmsented on an Alternative Performance Measurs (APM) basis: FY 17/18
pre-IFRS 15; FY 16/17 per prior ywar APM.

3. Order book for both yesrs reportad under IFRS 15 guidelines which mandate
us to Includs only fhec-ermn contracted work and exchude veriable work.

(23.6)
103

Key stats

« 1,300 detainees In our care on any given day.
« Leading provider of FME services in England and Wales.
* 2,100 custody professionals, incL doctors and marses.

Operational performance

Our services Include managing immigration removal centres for
the Home Office, Forensic Medical Examiner (FME) services,
custody support, sexaal assault referral centres and Ralson and
diversion services for police forces across England and Wales.
We also provide offender healthcare provision in two prisons on
behalf of NHS England and FM Services for the Ministry of
Justice In three secure facliities,

In December 2017, we were pleased to report that Care &
Custody had been awarded a 10-year Detention & Escorting

contract with the Home Office to provide Immigration services.

It is the largest ever contract for Care & Custody, worth an
estimated £525m. The award of such a significant contract
reinforces Mitie’s role as the largest supplier of immigration
detention services to the UK Government and will double the
divislon’s size in FY 18/19,

Mitie will be respons! ble for escorting immigration detalnees,
both within the UK and overseas. The contract, which started on
1 May 2018, alsa includes the management of a number of fixed
faclities throughout the UK, including alrport holding rooms,
reporting centres and two short-term holding facilides.
Technology development programmes will be at the heart of the
partnership with the Home Office, to transform the way that
Immigration escorting services are delivered. This focus on the
use of new and emerging technologies will modernise working
and operational practices to improve effidency ar de-

risk removals.

28 www.mitiecom | The exceptional, every day

In order to deliver high-quality services, Care & Custody needs to
attract and retain high quality and talented people; it is therefore
important we seek to create speclfic career paths and provide
access to training and education. For eample, we have created
a new nurse-led police Forensic Medical Examiner delivery
mode! where our lead nurses train to undertake over 90% of the
role previously defivered by general practitioners. This opens up
an opportunity for great career paths for our nurses and at the
same time our police dients have highly qualtfied dinical
professicnals located permanently at their custody suite sites.
This has the added benefit of dramatically reducing the waiting
time for detainees bafore their healthcare needs are assessed,
creating better outtomes for the service user and the police,

The business has secured c.£520m of new orders in the year. As
well as the significant Home Office Detention & Escorting
contract win, Care & Custody secured new contracts with several
police forces, induding Cleveland, West Mercia, Warwickshire,
Staffordshire and Nottinghamshire, further cementing Care &
Custody’s position as the leading supplier of services in police
FME and refated areas.

In FY 17/18, Care & Custody was awarded a three-year contract
by Nottinghamshire Police. Care & Custody will provide medical
SUppOrt services across two custody sultes in the county. A 24/7
team will operate at both 8ridewell and Mansfield sites, which
include over 100 custodial cells. The specialist Mitle team will
provide clinical assessments, address the immediate health
needs of detainees and provide patients with onward referral
pathways for ongoing heaith and wellbeing following custody.

Care & Custody already delivers these services to 13 police
forces across the UK. These include six Sexual Assault Referral
Centres and a Short-Term Holding Facility in Northern Ireland.
Care & Custody’s speclalist teams conduct over 180,000 medical
Iinterventions every year in 62 police custody facllities. This
expertise was instrumental during the Nottinghamshire Police
tender process, with scenario responses and the overall value of
its proposition setting Care & Custody apast from

the competition.

Not only does this contract bulld on the Care & Custody team's
strong track recortd, this new work with Nottinghamshire Police
establishes an East Midiands hub of expertise as it borders with
another existing Care & Custndy contract in Lelcestershive.

In March 2018, two of Care & Custody’s employees were
awarded Butler Trust Awards at 5t lames’ Palace. Dorothy
Coomber and Jackie Smart received certificates from HRH, The
Princess Royal. These awards recognise the achievements of
people working in prisons, probation, detention centres and
community and youth Justice settings across the UK.

Dorothy Coombey, Learring and Regimes Manager at Campsfieid
House Immigration Removal Centre, was recognised for the
significant contribution she has made towards the mental and
emctional wellibeing of detainees since joining Mitle In August
2013, Jackle Smart, Equality, Diversion and Inclusion Manager at
Coinbrook Immigration Removal Centre, has been recognised for
the support she has given to detainees and officers since 2005,




Financial performance

Care & Custody had a good year, delivering growth of 34 3% in
adjusted revenue, up from £46.4m In the previous year to
£62.3m. This significant growth is a result of a solid stream of
comract wins in custodlal and Forensic Medical Examiner
services throughout the year; as well as the mobllisation of the
Home Office Detention & Escorting contract. As the contract
only went live in May 2018, the maln benefits will be realised In
F¥ 18/19 and beyond.

Adjusted operating profit before other kems grew to £3.2m (FY
16/17: £2.9m). The growth was driven by the new contract wins
whilst the operating margin was diluted by business
development costs as we invested in building future growth.

The order book increased significantty to £670.1m (FY

16/17: £210.4m) foliowing the transformational Detention &
Escorting contract which will double the size of the Care &
Custody division.

Outlook

Our sales pipellne remains positive. There are major
opportunities with central government through the second half
of 2018 with decisions due in early 2019. Care & Custody Is well
placed to secure further growth as our scale and reach increase
and with few experienced competitors in our markets.

The success of the business Is built upon our ability to deliver
outstanding value-for-money public services to the people in our
care, whilst maintaining the confidence of our commissioners,
inspectors, regulators, government and the general public. Qur
leadership team is highly experienced, well-respected in the
market and focused upon bullding long-term relationships,
ensuring we have a clear understanding of our clients’ needs, so
we can develop service design solutions that meet and exceed
their expectations. We recognise that our policles and processes
must reflect and respond to relevant legisiation, and actively
embrace external regulatory scrutiny. We underpin these
principles by promoting a cuiture of openness, transparency
and high performance.

Care & Custody in action

imoge removed

1,200 detainees.

Mitie currently manages two immigration Removal Centres {IRCs)
on behaif of the Home Office, Campsfiekd House and Heathrow
IRCs. Together these currently have the capacity to house over

Catering

Our Catering divislon comprises Gather & Gather, our business
and industry catering brand, and Creativevents, our specialist
indoor and outdoor event catering business.

Performance

£m FYA1/I8  FY 15017 change N

Revenue Reported® 137.1 1343 2.1
Adjusted! 1371 1327 3.3

Qperating profit

before other items  Reported! 5.6 4.7 191
Adjusted? 50 53 (57)

Order book® 34.7 254 18.0

1. FY 17/18 reportad on post-{FRS 15 basis and FY 16/17 on @ reported basts.

2. Presented on an Ahemative Performance Measure {APM) bash: FY 17/18
pre-IFRS 15; FY 16/17 per prior year APM.

3. Orderbook for both years reportad under [FRS 15 guidefines which mendats
us toindude only fieed-term contracied work snd exchude vertatrle work,

Key stats
* 150,000 customers per day.

* 147,000 litres of used cooking oll converted into blofuel.
« We process 1m app purchases per year.
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Operating review continued

Operational performance

Gather & Gather provides companies and organisations with
in-house catering services directly for employees, In restaurants,
coffee shops and within corporate hospitality settings —
enhandng clients’ workplaces through Its founding mission of
‘bringing food and people together’. Creativevents is a speclalist
venue and event catering business providing bars, restaurants,

café and hospitality services to a wide range of prestigious
cllents across the UK.

Against the backdrop of continuing challenging sector dynamics,
including the continued Impact of food price and labour
inflation, as well as a2 general reduction in discretionary spending
across the hospitality sector, our Catering division has delivered
solid revenue growth, developed its pipeline and secured some
key new contract wins during the period.

Gather 8 Gather continues to offer a differentiated propasition
within a market which has undengone further consolidation over
the last 12 months. We continue to be a distinctive quality
alternative to the large corporate caterers who dominate the
mass market. Specifically, our market-leading technology
continues to drive consumer behaviour In our contracts, and as
testament to this, we were delighted to be recognised with a
Best Use of Technalogy Award by the Restaurant Marketer &
Innovation Awards in Jamsary 2018. Gather & Gather ks also
proud to have re-secured the maximum three-star rating from
the Sustainable Restaurant Assoclation, recognising our positive
progress in three areas of sourcing, society and the environment.

During FY 17/18, Catering won a contract with a major online
retaller in Ireland, as wel as contracts within our integrated Pv
offerings, such as the three-year integrated facilities contract for
alithe Co-op’s corporate sites to provide tallored catering
through Mitie’s Gather 8. Gather business.

Mitie was awarded the threa-year contract with the Co-op
following a compatitive tender process. The contract covers
cleaning, landscaping, engineering sarvices, security, front of
house, catering and waste. These services will be delivered in a
manner to fully reflact the Co-op’s commitmant to sustainabliity
and employee wellbeing.

Gather & Gather offers a fresh approach to foad, working closely
with independent and local suppliers to stay ahead of market
treruds. tts focus on sustainable sourcing and vajue for money
aligns with the Co-op’s sustainabllity and diversity ambitions.
Gather & Gather will introduce pop-ups and food truck events in
partnership with local suppllers to bring innovation and variety
to lunchtime breaks. Further investments in technalogy will
enhance the experience for Co-op colleagues purchasing
beverages on site with a launch of a pre-order service through a
moblle app, as well 2s a dally menu microsite.
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After two difficult years” trading, It Is notable that Creativevents
has been successful in re-securing some prestigious and
long-standing clients such as RHS Chelsea Flower Show and
Royal Ascot. The business unit was also successful in winning
some high-volume concart and festival work at the end of

April 2018,

Post the year-end the division won an exciting contract to
provide bar and food services at BBC Music’s The Biggest
Weekend. Four festivals took place at four sites over the four
days of the late May Bank Holiday weekend (25-28 May 2018).
The Biggest Weekend saw BBC Radio 1, BBC Radlo 2, BSC Radio
3 and BEC Radio 6 Music stations bring live music to crowds of
over 175,000. The financlal impact of this contract will be
reported In FY 18/19.

financial performance

Adjusted revenue grew by 3.3% to £137.1m (FY 16/17: £132.7m)
driven by the full-year impact of new contract wins in Ireland,
volume increases in new events at Creativevents, partially offset
by a shortfall In Gather & Gather UK.

The gross margin remained stable after a series of cost saving
measures were taken to offset food and labour input price

inflation. These included menu changes and tighter I
staffing schedules.

Whilst the business turned around and exited less profitable |
contracts in Creativevents and Gather & Gather ireland, the
division's adjusted cperating profit before other ltems decreased
by 5.7% to £5.0m (FY 16/17: £5.3m).

The order book for the Catering division increased from £29.4m
in FY 16/17 to £34.7m in FY 18/19 driven by contract wins.

Outlook

Having sttracted some experienced new talent to the team,
momentum for the next 12 months is bullding. We continue to see
opportunities for onganic growth through our customisable,
modern and high-quality offer, complemnented by our market-
lsading approach to wellbeing and our unique understanding

of workplace dynamics and the role of food and hospitality in
boosting staff morale, engagement and productivity. As a

key component of Mite’s Connected Worlkspace strategy, the
insights and data we collect and receive are Invaluable in helping us
understarvi how best to add value to our customers’ working day.




Property Management

The Property Management division provides a wide range of
Mmaintenance services in the UK, predominantly to clients In the
social housing sector. it is also the Jargest painting and
commerdial roofing refurbishment provider in the UK.

Performance

£m FY17/18 P 16/17 Change, %

Revenue Reportecd 2374 2577 (7.9)
Adjusted® 2379 2577 (7.7)

Operating profit/(loss)

before other tems Reported® 7.3 {45) nm
Adjusted? 79 123 (358)

Order book* 348.7 5150 {32.3)

1. FY 17/18 reported on post-IFRS 15 basi and FY 16/17 on a reported basis.

2. Presented on an ARernative Performance Measure {APM) basis: FY 17/18
pra-FRS 15; FY 16/17 per prior year APM.

3. Order hock for both years reported under IFRS 15 gukielines which mandate
us to inchude only feed-term contracted work and exchude variable work.

Key stats

* We look after 250,000 local authority homes.
* UK’s #1 commarcial roofing refurbishment business.
* UK's #1 commerclal painting business.

Operational performance

£Y 17/18 has been a challenging year for Property Management.
The management tsam'’s attention was diverted whilst the
division was considered for sale; it was later withdrawn from
sale in December 2017. Now back in the Mitie portfolio, we have
Included Property Management within our overall
transformation programme.

Within s core maintenance services operations the business
has focused on investing In people, and delivering the best
Quality service to customers at the right cost.

Over the course of FY 17/18, Property Management was
successful In winning a number of new contracts in Scotland,
exapanding Its operational and geographical foatprint. OF
particular note was a contract with was Aberdeenshire Counci
as part of thelr Housing Improvement Plan, with a four-year
strategic objective to improve the housing stock in line with
Scottish Housing Quality Standards and the energy improvement
objectives under the Energy EMiclency Standard for Soclal
Housing. Mitie is focused on delivering services worth £40m
over the four-year term. Other notable contract wins Included:

« Maryhlll Housing Association in Glasgow. This contract will see
Mitie deliver a range of reactive repairs and malntenance
works over the three-year contract, which has an optional
two-year extenslon;

» North Lanarkshire Council, with a contract valued at £3.1m
per annum;

¢ The renewal of a partnership with Oak Tree Housing
Assaciation will see Mitie deliver the second phase of
maintenance services to 300 propecties; and

+ A Paisley-based housing association, Williamsburgh, and
Sanctuary Scotiand adding to our growing list of soclal housing
customers. Willlamsburgh is a four-year contract worth £2.8m.

Our goal is to differentiate our offering in 3 relatively
commaoditised market, by creating long-term, sustainable
partnefships that offer our customers innovative solutions and
services. We have Identified four key focus areas based upon
client needs: tackling fuel poverty, fire safety, inngvation, and
cost planning efficiencies.

Technology has been an integral part of our integrated and
partnership offerings, as it brings efficiency and decision-making
benefits to our clients. The focus s on leveraging the Group’s
technology capabilities to support our unique asset
management solution for Property Management, using it to
bulld bespoke solutions to reduce call handling requirements,
associated costs and to Improve customer experience.

Financial performance

Property Management reported adjusted revenue of £237.9m
{FY 16/17: £257.7m}, down 7.7% year-on-year. This reduction
dropped through to adiusted operating profit before other
iterns which was down 35.8% to £7.9m (FY 16/17: £12.3m).

In addition, there was a3 bad debt charge relating to a prior year
vortract of £1.4m. The division was impacted by a shortfall In
capital spend by major cilents and lower high-margin project
revenue,

In the post-Grenfell environment, one of our large customers
has delayed planned Investment In its housing stock with the
expectation that funds will be diverted to risk and compllance
related improvements. This also impacted the

division’s performance.

Difficult trading conditions defined by continued spending
cuts by customers Impacted the order book which declined to
£348.7m (FY 16/17: £515.0m).

Outlook )

Market conditions remaln challenging and the main focus for the
next 12 months is to re-energise the business, get the basics
right, continue to invest in our people, deliver the highest quality
service to customers — at the right cost — and to invest in the
communtties in which we work

in FY 18/19, Mitie Property Management’s businesses,
comprising roofing, painting and social housing, will be
Integrated Into Engineering Services, There are considerable
synesgistic benefits to be achieved by combining Property
Management into Engineering Services which will enhance
efficiency and customer service.
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Our diversity
makes us stronger

We are very proud of our
rich and diverse culture

and backgrounds. Our
diversity creates ideas and

imoage removed

insights. Everyone at Mitie
has a voice and is treated
as an equal.

Rebecca
Gallery Assistant,
Security
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Corporate Responsibifity and Sustainabliity

Sustainability

We are one of the UK's largest facilities management providers
with a nation-wide reach and a blue-chip customer base.

Our business provides fadlities management, consultancy,
project management and a range of specialist services.
importantly, we focus on self-delivery of our services, giving us
close control over quality and customer relationships.

More than five million people pass through the doors of the
workplaces we manage and maintain, and our colleagues work
hard each day to defiver the basics brilliantly giving us the solid
foundations on which to create, bulld and tallor solutions that
antidpate and meet our customers’ needs. Service that Is
recognised time and time again by our cllents; the best of UK
public and private businesses.

Foreword

image removed

The following report outlines our approach to building a robust
and sustainable business, while embracing the contribution from
and Impact on our employees, our environment and the
communities in which we work.

Mitie has & strong heritage of entrepreneurship and
collaboration, and many aspects of sustainability are integral to
the way we do business. It is a culture of shared walues; of
putting customers at the heart of our business; of developing
and retaining the best people; of operational exceflence and
embracing innovation and new technologies that set us apart.

We employ 49,000 peopie, who engage with hundreds of
thousands of customers every day across the UK. We recognise
the potential of this reach, and whilst historically we have met
our sustainability goals, we recognise that the opportunities to
drive these in the future are substantial. In Waste, Energy,
Occupational Health and Safety in particular, our ambition s to
lead the FM industry.
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Mitle is one year into a three-year transformation programme.
As part of this we are undertaking a strategic review of our
sustainability offering and we have established a Sustalnability
Working Committee that will be reporting into a Sustalnabliity
Steering Committee mandated to critically assess Mitie’s
performance against international best practice, including the
UN Sustalnablity Goals.

This review is now underway and whilst we would like to have a
more detalled assessment for this report, our ambition is to set
traly achievable targets for our business, improve measurement
of our activities, utilise latest technologles to monitor
performance, and increase transparency.

Going forward, we will focus on positively influencing our people
- the driving force behind our long-term success — our
customers and our communities, growing revenue, reducing cost
and mitigating potential risk.

To Mitle, sustainability is more than just an agenda add-on, it is
inegral to the way we do business. During 2017, we have
undertaken research to understand what our future
sustainability strategy will focus on. Our people, products and
services are integral to our ability to deliver long-term
sustainable solutions for our business and our customers.

Our Sustainability Working Group was re-aligned in 2017 to
represent our diverse business and expertise, and Includes a
cross-functional group of subject matter experts with people,
erwironmental and operational skills. In FY 18/19, this group will
set and agree our ‘2030 Sustainability Vision”.

The Sustainability Working Group reports Into the Sustainability
Steering Committee that will report directly to the Board and
ensure our plan is fully embedded in and correctly resourced
within the business.

Mitle continues to measure and target our carbon footprint. In
2010, we made a commitment to reduce our carbon footprint by
35% by 2020. To date our organisational carbon Intensity has
decreased by 34.7% against our 2010 baseline year and a further
5.4% against prior year.

Climate change is one of the biggest environmental challenges of

our generation, and we are committed to ensuring that our
business faces these challenges and tackies our Impacts.




Key initiatives undertaken in FY 17/18 were:

+ we performed Cimate Change risk and opportunities
assessment;

* wa sre reducing our impact on the environment from our
travel, especially from our predominantly diesel fieet;

* we launched a SpendSmart campalgn to challenge
unnecessary business costs and consider efficient
resource management;

* we consolidated our real estate resources, specifically our
property footprint in London;

* wa are delighted to have maintained the Carbon Trust
Standard for Carbon, achleving & qualitative score of 81% - an
improvemnent from 77% previously;

* we are currently implementing an ISOS0001 energy
management system within our Energy & Water business to
continually improve the carbion reduction initiatives and
Energy Management Standards and engage our peopie in our
journey; and

* we are ensuring that our suppliers and our customers are
treated with respect. Operational sustainability and supply
chain managamant are important elements of our business
operations. Mitle Is commitied to being a rellable and
trustworthy corporate citizen and, specificaily, in relation to its
suppliers —to fair psyment terms. We work with a large
number of small and medium stze enterprises across our
supply chain. Integrity and trust are at the heart of all we do.

Climate Change risk and opportunities assessment
Following guldance from the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD), our Sustainabllity Working Group
have developed a risk and opportunities assessment for our
business to ensure we tackle risks and plan for opportunities.
Our biggest risks are potential future health Impacts to our
people, especlally those who work outdoors, as a result of
warmer summers and colder winters. We will therefore be
mitigating these risks, through control measures, re-design of
tashs and training and awareness. Similarly, increased incidence
of flooding and heat strain on assets we manage for our
customers mean we need to adapt our business to
acoommodate additional service requirements and upskill our
people to be competent to deliver these services safely.

Reducing the impact of our fleet

Improving the sustainable credentials of the Mitle Fleet means
taking a multidisciplinary approach to both our vehicles and the
peaple who drive them. From consolidating and updating our
vehicle stock, to educating our drivers to Improve safety, we aim
to reduce the fuel expenditure and pollutant emissions created
by our 6,300 vehicle fleet. In Fy 17/18 we have looked into the
following areas:

+ we are continually adding more fuel-efficient vehicles to our
fleet, representing significant cost and environmental savings
for Mitie;

« we have undertaken a successful hydrogen vehicle trial and
are actively seeking business cases to extend our Electric
Vehicle (EV) ratio; and

+ we have Introduced telematics and tracking equipment to
ensure the safe performance of all our drivers.

Mitie vehicles operste on a rofling four-year lease agreement
through our strategic fleet partner. By outsourcing fleet
procurement, Mitle can take advantage of the most efficient
technology, resulting In notable fuel savings across the business.
For eampie, many of our mobile engineers operate out of
Vauxhall Astra estate cars. Since 2014, the fuel efficency of
these vehicles has improved significantly, with current

2018 modeds travelling approximately 10.8% further with every
tank of fuet, whilst emitting 10% less CO, emissions.

Within our company car fleet, we have self-imposed a vehicles
emissions cap of 130g/km of CO,,. This applies to all non-
commercial vehicles. Most of our fleet delfivers emissions figures
lower than this level, with some vehicles producing just 89g/km
of 00, Vehidles with lower emissions attract less taxation for
employsss and lower national insurance contributions for the
business, representing a financial Incentive to reduce Heet
environmental impact. We continue to review our commercial
fleet, introducing the most efficient light commercial vehicles
available on the market. Our commercial fleet has also
experienced significant environmental savings with new Vauxhall
Vivaro vans that are 11% more fuel efficient than the vehicles
they replace. Using Start/Stop and Adbiue technology, these
new vans cut NOx emissions by 72% over previous madets,
efigning them to EURO 6 emissions legislation.

Mitle has explored fleet options beyond conventional fuel, with
electrical vehicle and altemative fuel vehicle trials run at
contract sites across the estate. Currently backed by government
grants, there are significant benefits 1o introduding EVs to our
business, including reduced taxation, fuel costs, and Scope 1
carbon emissions. Following a trial at a large International travel
hub, Mitie has ordered a full-time EV van, which should save
over 20% In fuel costs over the diesel vehicle it replaces.

Introduction of widespread driver education and telematics on
all our vehicles has resulted In a significant reduction in
inefficient driving practices across both our commercial and
company fleet. With safer eco-driving techniques, we expect to
reduce our expenditure on fuel, whilst alse reducing our
transport risk. A 20mph decrease in speed, from 70mph to
50mph, can increase fuel efficiency by up to 20%, asting
unnecessary resource waste. The number of traffic accidents
recorded for our fleet reduced by 18.7% in FY 17/18.

The exceptional, every doy [ www.mitie.com as




Corporate Responsibility and Sustainability continued

SpendSmart — cempaign to reduce resources use

Mitie has an overarching commitment to both customers and
colleagues to individually and collectively be the best we can be.
Our purpose is to create amazing work environments, helping
our customers and colleagues to be exceptional every day.

Spendsmart Is an internal campalgn that highlights the
Importance of careful and considered spending. Launched

in March 2018 as part of ‘One Mitle’, its aims are to challenge
unnecessary business costs and consider efficent resource
management. In reducing the usage of resources and
operational costs, Mitie craates greater business value through
social, economic and environmenta! principles of sustainability
Into its business decisions.

Since launching the campaign in March 2018, Mitle Group has
seen a 33% reduction in employee expenses, This has been
supported by an updated expenses policy and regular expense
auditing. The most recent communications include targeting
unnecessary costs assoclated with travel and colour printing.

Initiatives include questioning the need for air and rail travel
when technology such as video conferencing and Skype would
be viable alternatives to reduce our carbon Impact on the
planet. As » result of the campaign, Mitle will also see
emdronmental benefits with a reduction in waste production,
energy consumption and carbon emissions.

The overarching aim of the Spendsmart campaign is to target
employee expenses by cutting £1 in every £10 to enable a
sustainable business. This equates to a 10% reduction of
employee expenses; however, the campalgn 1s not all about
stopping spend but aims to highlight opportunities to eliminate
unnecessary or avoidable spend, providing an opportunity to
Invest elsewhere and remain sustainable - meeting the needs of
the business without compromising Mitle’s abiltty to

maintain profit.

The Shard — consolidating our real estate portfolio

As part of our ongoing transformation programme we took the
decision to consolidate our London offices Into one single city
hub based in The Shard. Historically we operated out of three
separate buildings covering 45,000 square feet. A single more
efficient and flexible 30,000 square foot office replaced this
estate, reflecting our ongoing business needs and that of

OUr CUSTOTMers.

The Shard was chosen because It aligned with our sustainability
vision to minimise our organisation’s environmental impact and
provide an environment where our employees could thrive. A
particular draw was that the bullding Htself achieved a BREEAM
‘Excellent’ sustainabifity rating for its low carbon design and is
expected to use 30% less energy than a typical conventional
building of its type. We have an ambitious target to reduce our
carbon footprint by 35% by 2020 and this move is a key step to
achieving this.

Our fit-out also incorporated a number of additional inktiatives
which helped to further reduce carbon emissions and also have
a positive impact on the health and wellbelng of our people:

« all areas of the office are fitted with LED lighting and lighting
controls to reduce energy demand. We have incorporated
cccupancy, temperature and CO, sensors in desks and
breakout areas to optimise settings based on actual
occupancy and comfort levels. This forms part of our
Connected Workspace offering which uses advanced analytics
o identify effidencdes;

« the Installation of sit-stand desks for all fixed working areas,
These help to reduce sedentary behaviour which, as research
shows, presents a 2% increased risk of all-cause mortatity
(even after physical activity Is taken into account);

« active design — a circular walking route within the workspace
and the placement of particular soclal areas off this circult
nudges people into conducting regular physical activity
throughout the day; and

« maximum utllisation of the natural dayfight — the perimeter
glazing provides a high level of natural fight. We designed the
space to ensure employees have maximum exposure to this.

Ancther key element of this move was to shift from a fixed desk
working model to a more flexible hot desk approach, which
would encourage remote working and avold unnecessaty
business travel when not essential. We have also invested in our
IT systems to improve remote working through conference and
video calling technology to allow staff to attend meetings,
workshops and tratning events from home.

From an operational perspective our energy use in the new
London hub fell by 76% when comparing consumption against
the previous estate for the same period last year (1 January to
31 March) as denoted In the table below.

Lomeon Hab — Lorion Mub -

varkous oliics the Sherd Reduction Aedaction, %
Energy consumption (kWh) 153,389 36,364 117,025 76%
Carbon emissions {tC0O.e) 68.9 13.9 55.0 0%
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We will continue to review our performance and provide further
updates on our savings once we have a full year's worth of
consumption data. We are currently reviewing our UK-wide real
estate portiofio, looking at usage, sustainability and

operational efficency.

Carbon Trust certification

The Carbon Trust provides independant verification and
certification services that recognise real achievements in
sustainabliity and identify improvement opportunities. This year
we renewed our certification for the external verification and we
are delighted to have obtained the Carbon Trust Standard for
Carbon with a qualitative score of B1%. Mitie was able to show
an absoiute reduction In greenhouse gas emissions of 5.7%
across the certification period - more than 2,400 tonnes of
carbon dicxde equivalent. This certification renewal underpins
our commitment towards reducing our carbon footprint and
enhancing our sustainabiilty journey.

Mitie has an ambition to be recognised as a sustainability leader
in the FM sector, demonstrating the commercial value in
improving environmental performance. Our clients have
increasingly high expectations of us and they regularly ask what
environmental accreditations Mitie holds. We are proud to be
able t say that in addition to our [S014001 certification we have
also been certified to the Carbon Trust Standard, a certification
that recognises organisations for making reat reductions In
carbon emkssions.

Mitle continues to reduce its emissions through a number of
fieet initiatives, such as increased use of telematics, encounging
eco-driving and efficlent vehicle selection. Several trials of
alternative fuelled vehicles such as plug-In hybrid, EV and
hydrogen are helping us to develop a future fleet strategy to
make further reductions in carbon for the Group.

Following on from this success, Mitie is currently implementing
an ISO50001 energy management system within its Energy &
Water business to continually implement the carbon reduction
initiatives and position Itself as a supplier of choice.

Engaging our people

We recognise that our people are our greatest assets and we
have a duty of care to ensure they are equipped to make the
best declslons at work or home. One of our core promises is to
our employees: to provide a place of work where they can thrive
and be thelr best every day. We have been building our health
and weltbelng capabilities and continue, for eample, to equip
our people with mental health awareness tools and fact sheets.

For a number of years, we have collaborated with sustainability
learning speclalists to deliver personalised training programmes
for our staff and customers. A core component of this
partnership 1s the provision of the accredited ‘ResourceAware’

elearning platform. This programme helps organisations
manage resources more efficiently and effectively. The training
helps reduce carbon, waste and water usage and Is accredited by
CPD UK, The Energy institute and The Future Water Assoclation.

Effective behaviour change programmes are at the heart of high
performing sustainability strategies. Mitie believes that benefits
can be substantial in environmental, soclal and governance
terms; from reducing or improving our impact on the
environment, to delivering financlal savings and enhanced profit
margins. Employee engagement programmes also creste 8 sense
of community and inspire collaboration amongst colleagues.
Mitie continues to promote the ResourceAware programme
throughout the organisation as part of its commitment to
consistently deliver tangible savings.

Miltie Foundation

Mitie has presence across the UK. And as a responsible business,
we strive to create long-term benefits for the communities in
which we operate. The Mitle Foundation is central to our
commitment to engage with and positively influence our people,
our customers and our communities.

Employee engagement ks an essential part of Mitle’s business
strategy — community involvement and volunteering play an
important role In our colleagues’ working lives. In addition, joint
volunteering opportunities with clients and supply chain
partners — supporting their community engagement and
corporate responsibility objectives - Is a positive way to enhance
long-term relationships.

The Foundation had a very good year — existing programmes
with Lioyds Bank pic were strengthened and a new partnership
developed with the Co-op. Strong relationships with schools,
prisons and other charities were enhanced. The flagship
programme Ready2Work sustained its remarkable record of 70%
of work experience attendees being offered a paid job over the
last five years.

During the year:

= Mitie colleagues recorded over 850 volunteering days;

» 24 peaple found work through our Ready2Work programme;
and

+ the Foundation delivered 88 employnbllity events,
supporting ¢.8,500 students, In partnership with 76 schools
and academies.,

Mitie has a broad and diverse dient base, and a frontline
workforce with specialist skills, expertise and experience. By
working in close collaboration with Mitie, the Foundation is
strongly positioned to support people who are furthest away
from the job market. The Foundation will continue to play a vital
role In our own business sustainability and the major role that
we wish to play in society.
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People & Community

Building One Mitie

The exceptional, every day

Our Vision and Values are bullt on the

simple premise of ‘The exceptional, every day’
- our overarching commitment to both our
customers and our colleagues.

in 2017, we consulted with our colleagues on what makes Mitle
different and special. The output of these discussions became
our Vision and Values, and cur Purpose and our Promises,
which we shared with everyone at Mitle:

« Dur Vision and Values are bulit on the simple premise of
The exceptional, every day’ — our overarching commitment
to both our customers and to our colleagues.

» Underpinning ‘The exceptional, every day’ Is our Purpose:
our expertise, care, technology and Insight create amazing
work enwironments, helping our customers to be exceptional
every day.

» Our Promise to our people is to create a place to work where
we at Mitie can all thrive and be our best every day. Our
Promise t0 our customers is to be a trusted partner creating
axeptional erwironments for our customers and people,
adding value every day.

s Our Values set out how we all should behave at Mitie,
what we should expect from our colleagues, and what our
customers can expect from us.

We view this as a differentiator for Mitie. This new mindset goes

well beyond defivering 1o the letter of the contract by focusing

on the ultimate outcomas — amazing environments and adding
value every day.

“What does ‘exceptional, every day’
really mean? it means individually and
collectively being the best we can be.”

Phil Bentley
Chief Bmcutive
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Our culture:
our core values and
how we behave

We are
One Mitie

We are buiit
on integrity
and trust

We go the
extra mile

Our diversity
makes us
stronger

Our customers’
business, is
our business




Developing a diverse
team

Mitie is a diverse organisation
that engages and develops its
people, at all levels, and
seeks to demonstrate the
benefits of its social value.

Our diversity 1s a major part of who we are

—we all have different skills, insight, styles,
expertise and experiences to bring to the table.
We are beginning to share a common vision,

a common approach and a common lsnguage
through our new Purpose and Values and our
One Mitle culture. Together, we belleve that s a
powerful combination.

Across Mitle’s 49,000 employees, we have over
130 nationalities; a diverse workforce cartying
out a large variety of roles, Engender is Mitie’s
programms to promote education and
awareness of diversity internally and across the
Industry, with four networlks focused on LGET,
disability, ethnicity and gender.

Gender pay gap reporting

In line with mandatary requirements,
Mitie reported In March 2018 that as at

S April 2017 it had a mean average gender
pay gap of 16% and a mean bonus gap of
71%. The bonus differential is in part due to
the way in which bonuses are classified
across the Group.

Mitie is a diverse and complex business, and
gender representation can differ depending
on job type. We also recognise that in many
of our businesses we have a higher
proportion of men inumore senlor positions
and bonuses are more typically paid to those
In senior roles.

We recognise that there is more to do across
the onganisation and intend to put in place a
grading framework that gives parity across
all backgrounds and helps individuals to be
the best they can be.

® 49,000

Empioyees

Women on the Board

4

15«

Wornen on the ELT

C.40%

Mitie Group
Marllan Miamn
Paygap 0.0% 16.0%
Bonus gap 77.4% 71.0%
Men ‘Wiaten
% employees recalving bonus 12% 10%
by pay quartie Men ‘Wamen
Upper 75% 25%
Upper middie 66% 34%
Lower middle 58% 42%
Lower 45% 55%

Since June 2017, we have walcomed four women to our Board of Directors (women: 4; men: 7) and women now account for
15% of our Executive Leadership Team (up from 0% — women: 2; men: 11) and 24% of our Group Leadership Team {up from
20% — women: 23; men: 73] as at 31 March 2018. Across Mitie Group female employees account for ¢.40% of our workforce

(women: 20,100; men: 28,900).
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People & Community continued

30 33%

Upload response rate Engagement score

Engagement

Mitie is a diverse organisation that engages and
develops its people, at all levels, and seeks to
demonstrate the benefits of its soclal value.
This year, we have partnered with Aon Hewitt to run Upload -
Mitie’s 2018 People Survey — to assess employee engagement.
30% of employees compieted the survey and our engagement
score was 33%. Mitle is one year Into our three-year
wransformation programme and, inevitably during such
challenging times, we need to work much harder to listen to and
engage with our people. We are doing some things well, but we
certainly have work to do when It comes to employee
engagement. This year we have a clear benchmark for

improvement and plans in place to work hard to drive positive
engagement with our employees. Our three key focus areas for
2018 will be: leadership capability, reward and recognition,
efficiency and process improvement through

technological investment.

mitiefoundatio I

The Mitie Foundation was established In
2012 with a vision to support peaple
with barriers to employment and to
improve social mobility. its focus is on
employment, education and enterprise.
More information can be found

at the Mitie Foundation website
www.mitlefoundation.com.

As a significant UK employer, Mitie seeks to support the physical,
mental and financial welibelng of its workforce. December 2017
saw the successful launch of an employee loan scheme run in
partnership with Salary Finance. This scheme helps provide
education and support around the finandal welibeing of our
frontline workforce. To date, more than 1,400 Mitie employees
have benefited from obtalning a lioan from Salary Finance with
an average loan size of £2,200, As well as offering loan products
the Salary Finance hub provides financial education and financial
tools to assist our colleagues.

Mitie belleves everyone should have apportunities to progress,
from working with amazing customers to individual learning and
development. This year saw the creation of a ‘one stop shop’ for
all development at Mitie called “the Leamning Hub', bringing
together a vast array of appremiceship programmes, technical
accreditations and leadership training. In FY 17/18, 555
apprentices were enmlled into a range of programmes from
business and administration, to digital and hospitality.

‘ Colaborated with 76

schools and academies to
Image removed broaden students’
employability prospacts
Image removed

: Entrepreneurship lies at the heart of Mitie.
Enterpﬂse The Foundation goes beyond voiunteering,
to engaging talent and enhancing long-term
relationships with our customers, our
supply chafn and our communities.
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Policies

Mitie’s Code of Conduct has been designed to
help employees understand our core values
and the behaviour expected of them to support
these values.

Our Code of Conduct applies to the Mitie Board, senior
management and all employees, and aims to ensure that st
every levet of the organisation, at all times, employees conduct
themselves in an ethical way. This inciudes their dealings
intarnally and exttarnally with third parties to ensure the highest
standards of honhesty, integrity and falmess and to foster an
environment based on such standards, as well as complying with
all related leglslation.

The Code emphasises that every Mitle employee must be
sligned to the achievemnent of Group goals. A copy of the Code,
as well as a full list of Mitie's policies, is avallable for download
on the Company's websie www.mitle.com.

Mitie Is undergoing a Group-wide GDPR readiness programme
and met its deliverables for the regulatory deadline. All business
units are engaged In the effort to ensure regulatory compliance
and sound data privacy practices. Mitle Is commitbed to ensuring
privacy is at the forefront of our technologies and processes.
This i instilled through policy, architectural design, controls

and assurance.

Our new, independent whistie-blowing hotline service was
introduced in September 2017. 138 reports were logged via the
service. The majority of these related to HR matters or
grievances and were passed onto our HR teams for resolution.
Other reports are investigated by the Legal, QHSE, Internal Audit
or Emterprise Risk teams as appropriate.

Mzs'hm; wﬁ"""’m 4 Image removed
programme
4 Thefoundation { Mitie ampioyees
Image removed delivered 88 image removad completed 850
employability events volumteering days
Mitie volunteers the time and Ready-to-work ks Mitie's flagship
Ed ucatlon expertise of its workforce ;: support Emp|°yahi“ty programme that gives candidates
peopie of disadvantaged beckgrounds elght-weeks of work experience within a
towards improved career chances, Mitie or partner business, with the goai of
through sharing skills in leadetship, heiping them to secure full-

resflience and critical thinking.

time employment,
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We go the
extra mile

Imoge removed

Whether it’s keeping things
running smoothly in a safe
environment, looking for
new ways to do things
better or fixing problems,
going the extra mile for our
colleagues and customers
and keeping our promises is
in our DNA.

Zak
Barista,
Catering
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Finance review

Finance review

Image removed

“Culturally and operationally we
are moving towards a One Mitie
way of delivering our products
and services.”

W are pleased with progress one year into our threa-year
transformation programme. Culturally and operationally we
are moving towards a One Mitie way of delivering our products
and services. This has enabled us to simplify and streamline
operational and financial processes across the organisation.
We have reduced ongoing costs by delayering management
infrastructures and centralising support functions such as IT,
Finance and HR.

Adjusted operating profit before other items was impacted by
the investment of transformation cost savings into improved
customer servioe levels, technology and intemal capabiitties.
These are the buliding blocks of our future growth plans.

To deliver these transformation changes we have Incurred a
number of costs which are shown In other items, along with
various impairments and other one-off charges.

We are operating comfortably within our financiat covenants.
In particular, our leverage ratio has remained below 2,
notwithstanding a material reduction in our customer
invoice discounting programme and an improvement In our
supplier payment performance.

we have taken the decision to early-adopt IFRS 15, using the
cumulative retrospective method, which means we have
restated opening reserves rather than restating the prior
year comparatives.
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Following on from the Accounting Review undertaken last year,
Mitie implermented a series of measures to strengthen its
financial control environment. Management now operates 3
structured prooess for identifying material actounting
judgements and a number of new internal Group accounting
policies were put In place in areas such as trade recelvables and
accrued income provisioning. As part of converting to IFRS 15,
Mitie has adopted a conservative contract asset accounting
approach which will only enable certain strictly defined assets to
be recognised on the balance sheet, with the remainder being
expensed, We are also increasing the size of our imternal audit
team to enable a broader selection of areas to be audited

each year.

During the year we have moved our finance transactional
processing operations to our partner Genpact. This entailed

the consclidation of activities in multiple locations across the
UK Into a single operations cemtre in Kolkata. Genpact have
deep experience In improving efficiency, streamfining processes
and codifying contrels for a giobal blue-chip customer base.

We expect to benefit from all these areas In the coming months
once the initial transfer Is fully bedded down.




Reported financial performance
Reported revenue and reported operating profit are set out below:

Restated
£m FY17/18  FY16/17 Changs, %
Revenue 22037 21234 38
Operating profit/(loss) before
other tems 29.6 (63) (1,5222)
Other items {97.9) {36.6) 167.5
Operating loss o3 (429 (807)

Reported revenue was £2,203.7m compared with £2,123.4mIn
FY 16/17. The Group reported an operating profit before cther
ivems of EB9,6m comgared with a loss of £6.3m in FY 16/17
which was a consequence of the Accounting Review carried out
that year.

Note that the prior year comparatives have been restated due
o an accounting ermor In respect of an under accrual of costs
with a corresponding increase in accrued income and revenue.,
There was no impact on total net assets or operating profit.
We have disclosed the impact of the restatement in Note 1 to
the financial statements.

FY 17/18 APMs: Mitie has adopted the IFRS 15 revenug recognition
accounting standard from 1 April 2017 uting the amulative
retrospective method. This leads to an adjustment to reserves oh the
date of adoption rather than a restatement of the comparative
periods presented. As a consequence, unless otherwise stated, al
figures presentad in the Strategk Report and Governance sections of
this Annual Report and Accounts are presented pre-IFRS 15 adoption,
In order & retain comparabiity with prior year results. We have
disclosad the impact of IFRS 1.5 for each line e In the financial
statements in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 140 to 142. The FY 17/18 APMS adjut for the impact of IFRS 15.

FY 15/17 APM:: as a result of the Accounting Review in FY 16/17,
which led to asset write-downs of & non-recusring nature, the FY
16/17 APMs have been provided to facilitate a comparative
assessment between FY 17/18 and FY 16/17. The FY 16/17 APMs
adjust for one-off items.

Adjusted financlal performance

£m FY17/18  FY16/17 Change, %
Revenue 2,199.1 2,1400 28
Operating profit before

other items 71 820 {6.0)
Operating margin 3.5% 3.8% (03ppt)

Reported balance sheet

£m FYL7/18  FY16/17 Change, %

Goodwill and mntangible assets 479 3971 (12.4)
Property, plant and equiprment 336 323 4.0

Working capital batances (198.2) (152.0) 304

Net debt {193.5) (147.2) 35

Retirement benefit Habilities {56.8) (74.2) (23.5}
Deferred tax 359 211 70.1

Other net assets 71 12.7 (44.1)
Total net (Rabiiities)/assets {24.0) B9B (126.7)

The Group had reported net llabliities at 31 March 2018 of
£24.0m (2017: net assets £89.8m). The £113.8m reduction i
primarily driven by the adoption of IFRS 15, which Is explained in
mone detail later in this review,

Basls of comparatives — Alternative Pesformance
Measures {APMS)

To enable an effective comparison of our year-on-year
performance, FY 17/18 is shown pre-IFRS 15 and FY 16/17 is
shown for continuing operations on the previously reported
APMe, per last year's published Annual Report and Accounts, as
restated. The APMSs are referred to as ‘adjusted revenue’,
‘adjusted operating profit’, ‘adjusted other items’, ‘adjusted net
assets’ and ‘adjusted cash flows’. Further detalls can be found in
Note 1 to the financial statements on pages 136 to 142 and the
Appendix on pages 204 and 205,

Adjusted revenue was £2,199.1m {2017: £2,140.0m},
representing growth of 2.8% during Mitie's first year of
transformation. Adjusted operating profit before other iems of
£77.1m represents a drop of 6.0%. This reduction is a
consequence of investment in customers, technology and
capability more than offsetting growth in the profitabliity of
contracts and cost savings from the transformation programme.

Adjusted balance sheet

£m FYi¥/18  FY16/17 Chenge, %
Goodwill and intangible assets 3489 3971 {12.1)
Property, plant and equipment Lo ¥ ] 323 4.6
Working capital balances 8 (1520) (44.9)
Net debt {1933) (147.2) 315
Retirement benefit llabilities (568) (742) (23.5)
Defemed tax 169 211 {19.9)
Other net assets 43 12.7 (66.1}
Tota! net assets 6.8 898 (22.3)

The Group's adjusted net assets reduced at 31 March 2018 to
£69.8m (2017: £89.8m). The £20.0m reduction is primartly driven
by impairment and amortisation of goodwill and other intanglble
assets of £58.5m and an increase in net debt of £46.3m, partly
offset by intangible asset additions of £10.1m, a working capial
movement of £68.2m, and a reduction In the net deficit on
defined benefit pension schemes of £17.4m. These movemants
are explained in more detall iater in the report.
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IS 15
NO IMPACT KEY AREAS OF ADJUSTMENT
To Efetima revenue or + Derecognition of accrued income assets previously recognised on long-term complex contracts
Ifetime profitability following the elimination of percentage of completion accounting
of contracts « Derscognition of mobilisation assets not meeting the more stringent criteria under IFRS 15
« Denscognition of work In progress assets where contral of output is yet to pass to the customer
on ¢ontracts where revenue is recognised over time
To cash flows of contracts + Higher deferred income recognised from customer payments made in advance of delivering

contract outcomes and where significant contracted discounts including extension discounts have

been offered

The Group has early adopted IFRS 15 effective from 1 April 2017

in line with Its goal to simplify the business and Improve

transparency. The adoption of IFRS 15 improves the alignment of

financlal results with the cash flows of contracts. The effect of

adopting IFRS 15 ks a reduction of £108.2m 1n the opening net

assets as at 1 April 2017 and an Increase of £12.5m In reported

operating profit before other ltems for FY 17/18,

Our adoption process followed the prindples set out in the

standard’s five-step model:

+ identify the contract(s) with a customer;

* identify the performance obligations in the contract;

= determine the transaction price;

« allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in
the contract; and

= recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its
performance obligations.

This process identified the following six key areas of scjustment

discussed In more detail below:

+ percentage of completion accounting;

« mobifisation assets;

+ design and development and other upfront fees;

¢ contract assets;

= work in progress; and

s contracted discounts inchiding extension discounts.
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IFRS 15 gives rise to changes kn the timing of revenue and cost
recognition but does not impact the lifetime profitability or the
cash flow of contracts. The main changes for Mitie from the
adoption of the accounting standard are on s long-term
comtracts. In particular:

* revenue s more evenly matched over the Iife of contracts in
line with the delivery of outcomes to clients and, consequently,
the timing of profits is re-profiled;

« In certain cases, there will be lower profits, or even losses, in

the early years of contracts where there are significant upfront

restructuring or mobilisstion costs, with a compensating
increase in profits in later years;

the overall impact on the income statement at Group level is a

function of the balance of contracts in the early or late stage of

their Kfecyde. For FY 17/18, the impact ks a £12.5m increase in
operating profit before other items;

+ a number of contract related assets have been derecognised,
comprising of the accrued income balance assoclated with
percentage of completion accounting, work in progress where
control Is yet to pass to the client and cannot be reliably
estimated, and the alimination of certain deferred mobilisation
costs that do not meet the more stringent criteria of
recognition as an asset under IFRS 15;

* the Group’s balance sheet under IFRS 15 includes imited
contract assets created in the process of mobilising and
transforming services;

» there ks an increase in the level of deferred income in relation
to contracts where advance paymants have been received
from clients to undertake work prior to the recognition of
revenue and planned outcomes being delivered. Deferred
income will unwind over the life of contracts; and

= due to the changes in the pattern and timing of revenue and
cast recognition under IFRS 15, and the resulting adjustment to
opening reserves on 1 April 2017, the principles of LAS 12 give
rise to a movement In deferred tax, primarily an Increase in the
deferred tax asset recognised,

[ ]




The impact on reportad het assets as at 1 April 2037 and on the
reported revenue and réported operating profit before other
iterns recognised for the year ended 31 March 2018 for the
Group are as shown in table 1.

Divisional breakdown of adjusted financial performance
The Group's adjusted revenue increased in the year, from
£2,140.0m to £2,195.1m as shown in table 2. This was principally
due to good revenue growth in Security, Care & Custody

and Engineering Services offset by significant volume

declines in Property Management and a smaller reduction

in Professionat Services.

Adjusted operating profit before other items fell by 6.0% in the
year from £82 Om to £77.1m as shown in table 3, reflecting
investrents made to enhance customer services, investment in
technology and capabiity in Professional Services and corporate
centre, and the volume declines in Property Management, partly
offset by solid growth fram both the Security and Engineering
Servicas divisions.

Adjusted other ftems before discontinued operations
Adjusted other tems before tax total £103.0m (2017: £36,6m).
£34.6m (2017: £15.0m) relates to Impairment of the Property
Management goodwill which s further described below. £47.3m
(2017: £14.9m) s related to organisational change, to support the
Group’s cost efficiency and transformation programmes, and
specifically ralates to consuitancy and project management for
the change process, redundancy and double running costs,
property closure costs, and assets written off as a function of the
transformation programme. OF this, £34.7m relates to Project
Helx. £8.4m (2017: £6.7m) relates to the amortisation of
acquisttion related intangible assets, business acquisition costs
and costs associated with the aborted disposal of Property
Management. Other exceptional Rems of £12.7m include £3.3m
for settlement of a contractual dispute, £3.1m in relation 10
contract terminations and extensions, £2.3m in relation to costs
associated with various regulatory enquiries, £1,.9m relating to
pension curtaiiments, £1.3m for property dilapidations, and
£0.8m of IFRS 15 adoption costs. The tax credit on other items
was £11.7m (2017: £4.1m) resulting In other items after tax of
£91.3m {2017: £32.5m). As noted above, as a result of the
Accounting Review, a number of one-off items in the FY 16/17
financial statements were Included in the loss before other items
rather than in other iters, and adjusted theough the APMS to
provide a more meaningful comparison.

Table 1
Operating
Net prolt
assets before
1April | Revenue other Rems
£m 2007 | FY17/18  FY17/38
Pre-iFRS 15 8981 2,199.1 771
IFRS 15 adjustments:
Percentage of completion {50.2} 76 76
Mgobilisation asseis {2a.9) {0.6) 44
Design and developmentand  (30.1) 31 a3
Accrued income and contract - - 10
Work In progress ms:“ {6.1) (4.5)
Contracted discounts {1.5) 0.6 o8
Tax 250
Total IFRS 15 adjustments {108.2)} 4.5 125
As reported under IFRS 15 (184)] 22037 @96
Table 2
Adjusted revenue, £m FY17/18 FY16/17 Change, %
Engineering Services @333 8037 37
Security 431.7 403.7 69
Professional Services 90.8 96.6 (6.0}
Cleaning & Environmental 4055 399.2 16
Care & Custody 623 464 343
Catering 1371 1327 33
Property Management 2379 252.7 {(7.7)
Total 2,199.1 2,1400 28
Table 3
Adjusted opersting profit/{loss)
before other items, £m FYi7/18  FY16/17 Change,%
Engineering Services 35 330 76
Sacurity 252 216 16.7
Professional Services 7.0 93 24.7)
Cleaning & Environmental 198 209 (s.3)
Care & Custody 3.2 29 103
Catering 50 53 5.7)
Property Management 79 123 {35.8)
Corporate centre (z65) (233) (137
Total 77.1 82,0 {6.0)
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Finance review continued

Tax contribution

The Group manages boath direct and indirect taxes to ensune that
it pays the appropriate amount of tax in each country whilst
respecting the applicable tax legislation, where appropriate
utllising any legislative rellefs available. The strategy is reviewed
regularly and s endorsed by the Board.

Mitie is a significant contributor of revenues to the UK Exchequer,
paying £481.2m in the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017:
£534.4m). This comprised £492.8m of indirect taxes Including
business rates, VAT and payroll taxes paid and collected, less an
£11.6m refund of UK corporation tax. The tax refund was due to
the utilisation of losses resulting from the accounting
adjustments in the prior year's accounts. As Mitie’s business is
primarily based in the UK, the effective tax rate should track the
UK statutory tax rate. Losses reported as a consequence of the
adjustments to the batance sheet following the adoption of IFRS
15 will reduce the Group’s corporation tax payments over the
next few years.

Discontinued operations

Following a strategic review of the operations of the Group
earlier In the year, a sale process was initiated in connection with
the Property Management business. it was therefore classified as
2 discontinued operation in the half-yearly financial report for the
six months ended 30 September 2017, On 5 December 2017,
Mitie confirmed that it had withdrawn the Property Management
business from sale, s none of the indicative offers received were
at an acceptable level,

It has therefore been classified as a continuing operation as at 31
March 2018 and will now be ntegrated into the Engineering
Services division.

On 28 February 2017, the Group completed the sale of its
Healthcare division following the Board's decision to withdraw
from the domiciliary healthcare market. As a result of the
disposal, the Healthcare business was classified as a discontinued
operation for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Dividends

The fullyear dividend is 4.0p per share (2017: 4.0p per share),
comprising an interim dividend of 1.33p per share and a final
dividend recommended by the Board of 2.67p per share.

Mitie Model

As previously signalied, the Group has ceased its past practice of
creating Mitie Model jointly held companies, with specific eam
out targets, and all remaining minority shareholder interests have
been bought out during the year.
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Adjusted goodwill and intangible assets

Adjusted goodwill and other intangible assets of £348.9m
(2017: £397.1m) were held on the balance sheet at 31 March
2018, As part of Its annual review of impairment the Group has
updated its estimate of the recoverable amount of the Property
Management cash-generating unit (OGU), principally due to
changes in broader market conditions, which has resulted in
an impairment charge of £34.6m being taken in other ktems.

In addition, other Intangible assets iImpalrment charges, mainly
relating to software development assets that are no longer

in use, were £10.4m, and other intangible assets amortisation
was £13.5m.

Other goodwill balances have been maintained and there were
no acquisitions during the year giving rise to goodwill.

Adjusted cash flow

The Group took steps to strengthen its balance sheet during the
year, including normalising its working capital position. Utilisation
of non-recourse invoice discounting was reduced at the year-end
and supplier payment performance was improved. Although this
negatively impacted cash flow during the year, it resulted ina
stronger underlying batance sheet position and an improved
position for suppliers.

The adjusted operating cash inflow, before movements In
working capital, was £49.6m (2017: £9.1m). This Includes a cash
outflow of £27.5m relating to other kems charged to the income
statement in FY 17/18,

Adjusted cash used In operations during the year was £6.6m
{2017: cash generated £151.1m), as a result of a working capital
outflow of £56.2m (2017: inflow £142.0m). The working capital
movement Is explained in more detall balow.

Afver paying interest of £13.5m {2017: £12.7m) and corporate tax
receipts of £11.6m (2017: paid £15.3m) the adjusted nat cash
outfiow from operating activities was £8.5m (2017: inflow

£122 8m). Capltal expenditure reduced by £0.8m compared to
the prior year, to £26.1m {2017: £26.9m)}. Dividends of £4.8m
were paid in the year {2017: £37.4m). Other net cash outflows
totalled £6.9m, including the settement of amaunts owed in
connection with the disposal of Healthcare of £9.7m (2017;
£27.4m, including share buybacks of £24.4m).

Overall, this resulted in an increase In the Group’s net debt of
£46.3m {2017: £31.1m decrease) to £193.5m (2017: £147.2m).




Adjusted working capital

As highlighted above, the Group took steps to normalise its
working capital balances as part of a series of measures to
strengthen its balance sheet. There were two main drivers
explaining the working capital movement of £56.2m in FY 17/18.

Firstly, the Group reduced its non-recourse customer invoice
discounting by £34.4m to £76.3m. The involce discounting
facilities are netted off against trade and other receivables within
the balance sheet and therefore led to a working capital outflow
from receivables of £34.4m {2017: £28.5m inflow). Excluding the
impact of involce discounting, there was an underlying decrease
in receivables of £4.3m and total working capital Increased

by £21.8m.

The second factor was the measures taken to knprove our
supplier payment performance at the year end. Total payables
reduced by £30.3m over the year as the Group improved Its
supplier payment days to 58 days (2017: 72 days).

Net debt

The Group's net debt increased by £46.3m to £193.5m as at

31 March 2018 {2017: £147.2m). However, average borrowings of
£286.1m were £49.8m lower than the prior year (2017: £335.9m),
of which £23.6m can be attributed to higher average invoice
discounting (in contrast to the lower year-end position). As noted
above, this increase In net debt can be attributed to the measures
taken to reduce the year-end use of invoice discounting and to
improve supplier payment performance. The Group is foarsed
on continuing to drive further sustainable improvements to its
average borrowings.

Liquidity and covenants

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had £466.5m of comenitted
funding arrangements {2017: £526.8m), compared to net debt
of £193.5m (2017: £147.2m). The £275m multi-currency
Revoiving Cradit Facility (RCF) matures In July 2021. The £191.5m
of US Private Placement notes are spread over three maturities:
December 2019 £40.0m; Decemnber 2022 £121.5m; and
December 2024 £30.0m. in December 2017, £60.2m of US
Private Placement notes matured and this was funded as
anticipated through exdsting facilities.

Mitie’s two key covenant ratios are leverage (ratio of net debt to
covenant EBITDA to be no more than 3 times) and interest cover
(ratio of covenant EBITDA to net finance costs to be no less than
4 tirmes). At the year end, we were apersting comfortably within
these ratios at 1.98 for leverage and 6.8 for interest cover.

Mitie’s intention is to consistently maintain adequate headroom
within its committed facilities. in addition to its committed
funding, the Group utllises ancillary facifities, including invoice
discounting of £76.3m (2017: £110.7m). The Group's trade
creditors include amounts due to UK suppliers which make

use of supply chaln finance armanged by Mitie of £45.1m

{2017: £39.5m).

Ratirement benefit schemes

The net defined benefit pension labikity at 31 March 2018

was £54.8m (2017: £70.7m) for the Mitle Group schere.,

The reduction In the deficit is principally due to a 5bps increase
in the discount rate driven by Improverments in corporate bond
rates since 31 March 2017, On 14 November 2017, the Group
dosed the final salary section of the main Mitle Group scheme
to future accrual and the resulting annualised savings to the
Group from FY 18/19 are expected to be in the region of £0.8m
per annum. The latest valuation of the Mitie Group scheme

as at 31 March 2017, indicated an actuarial deficit of £46.6m
(31 March 2014: £6.0m), largely due 10 2 fall in discount rates
sinoe 2014, The Group has negotiated, subject to final approval,
a deficit recovery plan with the Trustee totalling £58.0m over
10 years, of which £3.0m was pald in FY 17/18.

The Group also makes contributions to customers’ defined
benefit pension schemes under Admitted Body arrangements as
wall as to other arrangements in respect of certain employees
who have transfermed to the Group under TUPE. At 31 March
2018, Mitle’s net defined benefit pension kabillty In respect of
these schemes, which & is commiltted to funding, smounted to
£2,0m {2017: £3.5m).

in addition, the Group also participates in four Industry rmutt-
employer defined benefit pension schemes, including the
Plumbing 8 Mechanical Services (UK) industry Pension Schesne.
These schemes are accounted for as defined contribution
schemas, either because the assets and Eabiiities cannot be
apportioned among employers or the amounts involved are not
significant. Contributions to these schermes for FY 18/19 are
expected to be approximately £0.1m. The Group Is exposed to
Section 75 employer debts in respect of two of these schemes.
These Rabilities crystallise when the Group ceases to have any
active employees in the schemes. Further detalis can be found in
Notes 34 and 37.

Condusion

in Kne with recent Anancial Reporting Council guidance, we will
continue to simplify our operational and finandal processas as we
increass transpanency and improve our internal control environment.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties

We have performed a robust and systematic review of thase risks that we believe could sericusly affect Mitie’s performance, future
prospects, reputation or its ability to defiver against its prioritles. Our process for identifying and managing risk Is set out In more
detall on pages 69 and 70 of the corporate governance report. The following table and subsequent pages set out our principal risks
and examples of controls and mitigating factors.

The risks Identified do not comprise all of the risks associated with our business and are not set out in priority order. Additional risks
not presently known to management, or currently deemed to be less material, may also have an adverse effect on the business.

L] _Cntagory Risk

1 Strategic Ineffective bidding for contracts and poor mobilisation and delivery processes, resulting in onerous
contract terms, finandial loss and damage to our customer relationships

2 Strategic Uncertainties in the economic, political and regulatory landscape which may have a negative
impact on the demand for our services and our acoess to resources

3 Strategic Poor sentiment towards the outsourcing sector could lead to fewer opportunities, Increased
scrutiny and an adverse effect on our reputation

4 Strategic Fallure to deliver our transformation programme leading to lower benefits than anticipated,
higher costs and weaknesses in operational processes

5 Operational Failure to maintain appropriate controls In and avaliability of critical IT systems leading to major
contract delivery issues

6 Operational inadequate controls over confidential and customer data and/for fallure to comply with data
protection legisiation could lead to reduced confidence in our abilities to protect data and fines
from regulators

7 Operational Fallure to adhere to sufficiently high standards in heaith, safety and environmental management
resulting In harm to our employees, fines and damage to our reputation

8 Operational inability of our business to attract and retain sufficient talented resources with a resultant
detrimental effect on our operational and finandial performance

9 Operational inability to maintain access to sources of funding due to concerns over our finandal strength could
have a significant impact on our performance and client relationships

10 Financial Failure of a significant counterparty {e.g. supplier, banker) to deliver contractual requirements
resulting in financial penalties and reputational damage

n Regulatory Non-compllance with emerging legal and regulatory frameworks leading to fines, prosecutions and
damage to our reputation
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Risk Number: 1

Ineffective bidding for contracts and poor mobilisation and
delivery processes, resulting in onerous contract terms, finandial
Ioss and damage to our customer relationships

Impacts on:

@ customer

@ cont

it ks critical to our business model that we are able to develop

competitive and profitable bids, and mobilise and deliver ona

variety of contracts which are often over long periods and highly

compiex. In arder to do this, we need to have a compelling and

differentiated market offering, and balance the cost and margin

pressures that are an important factor in our industry. Fallure to

do so would impact our abiiity to retain clients and secure new

contracts, with a detrimental effect on our financial performance.

We need to fairly balance risk and reward, as well as contractual

terms In our bids, and have suitable monitoring mechanisms to

ensyre this is achievad. It Is important to make sune we can

deliver the services In 2 contract, by fully understanding the risks

involved and having the appropriate skills and resources

required. incorrectly assessing the risks may result in onerous

<ontracts, penalties and early termination of contracts.

Fallure to praperly mobilise a contract may result in breaches of

terms and conditions, additional unanticipated costs and

problems with operational performance. in addition, the

delivery of each contract must be closely monitored so that we

understand our performance against the contract obligations

and Key Performance indicators (KPi), and that any changes ane

properly assessed and monitored,

If we are unable to deliver the services as agreed in the contract,

this could have a negative impact on aur customer relationships

and reputation and lead to legal disputes with our customer and

termination of the contract. We have a number of large

Integrated contracts and major service specific contracts, the

loss of any of which would have a significant financial Impact.

Controls snd mitigations

* Strategic account management

* Revised group-wide Sales & Bid process rolled out

« Centralisation and standardisation of pricing models

* Executive management bid committee approval for complex bids

* New Sales and CRM teams in place

* Development of Connected Workspace and capability in
professional services

* Use of specialist mobllisation teams for complex contracts

Detalled contracting guidelines developed and rolied out

Revised and relssued delegated authorities register

Risk registers in place for large-scaie contracts

KPI/SLA formal reviews with customers

improved CRM capabilities with active relationship management

Focus on Net Promoter Score

Future plans

* Ongoing review to redefine and optimise the way we use our

CRM tool {SalesForce), to ensure best practice is shared across
al) client teams

* Introducing new Sales Academy

Risk Number: 2

Uncertainties in the economic, political and regulatory landscape
which may have a hegative impact on the demand for our
services and our access to resources

Impacts on:
. Customer . People
@ Cost @ Technology

The performance of our business may be affected by generzl
economic conditions and other financial and poiitical factors
outside its control. A downturn In the economic cydle usually
resuits in decreased project work and discretionary spend by
customers, which can lead to a fak in our financial performance.

Mitle drives maost of its revenue from a client base in the UK,
with limited expesure to the wider global economy. We continue
1o monitor the results of negotiations resulting from the decision
of the UK to exit the European Union, commaonly referred to as
‘Brexit’. This may result in changes to the regulatory framework
in which we operate, and could place restrictions on the mobility
of individuals and hence avallability of resources.

We need to be able to respond to variations in particular sectors
by providing service solutions that are competitive and
profitable. Our diverse business portfolic also helps provide
resiiience to aconomic uncertainty.

Controls and mitigations

» Mix of long-term contract portfolio in both the public and
private sectors

« Development of professional services, Connected Workspace
and new and innovative sohrtions

» Focus on higher margin growth oppartunities

« Regular reviews of the sales pipeline

» increasing spread of dient base, reducing refiance on
indvidual customers

* Strategic account management

+ Project Helix transformation programme

Futura plans

« Continue to source Connected Workspace technology
platform to provide next generation FM services that increase
customer stickiness, improve win rates, increase retention and
provide opportunities for higher margins

« Significant increase in our customer retention focus through
better understanding customer needs (NPS), improving
operational efficiency and developing expestise and capability
within our commercial function

« Build a customer focus, demand led marketing and
communication programme to better engage our customers
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Strate,ne risbe coantinued

Risk number: 3

Poor sentiment towards the outsourcing sector could lead to
fewer opportunities, increased serutiny and an adverse effect on
our reputatian

impacts on:
@ Customer
@ vechnology

Mitie’s reputation may be affected by the activities and results of
other companies operating in our sector, as well as any negative
publicity for our business. This has been particularly heightened
since the llquidation of Carilfion pic in January 2018. This has
resulted in increased scrutiny of companies in the outsourced
facllitles management sector, regarding thelr financial health,
operational performance and long-term prospects. In addition, it
has increased debate, predominantly In the public sector, about
the benefits and viabllity of outsourced contracts. We aiso
operate & humber of government contracts which attract very
high levels of media scrutiny, for example iImmigration

removal centres.,

If we are unable to demonstrate our ability to deliver the
obligations In our exdsting contracts and financial performance in
line with market expectations, we may be unable to retain
existing clients or secure new contracts. In addition, any negative
publicity In respect of cur performance on public-sector
contracts may have a negative impact on our financial
performance and reputation.

Controls and mitigations

* Regular engagement with both public and private sector cllents

» Strategic account management and increased cross selling to
CUTTENt CUSTOMers

+ Project Helix transformatian programme

» Long-term contract portfolio and spread of client base

» Strong retationships with financlal institutions

+ Regular finandal performance and balance sheet reviews

Future plans

¢ Continue to source Connected Workspace technology
platform to provide next generation FM services that increase
customer stickiness, improve win rates, increase retention and
provide opportunities for higher margins

+ Significantly increase our customer retention focus through
better understanding customer needs (NPS), improving
operational efficiency and developing expertise and capability
within our commercial function

+ Bulld a customer focus, demand led marketing and
communication programme to better engage our customers
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Risk number: 4

Failure to deliver our transformation programme leading to
lower benefits than anticipated, higher costs and weaknesses in
operational processes

Impacts on:
@ Customer @ People
@ cost @ Technology

To ensure that we develop and grow our business In line with
the new operating model, our transformation programme
(Project Halix) has been running throughout the year. The
programme contains multiple projects designed to improve and
optimise business processes, controls and operating structures,
with major projects in areas such as Finance, IT, HR and our
Engineering Services division.

The changes being introduced are vital to the future success of
the business, and fallure to adequately manage the programme
of work, identify and manage interdependencies, develop
appropriate solutions and implement the changes and ensure
they are sustainable, could severely limit the pace at which these
changes are delivered. Additionally, the irvestment required to
implement the projects needs to be closely monitored, to
ensure we deliver the expected operational and financlal
benefits and savings in overheads.

Controls and mitigations

+ Board and Executive Leadership Team (ELT) sponsorship and
regular monitoring of the transformation progamme

+ Highly experienced programme managers brought In to
establish an overall programme management office, with
effective governance, controls, monitoring mechanisms and
reporting. This ensures regular oversight with clear visibiiity of
progress and early waming of any challenges,

* Experienced individuals within the business dedicated to the
individual projects to allow focus on the transformational activity

« Regular communication of progress and awareness of the imgact
of changes being introduced to minimise business disruption

« Dedicated risk management and assurance procedures within the
programime to-ensure internal controls are operating sffectively

Future plans

» Develop a tralning progreamme for change management to
build and enhance internal capabllity

» Create a permanent Enterprise PMO capability to govern,
manage and control all change management activities
post-Transformation




Operational risks

Risk number: 5
Failure to malintain appropriate controls in and availability
of critical IT systems leading to major contract delivery issues

@ rechnology

Technology is becaming increasingly critical to the success of our
business in meeting customers’ expectations. This is particularly
impottant where we are responsible for looking after data and
critical infrastructure on their behalf, and any fallure could not
only impact our ability to operate, but aiso the

customers’ business.

We are continuing to increase the use of technology with
customers, especlally as we develop our Connected Workspace
offering, and need to ensure we have effective controls and
monitoring in place.

In addition, we are seeking to automate processes and improve
systems across our business to improve efficiency and control. A
number of these initiatives are being delivered through our
transformation programme (Project Hellx); a key system change
already delivered is a work management system in our Cleaning
& Spedialist Services division (also utilised by our Security
division}. Other significant planned changes include the
Implementation of iImproved HR solutions and a planning and
scheduling solution for Engineering Services,

Irvestment in technology Is critical to delivering on our contract
obligations and to delivering operational Improvements. As our
dependency on IT solutions increases, we will need to continue
to invest to minimise system failures and have adequate
business continuity and disaster recovery plans.

Contrals and mitigations

* Standardisation and rationalisation of operational and ERP
systemns and infrastructure

* Requitment of highly skilled IT professionals who are famillar
with the new technologies and can use these to de-risk the
current estate

* Improved cyber and operational controls for existing systams
and included in all new system developments

» Development and testing of effective business continuity and
disaster recovery plans

* Investment strategy and support for technology development

Future plans

+ The prapased outsource of routing IT operations to a partner
organisation which has the scale and depth of skilis to run this
more effactively and with lower risk

+ The continued migration from the legacy estate to leverage
new technologies, such as A, big data, APt management,
open systems etc to improve scalability, performance and
resillence

Risk number: 6

Inadequate controls over confidential and customer data and/or
fallure to comply with data protection legislation could lead to
reduced confidence ih our abllities t0 protect data and fines
from regulators

Impacts on:

@ customer

.Technology

There has been an increase in the regulations and penalties for
failing to adequately secure the data we hold regarding our
customers, suppliers, employees and others. As with ali
organisations we face increased risk of cyber-attacks, malware
and internal breaches, which could affect our operational
performance and cause damage to our reputation. It is

important that we maintain adequate security controls to
prevent the loss or theft of data we hold.

In particular, we have a programme of work and dedicated team In
place to ensure we are compliant with the General Data Protection
Regulation {GDPR), which came into force in May 2018,

Information Is an important asset for the business and needs to

be protected at all times from disciosure or misuse. We handie

information in many forms and have formal sacure tachnical and

procedural controls in place to mitigate risks 10 the information. The

secure processing, maintenance and transmission of sensitive and

confidential data Is achleved through the integrity, confidentiality and

awallabliity of our systemns. Appropriately applied information security

helps to ensune business continuity and minimise disruption by

preventing or minimising the impact of security breaches. Failure to

do this would ralse questions about how we handie information with

care, reduce confidence In our abliities and potentially expose us to

significant fines from regulators.

Controls and mitigations

« Centralised information security team in place and
exparienced new Chief Data and Security Officer recrulted

* information Security Management System (15MS) in place and
certified to 1ISO/IEC27001:2013 for key information assets

* [T security controls in place to proactively test, monitor,
Identify and respond to cyber threats

« Cyber Essentlals accreditation

« Cyber Insurance policy

+ Ongoing Security Awareness For Everyone {SAFE) programme

« information security considered for all new critical activities
and products

Future plans

= Adoption of new, and optimisation of existing, security
functionality to respond o the evolving cyber threat landscape.

* Further embedding the principles and procedures of Privacy
by Design into core BAU activities

+ Transition of legacy emall gateway functiona ity Into the
strategic toolset

= implementation of Single Sign-On (SSO), delivering security
and end-user experience benefits

» Redesign of ioiners-Movers-Leavers controls in line with new
HR transformation activities and toolsets
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Opreratianal rels corpmeed

Risk number: 7

Failure to adhere to sufficientty high standards in health, safety
and erwironmenital manggement resulting In harm to our
employees, fines and damage to our reputation

Impacts on:
@ Customer
@ Pecple

The nature of the services we perform for our dients means that
there Is potential for our employees, our partners and members
of the public to be exposed to health and safety risks, and for
environmental damage. It is essential that we malntain very high
health, safety and environmental (HS&E) standards to manage
these risks.

We are completely committed to ensuring our people operate in
safe conditions, hard is hot caused to others who may be
affected by our activities and prevention of damage to the
environment. Effective management of these risks is essential to
the suctess of cur business. Fallure 1o do so could lead to
significant harm to individuals and the environment and result in
prosecution, action by regulators, fines and substantial damage
to our reputation.

Controls and mitigations

« A professional and skilied HS&E team

* New Director of QHSE appointed and revised operational
model introduced with clear roles and responsibilities

+ Regular training and communication delivered at appropriate
levels throughout the company

+ Improvements in incldernt recording, monitoring and reporting

» Certified HS&E managermnent systems to OHSAS 18001 and
15014001

= Clear and standardised KPts introduced to monitor progress
and improvements

+ HS&.E performance reviews conducted at divisional and
Board meetings

Future plans

+ implementation of QHSE Culture program {LiveSafe}
spedifically designed to develop QHSE cultural maturity across
the organisation

+ Implementation of systemns and processes which ensure
effective sharing of QHSE learnings across the organisation
and industry
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Risk number: 8

Inability of our business to attract and retain suffident talented
resources with 3 resultant detrimental effect on our operational
and financial perforrance

Impacts on:

@ Customer

. People

To achieve our objectives and cperate successfully we must
attract, develop, motivate and retain talented individuals. If we

fall to maintain a skilful waridorce there will be an adverse

impact on our operational and financial performance, and
customer satisfaction.

It is important to have a variety of views and experience within
the business and to attract specific technical expertise to
enhance our customer offering. It is also essential that we
develop and support the current and future leaders In our
business. This will help ensure we have the right culture in the
business to maintain high standards of working and an effective
system of governance and control.

Controls and mitigations

+ Launch of Vision and Values

* Updated and Improved training portal developed and
depioyed during the year

= Competitive remuneration, terms and conditions

« Personal development plans related to annual performance
appraisals

* Succession planning and talent management

+ Reguiar employee communications and offers

Future plans

s Partnership with 3aaa developed to utilise the Apprenticeship
Levy to build capabliity and attract talent

* Implementation of employee and manager self-serve
technology to enhance employee experience

» Digttal learning suite to be rolied out

+ Action planning from engagement survey resuits

* Creation of resourcing centre of excellence to enhance
carlidate experience




Finanaal risks

Risk number: 9

Inability to maintain access to sources of funding due to
concerns over our financial strength could have a significant
Impact on our performance and client relationships

Impacts on:

@ customer

. Technology

It is important that we maintain a range of suitable sources of
finance, Including banking facilities, private placements and
supply chain funding, in order to maintain a strong Hquidity
position. Failure to do s0 would restrict our abllity to grow elther
arganically or through acquisition, and affect our abllity to meet
our finandal commitments. We need sufficient funds to be
avallable to pay our suppliers, invest in our business and, mest
importantly, pay our staff on time, as this Is our most

significant cost.

We continue to pursue Initiatives to Improve our financial
position and given the concern about the viabiiRy of companles
opersting In our sector, we need to continue to demonstrate
good financial discipline to maintain access to appropriate
sources of funding.

Controls and mitigations

¢ Maintenance of strong banking, debt and equity relationships

* Committed long-term funding facliities

+ Focus on appropriate payment terms with customers and
supply chain

+ Strong focus on and manitoring of cash collection

¢ Daily monitoring of bank balances

* Regular forecasting of cash flow

s Regular financial performance and balance sheet reviews -
which have been enhanced during the year

* Regular monitoring of working capital

* Policy on provisions

Future plans

* Streamline our order to cash process

* introduce incentives linkad to cash collection

Risk number: 10

Failure of a significant counterparty (e.g. supplier, banker) to
deliver contractual requirements resuiting in financial penaities
and reputational damage

Impacts on:

. Customer

To meet our contractual commitments and succeed as a
business, we are rellant on our ability to manage our
relationships with third parties Including insurers, suppliers and
banks. Poor performance or fallure of one of these
counterparties could have a significant impact on our
operational and financial performance, and damage our
reputstion and dlient relationships.

It is Important that we maintain effective ongoing relationships
with our significant counterparties and monttor their
performance, and develop contingency plans as necessary.

Controls and mitigations
* Ongoing credit monitoring of significant counterparties
= Annual material counterparty risk reviews and Board approval

« Ragular contact with extermnal financial and commercial
markets

+ Business continuity plans developed

+ Maintenance of sufficient committed debt facilities to
milnimise the Impact of any adverse financial conditions
caused by counterparty fallure

Future plans

* Exercise continued vigilance In monitoring and managing key
counterparty relationships
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Prindpal risks and uncartainties continued

Risk number: 11
Non-compliance with emerging legal and regulatory frameworks
leading to fines, prosecutions and damage to our reputation

Impacts on:

.Customcr

@ reonc

The Group Is subject to a wide variety of laws and regulations.
These include employment, and anti-bribery and corruption
laws, National Minimum Wage and the Apprenticeship Levy.
Failure to comply with applicable legal and regulatory
frameworks may result In significant fines, prosecutions,
debarment from public sector contracts and revocation of
Heences, as well as damage to our reputation. This could harm
our prospects of winning future bids and retaining

existing customers.

it is important that we maintain strong governance and oversight
10 ensure we continue to comply with lagal and regulatory
frameworks and that we respond to any changes that are
Introduced. It is also necessary to communicate the
requirements to our empioyees to ensure they ame fully aware
and can demonstrate compliance.

Controls and mitigations

+ Group functions {Including Company Secretariat, QHSE,
Finance, Legal and HR} monitor requirements and assess the
impact on the Group

« Tralning and awareness is provided to employees for changes
in laws and regulations

¢+ Ongoing compliance monttoring is undertaken and

management is required to confirm compliance

Management oversight by Group and divisional leadership tearms

External experts consulted for specialist advice

Code of conduct maintained and deployed to employees

External regulatory audits

Whistieblowing service launched and externally hosted

Tax reporting framework in place to ensure complance with

the Senlor Accounting Officer rules

» Group-wide policies and processes maintained in the Business
Manhagement System (BMS)

Future plans

* Revised Group risk governance architecture will be rolled
out during 2018

« Digital learning suite to be rolled out

« Recruitment of additional subject matter experts to
Group functions

« Ongoing review of BMS to update policies and process
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Viability statement

The Group’s principal markets and strategy are described in

detail in the Strategic Report (pages 1 to 56). The key factors

affecting the Group’s prospects are:

» Mitie is the leading FM business in the UK with 4% of the markat;

+ the outsourcing market is relatively Insensitive to economic cydes;

+ Mitle has 3 clear vision for its technology centric growth strategy;

o Mitie is making good progress in its transformation
programme; and

« Mitie has a diverse portfolio of blue-chip and public sector
clients, the largest of which constitutes only 7.4% of revenue.

in accordance with section €.2.2 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2016, the Directors have assessed the
prospects of the Group over a three-ysar period to March 2021,

The Directors belleve that a three-year period s appropriate for
their viability assessment as it is supported by Mitie’s strategic,
budgeting and business planning cycles and is relevant to the
duration of the Group's existing contracts with customers which
Is around three years on average. it therefore represents a
timeframe over which the Directors believe they can reasonably
forecast the Group’s performance.

In making this staternent, the Directors have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, including
those that would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or hiquidity. This included the availability
and effectiveness of mitigating actions that could realistically be
taken to avoid or reduce the impact or occurrence of the
underlying risks. In considering the likely effectiveness of such
actions, the conclusions of the Board's regular monitoring and
review of risk management and internal control systems, as
described on pages 69 and 70, were considered.

in adopting IFRS 15, Mitie reported net labilities of (£24m)
at FY 17/18. This change does not affect forecast cash flows,
liquidity, or the ability of the Group to meet its obligations as
they fall due in the future and therefore does not impact

this analysis,

In undertaking its viabllity assessment, as a base case, the Board
used the agreed budget for FY 18/19, which includes analysis of
the forecast performance of the Group's existing contract base,
expectation for future growth including sales targets and
expected win rates, and overhead cost base. Based on this
budget, further projections for viablility purposes have been
made using prudent assumptions:

modest revenue and margin growth beyond FY 18/19;

no major changes In working capital;

customer involce discounting continues to decrease over time;
future dividends in Ene with current policy;

no changes to Group structure; and

no additional capital beyond current committed debt facilities.

* * @ & & 9

The resulting financial model assesses the ability of the
Company to remain within the financial covenants and liquidity
headroom of iz existing committed facikties. During the forecast
period, £40m of the US Private Placement notes mature and the
model assumes these are not refinanced. The Group also uttised
E£76m of involce discounting at 31 March 2018, which the Group
i not dependent upon for liquidity, covenant compliance or
viabiiity purposes In the base case scenario.

A range of scenarlos that encompass the principal risks were
spplied to the base case and are set out in the table below.
The analysis also considered a reverse stress-test scenario to
fllustrate the reduction in operating margin required to cause a
breach of leverage covenant, In combination with the reduced
revenue and operating cash scenarios.

Principel
Sconario rishs
1 Loss of major comract— lost reverie and 1,45
operating profit in all future periods
2  Major dient insolvency — lost revenue, 10

operating profit and cash flow, plus one-off

oosts equivalent to three months’ revenue

Catastrophic working capital outflow —£100m 9

10% revenue reduction 3,4,6,7
1 Margin erosion 1,7.8
11

n/a

w

F

6  Reverse stress test — revenue loss, margin
erosion and working capital outflow In
combination to covenant breach

In each of scenarios 1-5, the Group would be able to continue
operating within debt covenants, liquidity headroom and
maintain dividends in line with current policy. Scenario 6
required such an extreme set of factors in unison that it is
considered to be a very remote likefihood and therefore does
not represent a realistic threat to the viabllity of the Group.

The Directors considered mitigating factors that could be
empiloyed to counter the negative effects of the crystallisation
of each of these risks. The main actions included the short-term
scaling down of capital expenditure, asset disposals, reductions
in cash distributions or raising equity.

Based on this assessment, the Directors have a reasonabie

that the Group will be able to continue in operation
and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the three-year
period considered.
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Our customers’
business, is our
business

We are a partner, trusted for
our expertise and for putting
our customers at the heart
of everything we do.

Hyun
Workplace Consultant,
Professional Services
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Board of Directors

Image removed Image removed Image removed
Derek Mapp Phil Bantley Paul Woolf
Non-Executive Chairman Chief Exacutive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Soard Committees Board Cormmittess Board Committess
Chairman of the Nomination Commilttee Chairman of the Results and Investment Merber of the Nomination, Results and
Date of appointment to the Board Committees Irvestment Commilttees
May 2017 Member of the Nomination Commiittee Dete of sppaintment to the Board
Other current appointments Cate of appolntment to the Board Navember 2017
Derek is chair of informa pic and November 2016 Other current sppointmants
his role as chairman, and from the board, None Past roles
of Huntsworth pk once a sultable
replacernent is found. Dersk is chair of Past roles Paul was previously CEO of Virgin Active

imagesound Limited, 3aaa and Salmon
Developments Limited, which are afl
privately held companies. Derek also has a
number of other business interests.

Past roles

CEO of Tom Cobleigh PLC, chair of
Leapfrog Dey Nurseries Limited, chair of
The East Midlands Development Agency,
chalr of Sport England and chalrmnan of th
British Amateur Boxing Association.

Skills and experience
» Experienced chairman and entrepreneur.
o Extensive career in ownership,

managerial, operational and
commercial roles in service industries.

= Wealth of commerdial and governance
experience within various sactors.

& Promotes robust debate and an open
and engaged culture.

Phil was the group chief exscutive officer
of Cable & Wireless Communications Pic
from January 2014 unth its sale to Uiberty
Global pic in May 2016. From 2007 to
2013 he was managing director of British
Gas and was on the board of Centrica pic
from 2000 o 2013, having held the roles
of group finance director {2000-2004) and
managing director, Europe (2004-2007).
He was a non-exacutive director of IMI plc
from October 2012 to December 2014 and

Kingfisher pic (2003-2010).

Skifls and experience

* Executive and non-executive experience
with FTSE 100 public compantes for
over 15 years.

s Strategic and commercial experience,
at both national and global level.

« Extensive executive and leadership
experience from across industry.

o Extensive financial, audit and risk
management systems experience.

*« Accountant by profiession, with a master’s

degree from Oxford University and an
MBA from INSEAD, Fontainebleau.
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Health Clubs, and prior to that he
was CFO of Jack Wills, CFO/CO0 of
Birds Eye iglo Group and CFO of the
Automobile Association,

Skills and experience

o A highly-regarded leader with
experience across 2 broad range of
industry sectors.

& A proven track record in operational,
financial and strategic oversight and
execytion.

+ Extensive tumaround experience.

* Qualified as a chartered accountant
with a degree from Oxford University in
Philosophy, Politics and Economics.
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Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat Jack Boyer, OBE Philippa Couttie
independent Non-Executive Director independent Non-Executive Director independent Non-Executive Director
Board Committees Board Committees Board Commiitees

Member of the Audit and Nomination
Commiitiees

Date of appointment to the Board
June 2017

Othet current appolmments

Chief executive, Infrastructure Services &
Cloud Services UK, Jreland and Northem
Europe at Capgemini SA, a French publicly
listed muttinational corporation, and a
member of its LUK management board.

Past roles

Senior rojes at Capgeminl SA; head of
Enterprise Solutions, EMEA and head of
London Development Centre at Infosys
Technologies Ltd. Prior to joining infosys,
Nivedita was a consultant in the corporate
finance division at KPMG india.

Skills anxl experience

+ Significant international management
experience having worked across the
UK, Europe, the US and India.

= Vast experience in advising clients
on technology solutions with a view
to enabling themn to increase
shareholder value.

* Several years of IT consulting and IT
outsoyurcing experience managing large
complex contracts.

» Strong sales orientation having sold
global technology and digital solstions
to global dients.

= Qualified as 3 chartered accountant
with 2 degree in Economics.

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Date of appointment to the Board
June 2013

Other current appointments
Non-axecutive director and member of
the nomination, remuneration and audit
committees of TT Electronics PLC. Board
member of the Sir Henry Royce Institute
for Advanced Materials. Chainman of
Academies Enterprise Trust.

Past roles

Former chainman of Iika pic; non-exacutive
director and chairman of the remuneration
committee of Laind PLC; deputy chairman
of the Advanced Materials Leadership
Council (BEIS); council mamber of the
Engineering and Physical Sciences
Research Counci! and the innovate UK
Energy Catalyst. Previously founded and
was chief sxecutive officar of companies in
the engineering, telecommunications and
biotechnology sectors. investment banker
at Gokdman Sachs and strategy consultant
at Bain & Co.

Skifs and sxperience

 Director of FTSE 250, AIM and private
companies, and chairman of AIM
companies and private companies.

= Chief executive and entrepreneur with a
track record of steering successful
corporate innovation, growth and
globalisation in multiple sectors.

« Significant experience in mergers and
acquisitions, IPOs and financis! markets
in the UK, US and Asia.

s MBA.

The eiceptional, everyday | www.mitle.com

Member of the Audit and Nomination
Committees

Date of appointment to the Board
November 2017

Other current appointments

Member of the House of Lords, party whip
and member of the Polling and Digital
Media Setect Committee.

Past roles

Philippa spent five years leading
Westminster Council, prior to which she
served as the cabinet member for Housing
and the cabinet member for Finance. She
was also the deputy cabinet member for
Children's Services. She joined the Council
in 2006. Before progressing her career In
public service, Philppa was a director at
Citigroup Capttal following its takeover of
Schroders, where she headed up its
principal finance business. Prior to jolning
Schroders, she was chief executive of
Comerstone Communications, a
subsidiary of Birkrale Group pic.

Philippa has served as a non-executive
director on a number of boards since
2006. These include the Royal Parks, the
London Local Enterprise Partnership
Board, chairing the West End Partnership,
and sitting on the goveming body for
imperial College-whilst also chairing its
audit committee.

Skills and experienca

» Extensive experience in both the public
and private sectors at the most senior
level,

+ Ennobled and joined the House of Lords
n 2016,

s A degree from the University of St
Andrews in Psychology.



Board of Directors continued
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Jennifer Duvalier Larry Hirst, CBE Mark Reckitt
Independent Non-Executive Director Senior Independent Director Independent Non-Executive Director
Board Committees Boward Committees Board Committees
Member of the Remuneration and Member of the Rermuneration and Chairman of the Audit Committee
Nomination Committees Nomination Committees Member of the Nomination Committee
Date of appointment to the Board Date of appointsnent to the Board Dete of appointment to the Board
July 2017 February 2010 July 2015
Qther aurrent appolntmants Other et appolatments Other current appointmants
Non-executive director at GMG pic, the Chairman of the imperial College Data Nor-executive director and chairman of
body which governs strategy and Science Institute Advisory Board.

commercial operations of the Guardian
Media Group. Sha Is also a member of the
Council of the Royal College of Art, and
chair of its remuneration committee.

Past roles

Until March 2017, Jennifer was executive
vice president, Peopie, for ARM Holdings
pic, the global technology business, and
was an executive committee member with
responsibility for People and Internal
Communications activiy. From August
2007 to August 2013,

she was Group People and Culture
Director at UBM pic, and was Group HR
Director #t Emap pic from October 2003
to August 2007,

Skills and experience

o Skill areas include keadership
development, talent management and
succession planning; mentoring; HR
strategy; organisation development
and change management; empioyee
engagement; intemational
communications; corporate social
responsibility and partnerships;
executive remuneration; axecutive
team and board effectiveness.

s MA {Hons) frorn Oxford University in
Engfish and French.

Community interests include acting as an
ambassador to Everywoman and Black
British Business. Member of the National
Research Coundl for Cyber Security.

Past roles

Until hig retirement from 1BM in 2010,
Larry was chalrman of iIBM (EMEA} and
held a number of other senior positions
during his 33-year career with IBM.

He represented IBM before the European
Commission and other authorities.
Chairman of the Transition to Teaching
Committee; a commissioner for the
Govemment’s Employment and Skills
Coundl; chairman of the UK Trade and
Investment Executive Board; chairman of
@-skills, the Sactor Skills Counct: member
of the British Alrways Intemational
Advisory Bosrd; & private sector Business
Ambassador, appointed by the then Prime
Minister; member of the South African
President’s Advisory Council.

Until Septernber 2016, Larry was a
non-executive director and chairman
of the remuneration committee of
ARM Holdings pik.

Skills and experience

+ Served on both government and private
sactor boards at senior level.

o Significant expertise in the global
information technology Industry, In
particular In relation to defining and

executing the strategies required to
drive business sucoess.
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the audit committee at both Cranswick pic
and Hill & Smith Holdings pic.

Past roles

Non-executive director and chairman of

the audit committee of } 0 Wetherspoon

pic; group strategy director, Smiths Group

plc; divisional president, Smiths

Interconnect; interim managing director,

Green & Black’s; chief strategy officer at

Cadbury pic, Mark »is0 held 3 range of

strategy and finance roles at Cadbury

since joining in 1989, iIncluding finance

director of Cadbury UK. Prior to joining

Cadbury, Mark spent six years in

Investment banking and retalfing.

Sidlis and experience

« Significant international strategic
experience.

* Experienced non-executive director and
audit chair at FTSE 250 companies.

+ Finance leadership of large scale
complex divisions whilst at Cadbury pic.

s Extensive strategic leadership at both
Cadbury pk and Smiths Group pic,
implementing large scale change
programmes.

» {n depth experience in mergers and
acquisitions across multiple
International and product markets.

= Chartered accountant.




image removed Image removed Image removed
Mary Redlly Roger Yates Peter Dickinson
independent Non-Executive Director Independent Non-Executive Director General Counsel and Company Secretary
Board Committees Board Committees Board Committees
Member of the Audit and Nomination Member of the Nomination Committee None
Committees Date of appointmant to the Board Date of appointment
Date of appointment to the Board March 2018 March 2017
September 2017 Other current appointments Other current appointments
Other current appointments Non-axecutive director of Jupiter Fund None
Nor-executive director of Essentra pic, an  Management plic, JPMorgan Elect plc and Past roles

international suppller of specialist plastic,
fibre, foam and packaging products. She is
also non-executive director and chalr of
the audit committee of Travelzoo, a US-
listed publisher of travel, entertainment
and local offers, and of Ferrexpo Pic, an
lron ore mining company.

Past roles

Mary was a non-executive director and
chair of the audit & risk committee of

the Department of Transport in the UK, of
Crown Agents Ltd, an international
development company, and of Cape plc, a
global industrial services company.

Mary was also a partner at Deloitte LLP
for over twenty years, including as audit
partner, UX Manufacturing, and Head of
Outsourding. She has also served as a non-
executive director on a number of boards
since 2000,

Skilis and experience

= Accounting, finance and intemational
managemert experience.

s Chartered accountant with a degree
from University College London in
History.

St James's Place plc, where he is also chair
of the remuneration committee.

Past roles
Roger started his career in asset
management at GT Management in 1981
and held positions of increasing senlority
at Morgan Grenfel|, LGT and Invesco. He
served as chief executive of Henderson
Group pic from 1999 to 2008 and as chief
executive of Uniredit’s asset
management arm, Ploneer Investments.
Roger’s non-executive roles have included
FE&C investments, IG Group pic and Electra
Private Equity plc.
Skills and experience
¢ Substantial board experience, a strong
business track record and extensive
knowledge of the finance and
investrent community.

Peter was a partner at the giobal law
firm Mayer Brown Intemational LLP
(and ks predecessor firm) between 1995
and 2017.

From 2015 until March 2017, Peter
co-headed Mavyer Brown's global
Technology Transactions practice.

Between 2005 and 2015, Peter was the
head of Mayer Brown's Corporate practioe
in London and, in addition, between 2008
and 2015, Peter was the co-head of Mayer
Brown's global Corporate practice, with
spacific responsibility for strategy.

Siills and experionce

o Substantial experience advising on
corporate advisory,
mergers and acquisitions, joint ventures
and other significant commencial
transactions Including large scale
muitiHurisdictional outsourcing
profects.

= Qualified solicitor with a degree in law
from Southampton University.
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Chalrman’s introduction to Corporate Governance

Chairman’s introduction to
Corporate Governance

Image removed

Darek Mapp, Chalman

As a Board, we are dedicated to delivering and maintaining the
highest levels of governance. The Board is continually seeking to
adapt and respond to meet its responsibilities to shanehoiders
and other stakeholders for the Group’s activities and ks long-
term sucoess,

The Board is kept up to date on all matters of key governance

by way of a comprehensive report prepared by the Compeny
Secretary for each Board meeting, and communication during the
periods between meetings with both the Company Secretary and
the wider teams where necessary.

There have been many corporate governance consultations,
updates and madifications refeased during the year, incliiing the
Financial Reporting Councif’s review of the UK Corporate
Governance Code {the Code). Praposed revisions to the Code
remains high on our governance agenda and the Board will
continue to monitor the changes and adapt where necessary to
maintain complisnce.

Statement of compliance with the Code

‘The value of good governance is clearly necognised by the Board
as an area of great Importance.

| can confirm on behalf of the Board that the Group has complied
throughout the year with all of the principles and the relevant
provisions set out in the April 2016 edition of the Code, which
can be found on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
www.frc.org.uk. Detalls of how we have applied the principles
and complied with the provisions are explained throughout the
Annual Report and Accounts. In this section, we explain how the
Code is implemented via Mitie’s governance framewori.
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Board composition

Since my appointment as Chairman in July 2017, the composition
of the Board has been further reviewed, leading to several key
appointments during the ysar. Bxtemnal advisors were engaged to
assist and support the process, further details of which are set out
on pages 84 to 87 as part of the Nomination Committee report.

Following the appointment of Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat

in June 2017, in July 2017, we announced the appointment of
lennifer Duvaller and Mary Refily as Non-Executive Directors
Joining the Board in July and September respectively. in November,
we welcomed Paul Woolf as Chief Financial Officer and

Philippa Couttie as a Non-Executive Director.

Additionally, as announced in February 2018, we appointed
Roger Yates as a Non-Executive Director from 1 March 2018.
Roger will succeed Larry Hirst as Senior Independent Director
upon Larry’s retirement from the Board at the Annual General
Meeting (the AGM) after more than eight years’ service.

Mark Reckitt will stand down from the Board at the 2018 AGM
after three years’ service. Mary Reilly will sucoeed Mark as chair
of the Audit Committee.

During its reviews of the compasition of the Board and succession
planning, the Board is mindful of both the Hampton-Alexander
review and the Parker review. Further details on these, and of the
Group's policy on diversity, are inciuded in the Nomination
Committee report on pages 84 to 87.

The new appointments have significantly strengthened and
widened areas of expertise and experience on the Board. Full
biographical detalls of each member of the Board are set out on
pages 6010 63.

An overview of the activities and the effectiveness of sach of our
Board Committees Is explained further on pages 72 to 109.

Extarnal auditor change

During the year the 8oard carried out a competitive tender
process for the provision of audit services. As a resul, Deloitte
LLP resigned as the Company’s auditor with effect from

19 September 2017, and the Board appointed BDO LLP to fill the
casual vacancy until the forthcoming AGM, whan shareholders
wiil have the opportunity to vote on their appolntment.

Further detall can be found in the Audit Committee report

on pages 72to 83,




Regulatory update

As announced In August 2017, the Company s subject to an
ongoing review by the Financial Conduct Authority {the FCA) in
connection with the imeliness of a profit waming announced by
the Company in September 2016 and the manner of preparation
and content of the Company's financial information, position and
results for the year ended 31 March 2016. The Company is fully
cooperating with the FCA, and will update the market on
completion of the Investigation.

In November 2017, we announced that the Company had been
advised that the Financial Reporting Council’s Corporate
Reporting Review team's review of the annual report and
accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016,
which was Initiated In October 2016, had been concluded and
that they did not intend to pursue the matter further.

Remuneration policy review

The remuneration policy was approved by shareholders at the
AGM in 2015, and In sccordance with the Code we will present an
updatad remuneration policy to shareholders for approval at the
2018 AGM. Further Information is included on pages 88 to 109.

In conclusion

Although there have been challenges during the past year,
inciuding in the outsourcing sector in general, significant steps
have been made towards delivering on our strategy, and the
Board remains committed to delivering shareholder value In the
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The Board

Board members

Every company should be headed by an effective Board.

All Directors are expected to allocate sufficient time to the
Comgany to discharge their responsibiiities effectively and,
where possible, attend all Board meetings and the AGM.

Any time commitment matters are addressed by the Chalrman
with the Director concemed.

The members of the Board are set out below and thelr
accompanying biographies are set out on pages 60 to 63.

Chalrman Derek Mapp {from 26 July 2017
{Non-Executive) Roger Matthews {until 26 July 2017)
Board members  Phil Bentiey
{Executive) Paul Woolf {from 13 November 2017}
Sandip Mahajan {until 13 November 2017)
Bosrd members Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat
{Non-Executive) {from 1 June 2017)
Jack Boyer
Philippa Couttie (from 15 November 2017)
Jennifer Duvaller (from 26 july 2017)
Larry Hirst
Mark Reckltt
Mary Reillly (from 1 September 2017)
Roger Yates {from 1 March 2018)
Note:

1. Darek joined the Board a3 Non-Exequtive Chalrman-elect on'S May 2017 and
beceme Chalrman on 26 July 2017,

Key purpose of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible and accountable to
sharehoiders for the sustainable long-term success of the
Company. The Board provides leadership and direction to
management within a framework of controls enabling risk
to be adequately assessed and managed.

The Board reviews and agrees the strategy for the Group
proposed by the Executive Directors on an annual basis and
reviews aspects of the strategy at Board meetings during the
year. When setting Group strategy, the Board considers a

wide range of matters including, but not imited to: finance;
shareholder retums; the Group’s corporate structure; market
trends; competitive environment; private/public sector approach;
international aspects of the business and opportunities; and
people and talent.
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Key responsibilities of the Board

The formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board was
reviewed and adopted by the Board in March 2017, and can be
found at www.mitie.com/Investors/corporate-governance. The
schedule sets out in detall the key matters and responsibilities
that are set aside to be dealt with exclusively by the Board,
which include:

» setting the Group's long-term objectives and commercial strategy:

« approving material changes to the Group’s corporate, capital
and control structures;

* approving the Half-Year Report and the Annual Report
and Accounts;

= approving business plans and budgets and monitoring
performance against them;

« ensuring that a sound system of internal controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management systems, Is maintained;

* reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of those risk and
control processes, with the assistance of the Audit Committee,
through internal audit;

= approving material acquisitions, disposals and business start-
ups (including any material transactions outside the normal
course of business);

« agrseing changes to the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board and ensuring adequate succession
planning for the Board and senior management;

+ undertaking a formal and rigorous review annually of
its own performance and that of its Committees and
individual Directors;

* determining the division of responsibilities between the

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer and approving the

terms of reference of Board Committees;

making arrangements for dialogue with shareholders and

carvassing shareholder opinion;

» approving resolutions and corresponding documentation to
be put forward to shareholders at general meetings;

» approving Group policies relating to share dealing, the code of
conduct, health and safety, corporate social responsibility and
ethical trading; and -

* approving new material banking facillties, the appolitment
of principal professional advisors, the snnual renewal of the
Group’s insurance arrangements, and material changes to the
rules or statement of investment principles of the Group's
pension schernes, as well as considering the level of funding
required for these schemes.

The Directors continue to be mindful of their legal duties to act in
8 way they consider, in good faith, will be most likely to promote
the success of the Company for its shareholders, having regard
aiso to other stakeholders.




Frequency of Board meetings
During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were 12 scheduled
Board meetings.

Attendance
Number of scheduled meetings in the year: 12
Derek Mapp* 10/10
Roger Matthews? 6/6
Phil Bentley 11/12
Paul Woolf* 33
Sandip Mahajan* 9/9
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat® 9/9
Jack Bayer 11/12
Philippa Couttie® 33
lennifer Duvalier” 5/6
Latry Hirst 12/12
Mark Reckitt 10/12
Mary Reilly* 5/5
Roger Yates® 1/1
Notes:

1. Darek Mapp was appoinbed 10 the Board an 9 May 2017.

2. Rogey Matthews resigned fram the Board on 26 July 2017.

3. Paul Woolf was sppointed to the Boerd on 13 November 2017,

4, Sandip Mahajen resigned from the Board on 13 Novernber 2017.

5. Niveckts Krishnemurthy wes appoimed 1o the Bosrd on 1 June 2017,

&. Phitiopa Couttle wes appalirtad 1o the Board on 15 November 2017,

7. Jennites Duvalier was appointed to the Board on 26 ady 2017.

& Mary Relly was sppainted to the Bosnd on 2 September 2017.

9. Roger Yates was appointed 0 the Board on 1 March 2018,

The Baard wishes to clarify that, due to the changing
environment during the year, several Board and Committee
dates were rescheduled at short notice resulting in Mark Redkitt
and Jack Boyer being unable to attend one Board meeting each,
Mark was absent from one further Board meeting due to fliness.
Jennlfer Duvatier was unable to attend one Boand meeting due to
a longstanding commitment preceding her appointment to the
Mitie Board.

As acvised in September, PhH Bentley was absent from the
business for a period of time due to iiness which resulted in his
non-attendance at the September Board meeting. Peter Dickinson,
Genersl Counsel and Company Secretary, ocoupied the role of
acting Chief Executive Officer during Phil's absence.

in addition, two ad hoc Board meetings were held during the year, to
consider various matters inciuding the: appointment of the Chairman.

Key areas of business

In addition to the key responsiblities described above, during the
year the Board spent time discussing:

* developments in corporate governance;

* the Market Abuse Regime;

+ whistleblowing;

* the delegated authority register and contracting guidelines;
*» principal risks and viability;

+ risk management;

= funding and liquidity;

* gender pay reporting; and

* the FCA's investigation in connection with the timeliness of a
profit warning announced by the Company in September 2016
and the manner of preparation and content of the Company’s
finandial information, position and results for the year ended
31 March 2016.

Division of responsibilities of the Chalrman and the
Chief Executive Officer

Whilst the Chalrman and Chief Executive Officer are collectively
responsible for the ieadership of the Group and for promating
the highest standards of Integrity and governance, there Is a
dearly defined and effective division of accountability and
responsibility between them.

They have an open dialogue and meet reguiarly between Board
meetings to ensure a full understanding of business issues and
faciiitate efficlent decision making.

The document setting out this division of responsibilities is avallable
on the wehsite at www.mitie.com/Investors/corporate-govemance.

The Chalrman
The Chalrman 5 a Non-Executive Director and is responsible for:

+ chalring the Board and ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects
of its role, incduding the regularity and frequency of meetings;

« Haising with the Company Secretary to set Board agendas, taking
into account the issues and concemns of all Board members;

» ensuring there is 2n appropriate delegation of authority from
the Board to the executive management;

* rmanaging the Board 10 ensure sufficient time is allocated to
promote healthy discussion and open debate, supported by
the right level and quality of information to assist the Board In
reaching its decisions;

« facilitating the effective contribution of Non-Executive
Directors and encouraging active engagement by all members
of the Board;

» ensuring constructive relations between the Executive and
Non-Executive Directors;

+ ensuring that new Directors participate in a fill, formal and
tallored induction programme;

» ensuring that the performance of the Board, its Committees

and individual Directors is evaluated at least once a year, and

acting on the results of such evaluation; and

maintaining sufficent contact with major sharehciders. in

order to understand thelr issues and concemns, in particular

in relation to govemance, strategy and remuneration, and
ensuring that their views are communicated to the Board as
awhole.

The Chairman holds meetings with the Non-Bxecutive Directors,
without the Executive Directors being present.

During Phil Bentley's absence due to liness, the Chalrman
provided support to Peter Dickinson in his role as acting
Chief Executive Officer and to the Executive Laadership Team
and others by joining several operaticnal meetings, attending
the head office in London on a regular basts, maintalning
consistent dialogue with senlor management and making
himsetf available as required.

The Chairman is also avallable to consult with shareholders
throughout the year and will be available at the 2018 AGM.
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The Board continued

The Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Exacutive Officer is responsible for all aspects of the
operation and management of the Group and its business within
the authorities delegated 1o him by the Board. He is specifically
responsible for:

« developing Group objectives and proposing and implementing
strategy, having regard to the Group’s responsibilities to its
shareholders, customers, employees and other stakeholders;

* recommending to the Board an annual budget and strategic

and financial ptan and ensuring their achievement following

Board approval;

optimising the use and adegiacy of the Group's resources;

* examining all iInvestments and major capital expenditure
proposed by subsidiary companies and recommending to the
Board those which, in a Group context, are material in elther
nature oF cost;

* evaluating, approving and executing material contracts,
investments including technology investments, acquisitions,
dispasals and new business opportunities;

= ensuring at all times that the Group’s risk profile, induding
the health and safety performance of the business, s in kne
with the extent and categories of risk identified as acceptable
by the Board;

» making recommendations on remuneration policy, on other
remuneration related matters and In respect of the
appointment of Executive Directors to the various Board
Comumittees {other than the Nomination, Audit and
Remuneration Committees);

= setting Group HR policies, induding management development

and succession planning for senior management and approving

the appointment and termination of employment of members
of that team; and

ensuring the effective implementation of Board decisions, and

regularly reviewing the operational performance and strategic

direction of the Group’s business.

The Chief Financial Officer
‘The Chief Financial Officer Is responsible for:

« leading, directing and overseeing all aspects of the finance and
accounting functions of the Group, including financial
reporting, tax, treasury, strategy, performance analysis and
financial planning, financial systems and the development of
the back office and management information of the Group,
and managing the processes for financial forecasting, budgets
and consolidated reporting;

» evaluating, approving and advising the Board and the Executive
Leadership team on the financial and commercial impact of
rnaterial contracts and transactions (including mergers and
acquisitions), technology Investments in support of the
development of the Group, long-range planning assumptions,
investment retumn metrics, risks and opportunities and the
impact of changes in accounting standards;

» overseeing and divecting the Group's Risk, insurance, Pensions,
Internal Auxlit and Assurance functions and managing the
relationships with the external auditor, key financial
institutions and adwvisors to the Group;

s ensuring that effective internal controls are in place and that
the Company complies with appropriate accounting
regulations for financial, regulatory and tax reporting; and
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« providing an underpin to all aspects of the Group's governance
framework, the application of its delegatad authorities and its
investment activities.

The Non-Exacutive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors review proposals for the strategic
direction of the Group, constructively chalienging and probing
proposals presented by the Executive Directors based on their
breadth of knowledge, experience and individual skills and
comributing to the formulation and development of strategy.

They are responsible for monitoring high level corporate
reporting and satisfying themselves as to the integrity of finandal
information and the operation of key controls. They are required
to maintain an effective understanding and oversight of the
Group’s principal risks and the assurance in place relating to
those risks, Including the results of the Internal acdit programme.

The Non-Executive Directors play a key role in determining the
remuneration policy for the Chairman, the Executive Directors,
the Company Secretary and members of senlor management and
take 3 primary role in Board succession planning. They have a
responsibility to exercise their independent skill and judgement in
carrying out their duties,

The Senlor independent Director

The role of the Senior Independant Director Includes acting as a
sounding board for the Chairman, serving as an intermediary for
the other Directors when necessary, conducting the Chalrman'’s
annual performance evaluation and leading any new Chairman
appointment process. The Senior Independent Director also
acts as chairman of the Board, in the absence of the Chairman,
where necessary. The Senlor independent Director is available
25 an altemative point of contact for shareholders should

they have concerns which have not been resolved through

the normal channels of Chairman, Chief Executive Officer or
Chief Financial Officer, or for which such contact s inappropriate
In the circumstances.

Evaluation of the performance of the Board and Its
Comimittees

A performance evaluation of the Board and its Committees is
carried out annually to ensure they continue to be effective and
that each of the Directors demoristrates commitment to his/her
respective role and has sufficient time to meet his/her
commitment to the Company.

In line with the Code recommendations for an externaliy-led
independent evahuation every three years, the performance
evaluation of the Board was externaily facilitated during 2017.
During 2018 the Chairman conducted a Board performance
evaluation, which involved ona-to-one meetings with each of the
Directors, facliitated by a questionnaire devised by the Chalrman
and completed by each Director in advance.

The Chalrman shared his conclusions with the Board at its
meeting in June 2018.
The evaluation of the Chairman was facliitated by the Senior

Independent Director in conjunction with the General Counset
and Company Secretary.




Director election and re-election

The performance of each Director Is reviewed as part of the
annual Board evaluation process and the Board is satisfied that
each of the Directors continues to operate effectively and to
demonstrate dear commitment to his/her role. Paul Woolf,
lennifer Duvalier, Mary Reilly, Phiippa Couttie and Roger Yates
will stand for election at the 2018 AGM.

Phil Bentiey and the remaining Non-Executive Directors, except
for Larry Hirst and Mark Reckitt, will submit themselves for re-
election at the 2018 AGM.

The terms of appoirtment of the Non-Executive Directors and the
Executive Directors’ service contracts are available for Inspection
at Mitle’s registered office, Mitie’s head office in London and at
the AGM.

Director induction process and training

All Directors receive a personally tailored Induction to Mitie which
includes:

= meetings with the Executive Directors and other key members
of the senlor management team;

+ a review of the Group's governance policies, structure and
business, including datails of the risks and operating issues
fading the Group;

» visits to divisional offices and key client sites; and

= a briefing on key contracts.

In order (o emure that Directors’ skills and knowhkedie wie

regularly updated, briefing notes are circulated on matters such

as changes in the regulatory and governance environment. Visits
to different business sites and offices are arranged in order to
help all Board members gain a deeper understanding of the
business. | he Board also receives regular updates and
management presentations on the strategic development,
operational and financial performance of the Group.

Members of the Board are given access to an online board portal

which, as well as halding coples of all recent Board and

Committee reports and minutes, has a reading room where the

Directors can access a Board Handbook containing essential

information about the Group, induding:

« the Company’s current Articles of Assoclation;

¢ the iatest Annual Report and Accounts;

= Board and Committee terms of reference;

* guidance on directors’ statutory duties;

« govemance and regulatory guidelines;

« tha Group's approved delegated authorities; and

* an overview of the Group's directors’ and officers’ fiability
insurance arrangements.

The Handbook was last reviewed and updated in =arly 2018 and
will continue to be subject to annual review.

Each Director has access to all available e-learning modules via
Mitie’s Learning Management System, is actively encouraged to
complete relevant mocisles and ks notified when new modules
become available. E-learning is available for matters such as

the Market Abuse Regime, Bribery Act, Data Protection and
Modern Slavery.

Board accountability and assurance explained

Risk management approach

During the year, the Board has continued to oversee the
Improvements being implemented by the management team to
address the underlying Issues raised during the comprehensive
review of the Group’s balance sheet conducted in the prior year,
and the approach to governance, risk management and Internal
control. These have included simplification of the organisational
structure, ciarity of reporting lines for the central functions,
notably HR, Legal and Finance, cessation of the "Mitie Model’
arrangements, outsourcing of the back-office finance
transactional processes to Genpact and continued
standardisation and simplification of processes and procedures in
the Group. In addition, a new Group-wide defegated authority
register (DAR) has been deployed which clarifies the
accountabilities and authority to take decisions on specific
matters within defined financial kmits, at levels from the Board to
divisional leadership. This hefps to disseminate the Board's risk
appetite. Similarly, authority registers are alkso being
implernented In each divisiun, whikh follow the same principles
as the DAR. This structure should ensure a consistent approach to
acceptance and managerment of risk across the business. The
whistieblowing line, provided by an external party, has been
launched during the year, with all reports being reviewed and
investigatad. This also enhances the identification of risks.
Improvements In T systerns have continued o brig the business
onto consistent platforms, with improving management
information and visibility of common risks and effectiveness of
controls, The Interna! Audit function has targeted its work at
areas of the business where risk management and Internal
controls are suspected of requiring improvement, which has
helped to improve the risk and control frameworks.

The Group’s approach to risk is set out in more detall below, The
approach to risk management has been evolving in the past year,
and rontinnes tn he reviewed and developed hy the Board and
Executive Leadership Team, in line with the business structure
and risk profite. The Board understands that effective risk
management and a sound system of intemal control are essential
1o the achlevement of the Group’s strategy and supporting
objectives. The Audit Committee has continued to focus on its
review of the risk management framework to Increase its
understanding of the nature of the risks faced by the Group and
how they are addressed.
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The Board continued

Risk culture

It Is recognised that the risk management culture within the
business is equally as important as an effective risk management
framework. In support of this, the ‘One Mitie’ Vision and
Values have been developed and launched, and are being
communicated to all employees. As well as helping to achieva
common ways of working and clarity of approach for customers
and employees, they also help set out, together with the code
of conduct (One Code), the framework upon which Mitie’s risk
culture Is built. Emphasis is placed on the importance of
embedding risk managamant into al key decisions, such that
opportunities to grow the Group are effectively baisnced with
effective risk management decision making. This means that
opportunities may continue to be exploited, provided risks have
been properly identified and the right controls established or,
In some cases, potential opportunities are declined if they sit
outside the Group's risk appetite.

One Code sets out the expected behaviours for all employees and
supply chain partners and establishes zero tolerance in specific
areas as part of sn established ethical business framework. The
Group continues to review and reaffirm its code of conduct with
employees and supply chain partners to ensure awareness of the
vision, values and expected behaviours is maintained.

Risk management processes

The Group’s risk management framework provides 3 flexdble and
adaptable approach 1o the identification of risk across all areas of
the business, to meet the demands of the dynamic and fast
evolving environment in which the Group continues to operate.
Ultimate respansibiiity for risk management lies with the Board,
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer, who further delegates it
to the Ewecutive Leadership Team, with accountability and
responsibility assigned to specific risk owners. The Group risk
profile is reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer and Generai Counsel in advance of formal review and
approval by the Board. This information is captured in risk
registers at business and functional level, »s well as for large
contracts, which are subsequently consolldated Into strategic,
operational, financial and reguiatory risk categories within the
overall Group risk register maintained by the Group Risk function.

Risk identification and assessment

When considering the risks that pose a threat to the achievement
of the Group's strategy, the Board takes both intemal and external
perspectives into account to ensure a thorough identification
process occurs. The internal view takes into account factors such
as the changing and develaping business profile, operational
processes, technology and people, while the extermal view Includes
the economic position, political factors and sector and geographical
risks. A top down and bottom up approach ensures the systermatic
identification of significant risks to the business. Once identified,
risks are assessed using standard impact and likefhood ratings to
quantify the risk to the achievement of business objectives. The
Group employs fisk management software 0 help deiiver its
enterprise risk managernent agenda as well 2s enhancing risk
reporting and oversight. Risk registers ara formally reviewed twice
a year and approved by business unit managing directors.

Risk assessments are based on & ‘5 x 5° scale ranging from minima!
to catastrophic, with any risks falling into the Group's upper limits
having mandatory mitigation plans with the expectation that these
risks are managed down to acceptable levels.
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Risk mitigation

Each identified risk has a defined control owner whao is
responsible for developing and Implementing a risk mitigation
plan. As part of the risk review process, each control is required
to be reviewed and formally assessed for its effectiveness in
mitigating risk. In order to strengthen the oversight of risk
management and Internal control, audit and risk governance
meetings have been Introduced at business unit level,

The terms of reference for the operation of these meetings are
aligned with the Audit Committee’s objectives, and once the
process s fully operational, summary reports of the matters
reviewed will be provided to the Audit Committee. The agenda
requires business units to review their top-level risks and the
progress of assoclated mitigation plans as well as assess any
changes to the external environment and thelr consequent
Impact on business units’ risk profile. in addition, reports from
the Internal Audit function and other internal or external
assurance providers are discussad, with the objectives to share
best practice and identify common or emerging risk themes,

Assessment of the effectiveness of the control environment Is
undertaken at both business and Group level, with the Audit
Committee formally reviewing performance throughout the yrar
and advising on the effectiveness of the risk management systemn
in place.

Risk monitoring and review

Principal risks to the business and associated mitigation plans are
presented to the Audit Committes and are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The risk management framework is designed to manage, rather
than efiminate, the risk of failing to achieve the objectives and
strategies of the Group and can therefore only provide
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material risk and
loss. The Board, through the Audit Committee, conskiers the
nature and extent of significant risks In setting the Group’s
strategy. Details of the principal risks of the Group are set outon
pages 50 to 56. it shoukd be noted that other risks are identified
as part of the risk management process, but these do not have a
material Impact on the Group’s overall ability to achieve business
objactives. These risks are managed via the existing risk
mManagement process,

The Audit Committee confirms that this risk management process
has been In place throughout the reporting year and remasins in
place up to the date of approval of the Anmual Report and
Accounts. However, as described, the process is continuing to
evolve and will be subject to review and improvement.




Whistieblowing

in September 2017 Mitie launched Its new Independent
whistieblowing service to enable employees, suppliers and third
parties to report any concemns of wrongdoing anonymously without
any fear of retaliation. The service, which Is managed by an
indepencdent third party, can be accessed via a freephone nurnber,
afree online app or through the service provider's website,

Details of the new service were communicated to employees via
Mitie’s intranet, emall, paysiip notes and posters, to suppliers via
Mitie's souncing portal and to other thind parties via www.miltie.com.

The service and related intemal procedures are structured to
ensure that all reports are reviewed and investigated
independently from the area of the business to which they relate,
thereby minimising the risk of conflicts arising.

All reports are copied to the Group Legal function, which s
intended 1o Improve transparency and ensure ahy trends across
different divisions and functions can be identified and addressed.
An update on whistleblowing activity is provided to the Bxcutive
Leadership Team as appropriate and to the Board at each

Board meeting.

internal control and assurance

Mitie operates a ‘three lnes of defence’ model incorporating
internal controls, risk management and functional oversight,

and intemal audit. The implementation of the system of internal
control is managed by the leadership of each business unit.
Group functions (such as Finance, Legal and HR) collaborate with
business units’ teams to promte continugus improvement and
ensure that controls are operating effectivaly, Mitie’s policies
and procedures are avallable to management and employees
through an intranet portal. A formal review of the intemal control
environment is undertaken by the Head of Internal Audit with
engagement from business units’ ieadership teams on an annual
basis. An internal control assessment exercise which previously
operated in the Group is currently being revised to ensure it
reflects the changes to the butiness structure and risk profile,
and focuses on the key internal controts which manage the risks
faced by the business.

The Audit Committes reviews the effectiveness of intermnal
controts through this process, through receiving updates from
speciic functions, and via the Independent testing undertaken
by the Internal Audit function as part of ks work. During the
year there have been a signficant number of intemal control
weaknesses reported to the Audit Committee in reports
produced by the internal Audit function. This has partly been a
resuk of the internal audit work plan being targeted at areas
known or suspected to have weak or ineffective intemnal controls,
The remedial action plans developed by management to address
these weaknesses are monitored by the Audit Committee to
ensure timely closure of the actions.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit function’s authority and responsibilities are
defined In ts charter, approved in May 2017, The Internal Audit
function operates independently, reporting directly to the Audit
Commiittee and administratively to the Chief Financial Officer.
This reporting line offers independence from the audited activities
and allows it to achieve ohjectivity. The chairman of the Audit
Committee oversees the appointment and removal of the Head
of Internal Audit and assesses the function’s performance against
the internal audit objectives, The annua! internal sudit plan and
budget are approved by the Audit Committee. Any significant
deviation from the approved annual Internal audit plan Is
communicated to the Audit Committee through periodic activity
reports. The results of sach internal audit are documented in an
sudit report for Internal distribution and action.

The chairman of the Audit Committee and the external auditor,
BDO LLP, have access to all intermnal audit reports that are Issued
during the year and the Audit Committee recetves a quarterly

detailed update reporting on Internal audits completed In
the period.

The Audit Committee also recelves regular reports from BDO LLP

arising from Its audit work, contributing a further independent
perspective on the Group’s internal financial control systems.

Committees of the Board

The Board has five formally constituted Committees: the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committes, the Resuits Committes and the Investment Committee,
the scope of which are set out on the following pages.

The Company also has an informal Bid Committee which Is
comprised of the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial
Officer, the General Counsel and Company Secretary and
members of Mitle's sales team. The Bid Committee meets each
week to consider all materia bids being submitted.

The exceptional, every doy | www.mitis.com h



Audit Committes

Audit Committee

Chairman’s introduction

Image removed

Mark Racldtt, Audit Committee Chairman

The FY 17/18 year was one of transttion for Mitle in ways
described elsewhere in the Annual Report and Accounts. Three
new members, Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat, Mary Reilly and
Philippa Couttle, ware appointad to the Audit Committee, BDO
LLP was appointed as external auditor following 3 tender process
held in September 2017 and a new Head of Internal Audit was
appointed in June 2017,

Accounting Review

As noted in the previous annual report KPMG had been
appointed in January 2017 as independent accountants to
review and report on the most material judgements made on
the balance sheet amounts in relation to long-term complax
contracts, accrued income, work in progress and mobilisation.

In addition, KPMG provided support to management in their own
review of the remaining areas of the balance sheet. This work
was undertaken between January and May 2017 and reviewed
by the Audit Committee during the period up to the approval

by the Board on 12 June 2017 of the accounts for the year ended
31 March 2017.

As part of that work, management made various recommendations
on the changes requined to ensure that Mitie’s financial reporting
and control environment would meet the standards required.
These recommendations were reviewed and supported by the
Audit Committee during the early period of the current year and
the progress made in thelr implementation has been reported

to the Committee during the year.
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The ongoing Project Helix transformation programme involves
simpiifying legal structures, standardising processes and
rationalising systems. As part of this programme, the Finance
function has been restructured. Management has implemented a
standardised bidding process across the Group and issued updated
commercial standards and customer contracting guidefines.

The Legal function was centralised to ensure greater consistency
of application of the Group's minimum commercial standarcds.

Core accounting pofides were updated and issued, including the
policies In relation to long-term complex contracts, mobifisation
costs, accrued income, work in progress, capitalisation and
amortisation of intangible assets and amounts receivable

from customers.

As a further result of the review, the intemnal audit plan was
reassessed and work programmes were updated to Include
business unit reviews, review of specific controls and a sample of
key contracts and processes. The Audit Commitee considered
and agreed the scope of the updated plan. An assessment of
communication of values and key messages as part of culture was
included In Internal audit work programmes and there was
regular engagement with the business leaders to ensure that the
audit plan covered current and relevant risks, and findings were
dosed promptly and effectively.

Overall, good progress has been made In strengthening the
finance team at the centre of Mitie, including the appoimtment of
Paul Woolf as CFO in November 2017, and in ensuring that
detailed and clear accountinig policies and practices have been
communicated to the finance teams in all parts of the Group.
Additionally, a start has been made on strengthening the Intermal
Audi team with new lsadership and tighter standards for the
work undertaken and the reports made by that team. Itis
apparent that further work is required to implement the
recommendations in all parts of the Group and the Committee
asked that the Intemal Audit team focus on areas which were felt
to be at higher than average risk of control weakness, with
consequent adverse impact for the sccuracy and timeliness of
intemnal reporting and safeguarding of assets.

As noted elsewhere in this report, management have
implemented a plan to improve the effectiveness of the finance
back office by engaging Genpact to undertake much of the work
previously carried out by the finance tearns at Mitie. The Audit
Committes reviewed and supported the implementation of this
project in the belief that the professionalism of Genpact would
enhance the accuracy and timeiiness of a significant part of the
financial reporting across the Group.




External auditor

In the previous annual report, the Audit Committee reported that
it was satisfied with the improvements made by Deloitte, the
external auditor at that point, following the findings made by the
Audit Quality Review team at the Financial Reporting Councll
(FRC). The Audit Committee also concluded that Deloitte had
been effective in their role as external auditor for FY 16/17.

However, because of the issues encountered during the financial
year it was conchided that a formal tender should commence
such that a new external auditor could be appointed during the
financial year ending 31 March 2019 and, that Deloitte should be
re-appointed as extemnal auditor for FY 17/18.

In July 2017, the Company was informed by Deloitte that they
would resign as auditors no later than 30 September 2017 as a
result of being informed by the FRC that their audits of Mitie for
the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016 would be the subject of
investigation. Delolte acknowledged that Mitie were obliged by
law to appoint an external auditor at the AGM on 26 July 2017
and consequently tonsented to belng put forward for election as
external auditor at that AGM, but on the basis that they would
resign by 30 September 2017. As a result, the Audit Committee
agreed to accelerate the plans, already In place, for an audit
tender process in order that a new external auditor could be
appointed by 30 September 2017.

At the AGM on 26 July 2017 the reappointment of Deloltte LLP as
external auditor was passed, but with 29.4% of votes against the
resolution, as well as a significant proportion of votes withheld,

The tender process was completed at meetings of the Audit
Committee and Boerd on 13 September 2017, when the Audit
Committee recommended to the Board that BOO be appointed
as external audivor with effect from 19 September 2017. The
detailed tender process can be found on page 81.

Accounting judgements

During the review of the half-year financial report and the
acnounts for the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit
Committee focused on the treatment of long-term complex
contracts and claims made by customers, the disciosure of the
alternative performance measures, the valuation and accounting
treatment of Property Management {which was the subject of a
sale process that was subsequently terminated), the adoption of
IFRS 15 and judgements assoclated with the recoverability of
trade recelvables and accrued income, provisioning and
contingent flabilitles.

In relation to Property Management the Audit Commitbee
considered management’s assessrment of the sale process and
the number of bidders at that stage of the process in mid-
November. it also compared the value of the blds to the assessed
value of the prospects of the business together with the value of
clalms belng made by current and previous dients of the business,
The Committee challenged a number of the assumptions being
made within the process of valuation of the business and the
provisions for the claims. At the half year, the valuation for
Property Management was reduced resulting in an impairment of
£10.0m against the goodwill. On 5 December 2017 it was
announced that the Boand had considered all indicative offers
received for the Property Management business, and concluded
that none were at a sufficent level with which to proceed.

The Audit Committee has considerad the valuation of the
Property Management business at meetings hek! in May and
June 2018, reviewing and challenging managemant assumptions
about the level of future revenues, profit and cashflow together
with updated assessments of the claims previously assessed in
June and November 2017. Whilst the Audit Committee
acknowledges that this remains a profitable business with
potential for profitable growth, it also batieves that the climate
for outsourcing within the sodal housing sector has deteriorated
during recent months and consaquently asked management to
use a much more cautious forecast for the future profit and cash
generation of the business. This has resulted in a further
reduction in the valuation of the Property Management business
and a consequent further impairment of goodwill of £24.6m

(a total of £34.6m for the year ended 31 March 2018).

As part of the year-end process the Audit Committee has also
reviewed and considered the other material accounting
Judgements made by management In the preparation of the
financial statements.
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Adoption of IFRS 15

A key part of the work of the Audit Committee during the year
has been to assess the work undertaken by management to
adopt IFRS 15, which is concerned with the accounting for
revenue and in particular affects businesses which capitalise costs
incurred in the course of long-term complex contracts as well as
other contracts. Management undertook a substantial amount of
work to provide an assessment and quantification of the impact
of adoption of IFRS 15, which was supported by a team from EY,
Including resource which had direct experience of this from other
companies, and averseen by a steering group which included
Mary Reilly, s member of the Audit Committee, who had
extensive relavant experience from over 20 years as an audit
partnar at Deloitte.

FRC reporting review

As detalled in the previous annual report, the Corporate
Reporting Review team of the FRC had ralsed questions relating
to the impairment testing of Healthcare goodwill and treatment
of accrued income in the Annual Report and Accounts for the
year ended 31 March 2016. | am pleased to report that the
Company received confirmation In November 2017 that this
review had been completed by the FRC and that, having taken
into consideration the various disclosures and accounting
adjustments made in the Annual Report and Accounts for the
year ended 31 March 2017, no further action was required. To
date the Corporate Reporting Review team have not sought any
information from Mitle.
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Condusion

The Audit Committee has considered the control environment,
particularly in light of the perspective brought by new auditors,
both external and internal and, challenged management to
ensure that the higher standards now being applied In some parts
of the business are put in piace across all parts of the business,
and that appropriate and consistent accounting judgements

are made.

This has been an important year for Mitie as it seeks to embed
higher standards of internal control and mone accurate financial
reporting. The Audit Committee supports rmanagement in this
activity and has asked it to ensure that sufficient finandal
resource ks made avallable to enable this.

| have been a non-executive director of Mitle and chairman of
the Audit Committee since July 2015 and | believe that a chalr of
Audit Committee who can bring a fresh perspective will best
serve the imerests of shareholders and the business.

Accordingly, | have decided not to seek re-election at the AGM on
31 July 2018 but will be available to answer any questions that
shareholders may wish to ralse at or before the AGM.

Detalls of the Audit Committee’s work can be found on the
following pages.

Mark




Audit Committee members

Mark Reckitt has been Chairman of the Audit Committee since
July 2015. Mark continues to be deemed by the Board, as at the
date of this report, to have significart, recent and relevant
financial experience through his gualifications and ongoing
positions. Mark’s biography s included on page 62.

Mark will stand down as chair of the Audit Committee and the
Board at the 2018 AGM after three years’ service. Mary Redlly will
succeed Mark as chair of the Audit Committee, Mary has 3
wealth of experience as a non-executive director and chairing
audit and risk committees. She has extensive relevant and recent
accounting, finance and international management experience.
Mary's full blography can be found on page 63.

At the date of this report the Audit Committee comprises

independent Non-Executive Directors who are all considered
appropriately experienced to fulfil their duties.

Chalrman  Mark Reckitt
Committee  Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat {from 1 June 2017)
members

Jack Boyer (until 26 July 2017)
Philippa Couttle (from 22 May 2018)
Larvy Hirst (until 26 July 2017)

Mary Reilly {from 1 September 2017)

Principal responsibifities of the Audit Committes

Key purpose of the Audit Committes

The Audit Committee provides effective governance of the
appropriateness of the Group's financial reporting and the
performance of both the Internal Audit function and the external
auditor, The Audit Committee also supports the Board in meeting
its responsibilities in respect of oversesing the Group’s internal
control systems, business risk management and related
compliance activities.

The Audit Committee also meets with the external auditor and
the Head of Internal Audit without the Executive Directors
present. As chairman of the Audit Committee, Mark will be
avallable at the AGM to answer any questions about the work
of the Audit Committee,

Key aress discusesd and reviewad during yeur

Reporting and external audit

* Monitoring the intagrity of the finandial statements of the Company,
preliminary results announcements and any other formal announcements
relating to its financial performance, reviewing and reporting to the Board on
significant financial reporting lssues and estimates and judgements having

regard to matters communicated to it by the external auditor.

overall summary of key lssues and judgements.

¢ Assessing the effectiveness of the extemal auditor including the
appropriateness and skills of its audit team and the quality of its services.

Agreeing the audit fee for the year.

Reviewing the axternal auditor's audit plan, nature and scope of work and

Reviewing summary financial statements, significant financial retumns to

* Results, commentary and announcements.

» Key accounting judgements, induding contract
margins and impairment reviews.

+ Changes to accounting policies and procedurnes.

* Going concern and the viability statement.

* Falr, balanced and understandable assessment
in relation to the Annual Report and Accounts.

s External auditor effectiveness.

= External auditor reports on planning and
executing their hal-yearly review and
full-year audit, Including their final opinion

reguiators and any financisl Information contained In certain other documents,
such as announcements of a price sensitive nature.

Reviewing the Half-Year Report and Annual Report and Accounts, including the
fair, batanced and understandable statement, statements concerning Intemal
controls and risk management, all other material information presented with
the financlal statements including the strategic report, the viahility statement,
the corporate govemance statements (Insofar as they relate to the audit and
risk management), and recommending the same for Board approval.
Reviewing and challenging, where necessary, accounting poficies and key
areas of accounting judgement.

Conskiering and making recommendations to the Board, to be put to
shareholders for approval at the AGM, in relation to the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the Group’s external auditor.

Reviewing and monitoring compliance with the non-audit services policy

and malntenance of external auditor Independence

and remuneration.

+ Responses to audit findings and
recommendations for control improvements,
including reviewing the extermal auditor’s
management letter.
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Audit Committee continued

Principal responsibiities of the Audit Committes

Koy srens ¢acyessd and reviswsd during year

Risk and internal control

= Keeping under review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal
financial controls and internal control and risk management systems (being the
systems established to identify, assess, manage and monitor financial and
other risks).

* Providing advice on how, taking info account the Company’s pasition and
principal risks, the Company’s prospects have been assessed, over what period,
why the period is regarded as appropriate and whether there is a reasonable
expectation that the Compary will be able to continue in operation and meet
its liabikties as they fall due over the said period, drawing attention to any
qualifications or assurnptions as necessary.

* Reviewing the Group’s consolidated risk register prior to its approval by
the Board.

* Reviewing the adequacy and security of the Group's arrangements for its
employees and business partners to raise concems, in confidence, about
possible wrongdoing in financial reporting or other matters (ensuring that
these amangements allow proportionate and independent Investigation of
such matters and appropriate follow up action).

* Reviewing the Group’s procedures for detecting fraud.

* Reviewing the Group’s systems and controls for the prevention of bribery.

Identification of the Group's principal risks and
movement in exposures,

Status of key risk indicators induding any
breaches of thresholds.

Review the effectiveness of the risk
management and intemal control systems,
Including the effect of the migration of certain
finance functions and prooesses to Genpact.
Fraud risk assessment.

¢ Cyber security.

.

Whistieblowing procedures,

Inteimal audit

+ Mondtoring and reviewing the role and effectiveness of the Group’s Internal
Audit function, reviewing the internal audit plan and ensuring the internal
Audit function has adequate resources and apprapriate aacess to information
to enable It to perform s work effectively.

* Reviewing key internal audit reports and findings.

* Considering managemant’s response to any major intemal or external sudit
recommendations.

* Maonitoring the affectiveness of the external auditor and risk management
systerns and fuhctions.

Annual internal audit plan, including
consideration of its alignment to the principa!
risks, consideration of emerging areas of risk,
coverage across the Group and review of the
Group's processes and controls.
Review of the execution of the intemal

audit plan and the resultant audit reports
and findings.

Internal audit effectiveness,

Amual internal controls overview,

Other

* Ensuring the Group's compliance with the Competition and Markets
Authority’s Statutory Audit Services Order, in particular with regard to
atidit tender.

Effectiveness of the Committee.

The Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference are avaliabla at www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance.
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Frequency of Audit Committee meetings

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee met
nine times. Invitations to attend meetings are normally extended
to the Group's external auditor, the Chairman, the Senlor
Independent Director, the Chief Exacutive Officer, the Chief
Financial Officer, the Director of Group Finance and the Head of
Iinternal Audit,

Attendance
Number of scheduled meetings In the year: 9
Mark Reckitt 9/9
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat® 6/6
Jack Boyer® 3/4
Larry Hirst® 4/4
Mary Reflly* 5/5

Notes:

1. Nivedita Krishnamurihy Bhagat wis sppointed to the Cammittes on 1 June 2017,
2, Jack Boyer stood down from the Committee on 26 July 2017.

&, Larry Hirst stood down from the Committee on 26 Ay 2017.

4, Mary Rellly was appointed to the Committee on 1 September 2017.

Phifippe Couttie was not appointed 1o the Committee untl 22 May 2018

The role of the Audit Committee — finandial reporting
The primary role of the Audit Committee in reilation to financlal
reporting ks to review with both management and the external
auditor the appropriateness of the Half-Year Report and Annual
Report and Accounts, concentrating on, amongst other matters:

+ the consistency of, and any changes to, significant acocounting
policies and practices both on a year-on-year basis and across
the Group;

+ the darity and completeness of disclosures and the context in
which statements are made;

* the methods used to account for significant or unusual
transactions where different approaches are possible; and

= whether the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is
fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's
performance, business model and strategy.

To aid the review, the Audit Committee considers reports from
the Chief Financial Officer and alkso reports from the external
auditor on the cutcomes of the half-year review and independent
year-end audit.

Significant issues considered by the Audit Committee
during the year

The Audit Committee pays particular attention to matters it
considers to be Important by virtue of their size, complexity, kevel
of judgement required, or potential impact on the financial
statements and wider business model, and matters pertaining to
governance. identification of the issues deemed to be significant
takes place following open, frank and challenging discussion
between the Audit Committee members, with input from the
Chief Finandal Officer, the extemnal auditor, the Head of Internal
Audit and other relevant Mitie employeaes.

The Audit Committee conskiered the following significant matters
during the course of the financlal year. In all cases, papers were
presented to the Audit Committee by management, setting out
the material matters of accounting estimates and the judgements
associated with each item. The external auditor provides a paper
that sets out views an each area of judgement.

The Audit Committee discissad the papers with management
and sought the views of the external auditor on each matter and
for each area of judgement concurred with the treatment
presented by management in the Annual Report and Accounts.
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Audit Committee continoed

s How addremed
Adoption of The Audit Committee received regular updates from the project team and steering group and supported the
IFRS 15 ‘Revenue recommendation from the steering group and management that Mitle adopt IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts
from contracts with customers’ with effect from the year ended 31 March 2018, using the cumulative effect method. The project
with customers’  team was supported by a team from EY, including resource which had direct experience of this from other
Considerationof  tompanies and all the work was reviewed and audited by the external auditor.
the processand  The adoption of IFRS 15 has led to significant changes to the Group's revenue recognition policies, a significant
disclosures for restatement of the opening equity position as at 1 April 2017 and the creation of new categories of contract assets
the adoptionof  and liabilities. The impact of such early adoption ks a reduction of £108.2m in the opening net assets of the Group
IFRS 15 as at 1 April 2017. Further detail on this significant change is disclosed within the Finance Review on pages 46 and
47 and Note 1 to the consalidated financial statements.
The Group's acoounting policy for revenue has been rewrittan to reflect the adoption of IFRS 15. This new policy is
included in full in Note 1{a) to the consolidated financial statemaents. The naw policy atso includes the treatmant of
accounting for contract fulfilment assets, pre-contract costs and deferrad income.
The steering group reviewed the material jJudgements applied by management as part of the year-end close
process. In the context of IFRS 15, the steering group reviewed the key judgements applied to how revenve is
recognised on long-term contracts; from discounts, variations or other scope changes, where significant
Judgement needs to be exercised by management due to uncertainties over contractual terms and ongoing
negotistions with clients; and 10 the appropriats phasing and recognition of upfront psyments from customers,
Including design and development fees. In addition, the steering group reviewed the key judgements apphed by
management in the recognition of contract assets as part of the transition to IFRS 15.
The new revenue recognition policy Includes disclosure of the significant judge ments and estimates In refation to
its appiication and the Audit Committee is satisfied that these have been properly disclosed. The Audit Committee
Is satisfied that the disclosures given within the accounts are sufficient to gain a proper understanding of the
methodology of accounting for revenue across the Group.
2017 accounting In January 2017, the Audit Committee asked management to conduct a detailed balance sheet review with
review independent expert support. The Audit Committee engaged KPMG to review and report on the most material
Update and judgements made on the batance sheet amounts In relstion to long-term complex contracts, accrued income,
implementation work in progress and mobilisation. in addition, KPMG provided support to management, who carried out a review
of findings of the reraining areas of the balance sheet.

At the conclusion of the neview in June 2017, management made a number of recommendations on the changes
required to ensure that Mitie’s financial reporting and control environment meet the standards required.

Since June 2017, members of the Audit Committee have been briefed by management on the progress of these
changes as necessary.

The ongoing Project Helix transformation programme involves simplifying legal structures, standardising processes
and rationalising systems. As pert of this programme, the Finance function has been restructured. Management
has implemented a standardised bidding process agoss the Group and issued updated commercial standards and
customer contracting guldedines. The Legal function was centralised to ensure greater consistency of application of
the Group's minimum commerdial standards. Core accounting policies were updated and issued, iIncluding the
poficies in relation to long-term complex contracts, mobilisation costs, accrued Income, work in progress,
capitalisation and amortisation of intanglble assets and amounts recelvable from customers. Twice-yearly contract
Issues reporting and kmpalrment review processes have been formalised and carried out.

As a further result of the review, the internal audit plan was reassessed and work programmes were updated to
include business unit reviews, review of specific controls and 8 number of key contracts and processes. The Audit
Committee considered and agraed the scope of the updated plan.
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lssub How sddressed
The valuation The Group has made a number of acquisitions in previcus periods and carries goodwiil as an intangible asset on its
of goodvwill batance sheet in respect of the businesses acouired (see Note 14).
Reviewing the The Group considers the carrying vakue of all goodwitl on at least an annual basts, or when an indicator of
carmying value impalrment has occurred. The valuation and impairment review of goodwill s assessed for each individual cash-
of goodwill, generating unit (CGU) and considers the balence sheet value of the goodwill compared to the net present value of
with a focus on the post-tax cash flows that are expected to be genarated by that CGLU. The approach involves an estimation of
Property tha future cash flows expected to be derived from each CGU and the selection of appropriate discount rates,
Managementin  which are then applied to the cash flows to calculate a net present value.
the context of The assumptions underpinning the review of the carrying value of goodwill were considered by the Audit
the terminated Committee, The cash flow forecasts used in the review were derived from the mast recent CGU budgets which
sale process. have been reviewed and approved by the Board and the long-term business plans of the Group. The assumptions
underpinning the review and the sensitivity of changes in key assumptions were considered by management and
presented to the Audit Committee.
At the half year the Audit Committee consilered a paper regarding the carrying value of the Property
Management goodwill and concurred with the conclusion that an impairment of £10.0m should be made. When
this paper was preparad there was an active sale process for Property Management resulting in the business being
disclosed as a discontinued operation and therefore the carrying value of goodwill was considered with reference
to the offers received from potential purchasers. Subsequently, the business was withdrawn from sale and the
sale process was terminated on 5 December 2017,
For the year ended 31 March 2018 the Audit Committee has considered a further paper regarding the carrying
value of the Property Management goodwill, including sensitivities, and concurred with the conclusion that an
additional impairment of £24.6m should be made. In the absence of an active sales process for the business this
paper considered the carrying value of the goodwill on a value In use basis resulting in a total impalrment charge
of £34.5m for the year {Note 13).
The Audit Cornmittee noted the substantial change in the forecasts for the Property Management business since
the half-year, driven by general negative sentiment In the soclal housing sector and the reduction in local authortty
work following the tragedy at Grenfel! Tower.
Use of The Company's performance measures continue to include some measures which are not defined or specified
ARternative under IFRS. In particular management have introduced measures referred to as ‘profit before other items’,
Performance ‘adjusted revenue’, ‘adjusted operating profit’, ‘adjusted cashflows” and ‘adjusted net assets’ as key measures to
Measures raview current performance against the prior year by removing the impact of the adoption of IFRS 15 In FY 17/18
(APME) and of the prior year adjustments in FY 16/17, as well as asset write-downs of a non-recurring nature, which
include those identified during the 2017 Accounting Review.,
The Committee noted the guidance issued by the FRC In relation to the use of APMs and, supported by the
challenge of the external auditor, considered whether the performance measures used by management provided
a meaningful insight for shareholders into the results of the Group.
The Audit Committee then also reviewed the treatment of items considered for separate disclosure.
With the support of the external auditor, the Audit Committae reviewed the proposed disclosure of APMs in the
Annual Report and Accournts ahead of their approval by the Board.
The Aucit Committee also continued to support the judgemants made by management regarding the items
considered as being exceptional and requiring separate disclosure, The Audit Committee concluded that clear and
meaningful descriptions had been provided for the APMs usad. It was also concluded that the relationship
between these measures and the statutory IFRS measures was clearly explsined, supported the considered
understanding of the financial statements and that the Audit Committee had considered that they had been
accorded equal prominence with measures that are defined by, or specified under, IFRS.
Potentidlimpact  The Group will be requined to comply with the requirements of IFRS § Financial instruments’ for the year ending
of FRS 9 and 31 March 2015 and IFRS 16 ‘Leasey’ for the year ending 31 March 2020.
IFRS 16 The Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by management in respect of these accounting standards and the
Consideration of  disclosures made in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.
the disciosures The Audit Committee concurs with management’s assessment that IFRS 9 will have no significant Impact on the Group's
made in respect  financial statements and that iFRS 16 will restkt in a substantial change in the presentation of the Group's Income
ofthe Impactof  Statement and Statamant of Financial Poskion, however pending further detalled analysks a quantitative disclosure in
FRS9and IFRS 16 respect of IFRS 16 is not appropriate at the present time.
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Audit Committee continued

lesun How addressed
FRC guidance The Audit Commilttee has considerad guidance issued by the FRC in January 2018 following Carillion pic entering
Consideration Rquidation and have reviewed the conclusions reached and disdosures made by mansgement in the context of
of the sector- this guidance,
spedificguidance  The Audit Committee concurs with management's conclusion that the disclosures presented in the Annual Report
issued by the FRC  and Accounts are consistent with this guidance.
following the
collapse of
Carillion pic.
Accounting for Following the conclusion of the Accounting Review in June 2017, management have put in place detailed
material accounting policies and procedures for the Group which improve consistency and reduce the latitude for the
contracts application of accounting judgemnents to routine matters.
The Group For the year ended 31 March 2012 management operated a structured process for identifying the materiat
operates 3 broad  accounting judgements made in arriving at the results and reported these to the Audit Committee for
portfolic of its consideration.
complex In relation to material contracts the Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by management in respect of:
contracts; the * PFI fifecycle surpluses;
sccounting for  » peovisioning for commendial settiements/disputes;
certain contracts . gisnures In respect of contingent Rabilities;
umn.:eﬁhmdbv * the need for provisions in respect of potentially onerous contracts; and

ptions of ¢ the recoverability of trade receivables and accrued Income.
judgements
made by
management in
respect of the
outcome of
future events.
Othwr rusbanial In redation to other acoounting judgements the Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by management
accounting In respect of:
Judgements = contingent llabllities related to compliance with National Minimum Wage legislation;
Thejudgements  « contingent liabilities related to the Group's participation in mukti-employer pension schemes;
assoclated with o provisions refated to Indemnities provided as part of the disposal of the Healthcare business; and
provisioning, « disclasure of other items.
Habilities, and The Audit Committee reviewed the information provided by managerment as wel as the views expressed by the
disclosure external suditors. The Audit Committee chalienged management on a number of matters relating to the
mattess. contingent Rabilities and was satisfied that such matters had been correctly accounted for.
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How sddressed

Appolntment
of an external

The process and
governance

the appointment
of BDO LLP as the
Company’s
external auditor.

Following Deloltte confirming In july 2017 that it would resign as the Group's auditor no later than 30 September
2017, a tender process was started and an auditor Selection Commitbee was formed.

The Selection Committee was led by the chairman of the Audit Committee, Mark Reckitt, and comprised the other
members of the Audit Committee, the Chief Financial Officer and the Director of Group Finance.

Consistent with the FRC ‘Audit Tenders Note on Best Practice’ issued In February 2017 the tender process was not
limited to the ‘Blg 4’, Deloitte was not invited to tender.

During July and August, Mark Reckitt, together with senior members of the Mitie team, met audit partners at PwC,
EY, KPMG and BDO in order to assess whether they were able to participate in tha audit tender process. Both PwC
and EY declined to participate, as, due to the nature of non-audit work carvied out for Mitie during FY 16/17 and
FY 17/18, they were not deemed independent under EU rules. Both KPMG and BDO confirmed that they were
Independent and willing to participate in the process.

The Selection Committee reviewed and approved Request For Proposal documentation and a data pack to be
Issued to both participants, which provided detafled information to support the submission of quality and accurate
bids by participants.

Both participants then had the opportunity to spend time with various management stakeholders to obtain a
more detailed understanding of the Group and existing management processes and challenges to better inform
their tender submission. These meetings included time with the Chief Financial Officer, Group Finarwe, Tax,
Treasury, Internal Audit, Risk, General Counsel and Company Secretarial, 7, as well as the managing director and
finance director of each of the operational businesses.

The bids submitted were subject to review by the Setection Commiittee. Both firms then met with the Selection
Committee to present their propasals with a question and answer session then led by the members of the Audit
Committee present.

The Selection Committee reviewed the tendar submissions and scored them independentty based upon the
quality and relevant sector experience of the proposed team, depth of the team and the wider organisation
relevant to the Company, cuttural fit, proposed approach to the transition plan and wider audit and potential for
audtt effidency and effectiveness.

The Selection Committee recommended BDO LLP as the preferred external auditor for the Company. The Board
ratified the decision of the Selection Committee and announced the decision to the London Stock Exchange in
September 2017.

Review of the
Grouwp's
going concemn

viability

The Audit Committee considered the evidence that supports the ability of the Directors to conclude that the
Group has adequate financlal resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and can prepare its
financial statements on a going concarn basis. The Audit Committee considered the future prospects and
performance of the Group Including: the future business plans of the Group; the potential impact of acquisition
activity and possible changes to the composition of the Group; the projected future cash flows of the Group; the
availability of core and ancillary financing faciltties and compliance with related covenants; the projected drawn
positions and headroom available on the core committed financing facilities; and these matters reviewed In
connection with the Viability Statement. tt also reviewed and considered the disclosures on the matter of going
concem and viability in the Annual Report and Acoounts and considered them to be appropriate. Detalls of the
condlusions arrived at by the Directors In preparing the financlal statements on a golng concern basis can be found
In the Directors’ report: other disclosures on pages 113 and 114, as can the detalls of the conclusions arrivad at by
the Directors In assessing the viability of the Group. The more detailed assessment of the Group's long-term
viabifity Is set out in the Viabllity Statement on page 57.
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Audit Committee continued

Internal audit During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed and challenged the scope of work undertaken by the internal

development Audit team and resources available o it, following a review undertaken by the new Head of Intemal Audit. The

Review of the focus of the intemal audit work has been on areas of high risk and where internal controls are suspected to be

focus of the weak. The audit work has also focused on areas identified In the Accounting Review of the balance sheet as well

internal audit as on the quality of internal controls in Group-wide processes. The plan is kept under regular review to ensure it

workplan and reflects the risk profile of the business,

resources The Audit Committee also requested that the Internal Audit team expand its coverage, with an increased number

available to of audits Incuded as part of the plan which was approved for the year ending 31 March 2019. Audits of the

the team commercial process and accrued income are also planned in the coming year. The Intarnal Audit team has started
to increase its resources In terms of both numbers and skill-set, with recruitment still ongoing due to a compatitive
market for internal auditors, and continues to use Gramt Thormton resource to support the delivery of the intemal
audit plan.
The Head of Internal Audit also cutiined plans to introduce a programme of bringing talented managers from all
parts of the business in to assist with specific audits and for longer-termn secondments. This will help to Improve
the understanding of the importance of effective risk management and internal controls across the business. The
Audit Committee also received regular updates on developments in the internal control environment and
assoclated improvement activity.

Review of An assessment of communication of values and key messages as part of culture was included in internal audit work

irrtenial audit programmes and there wes regular engagement with the business ieaders 1o ensure that the audit plan covered

findings current risks and that relevant findings are closed promptly and effectively.

Consideration The Internal Audit function inchuded an Increased number of contract audits in the FY 17/18 plan, covering bids,

of the financial and operational performance, This included the approach to contract risk management, evidence that

conclusionsand  financial models have been appropriately reviewed and approved, and reviews of any financial Improvemeant plans to

recommendations  ensure they had sufficient evidence to support the assertions and had been properly reviewed and approved. As part

arising from of the contract audits, there has also been an enhanced focus on contract obiigations, vartations, work in progress

the internal audit  and amounts recognised in relation to long-term complex contracts. Further reviews were undertaken specifically on

work conducted  bid management.

during the period A significant number of intamal audits reported to the Auciit Committee were rated as either unsatisfactory or
requiring significant improvement. The Audit Committee reviewed these and all other internal audits reported to the
Audit Committes in s meetings held up to and induding June 2018 and challenged management to ensure that all
recommendations made in the reports are implemented on & timely basis. it is clear thet further work is nesded
to ensure that all finance staff across the Group are properly trained and managed and support the actions of the
CFOto ensure that the Group provides sufficient resource to implement afl remaining recommendations.
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External audit

Each year the Audit Committee reviews the performance of the
extemnal auditor in respect of audit related services and non-audit
related services and is committed to ensuring the Independence,
effectiveness and objectivity of the external auditor.

Tendering of extemal audit services

It was reported In the Annual Report and Accounts 2017 that the
Committee had decided to commence a formal tender for a new
external auditor to be in place for the year ending 31 March 2018.
The detailed tender process followed can be found on page 81,

The Audit Committee confirms that the Group is in compliance with
the Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Markst

Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Process and
Augiit Committee Responsibilites) Order 2014,

Extemnal auditor effectiveness
The Audit Committee monitored the conduct and effectiveness of
the external auditor through its assessment of:

* the experience, expertise and perosptiveness of the auditor;

« the planning and execution of the agreed audit plan and quality
of audnt reports; and

* the conduct of the suditor indisding the Audit Commitiee’s
experience of iteraction with the auditor, which induded
meetings hekd in the absence of management.

Non-audit services provided by the external aucditor

The Audit Committee has approved a non-audit services policy that

ensures the external auditor remains independent and objective

throughout the provision of their independent audit services and

when formulating their audit opinion. In onder to retain the

flexdbility of utilising the external auditor to provide non-sudit

services, the following criterta must also be met.

These are such that the external auditor does not:

= audit s awn work;

« make management decisions for the Group;

= create a conflict of interest; or

« find itself in the role of advocate for the Group.

The non-audit services policy identifies the various types of
non-audit services which might be required and determines
the analysis to be undertaken along with the level of authority
required before the external auditor can be considered for such
work. Further, the policy is consistent with the FRC's ethical
standards policy.

When considering the appointment of the external auditor for non-

Budit services, the following factors are taken into account:

« the quality of work provided by the external audtitor;

* representations provided by the external auditor regarding
independence and objectivity, along with internal controls
implernented by them when providing non-audit services;

« the level of the external auditor’s understanding of the Group;

* the nature of the work being performed; and

» the commerdal and practical circumstances of particular types of
work required.

Non-audit services provided to the Group for the year ended

31 March 2018 Included tax and other audit related services.
Further detalls can be found in Note 6 to the financial statements.
The Audit Commitiee conskdered reports from both management
and the external auditor, none of which raised concerns about
auditor independence.

A summary of the fees paid to the external auditor is given in
Note 6 to the financlal statements. The Audit Committee
oonfirms that the requirements of the non-audit services policy
have been met throughout the year.

Assurance

in accordance with Internal Control: Guidance for Directors and
saction C.2.3 of the Code, the Board performs a formal annual
assessment of the operation and effectiveness of the system of
internal control, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and updates this assessment
prior to the signing of the Annual Report and Accounts,

These activities are monitored at executive level to ensure that
control changes are implemented appropristely and that they are
effective, The Head of Internal Audit oversees the application of
control enwvironment improvements and attends Audit
Cormmittee meetings to provide regular updates on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls and the results of
the intemal audit process.

Features of the internal control an risk management systems that
ensure accuracy and reliabllity of financial reporting include: a
culture of good governance, integrity, competence, fairess and
responsibility; Group level policies and procedures to support the
business by providing an operational internal control frameworl;
and dearly defined responsibilities, delegated in accordance with
the Group's delegated authorities and authorisation registers.

Accountabitity for intamal control and risk management systams is
devolved into each division and any control weaknesses within
divisions are investigated and resolved. Management and the
Committee seek 10 ensure that their cause is understood and
mitigating actions are taken to lmit the potential for recurrence. In
view of the work of the Intemal Audit function, management and
the external suditor, it is considered unlikely that a weakness within
a particular division would have a significant Impact on the Group.

As noted ahove the Group has taken significant steps to iImprove
the efficiency and effectiveness of its back-office activities, Whilst
this project ks in progress, there Is an inherent increases in risk and
therefore additional controls are in place to monitor this.

Review of whistieblowing processas

Part of the Audit Committee's role Is to ensure that appropriate
procedures are in place in relation to whistieblowing and to review
on an annual basis the Group’s whistieblowing policy.

To ensure that whistleblowing arrangements remalned effective
and independent of management across the business, Mitie
outsourced Its *Speak up’ service to an independent third-party
provider. The new service was launched in September 2017, and
can be accessed via a freephone number, a free onfine app or
through the service provider's website. Further detail can be found
on page 71
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Nomination Committee

Nomination Committee
Chairman’s introduction

image removed

Darak Mapp, Nomination Committee Chalnman

Nomination Committee members
At the date of this report the Nomination Committee comprises:

Chalrman  Derek Mapp (from 26 July 2017)
Roger Matthews {until 26 July 2017)

Committes Phil Bentley (from 26 July 2017)
mambars  payl Woolf (from 14 March 2018)
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Shagat {(from 14 March 2018)
Jack Boyer (from 14 March 2018) *
philippa Couttie (from 14 March 2018)
Jennifer Duvalier {from 14 March 2018)
Larry Hirst
Mark Reckitt (from 14 March 2018) *
Mary Reilly {from 14 March 2018}
Roger Yates (from 14 March 2018)

*  Mark Rackiit and Jack Boyer s300d down from the Nominstion Cormwlitee on
26 July 2017. Both re-joined the Committys on 14 March 2028 par the Chalrman’s
decision thet all Board members should form part of the Norsinetion Commitiee.

Kay purpase of the Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee evaluates the composition, diversity,
experience, knowledge, skifls and independence of the Board

and Its Committees. This allows appropriate batance to be
maintained and ensures the continued effactiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Committee also ensures that appropriate
succession plans for the Non-Executive Directors, Executive
Directors and the Group's senior managemnent are also kept

under review, taking Into account the challenges and opportunities
facing the Group, and the skdils, expertise and dversity required
for the future.
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The role of the Nomination Committee is to ensure the Board is
appropriataly batancad in terms of its composition, considering
matters of skills, experience and diversity.

| firmly believe that the responsibiities of the Nomination
Committee are matters for all Board members to consider.

Accordingly, the Nomination Committee Is now comprised

of the whole Board and, in accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code {the Code)}, membership continues to be

a majority of independent Non-Executive Directors, sll of
whom are considered to be appropriately experienced to
fulfil their dutles.

Key responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
The key responsibiiities of the Nomination Committee include:

+ making recommendations to the Board regarding succession
planning for Directors and other senlor executives, and In
particular for the key roles of Chalrman, Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financia! Officer;

* reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Soard

{including lts skills, knowledge, experience and diversity)
and making recommendations to the Board with regard to

any changes;

* keeping under review the leadership needs of the Group In order
o ensure k continues to compete effectively in the marketplace;
= making recorrmendations to the Board conceming the following:
* patential candidates to fill Board vacancies when they arise;

+ membership of the Board Comumittees;

= candidates for the role of Senior Independent Director;

= appointment of any Director 1o exeautive or other office;

* reappointment of any Non-Executive Director at the
conclusion of their specified term of office (particularly In
refation to those being re-slected for a term bayond six years);

* appointment of the Company Secretary; and

* any matters relating to the continuation in office of any
Director; and

* reviewing the results of the Board perfonmance evaluation
process that relsts to the compesition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee’s Terms of Reference are avallable at

www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance,




Key activities during the year

The Nomination Comunittee reviewed the compaosition and
chairmanship of the Board and each of its Committees.
The Nomination Committee Is satisfied that the Board's
compasition and diversity has been appropriate throughout
the year, having regard in particular to the Integrity, skills,
knowlecige ant experience of Its Directors and the size and
nature of the business.

The Nomination Committee recognises the Importance of
planning for the future and the succession planning process.
During the year, the Nomination Committee continued to
consider its ongoing succession planning and refreshing of the
Board. As announced on 13 November, Paul Woolf was
appointed to the Board as Chief Financlal Officer with immediate
effect, in place of Sandip Mahajan, who held the role of Chief
Financial Officer from Fabruary 2017 until his resignation from
the Board in November.

Paul’s previous experience as a chief executive officer, chief
financlal officer and chief operating officer in both public and
private companies brings additional skills to both the Board and
the Exacantive Leadership Team. The ongoing abilty to attract
high-calibre executive talent to Mitie reflects the Board’s
conviction that, looking to the future, there are significant
operational and growth opportunities for the Group.

In accordance with the Code, Paul will stand for election at the
2018 AGM.

The Nomination Committee worked with executive search firms
JCA Group and Russell Reynolds Associates to find additional
Non-Executive Directors with key skill sets to complement those
of existing Board members.

Neither search firm has other connections with the Comparny.
Work with the JCA Group resulted in the selection of lennifer
Duvafier, Mary Reilly and Roger Yates as potential Non-Executive

Directors and the search with Russell Reynolds Associates
resuked in the: selection of Philippa Couttie.

After careful consideration, the Nomination Committee
recommended the appointment of each candidate to the Board,
The appointment of Jennifer was announced on 18 july with
effect from 26 July 2017, the appointment of Mary on 25 July
with effect from 1 September 2017, the appointment of Philfipa
on 8 November 2017 with effect from 15 November 2017,

and the appointment of Roger on 23 February with effect from
1 March 2018,

Jennifer, Mary, Philippa and Roger will stand for election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, in accordance with
the Code.

Frequancy of Nomination Committee meetings
During the year ended 31 March 2018, th= Nomination

Committee met three times.

Altendance
Number of scheduled meetings in the year: 3
Derek Mapp* 2/2
Roger Matthews? 0/1
Phil Bentiey® 2/2
Jack Boyer* in
Lamy Hirst 33
Mark Reckitt® 1/1
Notes:

1. Derek Mapp was appainted to the Committee on 26 July 2017.

2. Roger Matthews resigned from the Board on 26 hdy 2017,

3, Phil Bentiey was sppointed to the Commities an 26 luly 2017.

4, Jack Boyer stood down from the Committee on 26 July 2017,

5, Mark Reckitt stood down from the Committee on 26 july 2017.

Merthers appolnted 1o the Nominstion Committee on 14 March 2018 do not sppesr
In the gbove table at there were no further schedhled meetings in the year éanded
31 March 2018,

Roger Matthews did not attend the Nomination Committee
meeting in May 2017 as the meeting considered the appointment
of his successor.
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Nominaton Committee continued

Diversity and inclusion

Mitie has a Group-wide Equakity, Diversity and Inclusion Policy
that clearly states its commitment to the inclusion and diversity

of all employees at all levels, up to and incduding Board level.

The Board retains a key focus on diversity of skills, gender and
exparience in its membership, and the Nomination Commiitee
considered the voluntary recommendations provided in the
Parker Report into Ethnic Diversity and the Hampton-Alexander
Review on Women In Leadership Positions during the year.

On appointment, the Chairman made i an objective of the
Board to increase female representation on the Board.
Accordingly, both JCA Group and Russell Reynolds Associates
focusad their search on finding the highest calibre female
candidates whilst remaining cognisant of the sillls, kinowledge
and experiance required to ensure that the Board remains
appropriately balanced.

The Committae Is pleasad to report that as at 31 March 2018 36%
of the Board are female. Further, 15% of the Bacutive Leadership
Team are female.

The Board ensures that the Group’s employment practices and
policies are designed to recrult, motivate, retain, train and
develop the very best people, recognising that this can be
achieved only through offering equal opportunities regardless
of gender, race, religion, age, disability, sexual orientation or
any other aspect of diversity.

Mitie is very proud of its rich and diverse culture and
backgrounds —these create ideas and Insights. Everyone has
2 voice and Is treated as an equal.

An employee diversity network strategy was documented in
January 2018, with network leads elected to represent ethnic,
gender, LSBT and disability diversity. The natworks formally
launched in Q1 2018-19, with a face-to-face and virtual events
calendar —n addition to an online network platform on which to
interact and share Ideas. The purpose of the networks s to
chamgion diversa policies and practices and to support Mitie’s
aim to create a place to work where everyone feels included and
vakied. The networks will work closely with the Mitie Foundation
10 execute the principal strategies of increasing apprenticeships
and applications from diverse backgrounds, particularly into front
line operational and delivery roles. The network will also work
closely with the HR function to advise on enhancements to key
policies including maternity and parental leave, transgender
integration and disability.
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Further details of the Group's commitmant to diversity and the
diversity of Mitie’s people can be found in the sustainability
section of our website at www.mitle.com. A breakdown of
employea diversity as required by the Companles Act 2006 can
be found on page 39 of this report.

Derek Mapp
Chairman of the Nomination Com

Results Committee

Overview and purpose

The Results Committee assists the Board in approving
matters such as hatf-year and preliminary results
announcements, other routine, non-material
announcements and shareholder communications.

The Results Committee, which comprises the Chief
Executive Officer, as chair, and Chief Finandial Officer,
met twice during the year ended 31 March 2018,

Investment Committes

Overview and purpase

The Investment Committee facilitates the internal
approvals process by approving matters as delegated
by the Board and referring recommendations for Board
approval. The Investment Committee, which comprises
the Chief Executive Officer, as chalr, and Chief

Financial Officer, did not meet during the year ended
31 March 2018.
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Directors’ remuneration report

Statement from the Remuneration
Committee Chairman

Image removed

Chairman’s introduction

On behak of the Board, | am pleased to present the Directors’
remuneration report for the year ended 31 March 2018. itis
split into three main parts:

* Executive remuneration at a glance. This sets outa
summary of our approach, including how we intend to
operate under the new policy and remuneration outcomes
during the year.

* The remuneration policy. Our existing policy has been in
place since it was approved by 94% of shareholders at the
2015 AGM. We are therefore presenting the new policy for
approval at the 2018 AGM. The policy review and the main
changes are described below.

« The annual report on remuneration. This details how we
implemented our current policy in Fy18 and how we
intend to apply the new palicy in Fy19,

The Remuneration Committee has addressed a number of
issues during the year. | have describad below the approach
the Committae has taken, together with the context In which
key decisions were made.
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Remunerstion review and new policy

Over the |ast year, the Cornmittee has reviewed the
remuneration arrangements for Executive Directors and the
management team, to make sure they best support the Group’s
business strategy, reflect best practice and are aligned with
shareholders’ interests. This included consulting with major
shareholders and investor bodies. Their input from the 2017
AGM and during recent consultations has been incorporated into
the developmenit of the new policy.

The Committee believes in an approach 1o executive pay which
aligns with value creation for shareholders. If the value created
for shareholders is below our expectations, we believe that
executives should receive reduced or no variable pay. Conversely,
i shareholders enjoy strong retums, we believe it is right that the
executives rasponsible for creating that value should share in
those returns too.

Given the Committee’s actions in recent years In setting
stretching targets, holding executives to account for achieving
those targets and exercising negative discretion in lapsing awards,
we feei we have a strong track record in taking a responsible and
appropriate approach to executive pay.

This approach informed how we reviewed the policy and the
main outcomes of the review are set out bejow:

* No increase in quantum. Maximum incentive opportunities
remain the same for the next policy cydle. No increase in
salaries for FY19.

* Defermal provisions strengthened. 50% of the annual bonus is
to be deferred. Previcusly, the bonus was delivered in cash up
to 100% of salary, with only any excess deferred.

» Incorporation of best practice features. We are enhancing the
past-vesting holding period to two years for LTIP awards,
strengthening malus provisions and introducing clawback
provisions acrass the Company’s incentive plans.

* Simplification. Reduction in the number of LTIP performance
measures from four to two, with FY19 awards based 50% on
adjusted EPS and 50% on cash conversion.

Further detail is provided in the Executive remuneration at 2
glance section after this statement, and the new policy is
provided in full in our policy report.

Chief Financial Officer succession

As announced on 13 November 2017, Paul Woolf, former CEO of
Virgin Active Health Clubs, joined Mitle as Chief Financial Officer
and was appointed to the Board with immediate effect. Sandip
Mahajan, who had held the role of Chief Financial Officer since
February 2017, stepped down from the Board. Our single figure
table includes detalls for Paul and Sandip In relation to their
respective times in the role,




Full details of Paul's remuneration arrangements — which comply
with the Company’s existing remuneration policy — are provided in
this report. In summary, they include: (i) a base salary of £430,000
which will not be increased in FY19; (it} an annual bonus
opportunity of 120% of salary; and (i) regular annual LTIP awaris
of 150% of salary. Note that Pauls FY18 LTIP award was 75% of
salary.

Sandip Mahajan ceased to be a Director on 13 November 2017
and s expected to remain an employee until November 2018. His
July 2017 LTIP award will vest at the usual time, subject to the
performance conditions, pro-rated for his period of employment.

Remuneration decisions and outcomes

Salary

with regard to fixed pay, it has been agreed that salaries for the
Executive Directors will not be increased for FY19 and so will
remain £900,000 for Phil Bentiey (since appointment in
November 2016) and £430,000 for Paul Woolf (since
appointment in November 2017),

Voluntary waiver of FY18 bonus

FY18 bonus outcomes would have ordinarily resulted in pay-outs of
38% of the maximum (arising from operating profit, revenue,
customer performance and strategic objectives), Notwithstanding
this, both Phil Bentiey and Paul Woolf expressed in advance their
wish to voluntarily waive any FY18 bonus, prior to award.

Interaction with November 2016 LTIP award

Follawing his appaintment, Phil Bentley received an LTIP award in
November 2016. This award vests subject to the extent to which
the annual bonus targets that apply for FY18, FY19 and FY20 are
met and a bonus pald. In the event Phil earms a bonus in one of
these years, 25% of the awand vests, with 67% vesting if a bonus is
earned In two of the years and full vesting if a bonus is earned in alt
three years. in any event, no vesting will actually occur until 2020.

In light of the voluntary waiver discussed abowve, for the purposes of
performance assessment under the November 2016 LTIP award, it
is deemed that the annual bonus targets that applied for FY18 have
been met and therefore a bonus in one of the three years has been
achieved to date.

Bonus opportunity for FY19

For FY19, Phil Bentley’s maximum bonus opportunity will remain
at 160% of salary and Pau! Woolf's maximum bonus opportunity
will remain at 120% of salary.

The Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee are all
Non-Executive Directors. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
the Committee met three times.

Attendance
Chairman Jack Boyer 3/3
Committee members Larry Hirst 3/3
Jennifer Duvalier 1/2
Roger Matthews? 1/1
Mark Reckitt? 111

Notes:

1. Jennifer Duvalier wis appcintad to the Comemittee on 26 July 2m7.

2. Roger Matthews resigned froa the Board on 26 July 2017,

3. Mark Redktt stood down from the Committee on 26 july 2017.

The Committee has responsibility for determining the remuneration
of Mitie’s Executive Directors and the Chairman, taking into account
the need to ensure Executive Directors are properly incentivised to
perform In the interests of the Company and its shareholders,

The Committee’s terms of reference are available at
www.mitie.com/investors/eorporate-governance/

The Committee regularly consults with the Chief Executive and
the Group HR Director on various matters relating to the
appropriateness of rewards for the Executive Directors.

However, the Chief Executive and other Executive Directors are
not present when matters relating directly to their own
remuneration are discussed, This ks also the case for other
executives attending Committee meetings.

The Company Secretary attended the meetings as Secretary to
the Committee. The Chief Executive and Group HR Director
attended the meetings by invitation only.

Corporate governatcs developmaents

The Committee s mindful of wider developments in corporate
governance best practice, Mitie’s gender pay gap disclosures are
available on the government portal, as well as on the website,
We are also monitoring the renewal of the UK Corporate
Governance Code with interest, and our intention is to comply
with the revised provisions when they are finalised, particularly
with reference to pay ratios.

Condusion

We will be seeking approval for the Directors’ remuneration
report {advisory vote) and the policy report {binding vote) at the
2018 AGM. | welcome your views and feedback on sither item,
which can be emailed to me at jack.boyer@mitie.com.
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Directors’ remuneration raport continued

Executive remuneration at a glance
Key prindiples of the policy
Mitie’s remuneration policy is based on a number of principles:
Rewerd should be aligned with The performance-related incentive arrangements are designed to align the
the shareholder experience Interests of executives with those of shareholders and to promote the Group's long-
term success
The majority of the package At Executive Director and senjor management levels, the majority of reward
should be performance-retated opportunity is provided through performance-related incentives linked to the

Group's strategic goals and taking account of the Group's attitude to risk; reward
under these Incentives Is linked to both individual and Group performance

The policy should be The overall remunerstion policy & designed to be comprehensive without becoming

comprehensive and simple overcomplicated and to encourage executives to concentrate on profitable growth

Executive incentives and link to strategy
The following table sets out how the intended measures across the incentive plans for FY19 support the Group’s strategy and KPis:

Link to Sstingd and renewed Strong cash-generative Focus on people Customers at the beart
strategy profit growth Busheess Quatty dlent base and culture of the business
Annual ¥ 35% operating ¥ 35% organic ¥ 10% employee ¥ 10% Net Promoter
bonus profit revenue growth engagement Score
v 10% individual
objectives
LTI v 50% adjusted v 50% cash
EPS conversion

The table below highlights the key features of the new policy and our approach which aligns the Executive Directors’ remuneration
arcangements with the sharehoider expetience:

Our philosophy ~ “The Committee believes in on approach to executive pay which is
commensurcte with value creation for sharehoiders.”

Our track record in Sharehokling guidelines

lnd‘:pprn'pdm of 200% of salary In Bonus deferral - S0% of Ii:: VEI'SH-‘M‘VEII rio ”’:
a ach to execut conjunction with the bonus into shares time horizon for
enhanced makus and for at least two years
pay (e.g. exercise of Lrwbac isions executives
negative discretion)
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All employee incentive amrangements
The Company also operates SAYE and SIP arrangements, allowing employees to participate in share ownership and to share in
corparate success over the medium term.

Summary of the new policy and how we intend it to operate
This table summarises remuneration arrangements for Executive Directors {Phil Bentley as CEQ and Paul Woolf as CFO) for FY18 under
the current policy approved by shareholders at the 2015 AGM, alongside how we intend to apply the new policy in FY19, subject to

shareholder approval at the 2018 AGM.

Az a glance FY18 operation under current policy FY19 operation under new policy
Base salary CEO: £900,000 CEO: £900,000
CFO: £430,000 CFO: £430,000
Maximum bonus Policy maximum: 160% of salary for CEO and 135%  Policy maximum: 160% of salary for CEO and 135%
opportunity for other Executive Directors for other Executive Directors
FY18 operation: FY19 operation:
CEO: 160% of salary CEQ: 160% of salary
CFO: 120% of salary (prorata) CFO: 120% of salary
Bonus deferral Bonus delivered wholly In cash up to 100% of salary  50% of bonus deferred into shares which vest after at
with the remainder deferred into shares which vest  least two years —i.e. enhanced deferral provisions
after two years
Bonus performance Current policy Is for financial to be the majority New palicy s unchanged.
measuses - mix {>50%) and strategic the remainder FY19 mix: 70% financial, 30% strategic
FY18 mix: 70% financial, 30% strategic
Bonus performance Financlal: operating profit and revenue Financial: organic revenue growth, operating profit

meatres — metrics

Strategic: as disclosed later in our Annual Report
on Remuneration

FY18 mix; 50% operating profit, 20% revenue, and
15% each on NPS and individual strategic objectives

Strategic: Net Promoter Score {NPS}, employee
engagement, individual

FY19 mix: 35% organic revenue growth, 35%
operating profit, and 10% each on NPS, employee
engagement and individual strategic objectives

Maximum LTIP Policy maxirmum: 200% of salary Policy maximum: 200% of salary
oppartunity FY18 operation: FY19 operation:
CEO: 200% of salary CEQ: 200% of salary
CFO:; 150% of salary {pro-rata) CFO: 150% of salary
LT performance FY18 mix (granted in July and November 2017): 30%  Simplification to two measures, adjusted EPS and
maasures cash conversion, 25% EPS, 25% strategic and 20% cash conversion. Policy still to aliow for flexbility on
relative TSR measures and weightings.
FY19 mix; S0% adjusted EPS and 50% cash cornversion
LTIP holding period Practical operation of post-vesting holding period, Enhancement of post-vesting holding period to
of two years after vest  but no specific period defined within policy two years and formal incorporation into policy
FY18 operation: 50% released after three years, 25% FY19 operation: shares released after five years
after four years and 25% after five years {three year vesting plus two year holding period)
Share ownarship 200% of salary 200% of salary
requirements
Malus and dawback Malus provisions in place Strengthened malus provisions and introduction of
provisions dawback provisions
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Directors’ remunaeration report continued

Summary of remuneration outcomes for the year ending 31 March 2018

The following provides a summary of incentive outcomes and the single total figure of remuneration for Executive Directors. Full
details can be found later in pur Annual Report on Remuneration.

Annual bonus in respect of FY18

Phii Bentiey and Paul Woolf both voluntarily waived their annual bonus in respect of Fr18. Notwithstanding this, the measures and
targets are set out in the table below, together with a commentary on the amounts which would otherwise have been determined on
a formulaic basis and an assessment of the strategic objectives, had the bonuses not already been waived.

The table below reflects the notional out-turn of 38.0%. As the financial performance ranges exduded the impact of IFRS 15, the
formulaic out-turn has been assessed on FY18 results before the impact of IFRS 15:

Performance

measure Weighting Perforrance range Qut-turn

Operating 50% of the award  £85.8m threshald The out-turn was £77.1m resulting in a hypothetical outcome of 0% of

profit £95.3m target the maximum for this elernent, being 0% of the maximum bonus
£100.0m maximum opportunity.

Revenue 20% of the award  £2.00bn threshold The out-tum was £2.199bn resulting in a hypothetical outcome of
£2.23bn target 65% of the maximum for this element, being 13.0% of the maximum
£2.33bn maximurn bonus opportunity.

Customer Net  15% of the award  +1pts threshold The out-tum was +17pts resulting in a hypothetical outcome of

Promoter Score +3pts target 100% of the maximum for this element, being 15% of the maximum
+5pts maximum bonus opportunity.

Strategic 15% of the award - The Committes set strategic objectives relating to: customers; costs;

objectives financial; people; technology; governance; and processes as set out in the

Annual Report on Remuneration. The Committee considered that the
objectives had been substantially met and that 10% ocut of a possible 15%
of the award would otherwise have been awarded to the CEO and CFO.

2015 LTIP awards vesting in 2018

Neither Phil Bentley nor Paul Woolf were grantad 2015 LTIP awards, as these awards were made prior to their appointments. As such,
they have no LTIP awards vesting In 2018,

Single figure for FY18

The table below reports a single figure of total remuneration for each of the Executive Directors and former Executive Director for the
financial year ended 31 March 2018 and their comparative figures for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

Yeur Salery Benefits  Annus) bonus np Pension Total
Phil Bentiey 2018  £900,000 £22,549 - -  E180,000 £1,102,549
2017 £375,000 £29,073 - - £75,000 £479,073
Paul Woolf 2018 £166,136 £686 - - £16,614 £183,436
2017 - - - - - -

Former Divector
Sandip Mahajan 2018 £197,576 £10,140 - - £39,515 £247 231
2017 £44,000 £2,063 - - £8,800 £54,863
Total remuneration 2018 £1,533,216
2017 £533,936

Further information on the above is provided In the Annual Report on Remuneration.
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The Company's remuneration policy

This report

We have presented this Directors’ remuneration report in accordance with the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports} (Amendment] Regulations 2013. The report also describes how the Board has complied with the provisions set
out in the September 2014 edition of the UK Corporate Governance Code relating to remuneration matters.

At the 2018 AGM two resolutions relating directly to this report will be proposed: a binding vote on the revised Directors’
remuneration policy as set out in our policy report below and an advisory vote on the Annual Report on Remuneration.

The (ndependent Auditor has reported on certain parts of this report and stated whether, in his opinion, thase parts of the report have
been propetly prepared in accordance with the Companles Act 2006. Those sections of the report that have been subject to audit are
clearly Indicated.

Directors’ remuneration policy report

Changes ta the policy

The following tables and gccompanying notes in this section of the report set out the ramuneration policy for Executive Directors and
Non-Executive Directors, The policy is intended to apply, subject to approval by shareholders, for three years from the 2018 AGM.

Following a review in which major shareholders were consulted, changes have been made to the policy approved by shareholders at
the 2015 AGM, as detailed in the Statement from the Remuneration Committee Chairman above. These include the strengthening of
bonkis deferral provisions, introduction of dawback provisions and formal incorporation into the policy of an enhanced post-vesting
holding pariod for LTIP awards, For the avoidance of doubt, there has been no increase in maximum Incentive opportunities, Minor
drafting changes have also been made to clarify the Committee’s intentions for the operation of the policy.

The key principles of the poficy

The remuneration policy promotes and embeds the Company’s remuneration principles. The key principles of this policy are:

Shareholder aligned The performance-related incentive arrangements are designed to align the interests of
exacutives with those of shareholders and to promote the Group's long-term success

Performance-related At Executive Director and senior management levels, the majority of reward opportunity is

pravided through performance-related incentives inked to the Group’s strategk goals and

taking account of the Group's attitude to risk

Reward under these incentives s linked to both individual and Group performance
Comprehensive and simpla The overall remuneration policy 1s designed to be comprehensive without becoming

overcomplicated and to encourage exacutives to concentrate on profitable growth
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The Company's remuneration policy continued

The policy
The key elements of the policy, to be approved at the 2018 AGM, are set out below.
Purpose and
link to l‘ll’tt!‘_v Operation Opportunity Performance metrics
Base salary Salaries are generally reviewed Base salary increases will be broadly N/A
Set at levels te annually, effective from 1 April. The  In line with the average increase for
attract and retain review is influenced by: the salaried notv-contract UK
individuals of the o the individual's role, experience  employees whose salaries Mitie
callbre required to and performance; determines, although on occasion
drive thavisionand  » business performance and the other specific circurmstances such as
direction of Mitie. wider market and economic changes of responsibilities,
conditions; progression in role, experience, ora
» therange of increases acrossthe  Significant increase in the scale of
Group; and the r;le :t:défo;‘seiz;, value and/‘:ro
- comple! roup may a
A1 aMal COMPATMOTBTOLD  be ek ko consderation
and size adjusted FTSE 250
cornparator organisations.
Benefits The Group provides a range of Benefits are set at a leval which the N/A
To akd retention benefits which may include a Committee considers:
and be competitive cOmpany car/car allowance, private  + Is appropriately positioned
within the fuel, private health insurance, kfe against comparable roles in
marketplace. assurance and annual leave. companies of a simiar size and
Benefits are reviewsd periodically complexity In the relevant
against market and new benefits market; and
may be added and/or amended as e provides a sufficient level of
required to support the attraction benefit based on the role and
and retention of key talent. individual circumstances (for
Additional benefits may be awarded  example, relocation).
in certain recruitment The Committee retains discretion
drcumstances which may include  to approve a higher cost than
relocation expenses, housing currently incurred where factors
allowance and school fees. Other outside the Company’s control have
benefits may be offered if changed materially (e.g. medical
considered appropriate and inflation) or in exceptional
reasonable by the Committee. clrcumstances (e.g. relocation).
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Purpose and

link to strategy Operation Opportunity Performance metrics
Al Employee Executive Directors are eliglbleto  N/A N/A
Share Schemes participate in any all-employee
To provide share plan operated by the
opportunities for Company, In line with HMRC
the Directors to guidelines currently prevailing
voluntarily invest {where relevant), on the same basis
Inthe Companyon  as other eligible employees.
the same terms as
other employees.
Penision Executive Directors wil be efigible  The pension cash allowance for N/A
To aid retention and  to participate in the defined Executive Directors will be
provide competitive contribution pension scheme or determined based on the
retirement benefits.  to receive a cash allowance in Committee’s assessment of
lieu of a pension contribution. competitive levels needed to attract
and retain such individuals, but will
be capped at 20% of salary.
Annual Bonus Plan ~ Measures and targets are set Maxirnum bonus opportunity Is Bonuses are based on stretching
To incentivise and annually and pay-out levels are 160% of salary for the Chief financial and strategic objectives as
recognise execution  determined by the Committee after  Executive and up to 135% of salary  set at the beginning of the year and
ofthe Company’s  the year end based on performance  for any other Executive Director. assessed by the Committee at
strategy on an against those targets, the end of the year, with the
annual hasis, The Committee may, in underlying aim of encouraging
Rewards the exceptional circumstances, amend and rewarding the generation
achievement of the bonus pay-out should this not, of sustainable returns
annual financialand  in the view of the Committee, 1o shareholders.
strategic goals. refiect overall business performance The Committee has discretion
Deferral provides or individual contribution. to determine the a2ppropriate
alignment with 50% of the bonus ts compulsorily weightings each year depending
shareholder deferred into sharas which vest on business priorities. The financial
interests. after a minimum of two years maasures will represent the
{normally subject to continued majority of the bonus, with any
employment). strategic objectives representing
Dividends are accrued on deferred the balance. These elements

shares and paid in cash.
Malus and clawback provisions (as
detalled below this table) will apply

are additive.
For the strategic element of the
award, payment at threshaold

to bonus awards made after the performance Is zero. At the

2018 AGM. threshold performance level
under the financial element, a
bonus of no more than 60% of
safary is payable.
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The Company’s remunaration policy continued

Purpose and
link 10 strategy Operation Opportunity Performance meteics
Lang Term Annual awards {in the form of Awards may be made uptoa Performance over at least three
Incantive Plan ml-cost options, conditional share  rmaximum level of 200% of satary financial years ls measured against
To motivate and awards or cash settiements) are for any Executive Director. stretching objectives set at the
incentivise delivery  made with vasting dependent upon beginning of the performance
of sustained the achievement of performance pariod which have the underlying
performance and conditions over three years, #im of encouraging and rewarding
provide alignment  Award levels and the framework for the generation of sustainable
with shareholder determining vesting are reviewed returns to shareholders.
interests, annually to ensure they continue to Vesting under the LTI depends on
support the Group’s strategy. the achievement of performance
The Committee has the discretion to conditions. Awards attributable to
decide whether, and to what extent, each performance condition vest at
targets have been met, and, if an 25% on achievement of the
exceptional event occurs that minimum performance threshald,
causes the Committee to consider nsing to 100% for achievement of a
that the targets are no longer defined upper performance level
appropriate, the Committee may
adjust them.
Awards will be subject to an
additional holding period of at
|east two years.
Dividend equivalents are paid in
cash on or after the date shares
are received.
Malus and clawback provisions
{as detalled below this table} will
apply 10 LTIP awards made after
the 2018 AGM.
Share ownership Exacutive Directors are required, N/A N/A
To ensute alignment  over time, to bulld and maintain a
of interests betweenn  minimum shareholding in the
Executive Directors  Company worth 200% of salary.
and shareholders.  They are required to retain half of
the post-tax shares vesting under
the LTIP and other share schemes
until the guideline (s met.
Chairman and Fees are normally reviewed every  Fees are set at a level which: N/A
Non-Executive three years. = reflects the commitment and
Director fees The fee structure is as foflows: contribution that is expected
To attract and o the Chairman Is paid an al- from the Chalman and the Non-
retain high-calibre inclusive single fee for all Executive Directors; and
individuals. Board responsibilities; * Is appropriztely positioned
Non-Executive « the Non-Executive Directors are against comparator roles In
Directors do not paid a bask fee, plus additional companies of a similar size
participate in any fees for chairmanship of and complexity in the
Incentive schemes. commigtess; relevant marcket.
« fees are currently paid in cash but  Actual fees are disclosed In the
the Company may choose to Directors’ remuneration report for
provide some of the fees in the relevant financial year.
shares; and Aggregate fees/value of benefits are
= benefits, including expenses, can  capped at the amount set out inthe
be provided if considered Company’s Articles of Association.
necessary on a case-by-case basis,
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Malus and dawback provisions

The malus and dawback provisions under the Annual Bonus Plan and LTIP may be operated if it comes to light within two years that
information used to determine performance was materially inaccurate and resulted in 2@ material overstatement of the award or intha
event of any act/omission by an individual that would give grounds for summary dismissal {with no time limit). For the avoidance of
doubt, the clawback provisions apply to any cash payments made and/or any vested shares under bonus deferral or the LTIP In respect
of awards made after the 2018 AGM,

Clawback provisions are such that:

¢ cash bonus amounts can be reclaimed for a period of up to two years after payment; and

¢ vested share awards under the deferred element of the Annual 8onus Plan and LTIP can be reclaimed for a period of up to two years
after vesting {effected through the operation of malus provisions during the hoiding period).

Malus and clawback will apply in four main circumstances:

misstatement of results or an error in the calculation of performance;
misconduct;

reputational damage; or

failure of risk management or control.

Discretions retained In operating the incentive plans

The Committee will operate the Annual Banus Plan and LTIP according to their respective rules and the above policy table. The
Commitee retains discretion, consistent with mdrkel praclive, in @ number of respects, in relation to the oper alion and admibnlstration
of these plans.

These discretions include, but are not limited to, the following:

+ the selection of participants;

+ the timing of grant of an award/bonus opportunity;

+ the siza of an award/bonus opportunity subject to the maximum limits set out in the policy table;

» the determination of performance against targets and resultant vesting/bonus pay-outs;

« discretion required when dealing with a change of control or restructuring of the Group;

+ determination of the treatment of ieavers basad on the rules of the plan and the appropriate treatment chosen;

* adjustments required In certain circumstances (& g. rights issues, corporate restructuring events and special dividends); and

» the annual review of performance measures, weightings and targets.

In relation to both the LTIP and Annual Bonus Plan, the Committee retains the ability to adjust the targets and/or set different
measures if events occur {e.g. material acquisition and/or divestment of a Group business) which cause it to determine that the
conditions are no longer appropriate and the amendment is required so that the conditions echieve their original purpose and are nat
materinly less difficult to satisfy. Any use of these discretions would, where relevant, be explained in the Directors’ remuneration
report and may, where appropriate and practicable, be the subject of consultation with the Company’s major shareholders.

in addition, for the avoidance of doubt, in approving this policy report, authority is given to the Company to honour any commitments
entered Into with current or former Directors under previous policles. Details of any payments (w futiner Directors will be set out In the:
relevant report as required by reporting regulations.

"« 9 @
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The Company’s remunaration policy continued

Remuneration scenarios for Executive Directors
Under the Company’s policy, a significont proportion of remuneration i linked te performance. The charts below shaw how much
the Exccutive Directors could earn under Mitie’s remuneration policy (as datalled above) under different perfermance scanarios.
The following assumptions have been made:
* minimum performance (below threshold) — fixed pay anly, comprising salarles effective as at 1 April 2018 and the full year effect of
ongoing benefits and cash allowances in lieu of pension contributions;
» on-targst performance —fixed pay plus an on-target bonus and 25% of the maximum possible 1 TIP award vesting. On-target bonus
for FY19 represents 50% of the maximum bonus; and
= maximum performance —fixed pay plus maximum bonus for FY19 of 160% of salary for the Chief Executive and 120% for the
Chief Financial Officer (structured 70% finandal targets and 30% strategic/other) and maximum LTIP awards {of 200% of salary
for the Chief Executive and 150% for the Chief Financial Officer).

The scenarlos do not incude shara price growth or dividend assumptions.

Phil Bentlay, Chief Executive Paul Woalf, Chief Financial Officer
(£000) (£°000)

] 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 500 0 SO0 1,000 1,500 2,000
Il Fed [] Bonus i 1P [l Fixed [] Bonus JJj LP

Compasition of Compasition of

package package

%) Fixad Borus LT Totel (%) Fned Bonus Lnp Tatal
Minimum 100% - - 100%  Minimum 100% - - 100%
On-target 48% 32% 20% 100%  On-target 53% 29% 18% 100%
Maximum 25% 33% 42% 100% Maximum 29% 32% 39% 100%
Value of package Valus of package

[£'000} Fixed Boous e Totsl  (£'000) Flwed Borws P Totsl
Minimum 1,102.5 - - 1,102.5 Minimum 4746 - - 474.6
On-target 1,1025 720.0 4500 2,2725  On-target 4746 258.0 1613 8939
Maxtmum 1,102.5 1,440.0 1,800,0 43425 Maximum 474.6 516.0 645.0 1,635.6

Executive Directors’ service contracts
All Exccutive Directors are appointed on rolling service contracts but are subject to annual re clection at the AGM in accordance with
the Code,

Under the service contracts, the Company is required to give 12 months’ notice of termination of employment; Phil Bentley is required
to give 12 manths’ notice and Paul Woolf is required to give 6 months’ notice.

For Executive Directors, if notice is served by either party, the Dxecutive Director can continue to receive basic salary, benefits and
pension cash allowance for the duration of their notice period during which time the Company may require the individual to continue
to fulfil their current duties or may assign a perlod of garden leave.

8
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With respect to the current Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer’s contracts, the Company has the right to make a payment in
lieu of notice equivatent in value up to 12 months’ salary payable elther in monthly instalments or as a lump sum. The Company will
also pay far any benefit for which the individual would have been eligible until the date of cessation had full notice been given.

Tha Executive Directors’ service contracts are available for inspection at Mitie’s registered office, Mitie’s head office and at the AGM.
There are no other provisions for compensation on termination of employment set out within the contracts of the Executive Directors.

For future Executive Directors, notice periods will not exceed 12 months, save in exceptional circumstances; should a notice period
longer than 12 months be necessary the Committee would expect this to reduce to 12 months gver time.

The effective dates of the service contracts of the current Executive Directors are set out below:

Daie of agreement
Phil Bentley 9 October 2016
Paul Woolf 13 November 2017

External appointmaents

The 8oard reopgnises that the appointment of Executive Directors to non-executive positions at other companies can be benefidal for
both the individual director and the Group through the broadening of their experience and knowledge, and individuals are entitled to
retain any fees eamnex in respect of these appointments. The Executive Directors did not hold any non-executive positions at other
companies during FY18.

Non-Exacutive Directors’ remuneration and appointment terms

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors receive an annual fee which is paid in monthly mstalments. The Chairman’s fee is set by the
Remuneration Committee and the fees for the Non-Executive Directors are approved by the Board, on the recommendation of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive. The Non-Executive Directors are pald a basic fee with an additional fee for the Senior Independent
Director and for chairing a Committee, together with expenses incurred in carrying out their duties on behalf of the Company. Non-
Executive Directors are not eligible to participate in any of the Company’s share schemes, Annual Bonus Plan or the pension scheme.
They do not recetve any ancitlary benefits.

The terms of appaintment of the Non-Executive Girectors are avallable for inspection at Mitie’s registered office, Mitie’s head office
and at the AGM. The Non-Executive Directors are engaged for an Initlal term of three years which s terminable on either three or six
months’ notice and thereafter on a rolling term. They are alsa subject to annual re-election at the AGM in accordance with the Code.

Non-Executive Directors’ engagement terms
The engagement terms of the current Non-Executive Directors are set out below:

Date of contract Notice

Additional duties commencement term period
Derek Mapp Chairman; Chairman of Nomination Committee 9 May 2017 3years 3 months
Larry Hirst! Senior Independent Director 1 February 2010 3years 3 months
Jack Boyer Chairman of Remuneration Committee 1 June 2013 3years 3 months
Mark Reckitt® Chairman of Audit Committee 1july 2015 Iyears 3 months
Nivedita Krishnarmurthy Bhagat 1 June 2017 3years 3 months
Jennifer Duvalier 26 july 2017 3years 3 months
Mary Reilly 1 September 2017 Jyears 3 months
Philippa Couttie 1S Novemnber 2017 3years 3 months
Roger Yates! Senlor Independent Director-elect 1 March 2018 3years 3 months

Notes:

1. Lay Hirst s schaduled to retire from the Board st the 2018 AGM on 31 July 2018 snd it s intended that Roger Yates will become Senior independent Director at that date.
2. Mark Recidty will stand down from the Board at the 2018 AGM after three years' service. Mary Rellly will succeed Mark as chalr of the Audit Commitiee.

How the executive pay policy differs from that for other Mitie employees

The remuneration policy for the Executive Directars is more heavily weighted towards variable pay than for other employees, ensuring
that the greater part of their pay is conditional on the successful delivery of the Group’s business strategy. This helps create a clear link
between the value created for shareholders and the remuneration received by the Directors. The LTIP is limited to the most senior
employees. For employees below this level, variable pay may consist of share-based awards and annual bonws (both of which will be
based on role), and UK based employees (and Irish based in the case of SAYE) have the opportunity to participate in the SAYE and SIP
share schemes,
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The Company’s remuneration policy continued

How employment conditions sisewhere in the Group are taken into account

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for overseeing the remuneration policy for the Group as a whole and is mindful of pay
and employment conditions In the wider workforce within the Group and externally when determining exacutive remuneration. When
considenng base salary increases, benefits and pension provision, the Committee reviews overall levels and increases offered to
employees across the Group, The Committee also reviews information with regard to share awards made to other senior management
of the Group, noting that: (i) all UK based employees {(and Irish based in the case of SAYE) can participate in the SAYE and SIP share
schemes; and (li} participation in the LTIP is limited to a selection of senior executives. However, consistent with general practice, the
Committee does not consult with employees in preparing the policy or Its implermentation.

How shareholder views are taken into account

The Committee is committed to a continuing discussion with major shareholders and obtains their views when any significant changes
to remuneration arrangements are baing proposed.

Policy on loss of office
The rules of the Annual Bonus Plan and LTIP set out what happens to awards if a participant ceases to be an employee or Director of

Mitie before the end of a vesting period, with the relevant service contracts also determining the general treatment of Executive
Directors on cessation.

Regarding the annual boaws, in the event that the participant ceases to be an eligible employee before the date the bonus is paid or is
subject to notice of termination of employment on the bonus date, all entitlernent to the bonus in respect of that financial year shaii
be forfeited, unless the Committae in its absoiute discretion determines otherwise. Deferred shares will vest in full on the date of
cessation for ‘good leaver’ reasons, otherwise the shares will lapse on cessation of employment.

Generally, any outstanding LTIP awards will lapse on cessation of employment, except in certain dircumstances, Specifically, if the
Executive ceases to be an empioyee or Director as a result of death, injury, disability, redundancy, retirement, the sale of the business
or company that employs the individual or any other reason at the discretion of the Committee, then they will be treated as a ‘good
Jeaver’ under the LTIP rules in which case awards will vest either on cessation of, for leavers within the first three years, the first normal
vesting dates subject to the performance conditions and, if the Cormittee determines, a pro-rata reduction. A good leaver has 12
months to exercise their vested awards structured as options following the cessation of employment.

In addition, and consistent with market practice, in the event of termination of an Executive Director’s employment, the Company may
sette any claims that may arise and pay a contribution towards the individual’s legal fees and fees for outplacement services as part of
a negotiated settlement. Any such fees would be disclosed as part of the detail of termination arrangements. Should it become
necessary to make additional payments in respect of such professional fees that were not ascertained at the time of reporting, the
Company may do 50 up to a level of a further £10,000. For the avoidance of doubt, the policy does not include an explicit cap on the
cost of termination payments.

Policy on the recruitment of a new Director
For a new hire, the Committee will typically align the Executive Director’s remuneration package to the above remuneration policy.

However, where appropriate, the Committee retains discretion to make decisions outside of policy to facllitate hiring key talent as set
out below.

Base salary will be set based on the individual's role and experience, with consideration given to intarnal equity.

Benefits wili be provided in fine with those offered to cther employees at the similar leve!, with rekacation expenses/arrangaments
provided if necessary. In the case of new Exacutive Directors, individuals will be given a cholce of either participation in a defined
contribution pension scheme or a cash allowance in lieu of pension,

The maximum level of variable pay that may be offered on an ongoing basis and the structure of remuneration will be in accordance
with the approved policy detalled above {i.e. for the CEQ an aggregate maximum of 360% of salary ~ 160% annual bonus and up to
200% for LTIP, for the Chief Financial Officer an aggregate maximum of 335% of salary — 135% annual bonus and up to 200% for LTIP).
This imit does not include the value of buyout arrangements.

The above policy applies to both internal promotions to the Board and external hires. For external hires, if it is necessary to buy out
existing incentive pay or benefit arrangements {which would be forfetted on leaving their previous company), this would be provided
taking into consideration relevant factors such as the commercial value of the amount forfeited from the previous employer, the
performance conditions {e.g. the likelihood of achieving those} and timing (e.g. where the award is in the vesting cycle). Buyout
awards, if used, will be granted using Mitie’s existing share plans, akhough, if necessary, additional buyout awards may be made on
more bespoke terms regarding matters such as vesting and performance conditions as permitted under the Listing Rules (provision
9.4.2.). The Committee has placed a maximum limit on any such buyout awards which it may be necessary to make; these will not
exceed the commerclal value of the amount forfeited from the previous employer.

in the case of an intermal promotion to the Board, any outstanding variable pay awarded in relation to the individual's previous role will
be allowed to pay out according to its terms of grant.

On appointment of a new Chalrman or Non-Executive Director, his or her fee will be set taking Into account the existing fee structure.
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Amnual Report on Remuneration

Exacutive Director remuneration (subject to audit)

The table below reports a single figure of total remuneration for each of the Executive Directors and former Executive Director for the
financial year ended 31 March 2018 and their comparative figures for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

Yesr Salary Benefis  Annual bonus e Pension Total
Phil Bentley 2018  £900,000 £22,549 - -  F180,000 £1,102,549
2017 £375,000 £29,073 - - £75,000  £479,073
Paul wWook 2018 £166,136 £686 - - £16,614 £183,436
2017 - - - - - -
Former Director
Sandip Mahajan 2018  £197,576 £10,140 - -~ £39515 £247.231
2017 £44,000 £2,063 - - £8,800 £54,863
Total remuneration 2018 £1,533,216
2017 £533,936
Notes:

Paul Woolf joined the Company and Board s Chief hnancial Officer on 13 Novembrer 2017. The informanion in the tatle sbove confirms his samings as an Executive Director
from this date.

Sandip Mahajan stepped down from the Board on 13 Novernber 2017, having been appointed to the Board on 10 February 2017, The information o the table above confirms

his sarnings between these dates as an Executive Director.

Benefits reigte to the cost tn the Company of private medical cover, car sllowance andd financialtax planreng advice.

Borws payable in respect of the financial year indudes any defermed slement at face value at the date of award. Further information about how the level of the award for the

year ended 31 March 2018 was determined is provided on pages 102 and 103,

rmwmmmm i ces in liey of p 1 ributions for Phil Benthey and Sandip Mahajan at 20% of salary and for Paul Woolf at 10%
Salary.

Non-Executive Director remuneration (subject to audit)
The fees for the Non-Executive Directors for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 and thelr comparative figures for the financial
year ended 31 March 2017 are set out below:

201 2017

£000 £'000
Derek Mapp? 201 -
Roger Matthews* 62 185
Larry Hirst 59 59
Jack Boyer 60 60
Mark Reckitt &0 60
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat* 43 -
lennifer Duvalier® 35 -
Mary Rellly® 20 -
Phifippa Couttie? 20 -
Roger Yates® 5 -
Total 575 364
Nm:

1. Al amounts were paid in cash and ro ciher banafits were recelved in the year.

2. Derek Mapp Joined the Board on 9 May 2017 as Chalrman-siect and took over as Chairman and Chairman of the Nomination Committee at the AGM on 26 July 2017,
3. Roger Matthews d down as Chal at the AGM on 26 July 2017.

4. Nivedita Krishmamurthy 8hagat joined the Board on 1 June 2017.

5. Jennifer Duvalier joined the Board st the AGM an 26 July 2017,

6. Mary Reilly joined the Board on 1 September 2017,

7. Philippz Couttie joined the Boerd on 15 Novernber 2017,

8. Roger Yates joined the Board on 1 March 2018 as Sendor independent Director-glect.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Base salary and benefits
Commencing 1 November 2016, and to be first reviewed in April 2020, the annual base salary for Phil Bentley is £900,000.

Commencing 13 November 2017, and to be first reviewed in April 2018, the annual base salary for Paul Woolf was £430,000.
The review of Paul Woolf's base salary in April 2018 resutted In no change In base salary.

Commencing 18 January 2017, the annual base salary for Sandlp Mahajan was £320,000.
A review of Non-Executive Director fees was undertaken by the Board in March 2018 which resulted in no change to fees.

2019 2018

£000 £000
Chairman fees? 225 225
Non-Executive Director core fees® 52 52
Additional fees:
Senlor independent Director 7 7
Chairman of a Committee B8 8
Notes:

1. The core fees of £52,000 per annum gaid 10 eath Non-Expcutive Directir (inchsding the Chairman) will totsl £399,000 for the year anding 31 March 2019. Total fees inciuding
additional duties are expected to amount to £557,000 for the year ending 31 March 2019 (£575,000 actual for the year ended 31 March 2018).

2 The Chairmaiv's fee ks Inclusive of tha Non-Executive Director core fee and ne addtional fees are pald to the Chairman where he is a chairman of is a membes of other
Coammitbees. The fee shown for 2018 was the snnuel fee for Dersk Mapp.

3, For Nor-Emtautive Directors, individual fees comprise the core fee and additionsl suppiemental fees for the Senfor indapendent Director and for chairing Committess where
greatar responsibiity and time commitment are required.

Benefits are as described in the remuneration policy table. No changes are planned for the year ending 31 March 2015,

Annual Bonus Plan

Awards in respect of the year ended 31 March 2018 were considered under the Annual Bonus Pian. Phil Bentley was eligible for a
maximum bonus opportunity of 160% of base salary. On jolning the Company In November 2017, Paul Woolf became eligible for 2 pro-
rata bonus for a maximum opportunity of 120% of base salary. Sandip Mahajan was originally eligible for a maximum bonus
opportunity of 100% of base salary but following his stepping down as Chief Financlal Officer in November 2017 Is no longer eligible to
receive a bonus under Mitle’s Annual Bonus Plan for the year ended 31 March 2018. He may be eligible for an alternative discretionary
bonus at a reduced level for his contribution to the Company since stepping down from his role as Chief Financial Officer.

The awards were structured by reference to performance against a biend of financial (70% of the bonus opportunity) and strategic
targets (the remaining 30%}. At the threshold level of performance, 30% of the maximum bonus opportunity is due, 70% of the
maximum bonus opportunity is due at the target level and 100% at the maximum level. Between these points the out-tumn is
determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

Whilst Phil and Paul were eligible to receive a bonus, mindful of shareholders’ experience over the year, they requested that they
should not be considered for bonuses and this waiver was accepted by the Commilttee. However, for the purposes of the performance
assessment under the November 2016 LTIP award made to Phil Bentley, it Is deemed that a bonus has been achieved in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2018 and therefore bonus in one of the three years has been achieved to date.

The table below therefore reflects the out-turn of 38.0% which would otherwise have been determined as the outcome had it not
been for the bonus walver. As the financlal performance ranges excluded the impact of IFRS 15, the formulaic out-turn has been
assessed on FY18 results before the impact of IFRS 15:

Performance

medsure Waeighting Performance range Out-turn

Operating 50% of the award  £85.8m threshold The cut-turn was £77.1m resulting in a hypothetical outcome of 0% of

profit £95.3m target the maximum for this element, being 0% of the maximum bonus
£100.0m maximum  Opportunity,

Revenue 20% of the award  £2.00bn threshold The out-turn was £2.195bn resulting in a hypothetical outcome of
£2.23bn target 65% of the maximurm for this element, being 13.0% of the maximum
£2.330hn maximum bonus opportunity.

Customer Net  15% of the award  +1pts threshoid The out-turn was +17pts resulting in a hypothetical outcome of

Promober Score +3pts target 100% of the maximum for this element, being 15% of the maximum
+5pts maximum bonus opportunity.

Strategic 15% of the award - The Committee set strategic objectives relating to: austomers; costs;

objectives finandial; people; technology; governance; and processes as set out

below. The Committee considered that the objectives had been
substantially met and that 10% out of a possible 15% of the award would
otherwise have heen awarded to the CEO and CFO,
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The strategic objectives set for the CEO and CFO were as follows:

CEO
Strategic chjectives
Customers Launch ‘Beyond FM' strategy and win shareholder support for portfolia rationalisation; and
complete lifetime value analysis by customer and agree segmentation/strateglc account management approach.
Costs identify a £50m run rate on savings by leading the transformation of the Group's cost base.
Financial Restore balance sheet debt/equity financing strength.
People Rebuild new Executive Leadership Team; inculcate new team values and culture and replace Mitie earmout Model,
Technology Launch technology solutions (i} within Mitie office footprint to showcase Mitie's credentials; (il} to simplify
Mitie’s internal processes to improve customer service; and {iii) to build a ‘Connected Workspace” capability.
CFO
Strategic objectives
Governance Create reputation for strong control environment and robust guardianship; and
ensure capital structure is robust, sustainable and can underpin the wider strategy.
Processes Establish ‘Single Mitie Way’ process models and implement them with high levels of compliance.
Costs Identify a £12m run rate on savings by leading the transformation of the Group’s Finance function.
People Recruit and promote the best available finance talent; ensure they are highly engaged and demonstrate
continuous improvement.
Technology Establish a coherent finance Indmologlsvstems landscape that has a low cost of running and is robust.
The bonus structure and assessment reflecting the walver was as follows:
Finandial performance Non-financial performance Total bonus payable
%af % of % of % of %of % of
sy salary salary % of salary salary salery % of Total Deferred
puysbie st paysble st payabie st salary paysble st payable st payable st salary bonus Cash shares
threshold taget madmum  paysble  threshold target mapdmum  paysbie £000 £000 £'D00
Phil Bantley 336 784 112.0 0 144 33.6 430 0 0 0 0
Paul woolf* 252 58.8 84.0 o] 108 25.2 36.0 o 0 o 0
Sandip Mahajan 21.0 490 70.0 0 9.0 210 30.0 0 0 0 0

Note:

1 Paul WoolPs salary percentages reflect his bornus opportunity before pro-rating.

The Annual Bonus Plan will be operated on similar terms for the year ending 31 March 2019. Phil Bentley’s maximum bonus
opportunity for FY19 will remain at 160% of base salary and Paul Woolf's at 120% of base salary. Awards will be payable by reference
to performance against a blend of financial {70% of the bonus opportunity} and strategic targets (the remaining 30%). However, if none
of the financial targets have been achievad, no bonus will be payable by reference only to the strategic targets. 50% of any bonus
entitiement will be deferred. The targets are at present commercially sensitive and 50 are not disclosed in this report. However, as
above, details of the targets will be disclosed in next year’s report.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

LTIP awards granted in 2017

Awards granted in 2017 were subject to the same structure as the LTI awards made in July 2016. The awards will vest in 2020
depending on performance. The performance conditions applicable to the 2017 awards are as follows:

Performance Vesting of portion of the award

measire Weighting Performance range {performance perlod three years ending 31 March 2020)

Earnings Per 25% of 5%-10%pa Zero vesting i EPS growth, as adjusted by the Committee as

Share (EPS) the award appropriate, is less than 5% pa. If EPS growth is equal to 5% pa, 25%
growth of the award will vest. If Mitie achieves 10% EPS growth pa, all the

awards will vest. Between these two points the proportion of
awards vesting will be determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

Relative Total 20% of Outperformance against Zero vesting if Mitie’s TSR growth Is less than the median of the
Sharehoider the award the Business Support Benchmark. if Mitie’s TSR growth is equal to the median of the
Return (TSR) Services subsector of Benchmark, 25% of the award will vest and if it exceeds the
the FTSE 350 Support Benchmark median TSR by 10% pa or more, all the awards will vest.
Services index (the Between these two points the proportion of awards vesting wiill be
Benthmark) determined on a linear sliding scale basis. An underpin condition for
underlying financial performance also applies.
Strategic objectives  25% of the Zero vesting if the strategic objectives are not met. Straight line
award vesting between zero and maximum based on Remuneration
Committee assessment of performance against objectives,
Cash conversion 30% of 75% ~85% pa Zero vesting if cash conversion is less than 75% pa, At 75%, 25% of
the award the award will vest. 70% of the award will vest if Mitle achieves 80%.

Full vesting for this portion will occur if 85% pa is achieved. Between
75% and 80% and B0% and 85%, the proportion of awards vesting
will be determined on a iinearsidir! scale basis.

The strategic objectives are linked to the Company’s strategy and include objectives relating to: customers; costs; finandal; people; and
technology. Financial performance targets for the 2017 LTIP award were sat before the Company adopted IFRS 15 with effect from 1
April 2017. To reflect the impact of IFRS 15, the Committee will consider adjusting EPS and cash conversion targets appropriately,
ensuring that they are not materially easier or harder to satisfy than the original targets. Any amended targets determined by the
Commiittee will be disdosed to shareholders in the next Directors” remuneration report.

What was granted In 2017 {subject to aud!t)

Number  Face value Pesformance % vesting at
Awnrd Type of shares {£°000) % of salwry conditions Performance period threshold
Phil Bentley Performance  Nil-cost 669,393  1,800.0 200%
LTIPJul17  options Performance .
Paul Woolf Performance  Ni-cost 1432657 3225 75%  conditions are set Th’“r:':'n:f“' 6%
{TIPNov17  options outt in the table 31"°M'mh zogg
Sandip Mahajan Performance Nii-cost 148,754 400.0 125% above

TP Jul 17 options

Notes:

1. Number of shares was calcubated baged on the saverage closing share price for up to fivy business days preceding the date of grant giving a share price of 268.9p.

2. Number of sheres was calculated besed on the average dasing share price for up to five bisingss darys preceding the date of grant giving & shane price of 225.1p.

The performance conditions that are to apply to awards made in 201B will be simplified to two measures: (i} EPS; and (il) cash
conversion, each accounting for 50% of the award. The grant of these awards to the Executive Directors will be made following the
2018 AGM. Target ranges for 2018 LTIP awards will be set by the Committee and disclosed In our stock exchange announcement
detaiing the grants. All Exacutive Director awards will be subject to a post-vesting holding period of two years.
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Detalls of LTIP vasting in July 2018 (2015 award)

As disclosed In 2017’s Annual Report on Remuneration, in accordance with the rules of the relevant LTIP, accelerated vesting applied
to the 2015 (and 2015) LTIP grants for Ruby McGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter, The Committee determined that these awards
should lapse in their entirety following exercise of negative discretion by the Committee. No current Executive Director has 2015 LTIP
awards,

The Committee assessed the outcome of the 2015 LTIP awards {based on FY18 results before the impact of IFRS 15) granted to senior
management under the plan in operation at the time against a basket of performance measures:

Performance Vesting of portion of the award

measure Weighting Performance range {performance period three yeors ending 31 March 2018)

Eamings Per 20% of 3% — 8% pa Zero vesting If EPS growth, as adjusted by the Commiittee as

Share (EPS) the award appropriate, is less than 3% pa. If EPS growth Is equal to 3% pa, 25%
growth of the award will vest, f Mitie achieves 8% EPS growth pa, all the

awards will vest. Between these two paints the proportion of
awards vesting will be determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

Relative Total 20% of Outperformance against Zero vesting if Mitie’s TSR growth is jess than the median of the
Shareholder Return  the award FTSE 350 Support index. If Mitie’s TSR growth is equal 1o the median of the index, 25%
(TSR} Services index of the award will vest and if it exceeds the index median TSR by 10%

pa or more, all the awards will vest. Between these two points the
proportion of awards vesting will be determined on a {inear sliding
scale basis. An underpin condition for underlying finandal

performance also applies.
Organic revenue 30% of the 3% —-b% pawitha Zero vesting if organic revenue growth is less than 3% pa. if organkc
growth award financial underpin revenue growth is equal to 3% pa, 25% of the award will vest. if
based on the Mitie achleves 6% organic revenue growth pa, all the awards will
achievement of vest, Between these two paints, the proportion of awards vesting
target margin will be determined on a linear sliding scale basis. Entire portion of
of 5.5% pa award is subject to Mitie achieving an average 5.5% margin in
the performance period.
Cash conversion 30% of 75% —85% pa Zero vesting if cash conversion is kess than 75% pa. At 75%, 25% of
the award the award will vest. 70% of the award will vest if Mitie achleves 80%.

Full vesting for this portion will ocour if 85% pa is achieved. Between
75% and B0% and 80% and 85%, the proportion of awards vesting
wil! be determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

The Committee detarmined that the 2015 awards should lapse in their entirety following exerclse of negative discretion by the
Committee,

Loss of office payments (subject to audit)

On 13 Novemnber 2017, Sandip Mahajan ceased to be a Director of Mitie Group pic and took up the role of Chief Financial
Transformation QOfficer. Sandip is expected to remain an employee until 12 November 2018. A surmmary of Sandip’s departure terms
was made available on the Company’s website in the relevant Section 430{2B) Companies Act 2006 statement.

For the period to 12 November 2018, Sandip will recebse his salary and contractual benefits. Sandip will not be eligible to receive a
bonus under Mitie’s Annual Bonus Plan for the year ended 31 March 2018 (which afforded him a maximum bonus opportunity of
100% of base salary), He may be eligible for an alternative discretionary bonus at a reduced leve! for his contribution to the Company
since he stepped down as Chief Financial Officer. Options over 148,754 shares awarded under the LTIP will be pro-rated by reference
to his period of total employment and vest subject to performance conditions and the rules of the LTIP. Sandip will not be eligible to
receive further grants under Mitie’s LTIP. Legal fees of up to £1,000, excluding VAT, will be paid directly to Sandlp’s legal advisors. If
Sandip or the Company elects to terminate his employment before 12 November 2018, then he will receive salary and contractual
benefits in lieu OF notice to that date subject to mitigation in the event that Sandip takes up 3 remunerated executive position
elsewhere prior tg 12 November 2018. No other payments will be made.
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Annust Report on Remunerstion continued

Paymnents to past Directors {sublect to audit)

In last year’s report, the Remuneration Committes noted that, as a consequence of prior year adjustments to the accounts for the
financial year ended 31 March 2016, it would determine what rights might be avallable to the Company to recover the bonus and
other awards made 1o each of Ruby McGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter in respect of FY16. The matters which gave rise to the

prior year adjustments are now the subject to the ongoing investigation by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), which the Company
disclosed in its announcement on 29 August 2017, In that announcement, the Company reported that the FCA had commenced an
investigation in connection with the timeliness of a profit warning announced by the Company on 19 September 2016 and the manner
of preparation and content of the Company’s financial information, position and resulits for the period ended 31 March 2016. The
Company has been advised by its external lawyers that as any daim against Ruby MoGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter would cover
the same matters, facts and circumstances which are the subject of the FCA investigation, any formal steps to recover bonuses or
other awards should be deferred until after the FCA have reached their findings. It is currently anticipated that the FCA will conclude its
investigation during the course of FY19.

No payments have been made to past Directors other than as previously disciosed In last year’s report. A total contribution of £76,000
and £70,000, excluding VAT, was paid to Ruby McGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter respectively in respect of legal and outplacement
fees incurred In connection with their departures.

Change In CEO pay for the year compared to UK salsried employees
The table below sets out the change in remuneration of the Chief Executive and Mitie's UK salaried non-contract population, which is
considered the most appropriate group for comparison purposes.

% Salary Benefits Sonus
Chief Executive® 0.0% -24.9% 0.0%
Average pay based on Mitie’s UK salaried non-contract employees? 4.2% 11.3%7 2.2%
Notes:

L Phil Bentiey became Chief Exacutive from 12 December 2016, To facilitate & yoiv-on-year comparison, the change In CEO percentage shown &s the change in Phil Bentley's
salary, benefits and bonus between FY17 and Fr18 on an annualived basis.

1. Reflects the changs in sarage annusl pay For salaried non~contract UK emplayees employed throughout the two finandal years ended 31 March 2018, Salwied non-contract
employees sre those who are employed directly by Mitie Group and whose roles are not dedicated 1o the provision of dient services.

3 Inchudes car/cer ol privete medical benefit and private fuel,

Relative spend on pay
The table below shows the total cost of remuneration in the Group, compared with the dividends distributed and share buybacks.

Yeor ended  Year ended
31 March 31 March

ms 2m7

£m £m Change
Aggregate employee remuneration 1,119 1,174 -4.7%
Equity dividends and share buyhacks 5 62 91.9%

Assassing pay and performance

The table below provides a summary of the Chief Exacutive’s single figure remuneration over the past nine years, as well as the
pay-out and vesting levels of variable pay plans in relation to the maximum opportunity. The chart below shows the historical
TSR performance over the same period. These indices (FTSE 250, FTSE 350 Support Services and FTSE 350) have been chosen as
they are widely recognised and Mitie has been 8 member of these Indices during the period:
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McG

2010 2011 2032 2013 2014 2015 2016

2017
m?

regor- Pt
Smitht  Bentley? 2018

Single figure remuneration  £1,703,081 £2324,443 £2431,773 £2,105131 £1447,266 £1.525,824 £2,448161

£530,628 £479073 £1100548

Annual bonus element

{actual as 2 % of max) 100% 100% 100% B85% 90% S50% T3% 0% walved walved
LTIP elemnent (actual

vesting as 3 % of max) 100% 100% B7.2% 57.2% 0% 8% 69.5% 0% wa na
Note:

1 Ruby McGregor-Smith stepped down as Chief Evecutive on 12 December 2016, Phil Bentley joined the Board on 1 November 2016 and sssumed the position of

Chisf Exatytive on 12 December 2016. The figures above inciude Phil Berttiey's rernuneration from 1 Novernber 2016,

The reporting requirements state that the time period for the above TSR chart should be lengthened to ten years over time and we

have therefore included a ten-year chart beiow:
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Share ownership (subject to audit)
Number of Percantage Percentags
shaney Value of salary of target
owned as st of target Torget held asat  nchieved ot ot Complisnce with
31 March 2018° holding sharcholding 31 March 2018 31 March 2018 share ownership guidelines
Phil Bentley? 1,852,656 £1,800,000 926,328 400% 200% Achieved
Paul Woolf? 48,967 £860,000 400,037 24% 12%  Not achieved but compliant
Sandip Mahajan* 0 £640,000 297,702 0% 0% Not achieved but compliant
Motes:

1 indudes shares cwned by connected

persons.
2. value of target holding is 200% of base salary for Phil Bentiey. In accordance with Phil Bentley’s service contract, he acquired shares worth 400% of salary on 21 November

2015. His target shavehalding is the value of his target hoiding dvided by the share price of 194 3p on 21 November 2016.

3. In scoordanes with the Company's share ownership bolicy, Paul Woolf s required to bulld and maintain, through the retention of vestad share options, & shareholding of
200% of base salary. His target shareholding is Gaiculated using the average cosing share price of 215.0p for the five business days prior to the start of the financial year

ended 31 March 2018.

4. Vahua of target holding is 200% of base satary for Sarxip Mahajan, His target shareholding is calculatad using th e shawe: price of 215.0p for the five business days pricr
10 the start of the finandal year ended 31 March 2018, Sandip resigned from the Board on 13 Novernber 2017; his shareholding above & at that date.
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Annusl Report on Remuneration continued

Directors’ outstanding share interests (subject to audit)
The following tables provide the outstanding share interests for the Executive Directors:

Directors’ interests in nil-cost options granted under the Mitie Group pl 2015 Long Term Incentive Plan

Options Cptions
outstanding outstanding Enrflest
asat asat normal
Your of A Mwch Grantedin Lapsad Exardsadin 31 March Exarcise exarcise
pyt 2017 year® In year yeor 201 price dste*
Phil Bentiey Nov 20168 879,077 - - -  EM9077 Nil-cost May 2020
Jul 2017 - 669,393 - - 669,393 Nil-cost  Jul 2020
Paul Woolf Nov 2017 —- 143,269 - - 1432689 Nilcost Now 2020
Sandip Mahajan® Jul 2017 - 148,754 - — 148,754 Nil-cost  Jul 2020
Notes:
1. The perh criteria app 10 the November 2015 awerd run to 31 Mardh 2020 and are finked to the schievement of a bonus payment in the three finandal years

ending 31 March 2020 i Phit sarms 2 borus in one of these years 25% of the sward vests, 67% vests if 2 bonus ks earmed in two of the yeans and 3009% vests f s bonus Is
nrmdhilﬂvuvus.

2. The perf = criteria applicible W the 2017 swarts are provided on page 104

3 Themmdhw:munnmmmmmMWammmmmuymmBTbﬂiﬂﬁpm

4, Awaeds are subject to an additonal holding period.

5. Sandp Mahajan resigned from the Board on 13 November 2017; his outstsnding share interests above are 3t that date.

Directors’ share ownership
Number of ordinary chares Number of ordinery
banafichally ownad shares baneficially cwnad
35 8131 March 2018 = at 31 March 2017
{or date of cassation If eariier) {or dete of sppoimtment i later)
Executive Directors
Phil Bentley 1,852,656 1,852,656
Paul Woolf 48,967 0
Sandip Mahajan? 0 0
Non-Executive Directors
Derek Mapp® 140,000 0
Larry Hirst 25,000 25,000
Jack Boyer 5,000 5,000
Mark Reckit 4,000 4,000
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat* 0 0
Jennifer Duvalier 1B,A09 18,469
Mary Rellly® 0 0
Philippa Couttie” 0 a
Roger Yates® 0 0
Roger Matthews® 100,000 100,000
Notes:

1. Paul Woolf was sppointed 1o the Board on 13 November 2017,

2. Sandig Mahajen resigned from the Boagd on 13 November 2017; his shareholding above Is shown at that date and at 31 March 2047,
3, Derek Mapp wes appointed o the Board on'9 May 2017.

4, mmmemﬁeMMmlmm7

S. lennifer Ouval ibed to the Bosrd ot the AGM on 26 July 2017.

6. M.vﬂywmmmdbhb.ﬂmi%nb&lﬂﬂ

7. Phillppe Couttie was appointed to the Board on 15 November 2017.

8. Roges Yates was appointed to the Board on 1 March 2018,

9. Roger Matthews resigned from the Board on 26 July 2017; his shaveholding above is shown at that date and at 31 March 2017.
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Share dilution

The Company manages dilution rates within the standard guidelines of 10% of issued ordinary share capital in respect of all employee
schemes and 5% in respect of discretionary schemes. In calculating compliance with these guidelines the Company allocates avallable
headroom on a ten-year flat-ine basis, making adjustments for projected lapse rates and projected Increases in issued share capital.

LTIP and deferred bonus awards are satisfied through the market purchase of shares held by the Mitie Group pk Employee

Benefit Trust. The potential dilution of the Company’s issued share capital is set out below in respect of all awards granted In the last
ten years under the Company's equity-based Incentive schemes which are being satisfied through the allotment of new shares or
treasury shares.

Share dilution at 31 March 2018

Dilution
All share plans (maximum 10%) 6.5%
Discretionary share plans (maximum 5%) 3.2%

Shareholder voting

Mitie remains commiitted to ongoing shareholder dialogue and takes an active interest in voting outcomes. Where there are
substantlal votes against resolutions in relation to Executive Directors’ remuneration, the Group seeks to understand the reasons for
any such vote, and will detail here any actions in response to it.

A resolution to approve the Directors’ remuneration policy as set out in the Company’s Annual Report for the year ended

31 March 2015 was passed at the Company’s 2015 AGM. The Company’s revised remuneration pollcy as set out on pages 93 to 100
will be put to the Company’s 2018 AGM. At the Company’s 2017 AGM, a resolution was passed to approve the 2017 Directors’
remuneration report (exchuding the summary of the Directors’ remuneration policy). The results of the votes on these resclutions were
as follows:

Vates in Votes Vobes

Number of votes favour s withheld
2015 Directors’ remuneration policy — 2015 AGM 205.1m 14.0m 21.4m
53.6% 6.4% -

2017 Directors’ remuneration report — 2017 AGM 246.3m 21.2m 9.7m
92.1% 7.9% -

Note:
3. Vores withhald are not counted In the calculation of the proportion of vates for or against a resolution.

Remuneration Committee and its advisors

The Remuneration Committee seeks and considers advice from mdependent remuneration advisors where appropriate.

FIT Remuneration Consultants (FIT) were appointed by the Committee in December 2013 to provide independent advice

on executive remuneration. Following a retender process and the resignation of Deloitte LLP as Mitie's auditor, the Committee
appointed Deloitte L1P as independent remuneration advisors In September 2017. The advisors attended Committee meetings and
provided advice and analysis of executive remuneration. During their tenure, the advisors provide no other services to the Company
{save In relation to services connected to executive remuneration and share plans) and also comply with the Code of Conduct for
Remuneration Consultants. The advisors’ total cost of advice to the Committee for the year was £88,752, being £30,252 for FIT and
£58,500 for Delotte LLP (such fees being charged In accordance with their standard terms of business).

The Committee specifically considered the position of the advisors and was satisfied that the advice the Committee received was
objective and independent, given that no other services were provided to the Company.
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Director’s report: other disclosures

The Directors present their annual report, together with the
audited financial statements of the Group and the Compary,
for the year ended 31 March 2018,

The following information Is Incorporated Into the Directors’
report: other disciosures by reference;

a Strategic report on pages 1 to 57;

= The Chairman’s introduction to corporate governance on
pages 54 and 65;

s The Board report on pages 66 to 71;

Audit Committee report on pages 72 to 83;

Nomination Committee report on pages 84 and 87;

Directors’ remuneration report on pages 88 to 109;

Directors’ responsibilities statement on page 116; and

Notes to the financial statements as datailed in this section,

For the purposes of compliance with paragraphs 4.1.5R{2) and
4,1.8R of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules of the
Anancial Conduct Authority, the strategic report and this
Directors’ report: other disclosures (including the sections of the
Annual Report and Accounts incorporated by reference)
comprise the management report,
Principal Group activities

The Company is the holding company of the Group. The prindipal
activity of the Company is to provide management servioes to the
Group. The Group's activities are focused on the provision of
strategic outsourcing services. The detalled strategy for the
Group can be found on page 15 of the Strategic report. Further
detalls of the subsidiary undertakings of the Company are listed
In Note 40 to the financlal statements.

The Group operates in the UK, the Republic of Ireland,
Guemnsey, Jersey, Germany, France, Finland, Norway, Sweden,
the Netherlands, Spain, Poland, Switzerland, Belgium, Nigeria,
Kenya, Ghana and the UAE.

Shares and shareholders

Share capital and powers of sharsholders

The Group s financed through both equity share capital and debt
Instruments. Detalls of the Company’s share capital are given in
Note 31 to the financial stabements and the detall of its debt
Instruments is set out in Note 26 to the financial statements.

The Company has a single class of shares being 2.5p ordinary
shares (‘Ordinary Shares’). Ordinary Shares have no right to any
fixed income and each Ordinary Share has the right to one vte
per share at general meetings of the Company. Under the
Company’s Articles of Assoclation {the “Articles’), holders of
Ordinary Shares are entitied to participate in any dividends pro-
rata to their holding.

In accordance with the Articles, the Board may propose and pay
interim dividends and recommend a final dividend for approval
by the shareholders at the AGM. A final dividend may be declared
by the shareholders in a general meeting by ordinary resokstion,
but such dividend cannot exceed the amount recommended by
the Board.

The Articles can be amended In accordance with their provisions,
the Companies Act 2006 and related legislation. A copy of the
Articles is available at www.mitie.com/investars/corporate-
governance.
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Powers of the Company to Issue or buy back its
own shares
At the 2017 AGM, shareholders authorised:

o the Directors 1o allot Ordinary Shares up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £3,001,210, representing one-third of
the issued share capltal {excluding treasury shares] as at
7 June 2017, and up o a further aggregate nominal amount
of £2,001,210, In connection with an offer by way of a
rights issue;

+ the dis-application of pre-emption rights over allotted shares
up to an aggregate nominal value equal to £450,181, equating
to 5% of Mitie’s Issued share capital {excluding treasury shares)
and 4.88% of the Issued share capital including treasury shares,
each as at 7 June 2017;

¢ the dis-application of pre-emption rights over allotted shares
up to an aggregate nominal value of £450,181, equating to 5%
of Mitle's sued share capital (excluding treasury shares) and
4.88% of the Issued share capital Including treasury shares,
each as at 7 June 2017, in connection with the financing (or
refinancing, if the authority is to be used within six months of
the original transaction) of an acquisition or specified capital
Investment; and

« the Company to make market purchases of its own shares
up to a totat of 36,014,523 Ordinary Shares (representing
10% of the issued share capital as at 7 June 2017 (excluding
treasury shares)).

These standard authorities will expire on 30 Septermber 2018 or

at the conclusion of the AGM in 2018, whichever Is the earlier.

Further detalis of these authorisations are avallable in the

notes to the Notice of 2017 AGM and sharehokders are referred

to the Notice of 2018 AGM, which contains similar provisions in
respect of the Company’s share capital {avallable at
www.mitle.com/investors/shareholder-information).

The Company acknowledges that, whiist the following resolstions
were passed, a significant number of votes were received against
each of them at the 2017 AGM as follows:

» directors’ suthority to aliot {32.92%)

= disapplication of pre-emption rights (23.18%)

* additional authority 1o disapply pre-emption rights (20.25%).
Shareholder consuitation was undertaken during the year, and
the Company continues to engage with those sharehoiders who
elther withheld their vote, or voted against these resolutions, to
improve understanding and, if possible, allay any such concems
for the future,

Further, at the 2018 AGM, the Directors intend to seek authority
to allot shares up to an amount representing 10% of the issued
share capital {(excluding treasury shares) only.

Duting the year, the Directors utilised the above authorities to
aliot 4,593,089 Ordinary Shares to an aggregate nominal amount
of £114,827 to minority shareholders in consideration for shares

purchased in connection with Mitie Model investments (further
Information ks contained in Note 33 to the financial statements).

The Company chose not to undertake any market purchases of its
own shares during the year.




Following the exercise of awards under the Mitie Group pik 2011
Save As You Earn Scheme and the Mitie Group ple 2001 and 2011
Exacutive Share Option Schemes 1,531,985 Drdinary Shares were
distributed from treasury. The total number of Ordinary Shares
heid by the Company in treasury as at 31 March 2018 therefore
reduced to 7,748,108 {representing 2.1% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 March 2018).

Significant interests in the Company’s share capital
As at 31 March 2018, the Company had been notified of the

following significant holdings of voting rights in its Ordinary
Shares under the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules:

% of share

capital at the
Nurnber of date of
Ordinary Shares notification
Slichester International

Investors LLP 62,210,238 17.00%

Aggregate of Standard Life
Aberdeen PLC 35,937,487 10.91%
FMR LLC 18,792,147 5.14%
Harris Associates LP. 18,393,003 5.12%
Brandes Investment Partners LP 18,117,242 5.05%
Hemnbrid!_e 18,366,728 5.00%

Changes that have oocurred between the end of the period under
review and § June 2018, the latest practicable date before
approval of the report, are as follows:

% of share

capital at the

Number of dete of

Ordinary Shares notification

FMR LLC 19,684,002 5.38%

Details of the Directors’ interests in the Company’s share
capital are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report On pages
107 and 108,

Restrictions on the trading of Mitie shares

Certain Ordinary Shares ssued in consideration for the
acquisition by the Company of shares held by minority
shareholders in subsidiaries of the Group under the Mitie Model
have contractual restrictions placed upon them. These
restrictions prevent reciplents from selling those Ordinary Shares
and/or attach claw-back provisions, which typically apply for a
maximum period of two years from allotment.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of any shareholding
or on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the
provisions of the Asticles.

The Directors are not aware of any agreements entered into by
Company shareholdars that may result in restrictions on the
transfer of securities or on voting rights. No person has any
spedial rights of control over the Company’s share capital.

The Group operates a Share Trading and Insider Dealing
Procedure which provides a framework to identify persons who
may have access to inside information relating to the Company
and explains the rules applicable to them for dealing in Company
shares. Individuals who may have access to such Information are
informed individually and required to read, understand and
follow the procedure.

Employee share schemes and plans

Detalls of employee share schemes and long-term incentive plans
are set out in Note 36 to the finandlal statements. Details of
awards made during the year to, and held by, Executive Directors
are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 104
and 108.

Shareholder engagement

The Board & committed to an ongoing, proactive dialogue
between the Company and its shareholders. A full programme,
led by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer with
support from the Investor Relations team, of formal and informal
events, Institutional investor meetings and presentations is held
throughout the year in order to maintain regular dialogue. This
programme aims to ensure that the performance, strategies and
objectives of the Group are dearly communicated to the
investment community and provides a forum for institutional
shareholders to address any corporate governagnoe issues.

The Board receives an investor relations report at each Board
meeting detailing corporate news, share price performance, sell-
side coverage, invastor relations activity and major movements in
the share register. The Board is also regularly updated and is
provided with investor feedback, stockbroker updates and
detalled analyst reports following the half-year and full-year
results presestations. The Chairman is responsible for ensuring
that the Board is made aware of the Issues and concerns of the
major shareholders.

The Chalrman and Senior Independent Director are available for
additonal meetings with shareholders upon request. The Board
encourages an ongoing dialogue between the Directors and
investors and all Directors were present at the 2017 AGM.

Latest Group Information, financial reports, corporate
govemnance and sustainability matters, hatf-year and full-year
results presentations, major shareholder information and ail
announcements are made available to shareholdars via the Mitie
website (www.mitie.com) which has a specific area dedicated to
investor retations.

Significant agreements - change of control

There are a number of agreements with provisions that take
effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the
Company, such as bank facility agreements and other financial
arrangements and employee share scheme nules. None of these
are considered to ba significant in terms of thelr likely impact on
the normal course of business of the Group. The Directors are not
aware of any agreements between the Company and its Directors
or employees that provide for compensation for loss of office or
employment that occurs solely because of a change of control.
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Director's report: other disclosures continued

Directors

Board of Directors

The members of the Board, and their biographical details
{including details of Committee chairmanships and other
positions held), are set out on pages 60 to 63. To comply with the
UK Comorate Governance Code (the Code), the Directors with
the axception of Larry Hirst and Mark Reckitt will submit
themsaives for ejection or re-election at the AGM on 31 July 2018
and details are provided in the Notice of AGM which is available
at www.mitie.com/investors/sharehokler-services.

During the year, Non-Executive Director independence was
consiiered by the Board, The Board determined that, as at

31 March 2018, all Non-Exacutive Directors were Independent
in mind and judgament and free from any material relationship
that coukd interfiere with thelr ability to dischange thair duties
effectively.

Director development

The Chalrman meets with both the Executive and Non-Executive
Dirgctons to discuss specific director development and training
needs. The annual Board evaluation also addresses these
requirements and ensures that the appropriate level of
knowledge, understanding and expertise is maintained on

the Board.

Director appointments

with regard to the appointment and replacement of Directors,
the Company is governed by its Articles, the Code, the Companies
Act 2006 and related legislation.

Directors’ conflicts of interest

The Board has a formal policy on the declaration and
management of Olrectors’ confiicts of interests, In accordance
with the Articles, which has operated effectively during the year.
Any potential situation or transactional conflict must be reported
as $00n a3 possibie to the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer
and the Company Secretary, Where a patential conflict is
authorised {under the statutory powers and powers granted
under the Articles to the Board), such conflict is kept under
ongoing review.

Director indemnities

The Group maintains directors’ and officers’ liability insurance,
providing appropriate cover for any legal action brought against
its directors and/or officers. The Asticles extend the protection
provided to directors in respect of any fitigation against directors
relating to their position as a director of the Company, and
specifically provide that the Company may indemnify directors
against any hability incurred in connection with any negligence,
default, breach of duty or breach of trust in refation to the
Company and that the Company may fund defence costs.

Accordingly, in line with best practice, deeds of indemnity have
been executed indemnifying each of the Directors and the
Company Secretary in respect of their positions as officers of the
Company, in addition to the directors’ and officers’ insurance
cover. The indermnities, which constitute a qualifying third-party
Indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the Companies
Act 2008, remain in force for all cument Directors and the
Company Secretary.
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Indermnnities of the same, or similar form have akso been executed
indemnifying a number of directors of the Group's subsidiaties.

Individual Directors would still be Kable to pay damages awarded
to the Company in any action against them by the Company, to
pay any ariminal or regulatory fines imposed against them and to
repay their defence costs (v the extent funded by the Company)
If their defence was unsuccessful.

Executive Diractors are permitted to accept appointments
outside the Group provided permission is scught from the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer and that the additional
appointments do not Interfere with the Director’s ability to
discharge his duties effectively. Nelther Phil Bentley nor Paul
Woolf heid any non-exacutive positions at companies during

FY 2018,

Executive Directors are entitied to retain fees eamed from any
external appointments. The commitments outside the Group of
the Chalrman and each Non-Executive Director are detailed on
pages 60 to 63.

Statement of the Directors in respect of the Annual

Report and Accounts

As required by the Code, the Directors confirm that they consider

the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, to be fair,

balanced and understandable and that it provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s
position and performance, business model and strategy. When
arriving at this position the Board was assisted by a number of
processes includling the following:

+ the Annual Report and Accounts Is drafted by senlor
management with overall co-ordination by the General
Counsel and Company Secretary to ensute tonsistency across
the relevant sections;

« 3 review is undertaken to assess whether the Annual Report
and Accounts is falr, balanced and understandable using a set
of pre-defined indicators (such as consistency with intemally
reported information, investor communications and relative
performanca in the industry);

* comprehensive reviews of drafts of the Annual Report and
Accounts are undertaken by the Executive Directors and other
senior management;

» an advanced draft Is reviewed by the General Counsel and
Compadny Secretary and external advisors; and

* the final craft is reviewad by the Audit Committes prior to
consideration by the Board.

Employess and communications with employees

Details of Mitie’s employment policies, consultation practices and
how it communicates with ks employees are included in the
Sustainability and Pecple sections of our website.

Disabled persons
Detalls of the Group’s approach to employing, training and

developing the careers of disabled people can be found in the
Sustainability section of our website,

Future developments
The Strategic report sets out the Board’s view on the future
development of the Group.




Research and development

Given the nature of the Group's activities, it does not camry out
any material research and development work.

Political donations

The Company induded a resolution in its 2017 Notice of AGM in
relation to the ability to make political donations. Afthough
Mitie’s long-standing policy of not making any political donations
will continue, It I possible that certain routine activities (including
charitable donations) undertaken by Mitie might unintentionally
fall within the wide definition of payments constituting political
donations and expenditure as set out In the Companies Act 2006.
The resolution, which was duly passed, granted the Company the
relevant statutory authority until the 2018 AGM subject to a total
aggregate cap for Mitie and its subsidiary companies of £50,000.

Financial results and dividends

A detailed commentary on the operational and financial results
of the Group for the year is contalned within the strategic report,
including the Finance review on pages 44 to 49.

The koss before tax from continuing operations for the financlal
year is £24.7m (2017 £58.2m loss).

The Directors declared an interim dividend of 1.33p per Ordinary
Share {2017: 4.0p) with a total value of £4.8m {2017: £14.1m)
which was paid to shareholders on 7 February 2018. The
Directors recommend a final dividend of 2.67p per Ordinary
Share with a tota) value of £9.8m {2017: £nil) based upon the
number of shares in lssue as at 5 June 2018. The final dividend for
the year will be paid on 6 August 2018, subject to shareholder
approval at the 2018 AGM, to shareholders on the register on

22 June 2018. The total dividends per Ordinary Share for the year
ended 31 March 2018 is 4.0p (2017: 4.0p).

The Company operates a Dividend Re-investment Plan (DRIP)
which allows shareholders to buiid thelr hoiding by using the cash
dividend to purchase additional ordinary shares in Mitle, Further
details on the operation of the DRIP and how to apply can be
found in the Shareholder information saction and are available
from Mitie’s Registrar.

During the year, the trustees of the Company’s Employee Benefit
Trust walved dividends on Ordinary Shares held by the trust.

Financing liabilities

The Group’s financial instruments include bank borrowing
facilities, finance leases, overdrafts, US private placement kan
notes and performance guarantees. Various derivatives are
used to manage interest, currency and other risks when
necessary of material.

The principal objective of these instruments Is to raise funds
for general corporate purpeses and to manage financial risk.
Further details of these instruments are given In Note 27 10

the financial statements.

Disdosure of Information under Listing Rule 9.84

The annual report is required to contain certain Information
under Listing Rule 9.8.4. Where this information has not been
cross-referenced within the Group financial statements, it can be
found in the following sections:

Details of long-term * Directors’ remuneration

incentive schames report on pages 88 to 109 and
Note 36 to the financial
statements

Divector’s voluntary waiver of  * Directors’ remuneration

emoluments report page 102

Shareholder walvers of * Directors’ report: other

dividends and future dividends  disclosures on this page

in respect of shareholder waivers of dividends and future
dividends, in addition to the agreement by the trustees of the
Mitie Group pic Employee Benefit Trust to waive dividends
payable on the Group's shares it holds for satisfying awards under
various Mitie Group pic share plans, in accordance with Section
726 of the Companies Act 2006 no dividends can be pald to the
Company in respect of the shares it holds in treasury.

The remaining disclosures required by Listing Rule 9.8.4 are not
applicable to the Company.

None of the shareholders is considered to be a Controfling
Shareholdar {as defined in Listing Rule 6.1.2.A).

Going concemn

The Directors acknowledge the Financial Reporting Council’s
‘Guidance on Risk Management, intemnal Control and Related
Financial and Business Raporting” issued In Septamber 2014,
The Divectors have considered principal risks and uncentainties
affecting the Group which are described on pages 50 to 57.

The Directors have considered the Group's financial position with
referance to latest forecasts and the actual performance for the
period. The Group benefits from a well-diversified portfolio of
service offerings and has a broad, diverse customer base.

The Group currently operates well within the financial covenants
associated with its committed funding lines. These include
£191.5m of US Private Placernent debt maturing in December
2019, December 2022 and December 2024. The Group also
benefits from a committed muki-currency revolving credit faciltty
of £275.0m, which will mature in July 2021. Together with the US
Private Placerments, this gives the Group total committed funding
of £466.5m, of which £219.3m was undrawn at 31 March 2018.

The Group's US Private Placernents and bank debt contain certain
financial covenants. The primary ratios are net debt to EBITDA
and EBITDA to net finance costs. These covenants are tested on a
roling 12-month basis as at the March and September reporting
dates. At 31 March 2018, both covenant tests were passed. The
Group is forecasting to remain within its banking covenants over
the next twelve months and has stress-tested these calculations
for reasonable possible adverse variances in trading and

cash performance.

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for at least twelve months and the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Group continues to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the condensed
consolidated financial statements.
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Director’s report: other disclosures continued

Viability statemaent
This statement is detziled in full on page 57.

In accordance with provision €.2.2 of the 2016 edition of the
Code, the Directors have assessed the viability of the Group over
a three-year period to 31 March 2021 taking into account the
Group’s current position and the potential impact of the principal
risks set out in the Strategic report. Based on this assessment the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group s and
will continue to be viable.

Disclosure of information to the auditors

Each of the Directors in office as of the date of approval of this
Annual Report and Accounts confirms that:

» sofaras he/she is aware, there s no relevant audit information
(being information reguired by the Company's auditors in the
preparation of thelr report) of which the Company’s auditors
are unaware; and

a he/she has taleen ail the steps that he/she ougit 10 have taken
as 3 Director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors
are aware of such Information.

This confirmation ks given, and should be interpreted, in
accordgance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006,

Gresnhouse gas (GHG) emissions

Culture

Mitie has appointed a new executive management team and
adopted a new strategy. As part of that strategy, a new ‘Mitie
Way' of doing business and ‘One Mitle’ unitary approach to
working with our dients has been developed. The Mitie Way has
many elements including purpose, vision, oulture, values and
branding. The vision has been defined and lbunched and seeks to
Instil One Mitie and Mitie Way approaches to everything we do at
Mitie and for our clients. The new cuiture covers ak aspects of the
business, from ‘who we are’ to ‘what we do’ and "how we do it’
and incorporates the elements of Mitie’s exdsting One Code which
includes health and safety, sustainabliity, diversity and equality,
bribery and corruption, conflicts of interest, and financial and
non-financial accounting and reporting. The Mitle Way purpose
and values are being rolled out across the organisation in 2018.

Mitle is committed to reducing its carbon emissions and environmental impact; we believe that to achieve this effective reporting ks
key as It improves transparency and drives enviconmental performance.

The Group has continued to report total GHG emissions annually using the financial controt approach. Mitie’s methodology aligns with
Dafra’s Environmental reporting guldefines and uses the govemment’s GHG reporting conversion factors to quantify emissions.

Absolute emissions reductions have been achieved of 16564% against our 2010 baseline and 6.7% against previous year.
Our organisational carbon intensity has also decreased by 34.7% against our 2010 baseline year and 5.4% against previous year.

Further infarmation can be found below:

Absolute emissions
% Change % Change
2005/10 against [t
Emissions {Baseline) 2016/17 2A017/18 baseline  previous yesr
Total Scope 1 {tC0ye)" 41,343 37913 35,974 “13.0% -5.1%
Emissions from fuel combustion across fleet 40,277 37,128 35,272 -12.4% -5.0%
Emissions from gas combustion at occupled buildings 1,066 95 702 -34.1% -11.7%
Tokal Scope 2 (100,¢} 3,450 2,248 1,524 -56.3% A2.2%
Emissions from the purchase of electricity across
oocupied buiidings 3,490 2,248 1,524 56.3% -32.2%
Total Scope 1 & 2 {tCOe) 44 833 40171 37,948 -16.4% -£.7%
Intensity
% Change % Chenge
ageinast againat
Emissions ratio 2009/10 2018/17 2017/18 Daté yhar  previous year
t00ye/£m revenue {Scope 182) 2607 17.99 17.02 -34.7% -54%
* Rafrigarant dats has been excluded due 1o dificulties obtaining diuta on iandiord managed sites, however, this dats ks not considered raterel

90% of total scope emissions can be attributed to the fleet; over the last few years Mitie has focused on improving vehicle effidency
through the use of more efficent vehicles, the installation of telematics and the provision of driver training. Across its bulidings the Group
has also procured 100% renewable electricRy tariffs and made a number of improvements such as the installation of LED lighting.

Further information on these calculations can be found in the GHG Methodology statement available on our website ww.mitie.com.
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Environmental data
Further detalls on the Group’s ervironmental performance ¢an be found in the table below:

% Change % Change

2000/10 gainet against

{Basefine) 2016117 2017/18 baseline  previous year

Electricity consurmed across occupled buiidings (kWh) 9,091,141 6,624,127 5,540,091 -39.1% ~16.4%
Gas consumed across occupled bulldings (kwWh) 7,980,537 5493,067 45949461 -38.0% 9.9%
Fuel used by flest for business travel {(kWh) 184,088,382 168,213,139 154,681,158 -16.0% 8.0%
Total crganisational energy consurnption (kWh) 201,160,060 180,330,333 165,170,710 -17.9% -BA%
Water consumed across occupied bulldings (m3) 29,306 45,214 40,012 36.5% -11.5%
Total waste generated across occupled bulldings {tonnes) 1,436 861 877 -38.9% 1.9%
Total waste to landfill (tonnes) 989 349 336 -66.1% -3.9%
Total waste recyded [tonnes) 447 512 542 21.2% 5.9%
Recydk! rate 31% 59% 62% +30.7% +2.3%

Current reporting period
01/04/2017 - 31/03/2018

Mitie depends on Its local communities to provide the engaged and talented people it needs to deliver great service and In retum Mitie
supports them through a wide range of initiatives, Over the past year, Mitie has donated time and money, ralsed awareness and funds,
and hosted a range of events for local people to participate in and enjoy.

AGM
Mitie’s AGM will be held on 31 July 2018 at 11:30am at Mayer Brown Intemational LLP, 201 Bishopsgate, London ECZM 3AF,

By order of the Board

et

6lune 2018

POl . [
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Director’s report: statement of Directors’ responsibilites

Statement of Directors’ responsibiiities in respect of the Annual Report, the remuneration report and the
financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the finandial staternents in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statemens for each financlal year. Under that law the Directors are required
to prepare the Group financlal statements in accordance with international Financlal Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the
Eurapean Union and applicable law and have elected to prepare the Parent Company finandial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) including FRS 101
Reduced Disciosure Framework. Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and falr view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of the profit or loss for the Group for
that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

+ select sultable accounting polickes and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonabie and prudent;

o for the Group financlal statements state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statsments;

« for the Parent Company financial ststemants, state whather applicable UK Accounting Standards have baen followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the Parent Company financlal statements;

¢ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group or Parent Company
whl continue in business;

« prepare a Directors’ report, 8 strategic report and Directors’ remuneration report which comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Parent Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy 3t any time the financlal position of the Parent Company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statemants comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Parent Company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irmegularities. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the annual report and
sccounts, taken as a whole, are fair, batanced, and understandable and provide the information necessary for shareholders to assass
the Group's performance, business modet and strategy. :

Website publication

The Directors are responsible for ensuring the annual report and the financial statements are made avallable on a website, Financial
statemants are published on the Parent Company’s website in sccordance with legisiation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements, which may vary from legisiation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and

Integrity of the Company's wabske is the responsibility of the Directors. The Directors' responsibility also extends to the ongoing
iertagrity of the financis! statements contained therein.

Directors’ responsibifities pursuant to DTRA.1
The Directors confirm 1o the best of their knowledge:
+ the Group financlal stataments have been prepared in accordance with International Financlal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as

adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the I1AS Regulation and give a true and fair view of the assets, habilties, financial
position and profit and loss of the Group; and

o the annual report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the financial position of the Group
and the Parent Company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

-

B’I%oftheﬂoard M\ M\

Phil Bentiey Paul Woolf
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
6June 2018 6June 2018
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Mitie Group plc

Opinlon

We have audited the financial statements of Mitie Group pic {the ‘Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries {the ‘Group’) for the yaar
ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the Consolidated income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,
the Consolidated and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has
been spplied in the preparation of the Group financlal statements is applicable law and Intemational Finandat Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Unlon, The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent
Company financlal statements is applicable kaw and United Kingdomn Generatly Accepted Accounting Practice, including FRS 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for qualified opinion paragreph the finandal statements:

* ghwe a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of the Group's loss
for the year then ended;

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

¢ the Parent Company finandal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation.

Basis for qualified opinion

The financial statements have been qualified on the basis that they do not agree with the requirement contained in (AS 1 to present a
third balance sheet for the year ended 31 March 2016. Subsequently we have been unable to determine the financial impact of any
iine kem reclassification adjustment that may have arisen from this re-presentation to the income statement for the year ended

31 March 2017. Notwithstanding the foregoing, as described within Note 1 to the basis of preparation for the financlal statements,
had these adjustments been presented in accordance with IAS 1, they would have had no impact on the reported net assets for the
yesr ended 31 March 2016 or the reported loss for the year ended 31 March 2017.

We conducted our audlt In accordance with international Standards on Auditing {UK] (I5As {UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described In the Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements In the UK, Including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in acoordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtalned Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basks for our qualified opinion.

Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability statement
We have nothing to report In respect of the following information In the annual report, in relation to which the ISAs {UK) require us to
report to you whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to:

+ the disciosures in the annual report set out on pages S0 to 56 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are being
managed or mitigated;

o the Directors’ confirmation set out on page 70 In the annual report that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal
risks facing the Group, incuding those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity;

= the Directors’ statement set out on page 113 in the financlal statements about whether the Directors considered it appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements and the Directors’ identification of any material
uncertainties to the Group and the Parent Company’s ability to continue to do 50 over a period of at least twelve months from the
date of approval of the finandial statements;

» whether the Directors’ statement relating to going concern required under the Listing Rules in accordance with Listing Rule 9,8.6R(3)
is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained In the audit; or

¢ the Directors’ explanation set out on page 57 in the annual report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over
what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate and their statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its labilities as they fall due over the period of
thelr assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.
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independent suditor's report to the members of Mitie Group plc continued

Summary of audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit matters for the current year and level of judgement are as below:
Transition to IFRS 15 Revenue from controcts with customers

Contractual disputes and provisions

Appropriateness of revenue and profit recognition

Recoverability of aged or disputed debtors and sccrued income
Impairment of goodwill in the property management division
Presentation of ‘other ems’ In the consofidated income statement

The level of judgement and impact on the financial statements is as follows:

[ O S

Materiality Wa based materialty on profit before other items at £3.4m

Scoping The scope of Group audit Incorporated all component divisions with imited exceptions where
desktop review procedures were parformed. Our sudit testing covered 95% of Group revenue
and 95% of Group total assets

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are thase matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and inchude the most significant assessad risks of material misstatement {(whether or not due to
fraud) that we identifled. These matters, which are detailed below, included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit
strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in
the comtext of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Transition to IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

Matter identified

How we addressed the matter

As detaiied in Note 1 to the Group financial statements the Group
has early adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with qustomners.

The adoption of IFRS 15 has resulted in significant changes to
revenue recognition policies and the recognition of contract
fulfilment assets such as mobiksation.

The Group has elected to apply the cumulative adjustment
approach and therefore the cumulative impact of the prior
year restatements is reflacted within opening reserves to the
current year,

The adoption of IFRS 15 requires significant Judgement over the
recognition of revenue and contract fulfilment assets. This
requires Interpretation of complex contractual terms including
consideration of performance conditions.

There 18 a risk that the adjustments to the opening reserves are
misstated or incomplete and also that the disclosures made to
the Group financial statements do not adequately explain the
impact of the adoption of IFRS 15.

As part of the work on transition to IFRS 15 the Group engaged
third party exparts to provide support to management.

The Group also put in place a detaited control framework and
quality control procedures, supported by the third party
spediafists and internal audit.

The contracts were divided into four distinct categories based on
size and compiexity — the focus of the third party specialist was
on the first two categories which contained the largest and
highest risk contracts. The third category was reviewed by the
divisional teams through the use of questionnalires designed to
identify the key attributes that may resuft in an adjustment. The
first three categories accounted for approximately 80% of the
Group's revenue.

The remaining category was subject to review based on
identifying characteristics that wouid result in an adjustment to
revenue recognition.

With support of our internal technical specialists we have
addressed the matter as follows:

Control environment - We reviewed the process undertaken,
control enwironment and quality control procedures in place In
respect of the process to adopt IFRS 15. We ensured the
procedures were appropriately structured to obtain all necessary
information and calculate the adjustmants required. We also
attended a number of IFRS 15 steering committee meetings.

Work of experts - We assessed the work performed by the third
party experts through reviewing their work and holding a number
of meetings with them. Following the completion of these
procadures, we considered the reliance we were able to place on
their work as an expert.

Testing - We substantively tested a sample of the contract reviews
(including those where no adjustment was recorded) from sach of
the four categories, we corroborated the key polnts to contracts,
hekd meetings with the necessary finance and contract
rmanagement team members to challenge assumptions and
judgements made. We tested a sample of the remalning contract
fulfilment assets recorded on balance sheet after the IFRS 15
adjustments had been recorded to ensure completeness of
adjustments and that appropriate audit evidence was in place to
support the assets.

Refiabliity of data —Wa tested the extraction of cantract related
data from origingl source used to derive the adjustment made to
the opening resarves,

Disclosures — We have reviewed the adequacy of the disdosures
including completing the required audit work under previous
revenue recognition standards to reflect the disclosure
requirements of the cumulative approach.

Annual report narrative — The use of the cumulative approach
provides no directly comparative basls for assessment against prior
year, we reviewed the annual report narrative in respect of
performance for the year to ensure It is falr, batanced and
understandable.

Acoounting policies — We reviewed the accounting polices
established by the Group by reference to the requirements of
IFRS 15.

Discussion with Audit Committee — We discussed with the Audit
Committee the judgements being applied and the representations
being sought from the Board. We also attended 3 number of
steering committee meetings which were attended by
management and a mamber of the Audit Committee.

Observations: We are satisfied that the transitional adjustments to IFRS 15 are materially complete and accurate.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Mitie Group pic continued

Contractusl disputes and provisions
Matter identified

How we addressed the matter

The Group Is subject to certain contractual disputes as wellas a
material legal claim which are ongoing at the year-end and
require specific consideration as to whether provisions or
contingent Hability disclosures are raquired.

Tha Group Is also subject to the Plumbers pension scheme, which
Is a complex multi-employer pension schama. The trustees of the
scheme ane currently unable to calculate the lability that relates
to the Group, including the impact of orphaned fiabiiities and also
whether a Section 75 kiability has been crystaifised.

The Group operates a number of low margin and previously
identified onerous contracts; there is a risk that the provision for
onerous contracts ks not complete.

There |s a risk that provisions and contingent Rability disclosures
are not complete or accurate (see Notes 28, 34 and 37)

In respect of the contractual disputes and iegal claim we have held
discussions with in-house counsel and where necessary external
legal counsel.

We have read appropriate internal and external documentation
to evalvate contractual daims and disputes, including reviewing
management’s material dispute register and the material
Judgements and estimate papers prepared by management.

As part of our procedures we aiso assessed the controks over
the preparation and completeness of the papers.

In respect of the Plumbers pension scheme we have reviewed
correspondence and pubiicly available information in respect; of the
Plumbers pension scherne and challenged management as to
whether a provision is required and to the completeness of the
disclosures given.

in respect of potentially onerous contracts we inspected a sarmple of
low margin and new lange contracts to determine whether onerous
contract provisions should be recorded — this included critically
assessing the assumptions over future costs and project initiatives,
For all matvers we have reviewed the disdosures induded in the
financial statements to ensure that they are complete and are fair,
balanced and understandable.

Observations: We are satisfied that the provisions recorded and disdosures made are complete and accurate.
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Appropriateness of revenue and profit recognition
Matter identified

How we addressed the matter

Auditing standards require s to make a rebuttable presumption
that the fraud risk from revenue Is a significant risk. Management
incentives, bonuses and market consensus increases the fraud risk.
The risk is compounded by the adoption of IFRS 15 in the year ~the
impact of which in the current year is disclosed within Note 1.

A significant propartion of the Group’s revenue ks derived from long
term contracts. The contractual terms underpin the measurement
and recognition of revenue and profit and the Group Is therefore
required to make operational and financial assumptions.

Judgements inchude:

+ Interpretation of complex contract terms;

* Mobilisation and pre contract costs capable of being capitalised;
* Allocation of revenue to performance conditions; and

* Combining of obligations where the services are related.

The nature of the Group’s activities also gives rise to significant
amaunt of variable work which Is recorded as accrued unbilled
income with a corresponding profit recognition. Accrued unbilled
income at the 31 March 2018 and totalled £129.3m.

There s a risk that revenue may be recognised even though it is
not probable that considgration will be collected which could be
due to uncertainties over contractual tenms and ongoing
negotiations with customers.

We have testad the operating effectiveness of the key controis
over the contract process including contract monitoring, billings
and approvals, the genera) [T controls over oertaln of the systermns
used to generate the information and management’s review and
approval of the contract accounting applied.

We have also completed the following audit procedures:

+ Reviewed the basis of revenue recognised against the
requirements of FRS 15 and challenged the key judgements
madae by management;

« Obtainad a sample of contracts to confirm that revenue had
been appropriately recognised and for a sample of fixed revenue
contracts recalcu lated the expected revenue for the year;

* Tested a sample of contract refated assets to supporting
documentation;

* Tested a sample of accrued income balances to supporting
documentation which Included assessing proof of works,
customer acceptance, reviewing customer cormespondence
where necessary and ensuring cut-off had been appropristely
appiled.

We also challenged management over the disclosures included In

the financlal statements and the dear distinction between billed

and unbilled amount to ensure that they are complete and are fair,
balanced and understandable,

Recoverability of aged or disputed debtors and accrued Income

Matter identified

How we addressed the matter

Material amounts of the billed and unbilled work remain
outstanding for more than three months as resolution of open
issues remains ongoing on various contracts.

The aged nature of these balances Increases the risk of
recoverability, particularly where there is disagreemant

or dispute.

Trade debtors and accrued income are discioted in Note 19 to
the financiai statements. Credit risk associated with trade debtors
ks disciosed in Note 28 tn the financlal statements.

There bs significant management judgement involved in assessing
the recoverability of these balancas, taking into consideration the
Group’s contractual rights, available evidence of work performed,
as well as the status of ongoing commercial negotiations.

This judgement is compounded by system limitations which
require a manual ageing of unbilled acoruved income balances,
increasing the ritk of error,

in the current year the Group has recognised a bad debt provision
of £17.3m in respect of aged and disputed billed balances which
has been recorded In administrative expenses.

Fora sample of aged balances at the year-end we have challenged
the validity of the reconded debtors and accrued income as well as
the completzness of the bad debt/accrued income provision by a
number of methods inckiding:

* Confirming aged balances to post year-and cash receipts;

= Obtaining external confirmation of the balances;

a Reviewing client approval of works orders or contractual
commitments;

= Reviewing evidence of work performed and status of
negotiations;

» Manually testing the acouracy of aging of accrued Income;

Completing analytical procedures

Reviewing customer cotrgspondence; and

Reviewing in-house legal counsel reports.

Completed analytical procedures to consider consistency In the

provisioning methodology compared to the pricr year.

Observations: We are satisfied that the carmying value of trade receivables and accrued Incoma is materiaily cormect.
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Independent suditor's report to the members of Mitle Group pi continuad

Presentation of ‘other items’ in the consolidated income statement

Matter identified

How we addressed the matter

Consistent with the prior year management have presented
profit before other iterms in the consolidated statament of
comprehensive income. The presentation is intended to show the
financial results in a way that reflects the underlying profitabliity
of the Group and therefore excludes the results from thems such
as restructuring, impalement and other costs and income
considered exceptional In nature. A detalied breakdown of other
hams together with explanation Is induded In Note 4 to the
financial statements.

There is judgement in evaluating whether a transaction meets
the definition described in the Group’s accounting policy and
whether its presentation ks Fair, balanced and understandable’.

Fallure to disclose clearly the nature and impact of material
‘other tam’ eamings may distort the reader’s view of the
financlal result in the year.

We have assessed the design and implementation of relevant
controls over the financial statement review procass by
management and the Audit Committae.

We have benchmarked the items Inciuded within other items by
reference to:

* |ndustry peer Group;

« The guidance published by the Financial Reporting Council In
their thematic review; and

+ The guidance induded in the “Guidelines on Alternative
Performance Measures”, issued by the European Securities and
Markets Authority (ESMA).

Having regard to the benchmarking we have:

* Understood the composition of other itemns identified by
management;

« Agreed a sample of items to supporting documentation;

* Challenged management’s rationale for the inclusion of certain
tems particularly around the areas of higher Judgemeant such as
rastructuring and dual running costs;

« Determined whether the costs recognised as ‘other items” meet
the criteria of the accounting policy and are consistent with the
prior year;

» Reviewed the income statement for any material credits that are
considered to meet the Group policy of being classified as an
other ikemn;

= Challenged the appropriateness of discosure of these balances
both in note 5 and In the remainder of the annual report; and

¢ Consulted with our intemal technical specialists.

Observations: We are satisfled that the other ltems are not materially misstated and that the disclosures given in Note 5 and the
remainder of the annual report are fair, balanced and understandable.

www.mitie.com | The excepticnal, every day




Impairment of goodwill in the property division
Matter identified How we addressed the matter

In accordance with 15 36 Impairment of Assets the Group is With the assistance of our valuation specialists, we have challenged
requived to carry out an annual impairment test of the Group’s the reasonableness of management’s key judgements and our

goodwill which had a brought forward balance prior to work included:

impairments of £343.9m. Of this amount £70.2m is recordedin | po ring management’s historical forecasting accuracy;
the property management division cash generating unit {CGU). . Assessilr: cne-off iterns which manageme:tﬁl'li idenﬂnz‘d as
The property management division has perforred below budget impacting the cumrent year and the risk of thasa items being
in the current and prior year. Set against a backdrop of an pervasive in the business;

increasingy challenging market place following a high profile + Benchmarking growth rates to applicable market data;

corporate fallure as well cther challenges arising from the public | .., the discount rate applied:
sector the goodwill has been impalred by £34.6m to £35.6m— - mnﬂiir:e accuracy and m;mol;gy of management’s

see Note 13 for more details. discounted cash flow model;

There ls inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting the + Challenging the forecast revenue and margin assumptions by

future cash flows of the division and calculating the net present  reference to current performance, available market data and

value, including: acouraty of prior year forecasting:

« Profit margins; » Reviewing the allocation of central costs;

* Revenue growth; = Assessing whether the forecasts adopted in the impairmrent

= The Impact of changes In market conditions; review were Board approved and are consistent with those used

* The uncertainty around final account settiements, commercial  In the going concern and longer-term viabllity assessment; and
daims and pension provisions; and * Complating sansitivity 2nalysis and ensuring completeness of

- Thesem of an .wm discount rate, disclosures Inﬂ'lefinandal statements,

Observations: We are satisfied that the impainment is not materially misstated and that the disclosures adequately disclose the
inherent risk and uncertainties.

The previous auditors report in respect of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 also induded key audit matters
that have been removed in the current year In respect of: effect of potential prior year restaterments, healthcare division disposal and
management override of controls. New and recurring Hsks when compared to the previous auditor’s report are also identified above,

Our application of materiality

Wae apply the concept of materia bty both in planning and performing our audit and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, We
conskder materiality to be the magnitude by which misstaterments, including omissions, could influence the economic decisions of
reasonable users that are taken on the basis of the finandal statements. Importantly, misstatements below these levels will not
necessarily be avaluated as immaterial as we also take account of the nature of identified misstatements and the particular
circumstances of their occurnence, when evaluating their effect on the finandlal statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the Group financial statements to be £3.4m and for the parent
company to be £2.6m. Performance materiality was calculated based on 65% of our materiality, We determined this percentage by
reference to the number of components, the errors kientified in the prior ysar and due to this being our first year as auditors. This
compares to £3.8m materiality applied in the prior year by the previous auditor.

The materiaiity we applied in respect of the Group financial statements equates to 5% of profit before other items and tax. We
consider this to the be most appropriate performance measure for the basis of determining materiality as t removes the impact of
non-recurring items impacting the underlying profit of the Group. The adjustment removes the impact of “other items” detalled in
Note S to the Group financial statements.

We set componant materiality between £0.7m and £2.4m (2017 - £1.9m and £2.7m - as determined by the previous auditor) based on
the overall skze and respective risk of each component.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £170,000, as well as
differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit Committee
on disclosure matters that we dentified when assessing the overall presentation of the financlal statements.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Mitie Group pic continued

An overview of the scope of our audit
As detailed elsewhere in the annual report we accepted appointment as statutory auditors in September 2017.

We were aware, as we entered the tender process, of the ongoing FRC regulatory Issues relating the to Group, both In respect of the
FRC's assessment of the 2016 financial statements {which concluded in November 2017) and the launch of an investigation by the FRC
into the predecessor audit firm's audits in 2015 and 2016,

We were also aware of the independent balance sheet review commissioned by new managemant in the prior year, which resulted in
significant prior year adjustments to the 2016 financial statements. During the course of our tender the FCA launched an investigation
Into the timeliness of profit wanmings during 2015/16 which remains ongoing.

As part of our procedures in considering appaintment, during the course of the tender we were provided access to relevant
documentation in respect of the prior year audi and in particular we considered the independent balance sheet review. We also met with
ey management and certain members of the Boardto understand both the business in the context 6f an audit and also to understand the
changes being made to address financial reporting and control environment matters. Over fifty hours of individual meetings were heki and
attended by the lead snd supporting audit partner, In addition to the time assessing information provided.

During the tender meetings held, in light of the high level of judgernent required in respect of percemage of completion accounting
and the wefl-publicisad ssues within the outsourcing sector relating to this area, we discussed with the business their intent to earfy
adopt IFRS 15 Revenue from contract with customers.

Following our appointment, the FCA announced in November 2017 that it had dosed its review of the 2016 financial statements and as
a result opened an investigation under the Accountancy Scheme into their preparation, and in January 2018 the FRC issued guidance
1o boards of companies in the support services sactor In the ight of the collapse of Carillion, As part of our appointment we were
entithed 1o, and took up, the opportunity to review the previous auditor’s files.

Al of the above information was used as part of our risk assessment in setting our audiit approach in this first year of our audit of the Group.

The Group operates through 3 number of legal entities which form reporting components — the reporting components are consistent
with the segmental analysis as disclosed in Note 3 to the finandal statements. Audtts were performed over all components with the
exception of certain non-significant parts of the components, including overseas entities, which were disaggregated and subject to
deskbop review procedures.

The audit procedures were carvied out over 95%. of Group revenue and 95% of Group total assets.
Total revenue Total assets

l |

Full sudit

' Désktop review l r Full sudit
95% 5% o:%

The Group audit team set compohent materiality levels as detalled above with work on all components being performed by the Group
auditors under the direction and supervision of the Group engagement partner. With the exception of the non-significant components
the Group engagement partner visited all component locations and attended various telephone conference meetings through the
planning, fieldwork and completion stages of the audit,

Desidop review
5%
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Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the finandal statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other infarmation and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conchision thereon. in connection with our audtt of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is matarially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be matertally misstated. if we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the ather information. if, based on the work we have performed, we condude that there Is a material misstatement
of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

Other than the matter identified in the Basis for qualified opinion section above, we have nothing to report in this regard.

In this context, we also have nothing to report In regard to our responsibllity to specifically address the following items In the other
information and to report as uncorrected materlal misstatements of the other information where we conclude that those ttems meet
the following conditions:

* Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 112 — the statement given by the Directors that they consider the annual report
and financial statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's performance, business madel and strategy, Is materially inconsistent with our knowledge
obtalned in the audit; or

* Audit committee reporting set out on pages 72 to 83 —the section describing the work of the Audit Committee does not
appropriately address matters communicated by us to the audit committee; or

* Directors' statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code set out on page 64 — the parts of the Directors’
statement required under the Uisting Rules relating to the company’s compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
containing provisions specified for review by the auditor in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R{2) do not properly disciose a
departure from a relevant provision of the LK Corporate Governance Code.

Opinlons on other matters prestribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in acoordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

* the Information given in the strategic report and the Directors” report for the financial year for which the financlal statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial staternents; and
¢ the strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent company and its environment obtained In the course of

the audit, other than the matter identified in the Basis for gualified opinion section above, we have not Identified material

misstatements in the strategic report or the Directors’ report.

Other than the matter identified in the Basis for qualified opinion section above we have nothing to report in respect of the foliowing

matters in refation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us ta report to you If, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visikted by us; or

= the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

* certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received ali the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Mitle Group pic continued

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 116, the Directors are responsible for the prepa ration of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and for such intamnal control as the Directors determine ks
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or esror.

In preparing the financial staternents, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company’s ability to continue
as a going toncem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic akernative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibiiities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whale are frea from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror and to Issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance ks a high
level of assurance, but s not a guarantee that an audi cordlucted In accordance with I5As (LK) will always detect a material misstatement
when Rk exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or ermor and are consilered material i, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basks of these fisandial statements.

A further descrigtion of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's
website at: www fre.ong.uk/suditorsresponsibifities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Other matters which we are required 10 address

Following the recommendation of the Audit Commiitee on 19 September 2017, we were appointed to audit the financial statements
for the year ending 31 March 2018 and subsequent financial periods. This is the first year of our engagement.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the Parent Company and we
remain independent of the Group and the parent company in conducting our audit.

Our audit opinion ks consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee,

Use of our report

This report is made soiely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assurne
responsibiiity to anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent my's members as a body, for our audit work, for this

report, or for the opinions we have formed. J 7

Scott Mcaughton (Senlor Statutory Alditnr)
For and on bahaif of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

6 june 2018

BDO LLP is » imited liability partnership registered in England and Wales {with registersd number 0C305127).
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Consofidated income statement

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Restated
pot ] 27
Defors Other Before Other
other Rams Rt Totel  otheritems Hemst Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 3 2,203.7 - 2,203.7 2,123.4 - 2,1234
Cost of sales {1,894.8) - {1,894.8) (1,8936) - (1,893.6)
Gross profit 308.9 - 2089 229.8 - 2298
Administrative expenses (220.1) (97.9) (318.0} {236.7) {36.6) (2733)
Share of profit of joint ventures and associates 16 o8 - 0.8 0.6 - 4.6
Operating {loss)/profit 36 89.6 (97.9) (8.3) (6.3} {36.5) {42.9)
Investment revenue 8 02 - 0.2 - - -
Finance costs 9 {16.6} - (16.6) {15.3) - {15.3}
Net finence costs (16.4) - (15.4) (15.3) - {15.3)
{Loas)/profit before tax 3 732 (97.8) (24.7 (21.6) {36.6) {58.2)
Tax 10 {12.0) 10.7 {13} 33 4.1 7.4
{Loss)/profit from continuing operations
afver tax 812 (87.2) (26.0) {18.3) {32.5) {50.8)
Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations 5 - - - {11.4} {121.0) {132.4)
{Loss)/profit for the year 612 {87.2) {26.0) {29.7) {153.5) {183.2)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 60.1 872) (27.1) (305)  {1535) {184.0)
Non-controlling interests 11 - 11 0.8 - 08
61.2 {87.2} (26.0) {29.7) {153.5) {183.2)
(Loss)/eamings per share (EPS) attributable to
equity shareholdars of the parent
From continuing operations:
baskc 12 16.8p (7.6p (5.5)p {14.7p
diluted 12 16.8p {7.5p (5.5)p (14.7)p
From continuing and discontinued operations:
Bask 12 168p (7.6 8.7 (52.4)p
Diluted 12 16.8p 2.6 (8.7)p (52.4)p
Notes:
1. Other ltams are as described in Note 4.
2, The Group has applied IFRS 15 using the curmulative effect method. Under this method, the compa—ntive information is not restated. See Note 1.
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Consolidated staternent of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Restated
018 mn
Notes £m £m
Loss for the year (260 {(183.2)
tems that will not be reciassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement of net defined benefit pension liability 37 19.7 (35.4)
Income tax (charge)/credit relating to kems not reclassified {a4) 55
16.3 {29.9)
items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on transiation of foreign operations 0.1 13
Gains on hedge of a net inrvestment taken to equity oA 01
Net gains/{losses) on cash fiow hedges arising during the year 0.1 4.8)
Income tax credit relating to itemns that may be reclassified 0.1 03
0.7 {3.1)
Othar comprehansive income/{eqpense) for the financial year 17.0 {33.0)
Total comprehensive expense for the finandial year 9.0} (216.2}
Attributable to:
Equity hoiders of the parent {10.1)  (217.0)
Non-controling interests 11 08
Note:

1. The Group hes spplied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the comgarative information i not certated, See Noke 1.
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 March 2018
Restated
s m7y
Nobes £m £m
Non-Qurrent assets
Goodwill 13 309.6 3439
Other intangible assets 14 383 532
Property, plant and equipment 15 336 323
Interest In joint ventures and assodlates 16 0.8 0.6
Derjvative financlal Instruments 27 61 -
Trade and other recelvables 17 - 503
Contract assets? 20 18 -
Deferred tax assets 21 36.7 222
Total non-csrent assets 426.9 5025
Current assets
Irventories 22 69 6.8
Trade and other receivables 17 3860 3956
Contract assets? 20 04 -
Derivative financlal instruments 27 - 358
Current tax assets 6.3 121
Cash and cash equivalents 23 598 129.1
Total current assets 4594 5794
Total assets i 8863 10819
Curvent Kabilities
Trade and other payables 24 (496.8) (574.5)
Deferred income 25 (#6.2) -
Financing liabilities 26 on) (210.8)
Premvisions 28 (25.2) (20.4)
Total current [abilities {569.0) ({9057)
Net current Kabliities {109.6) {326.3)
Non-current lieblities
Trade and other payables 24 - (3.4)
Deferred income 25 (18.8) -
Financing Habilities 26 (258.5) (1.3)
Provisions 28 (6.3) (6.9)
Retirement benefit liabllities 37 {56.8) {74.2)
Deferred tax labillties 21 {o8) {11}
Total non-current Kabilities (3413) (86.9)
Total Rabifitles 0103}  (992.1)
Net (Kabillties)/assets {24.0) 89.8
Notes:
1. The Group has applled IFRS 15 using the curnulative effect method. Under this method, the comparative information i not restated. See Note 1.
2 Ag31 Marth 2018, contract esets comprises contract fulfiiment costs capitaiised In accordante with |FRS 15 and the Group's internel accourting policy.
The exceptional, every doy | www.mitie.com 129



Consolidated balance sheet continued
As at 31 March 2018

Restated
2008 xmnr
Noates £m £m
Equity
Share capital 31 23 9.2
Share premium account 32 130.6 130.6
Merger reserve 32 1042 918
Own shares reserve 32 {43.4) {42.2)
Other reserves 32 113 103
Hedging and translation reserve 32 {7.3) {8.0}
Retained losses {228.7) (104.2)
Equity stiributable to equity holders of the parent (24.0) 875
Non-controliing interests - 23
Total aquity 124.0) 89.8
Note:
1 The Group has applied IFRS 15 using the cumulstive effect method. Undes this ethod, the comparative Information (s not restated. See Note 1

The consolidated financial statements of Mite Group plc, company registration number 5C019230 were approved by the Board of
Directors and authorised for lssue on 6 June 2018. They were signed on its behalf by:
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Comsolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Share Own Hediging and Non-
Share  premium Merger shares Other  tronsistion  Retained controlling Toeal
apital  acoount reserve reserve reserves? reserve  Eamings Totl Imerests acquity
im £m £m Em £m £m £m £m £m tm
At 1 April 2016 93 127.7 80.1 {(a8.8) 9.9 (46) 1850 3586 29 3515
Loss for the year - - - - - - (184.0) (184.0) 08 (1832)
Other comprehensive expense - - - - - (34} (29.6) (33.0) -  (33.0)
Total comprehansive expense - - - - - {3.4) (213.6) {117.0) 08 (2162)
Shares issued 0.1 29 11.7 - - - - 14.7 - 147
Dividends paid - - - - - - (374) (374) {o0.1) (37.5)
Share buybacks 0.2) - - (0.2) 04 - (24.4) [24.4) - (24.8}
Share-based payments - - - 68 - - 24 9.2 - 9.2
Acquisitions and other moverments
n non-controlling interests - - - -~ - - {16.2) (162) {1.3) {17.5)
At 31 March 2017 9.2 1306 91.8 (42.2) 103 (8.0) {104.2) 87.5 23 99.8
Balance at 1 April 2017 92 1306 918 {422) 103 {8.0) (1042) 875 23 s
Impact of change in accounting
- - - - - - (1082) (1082 - {1082
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2017 92 1306 918 (42.2) 103 {8.0) (2124} (20.7) 23 (18.4)
Loss for the year - - - - - - (271} (@71) 11 (26.0)
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 0.7 163 17.0 ~ 17.0
Total comprehensive axpense - - - - - 0.7 (108) {10.1) 11 (9.0)
Dividends paid - - - - - - {4.8) (4.8) - {4.8)
Share-based payments - - - 69 1.0 - 03 82 - 82
Acquisittions and other movements
In non-controlling interasts 0.1 ~ 124 (8.1) - - {1.0) s [3.4) -
At 31 March 2018 93 1306 1042 (434) 113 (7.3) (228.7} (24.0) - (24.0)
Notes:
L The Group has apphied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effact method. Under this method, the comparative information is aot restated. See Nota 1.
1 Othar reserves indude the share-baser] pyments reserve, te revaluation resarva and the capital redemption reserve, See Note 32.
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Consolidatad statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Rastated
2Ans 017
Notes £m £m
Operating loss = continuing operations (8.3) {a2.9)
— discomtinued operations - {135.2)
Adjustments for:
Share-based payments expense 36 4.6 62
Defined benefit pension charge 37 a1 43
Past service cost and curtaiiments 37 19 -
Defined benefit pension contributions 37 a.n {2.4)
Acquisition costs 4 - 12
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 123 14.1
Amortisation of intangible assets 14 135 238
Share of profit of joint ventures and associates 16 fo.s) 0.6}
impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 13,14 45.0 109.2
Loss on disposal of businesses 02 04
{Gain}/toss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.1) 10
Operating cash flows before movaments in working capital 7.2 9.1
{increase)/decraass in nvenores foy) 32
{(increase)/decrease in receivables 43.2) 60.2
(increase)/decrease in contract assets {2.3) -
Decraase In deferrad income anising on contracts {12.8) -
{Decrease)/increase in payables f212) 73.0
{Decrease)/increase in provisions 4.5 56
Cash {used in)/genersted by oparations 39 {73} 1511
Income taxes received/{paid) s (15.3)
Interest paid (13.5) {127
Acquisition costs 4 - {0.3)
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from operating activities {9.3) 1228
vesting activities
Interest received 0.2 01
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 15 {15.8) (14.5)
Dividends received from joint ventures and assocates 0.6 0.6
Purchase of other intangible assets 14 {9.0) {12.4)
Disposals of property, plant and equipment 16 1.0
Disposal of subsidiaries, induding cash disposed 5 9.7} {L7)
Net cash outflow from lnvesting activities (32.1) {26.9)
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Consolidated statement of cash flows continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Restated
2018 m7
Notes £m £m
Financing activities
Repayments of obligations under finance leases {L5} (1.6}
Proceeds on Issue of share capital - 01
Private placement notes repaid and associate hedges settied {60.2) -
Proceeds frorm new borrowings 383 1.7
Proceeds from re-issue of treasury shares 32 3 24
Purchase of non-controlling interests 33 {3.0) (14)
Share buybacks 31 - (24.4)
Equity dividends paid 1 {4.8} (37.4)
Non-controlling interests dividends paid - {0.1)
Other financing tems - 04
Net cash outflow from financing activities {22.8) {60.3)
Net {decrease)/increase In cash and cash equivalents 82.7) 35.6
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 129.1 53.1
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 04 0.4
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of the yesr 23 598 129.1

The above statement of consolidated cash flows Indudes cash flows from both continuing and discontinued operations. Further details

of the cash flows relating to discontinued operations are shown in Note 5.

2017

Raconciliation of net cash flow to movements in net debt Notes £m £m
Cash drivars
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {63.7) 356
Increase in bank loans {38.3) 1.7
Move ment in private placement notes and assoclated hedges 602 -
Decrease in finance leases 15 12
Non-cash drivers
Non-cash movement In bank koans {0.7) -
Non.cash movement In private placement notes and associated hedges 0.3 (4.4}
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes oA 0.4
{Increase)/decrease in net debt during the year (48.3} 311
Opening net debt {142.2) {178.3)
Closing net debt 30 {1935) (1472)
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Notes to the consolidated finandal statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

{a} Basis of preparation

The Group’s financlal staternents for the year ended 31 March 2018 have been prepared in accordance with International Financlal
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted for use in the European Union and therefore the Group's financial statements comply with Article
4 of the EU IAS Regulation.

The Group's financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain finandal instruments which are
required to be measured at fair value.

Whilst the Property Management business was previously classified as a discontinued operation in the FY2018 Haf Year Report, there
are no active sales processes at year end and hence it is no longer classified as a discontinued operation.

Prior year restatement

The prior year comparatives have been restated due to an accounting ervor in respect of an under accrual of costs with a
corresponding increase in accrued income and revenue. The impact on the prior year balance sheet is an increase in acoruals and
accrued income of £14.6m and a decrease in revenue and cost of sales of £2.9m within the income statement. The Directors recognise
that the under accrual of costs and understatement of accrued income may also be apparent in the 2016 balance sheet, However as
disclesed in the 2017 accounts, an extensive review was undertaken, which led to both prior year adjustments to 2016 and material
adjustments being recognised in 2017 arising from changes to accounting estimates.

In addition, 23 a resukt of the 2016 financial statements being subject to judgements and estimates made by the then Directors at that
time, the current Directors considar it is not appropriate or meaningful to attempt to quardify or represent any erors, and as a result
the balance sheet for the year ended 31 March 2016 has not been represented. Notwithstanding this, management note that any
error of the nature identified, were R present in the year ended 31 March 2016, would not have any impact on dosing nat assets for
that year nor would it have any impact on the reported loss for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Going concern

As outfined in the Directors’ Report, the Directors have concluded that whilst the Group Is in a net cumrent liability position at year end,
It has adequate financlal resources to continue In operation for the foreseeable future and can prepare ks financial statements on 3
£oing concemn basis. The Directors have considered the future prospects and performance of the Group including: the future business
plans of the Group; the potentisl impact of acquisition activity and possible changes to the composition of the Group; the profected
future cash flows of the Group; the availability of core and andilary financing facilities and compliance with related covenants; the
projected drawn positions and headroom availabie on the core committed financing facilities; and those matters reviewed in
connection with the Viability Statement.

The Directors have also reviewed and considened the disclosures on the matter of going concern and viabiiity in the Annual Report and
Acoounts and have considered them to be appropriate.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Accounting standards that are newly effective in the current year

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated finandal statements are consistent with those followed In the
preparation of the Group's annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 except for the foliowing amendments,
which were effective for the first time in the current year but had no Impact on the results or financial position of the Group:

= Amendments to AS 12 ‘income taxes'- clarification of requirements on recognition of deferved tax assets for unrealised losses on
debt instrument financlal assets measured at fair value;

* Amendments to IAS 7 ‘Cash flow statements’ - disclosure initiative; and

+ Amendments resulting from annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle.

The Group has early adopted IFRS 15 "‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. The Impacts of adopting the new accounting standard
are detalied below.

Accounting standards that are not yet mandatory and have not been applied by the Group
The following standards and interpretations have been issued but are not yet mandatorily effective {and in some cases have not yet
been adoptad by the EU) and have not been applied by the Group:

* IFRS9 ‘Financial instruments’;

* IFRS 16 'Leases’;

* IFRS 17 ‘Insurance contracts’;

+ Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Share-hased payment’ — classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions;
* JFRIC 22 “Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration’;

¢ IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments”;

* Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Prepayment features with negative compensation’;

* Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures’; and

* Annual improvements to IFRS's 2015-2017 cycle.

The Directors have conskiered the impact of IFRS 9 and IFRS 16 as noted below. The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the
ather standards listed above will have a material impact on the financial statements of the Group in future periods.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ is effective for the Group starting 1 April 2018 and replaces the current requirements of LAS 39

“Financdial instruments: recognition and measurement’. The main changes Introduced by the new standard are new dassiication and
measurement requirements for certain financlal assets, a new expected loss mode| for the impairment of financial assets, revisions

to the hedge accounting model, and amendments to disclosures. The changes are generally to ba applied retrospectively, Given the
nature of the financial assets and labilities currently beid by the Group and its hedging arrangements, the changes are not expected o
have a significant impact on the financial statements.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ will be effective for the Group starting 1 April 2019 and will replace the curment requirements |AS 17 ‘Leases’. An asset
for the right to use the leased item and a Rability for future lease payments will be recognised for all leases, subject to limited
exemptions for short-term leases and low-value lease assets. The costs of leases will be recognised in the income statement split
between depreciation of the lease asset and a finance charge on the lease liabliity. This Is similar to the existing accounting for finance
leases, but substantively different to the existing accounting for operating leases under which no lease asset or lease Habllity is
recognised and rentals payable are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis. Following the early adoption of IFRS 15,
the Group is currently considering the adoption date for RS 16 and is continuing its assessment of the Impact that the application of
the standard will have on the Group's finsncial statements. It remains too early to fully determine the impact on the Group's finandlal
statements as this will be influenced by the composition of the lease portfolio and the relevant discount rates at the date of adoption.
Details of luture commitments undar the Group’s current operating leases are set out in Note 35. Beyond the information above, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 16 until a detailed review has been complatad.
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Notes to the consolidated finandial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basls of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Early adoption of (FRS 15
The Group decided to early adopt IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’, with a date of initial application of 1 April 2017. As

a result, the Group has changed its accounting policies and updated ks intemal processes and controks refating to revenue recognition.
The Group has applied IFRS 15 using the cumuwiative effect method — Le. by recognising the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS
15 as an adjustment to the opening batance of equity at 1 April 2017, calculated only for those contracts that were not completed as at
1 April 2017, Therefore, the comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and
|AS 11 ‘Construction contracts’,

IFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applled to all sales contracts as outined below. It is based on the transfer
of control of goods and services to customers and replaces the separate models for goods, sarvices and construction contracts.

Identify the contract(s) with a custormer

identify the performance obligations in the contract
Determine the transaction price

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations In the contract
Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its performance obligations

Set out below Is the revenue recognition policy under IFRS 15 2nd the five-step maodel together with the impact of adopting the standard.

Revenue recognition policy under IFRS 15

The Group operates contracts with a varying degree of complexdty across its service lines so accordingly, a range of methods are

used for the racognition of revenue based on the principles set out in IFRS 15. Revenue reprasents income recognised in respect of
services provided during the period based on the delivery of performance obligations and an assessment of when control Is transferred
to the customer.

Step 1 —identify the contract(s) with a customer

For all contracts with customers, the Group determines If the arrangement creates enforceable rights and obligations. This assessment
results in certain Framework arrangements or Master Service Agreements (MSAs) not meeting the definition of a contract under

IFRS 15 unless it specifies the minimum quantities to be ordered. Usually the work order and any change orders together with the
Framework or MSA will constitute the IFRS 15 contract.

e W
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Duration of contract

The Group frequently enters into contracts with customers which contaln extension periods at the end of the initial term, automatic
annual renewals, and/or termination for convenience and break clauses that could impact the actual duration of the contract. As the
term of the contract impacts the period over which amortisation of contract assets and revenue from performance obligations may be
recognised, the Group applies judgement to assess the impact that such dlauses have in determining the relevant contract term. In
forming this judgernent, management considers certain influencing factors including the amount of discount provided, the presence of
significant termination penalties in the contract, and the relationship, experience and performance of contract delivery with the
customer and/or the wider industry, in understanding the likelihood of extension or termination of the contract.

Contract modifications

The Group’s contracts are frequently amended for changes to customer requirements such as change orders and variations. A contract
modification takes place when the amendment creates new enforceable rights and cbligations or changes the existing price or scope
(or both) of the contract, and the modification has been approved. Contract modifications can be approved in writing, by oral
agreement, or imphed by customary business practices.

tf the partias to the contract have not approved a contract modification, revenue ls recognised in accordance with the existing
contractual terms. If a change in scope has been approved but the corresponding change In price is still being negotiated, the Group
estimates the change to the total transaction price.

Contract modifications are accounted for as 3 separate contract If the contract scope changes due to the addition of distinct goods or
services and the change In contract price reflects the standalone seffing price of the distinct good or service. The facts and
clrcumstances of any modification are considered In isolation as these are specific to each contract and may result in different
aocounting outcomnes.

Step 2 - identify the performance obiigations in the contract

Performance obligations are the contractual promises by the Group to transfer distinct goods or services to a customer. For

arrangements with multiple components to be delivered to customers such as in the Group’s integrated facllities management

contracts, the Group applies judgement to consider whether those promised goods and services are:

i. Distinct and accounted for as separate performance obligations;

ii. Combined with other promised goods or services until a bundle is Identified that is distinct; or

Wi, Partof a series of distinct goods and services that are substantially the same and have the same patvern of transfer over time ie.
where the customer is deemed to have simultaneously received and consumed the benefits of the goods or services over the life
of the contract, the Group treats the series as a single performance obligation.

Step 3 —Detarmine the transaction price

At contract inception, the total transaction price is determined, being the amount to which the Group expects to be entitied and has
rights under the current contract. This includes the fixed price stated in the contract and an assessment of any variable consideration,
up or down, resulting from e.g. discounts, rebates, service penalties. Variable consideration is typically estimated based on the
expected value method and s only recognised to the extent it is highly probable that a subsequent change In its estimate would not
result in a significant revenue reversal.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Stap 4 — Allocsts the transaction price to the performance obligations In the contract

The Group allocates the total transaction price to the identified performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone sefling
prices. This s predominantly based on an observable price or a cost plus margin aTangement.

Step 5 — Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfles its performance obligations
For each performance obligation, the Group determines If revenue will be recognised over time: or at a point in time, Where revenue s

recognised over time, the Group applies the relevant output of input revenue recognition method for measuring progress that
falthfully depicts the Group's performance in transferring controt of the goods and services to the customer.

Certain long-term contracts use output methods based upon surveys of performance completed, appralsals of results achieved, or
milestones reached which allow the Group to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value to the customer of
the goods and services transferred to date relative to the remaining goods and services under the contract.

Under the input method, measured progress and revenue ane recognised in direct proportion to costs incurred where the transfer of
control is most closely aligned to the Group's efforts in delivering the service.

Where deemed appropriate, the Group will utilise the practical expedient within IFRS1S, alowing revenue to be recognised at the
amount which the Group has the right to Invoice, where that amount corresponds directly with the vakue to the customer of the
Group's performance completed to date.

if parformance obligations do not meet the criteria to recognise revenue over time, revenue is recognised at the point In time when
control of the good or service passes to the customer. This may be at the point of physical delivery of goods and acceptance by a
customer or when the customer obtains control of an asset or service In a contract with customer-spedfied acceptance criteria.

Long-term complex contracts

The Group has a number of long-term complex contracts which are predominantly integrated facilities management arrangements.
Typically, these contracts Involve the provision of multiple service lines, with a single management team providing an integrated
service. Such contracts tend to be transformational in nature where the business works with the chent to identify and implement cost
saving initiatives across the hife of the contract.

The Group considers the majority of services provided within integrated facilities management contracts meet the definition of a serles
of distinct goods and services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer over time. The series constitutes
services provided in distinct time increments [e.g. monthly or quarterly) and therefore the Group treats the series of such services as
one performance obligation.

The Group aiso delivers major project-based services under long-tenm complex contracts that Include performance abligations under
which revenue is recognised over time as value from the service is transferred to the customer. This may be whare the Group has a
legally enforceable right to remuneration for the work completed to date, or at milestone periods, and therefore revenue will be
recognised In line with the associated transfer of control or milestone dates.

Repeat service-based contracts {single and bundied contracts)

The Group operates a number of single or joint-service line arrangements where repeat services meat the definition of a series of
distinct servioes that are substantially the same (e.g. the provision of cleaning, security, catering, waste, and landscaping services). They
have the same pathern of transfer of vakse to the asstonver as the series constitutas cove servioes provided in distinct time increments
(e.£. monthiy or quarterly). The Group therefore treats the saries of such services as one performance obligation,

Short-term service-basad avangements

The Group delivers a range of other short-term service based performance obligations and professional services work across certaln
reporting segrents for which revenue Is recognised at the point in time when control of the service has transferred to the customer.
This may be at the point when the customer obtains control of the service In a contract with customer-specified acoeptance criteria

e.g. the dellvery of a stratagic operating model or report.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and control has passed to the customer.

Other revenue

Interest income ks accruad on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective Interest rate applicable, which
15 the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected e of the financial asset to that asset's net
carying amount.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Contract assets

Pre-controct costs

The Group incurs pre-contract expenses (e.g. legal costs) when it s expected to enter into 2 new contract. The incremental casts to
obtain a contract with a customer are recognised within contract assets ¥ it is expected that those costs will be recoverable. Costs to
obtain a contract that would have been Incurred regardiess of whether the contract was obtained are recognised as an expense in the
period.

Contract fulfilment costs

Costs incurred to ensure that the project or programime has appropriate organisational, operational and technical infrastructures, and
mechanisms in place to enable the delivery of full services under the contract target operating model, are defined as contract
fulfitment costs. Only costs which meet all three of the criteria below are included within contract assets on the batance sheet:

. the costs directly relate to the comract {e.g. direct labour, materials, sub-contrators);
H. the Group Is building an asset that belongs to the customer that will subsequentiy be used to deliver contract outcomes; and
Hi. the costs are expected to be recoverable i.e. the contract is expected to be profitable after amortising the capitalised cnsts,

Contract fullfilment costs covered within the scope of another accounting standard, such as inventories, intangible assets, or property,
plant and equipment are not capitalised as contract fulfilment assets but are treatad acoording to the other standard.

Amortisation and impairment of contract assets

The Group amortises contract assets {pre-contract costs and contract fulfilment costs) on a systematic basis that Is consistent with the
entity’s transfer of the related goods or services to the customer. The expense ks recognised In profit or loss in the period.

A capitalised pre-contract cost or contract fulfiiment cost Is derecognised either when it is disposed of or when no further economic
benefits are expected to flow from its use or disposal.

The Group is required to determine the recoverabllity of contract refated assets at each neporting date, An impalrment exists If the
carrying amount of any asset exceeds the amount of consideration the entity expacts to receive in exchange for providing the
associated goods and services, less the remaining costs that relate directly to providing those goods and services under the relevant
contract. [n determining the estimated amount of consideration, the Group uses the same principles as it does to determine the
contract transaction price which includes estimates around variable consideration. An impairment Is recognised immediately where
such losses are forecast.

Accrued income and deferred income

The Group's customar contracts include a diverse range of payment schedules which are often agreed at the inception of long-term
contracts under which it receives payments throughout the term of the arrangement. Payments for goods and services transferred at a
point in ime may be at the defivery date, in arrears or part payment in advance,

Where revenue recognised st the period end date is more than amounts invoiced, the Group records accrued income for the
difference. Where revenue recognised at the period end date s less than amounts invoiced, the Group recognises deferred Income for
the difference.

Certain arrangements with customers Include a contractual obligation to make redundancies for which the Group is reimbursed for the
costs Incurred, Revenue ks not recognised on these transactions. Instead, the Group expenses all redundancy costs in the period they
are Incurred and any reimbursement credit Is matched against the assodiated cost included in the income statement up to the value of
the redundancy cost incurned. Any cash payments received from the customer in excess of the reimbursement cost of redundancy are
deferrad over the contract berm and unwound In line with the other services being delivered.

Where price step-downs are required in a coptract and output is not decreasing, revenue is deferred from initial years to subsequent
years In order for revenue to be recognised on a consistent basls.

Providing the option for a customer to obtain sxtension periods or other servicas at a significant discount may lead to a separate
performance obligation where a material right exists. Where this is the case, the Group allocates part of the transaction price from the
original contract to deferred Income which is then amaortised over the discounted extension period or recognised immediately when
the extension right expires.

The following disclosures show the impact of the adoption of IFRS 15 on the Group’s primary financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financlal statemants continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Consolidated balance shest RS 15 adjustments £m Balances
As at 31 March 2018 a wtopdnet  Mesated
reported msis 2017
£m A [] [ D E F ) £m £m
Norn-current sssets
Goodwill 3096 - - - - - - - 3088 3439
Other intangible assets 383 - - - 10 - -~ - 393 53.2
Property, plant and equipment 336 - - - 0.2 - - - 138 323
Interest in joint ventures and associates 13 - - - - - - - 08 0.6
Derivative financlal instruments 61 - - - - - -~ - 81 -
Trade and other receivables - 182 856 - = - -~ - 168 50.3
Contract assats 18 - - - {1.8) - ~ - - -
Deferred tax assets 36.7 - - - - - ~ {19.0} 17.7 22
Total non-current assets 4269 182 86 - (0.6) - ~  (19.0) 4341 5025
Current Assats
Imvertories 69 - - - - - - - 68
Trade and other recalvables 3860 200 119 {0.2) - 311 - - 3956
Contract assers 04 - - - (0.4) - - - - -
Derivative financial Instruments - - - - - - - - - 358
Curment tax assets 63 - - - - - - (28} as 121
Cash and cash equivalents 59.8 - - - - - - - 129.1
Total current amets 4594 200 119 (02) (04) 311 - (28) 5190 5794
Total assets 8863 382 205 (02) (L.O) 311} - (21.8) 9531 10819
Current Nebilities
Trade and other payables (406.8) (0.7 - {(38.) - - 0.7 - (53A.8) (5745}
Deferred income (46.2) - - 462 - - - - - -
Financing Sabllities {0.8) - - - - - - - (0.8) (3108}
Provislons @2 - -~ - - - = - (32 (04
Total aurrent Nabiiities (se00) (07) - 82 - - 07 - {s80.8) (905.7)
Nat current liebiiities {1096) 193 119 80 {(04) 311 07 (28) (41%) (3263)
Non-current Habilities
Trade and other payables - - - - - - - - - {3.4)
Deferred income (18.8) - - 188 - - - - - -
Financing liabllities (258.6) - - - - - - - [258.6) (1.3)
Provisions (6.3) - - - - - - - {6.3) {6.4)
Retirement benefit labilities (56.8) - - - - - - - (568) (74.2)
Deferred tax Rabilities {0.8) - - - - - - - j0.8) {11)
Total non-current Nabilities (341.3) - - - - - - _(325) (864)
Total lisbiities (s10.3) (0.7) - N0 - - 07 - (8533} (992.1)
Nat llmymu {240) 3725 205 268 {10} 311 07 {218) 9.2 898
Notes:
mmr—wmsmmmmmmm ethod, the tive i s ot restated,
2. The Group hay restated 2017 In k sheet as per Note |, page 134.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Consolidated Income statement JERS 15 adyustments £m Sulancss
without

For the year ended 31 March 2018 ™ aduption  Restated

reported of IS 15 017

£m A ] C D £ F ] m £m

Continuing operations
Revenue 2,203.7 {76) 06 (31) - 61 (08) ~ 2,1991 21234
Cost of sales (1,894.8) - (86 {5 (@0 (15 @02 ~ (1,906.6) {1,893}
Administrative expenses {220.1) - 3.6 03 - - - - (2162) (236.7)
Share of profit of joint venture
and assoclates 08 - - - - - - - o8 06
Operating profit/(loss) before other items  89.6 {76) (44 {33} (100 46 (08) - 773 (6.3)
Other tems (97.9) {5.1) - - - - - ~ {1030) (36.6)
Operating profit/(1oas) after other kems 83 (1277 (44 (33} (10) 46 (08) - (259) (4929)
Net finance costs (16.4) - - - - - - - (64) (153)
Tax {1.3) - - - - - - 32 19 7.4
Total from continuing operations (2600 {12.7) (a4} (33] (10} 45 (08} 32 (404) (508
Total from discontinued operations - - - - - - - - - {1324)
Loss for the year (260) {127) {44) (33) (1.0) 46 (08) 32 (s04) (183.2)
Notes:

1. The Group hes sppiied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect mathod. Linder this method, the companstive information is not restated.

2 The Group has restated 2717 income strtemant and batance shest as per Note 1, page 134,

The following table details the impact on net assets as at 1 April 2017 and on the revenue and loss for the year recognised for the year
ended 31 March 2018, as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15:

Loss for the
Net assets Revenue yost
£m £m £
Balances without adogtion of IFRS 15 89.8 2,199.1 (40.4)
IFRS 15 adjustments:
A - POC acoounting {50.2) 76 2.7
B — Mobilisation assets (24.9) (0.6} 4.4
C - Design and development and other upfront fees {30.1) 3.1 33
D - Contract assets - - 1.0
E —Work in progress (26.5) (6.1) (4.6)
F —Contracted discounts including extension discounts (1.5) 0.6 038
G-Tax 25.0 - {3.2)
As reportad total {18.4) 2,203.7 {26.0}
Adjustment A — POC accounting

IFRS 15 introduces the concept of performance obligations which are the contractual promises by an entity to transfer goods or
services to a customer. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised on a contract specific basis and in line with the satisfaction of
performance obligations. This s a change from the Group’s previous accounting policy and the use of a percentage of completion
maodel to measure the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date compared to the total estimated contract
costs. Percentage of completion accounting does not provide an appropriste representation of the satisfaction of performance

obligations on these long-term complex contracts and consequently, is no longer applied.

The impact of this Is a decrease in reserves of £50.2m to derecognise the percentage of completion asset held as accrued income on
long-term complex contracts at 1 April 2017 and 2 £12.7m credit to the loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 comprising £7.6m to
reverse the unwind of the asset movement, and £5.1m to reverse a percentage of completion asset write-off included within other

iterns. The reversal of the asset write-off follows the net iImpact of a write-off of £6.6m in relation to the loss of two contracts which
was offset by a £1.5m credit to reinstate a previously written off asset. These balances, which were presented in Gther items, would
not have been recognised under IFRS 15 as percentage of completion accounting would not have been appliad,
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policles continued

Adjustment B — Mobilisation sssets
IFRS 15 specifies that certain costs to fulfil a contract are to be capitalised as contract assets If relevant criteria are met. The Group has

determined that the existing mobilisation asset, whilst appropriate under the previous accounting standard, does not meet the more
stringent criteria under IFRS 15,

The Group has therefore derecognised the asset (including £3.9m recognised in prepayments within trade and other receivables) as at
1 April 2017 leading to a decrease in reserves of £24.9m.

The adjustment to the loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 is a credit of £4.4m to reverse additions and write back amortisation on
the mobilisation balance written off.

Adjustmant C - Dusign and development and other upiront fees

On certain contracts, the Group receives upfront, non-refundable payments from the customer to cover significant costs incurred by
the Group during the initial phase of the contract. Under IFRS 15, costs incurred from these transition and mobilisation activitles, which
are more than administrative In nature, are assessed to determine whether they form a separate performance obligation. Where such
costs do not form a separate performance obiigation under the contract, any upfront payments received from the customer are
allocated to the performance obligations of the contract, deferred and recognised over the life of the other services.

The Group has determined that £30.1m of revenue previously recognised should be presented as deferred income at 1 April 2017
leading to a decrease In reserves by the seme amount. The adjustment to the 10ss for the year ended 31 March 2018 ks a £3.3m oedit
following the rephasing of upfront payments.

Following the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group has prasented deferred income from contracts with customers separately on the batance
sheet. The balance of pre-{FRS 15 current deferred income amounting to £46.2m has been reclassified 83 a result.

Adjustmaent D — Contract assets

IFRS 15 specifies that certain costs to fulfil a contract are to be capitalised as contract assets if relevant criteria are met. The Group
caplitalisad a batance of £1.2m during the year ended 31 March 2018 (comprising £1.0m and £0.2m that would otherwise have been
recorded in other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment respectively) that related to resources to allow it to deliver
services under its contracts for which control had passed to the customer on installation. This amount has been recagnisad on the
balance sheet as an addition to contract assets under IFRS 15.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group capitalised costs of £1.0m that were previously expensad and which refate to assets
10 be used to deliver future contract outcomes.

Adjustment E - Work In progress

Under IFRS 15, revenue Is only recognised when control has passed to a customer and 1t can be reliably measured. income which was
praviously recognised under IAS 11 and 1AS 18 has been remeasured against the more stringent criteria in IFRS 15, resulting in an
amount being derecognised whene & cannot be reliably measured.

The Group has therefore derecognised the asset heid on balance sheet within sccrued income jeading to a reduction in reserves of
£26.5m at 1 April 2017. The impact to the loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 Is 3 debk of £4.6m.

Adjustment F — Contracted discounts including extension discounts

Where a contract provides the option for a customer to obtain an sxtension period at a significant discount, this may lead to a separate
performance obligation where a material right exists. If a separate performance obligation exists then there would be an allocation of
the transaction price from the original contract through the option period. A balance is therefore adjusted in reserves and recognised
in daferred incoma with the unwind recagnised over the extension pertod (or immediately if the option expires).

The Group has recorded a reduction of £1.5m i reserves at 1 April 2017 to refiect the materinl right with the batance recognised in
deferred Income, which will be unwound as future services are delivered. The iImpact to the Joss for the year ended 31 March 2018 is »
credit of £0.8m.

Adjustmenmt G - Tax

Due to the changes in the pattern and timing of revenue recognition under RS 15, an additional deferred income liability Is
recognised on the balance sheet from 1 April 2017, via a charge to the opening balance of equity at 3 April 2017. Further, certain assets
previously held in accrued income and recognised through the Income statement in eadier periods have been derecognisad from

1 April 2017, again via 3 charge to the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2017,

A tax deduction Is avaflable at 1 April 2017 for the one-off transitional adjustments recognised in opening equity. This tax deduction
gives rise to tax iosses at 1 April 2017, creating a deductibie temporary difference for which a deferred tax asset of £25.0m is
recognised at 1 April 2017, leading to an increase in reserves by the same amount. The tax impact of the IFRS 15 adjustments on the
loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 is a charge of £3.2m, of which £1.0m arises on the adjustmant to other ikems.
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1. Basls of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

b) Significant accounting policies
The significant accourting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group’s RS financlal information are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial staternents of Mitie Group plc and all its subsidiaries. The parent
company has applied FRS 101 ‘Reduced disclasure frameworic In the preparation of its individual financlal statements. FRS 101 applies
SFRS as adopted by the European Union with certain disclosure exemptions.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control s transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred out of the Group. The results, assets and liabilities of joint ventures and associates are
accounted for under the equity method of accounting. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financlal statements of
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates to bring the accounting poficies used into line with those used by the Group.

All imter-company balances and transactions, including unrealised profits arising from inter-group transactions, have been eliminated
in full.

Interests of non-controlling interest shareholders are measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportion of the net fair value of the
assats and liabilities recognised. Changes in @ parent’s ownership interest In a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for within shanehoiders’ equity. No gain or loss is recognised on such transactions and goodwill is not re-measured. Any
difference between the change In the non-controlling Interest and the fair value of the consideration paid or received Is recognised
directly in equity and attributed 1o the equity hoklers of the parent.

Statutory and non-statutory measures of performance
The financial statements contain all the Information and disclosures required by the relevant accounting standards and regulatory
obligations that apply to the Group.

In the financial staternents the Group has elected to provide some further disclosures and performance measunis, reported as ‘before
other items’, in order to present its financial results In a way that demonstrates the performance of continuing operations excluding
the results from restructuring and acquisition related costs, and the amortisation or write-off of acquired intangible assets and
goodwill. Results before other iterns is a non-statutory measure.

*Other iRemns’ are defined as items of income or expenditure which, in the opinion of the Directors, are material or unusual n nature or
of such significance that they require separate disclosure on the face of the income statement in sccordance with 1AS 1 ‘Presentation
of financial staternents’. Should thesa Ttems be reversed disclosure of this would alsc be as other items.

Separate presentation of these items Is Intended to enhance understanding of the financial performance of the Group In the period
and the extent to which results are influenced by material unusual and/or non-recurting items.

Further detail of other items is set out In Note 4 to the finandial statements.

In addition, following the guidelines on Altemnative Performance Measures {APMs) issued by the European Securities and Markets
Authorities (ESMA), the Group has included an APM appendix to the financial statements on pages 204 and 205. These APMs are
measures which disclose the adjusted performance of the Group without the adoption of IFRS 15 and excluding specific items which
are regarded as non-recurring. The Directors betleve that these are useful for users of the financial statements in helping to provide a
balanced view of, and relevant information on, the Group’s finandial performance as the Group has applied IFRS 15 In the 2018
financial statements using the cumulative effect method through an adjustment to the opening balance of equity as st 1 April 2017
and has not restated the comgarative information for the 2017 finandal year. In addition there were a number of significant
restatements recorded in the 2017 financial statements.

Forelgn currency

The financial statements of each of the Group’s businessas are prepared in the functional currenty applicable to that business.
Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cusrencles at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange
prevailing at that date.

Non-monetary lems carried at falr value that are denominated in foreign currencles are transkated at the rates prevalling at the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forelgn currency are not retranslatad.

Exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary items, and on the retransiation of monetary ftems, are inckided in the
income statement for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on the retranstation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised directly in equity.
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1. DBasis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

On consolidation, the assets and llabilities of the Group’s forelgn aperations, incduding goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
their acquisition, are translated into sterling at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses are
transtated into steriing at average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences arising are recognised directly in equity inthe
Group’s hedging and translation reserve. On disposal of a forelgn operation, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity
refating to that particular foreign operation i recognised in the income statement.

Finance costs

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that are incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Finance costs are
recognised in the income statement in the period in which they are incurred, with the finance charges relating to the direct cost of
debt Issue spread over the period to redemption using the effective interest methed.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
staternent because it excludes items of income or expense that are tixable or deductible in other years and it further excludes itemns
that are never taxable or deductible. The Groug’s Kabilty for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enactad by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Rabilities in
the financial statements and the cornesponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and s accounted for using the
batanoe sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabifities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferrad tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and labilities are not recognised If the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initia) recognition {other than in a business combination) of other assets and llabliities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

The carvying amount of defermed tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the axtent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient tswable profits will be avaltsbie to aliow all or part of the assat to be recovered,

Deferred tax ts calculsted at the tax rates that are sxpacted to apply in the period when the liabifity Is settied or the asset

is realised, based upon tax rates and legisiation that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred
tax Is charged or credited in the income statemnent, except when it relates to tems charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and llabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current ta
liabilities; or when they relate to income taxes ieviad by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and fabilities on a net basis.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accountad for using the acquisition method. The cost of the acquisttion is measured at the aggregate
of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assats given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instrutments issued by the Group
In exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition costs incurred ave expensed. The acquiree identifiable assets, labillties and
contingent liabifities that meet the conditions for recognition are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, sxcapt for non-
current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for resale in accordance with IFRS S ‘Non-current assets heid for sale and
discontinued operations’, which are recognised and measured at fair value bess costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquiskion Is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair vake of the identifiable assets, kabilities and contingent liabliities recognised. If,
after reassessment, the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquired identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in the iIncome statement,

Where applicable, the consideration for an acquisition Includas any assets or llabikties resulting from a contingent consideration
amangement, maasured at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsaquent changes in such fair values are adjusted against the cost of
acquisition whare they result from additional information, obtained within one year from the acquisition date, about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date. All other subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified
as an asset or lisbility sre recognised in sccordance with IAS 39, either in the income statement or as a change to other comprehansive
Income. Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as equity are not recognised.

Any business combinations prior to 1 April 2010 were accounted for using the standards in place prior to the adoption of

IFRS 3 {revised 2008} which differ in the following respects: transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition formed part of the
acquisition costs; contingent consideration was recognised i, and only If, the Group had a present cbligation, the economic outflow
was more likely than not and a reliable estimate was determinable; and subsequent adjustments to the contingent consideration were
recognised as part of goodwill.

44 www.mithecom | The exceptional everuday




1. Basls of preparation and significant accounting policles continued

Changes In the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their refative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controtling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss Is recognised In profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between: {i)
the aggregate of the fair vakie of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest; and (ii} the previous carrying
armount of the assets {inclufing goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controling interests. Al amounts previousty
recognised in other comprehensive income in retation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or kabilities of the subsidiary i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs. The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost ks regarded as the fair value on initial recognitian for subsequent accounting under IAS 39, when applicable, of an investment inan
associate or a joint venture,

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on consolidstion represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest In the fair value
of the identifiable assets and Nabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill ks initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. It is
reviewed for impatrment at least annuatly. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the income statement for the period and is
not subsequently reversed.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group”s cash-generating units {OGUs) expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. ¥ the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the catrving
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basls of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. On disposal of a subsidiary the
attributable amount of goodwill Is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated deprediation and any impairment in value, Depreciation is charged so
as to write off the cost less expected residual value of the assets over their estimated useful lives and is calculated on a straight-line
basls as follows:

Freehold bulidings and long leasehold property S0 years
Leasehold improvements period of the lease
Plant and vehicles 3-10years

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to deterrnine whether there Is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impalrment loss. I any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset Is estimated in order to determine the
extent of any impairment lass, Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs,

Recoverable amount Is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and vakie in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset far which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

if the recoverable amount of an asset [or OGU) ks estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
{or OGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss Is recognised as an expense immadiately,

Where an Impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU} Is Increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increasad carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had na impairment loss been recognised for the asset {or CGU) In prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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Notas to the consolidated financla) statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basls of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Intangible assets
Intangible assets identified in a business acquisition are capitalisad at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Customer relationships are amortised over their useful lives based on the period of time over which they are anticipated to generate
benefits. These currently range from four to eight years.

Software and devalopment expenditure is capitalised as an intangible asset If the asset created can be identified, if it \s probable that
the asset created will generate future economic benefits and If the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Other acquisltion related intangibles include acquired software and technology which are amortised over their useful lives which
currently range from three to ten years. Software and development costs indudes internally generated intangible assets and are
amortised aver their useful lives of between five and ten years, once they have been brought into use.

Following initial recognition, the carrying amount of an intangible asset Is its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an
Indication that they may be impaired. Amortisation expense Is charged to administrative expenses in the income statement on a
stralght-line basis over its useful life.

Joint ventures and associates
The Group has an interest in joint ventures which are entities in which the Group has joint control. The Group also has an intenest in
assoclates which are entities in which the Group has significant influence.

The Group accounts for its nterest in joint vantures and assocates using the equity method. Under the equity method the Group's
share of the post-tax result of joint ventures and associates ik reported a3 a single line item In the consolidated Income statement.
The Group’s interest i joint ventures and associates is camried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes
in the Group's share of net assets.

Inventories
lventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Casts represant materials, divect labour and overheads incurred in bringing the inventories to the!r present condition and location.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and estimated selling
costs, Provision is made for obsolete, slow moving or defective items where appropriate.

Finandal instruments

Financlal assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Instrument. The Group derecognises financial assets and liabilities only when the contractual rights and
obligations are transferred, discharged or expire,

Assets that are assessed not to be individually impaired are subsequently assessed for impatrment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impsirment for a portfolio of recelvables includes the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period as well as observable changes In national or focal economic conditions
that correlate with defsult on recelvables.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly with the exception of trade receivables where the
carrying amount is recuced through the use of an sllowance acoount. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectable, it is written
off against the allowance account, Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the afiowance
accounit. Changes In the carrying amount of the sllowance account are recognised In the income statement.

Financlal assets comprise lkans and receivables and are measured at initial recognition at fair value and subsequently at amortised
cast. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised where there s objective evidence that the assetis
impaired. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily corwertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valve.

The Group uses a nonrecourse custormner invoice discounting faciity under which certein trade receivable balances are sold to the
Group's relationship banks. The trade receivables are sold without recourse to the Group, and therefore tha trade receivable balance
ks derecognised.

Financial kabilities comprise trade payables, financing liabllities, bank and other borrowings, and deferred contingent consideration.
These are measured at initial recognition at faic value and subsequently at amortised cost with the exception of derivative financial
instruments which are measured at fair value, and deferred contingent consideration which Is measured at the Directors’ best
estimate of the likely future obligation. Bank and other borrowings are stated at the amount of the net proceeds after deduction of
transaction oosts. Finance changes, inciuding premiums payable on settiement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for
on an accruals basis in the Income staterment.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policles continued

Included within the Group's trade creditors balance are amounts relating to payments due to UK suppliers who make use of bank
pravided supply chain finance arrangements to allow supplier early payment. Amaurtts are settled in accordance with each suppliers’
normal payments terms and payments continue to be classified within cash generated by operations. The Group does rot receive any
additional guarantees und does not pay any interest in relation tn these amounts.

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds recelived, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financlal instruments, including cross-currency interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts,
to manage the Group’s exposure to financial risks associated with interest rates and foreign exchange. Derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised st fair vahie at the date the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured 1o their

fair value, determined by reference to market rates, at each balance sheet date and inchuded as financial assets or ksbilities as
appropriate. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the income statement immediately uniess the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the income statement depends on the nature of

the hedge relationship,

The Group may designate certain hedging instruments induding derivatives as ekher fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of
net investmnents in foreign operations, Hedges of forelgn exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.
At the Inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged
tbem, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basls, the Group documents whether the hedging Instrument that is used in a hedging
relationship is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.

Fair value hedges

Hedges are classified as fair value hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability.
Changes in the fair valye of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement
immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hadged item that are attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the
fair value of the hedging instrument and the change In the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the kine of the
income statement relating to the hedged item. Hedge accounting ks discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging refationship,
the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accourkting. The fair value adiustment
to the carrying amount of the hedged ltem arising from the hedged risk is amortised to the income statement from that date.

Cash fiow hedges

Hedges are classified as cash fiow hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes in cash flows that are attributable to a particutar
risk associated with either a recognised asset or liability or a forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair vlue of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity within the Group’s transiation and hadging reserve, The gain or loss retating to any ineffective portion Is recognised iImmediately
in the income staternent.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are redassified to the income statement in
the periods when the hedged item is recognised in the income statement, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However,
when the forecast trarsaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financlal asset or a non-financial llability, the gains

and losses previcusly accurmulsted In equity are transferred from equity and included In the inkdal measurement of the cost of the
non-financial asset or non-financial liabikty. Hedge accounting Is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge acoounting. Any sain or loss recognised
In other comprehensive income at that time Is accumulated In equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in the intome statement. When a forecast transaction ks no longer expected to occur, the galn or loss accumulated in
equity is recognised immediately In the incoma statement.
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Notas to the consolidated finandlal statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basls of preparation and significant accounting policles continued

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Hecdiges are classifiad as net investment hedges when they hedge the foreign currency exposure to changes In the Group's share in the net
assats of a foreign operation. Hedges of net investments In forsign operations are scoounted for similarly to cash fiow hedges. Any gain
or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised In other comprehensive income and
aocuimidated in the Group’s transiation and hedging reserve, The gain or lass relating to any ineffective portion Is recognised immediately
in the iIncome staternent. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge accurmulated in equity
ave reclassified to the Income statement In the same way as exchange differences relating to the forelgn aperation as described above.

Leasing

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the sisks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are
capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased item or, if lower, st the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease Rabiiity 50 as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability, Finance charges are charged directly to the income statement.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated fife of the asset or the lease term.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the asset are classified 3s operating
leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Any lease Incentives are amortised on a stralght-line basts over the non-cancellable period for which the Group has contracted to lease
the asset, together with any further terms for which the Group has the option to continue to lease the asset I, at the Inoeption of the
lease, it is judged to be reasonably certaln that the Group will exercise the option.

Provisions

Prowvisions are recognised when the Group has a presant obligation {legal or constructive) as 8 result of a past event and it is probabie
that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a refiable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation, Where the Group &xpects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate paset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to any provision 8 prasented in the Income statement net of any reimbursement. if the effect of the time value of
money Is material, provisions are determined by dsoounting the expected future cash flows &t » pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liabillty. Where discounting Is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time Is recognised as a bormowing cost.

Onerous contract provisions (OCPs) arise when the unavoldable costs of meeting contractual obligations exceed the remuneration
expected to be received. Unavoidabile costs include total contract costs together with a rational aliocation of shared costs that can
bedirectly linked to fulfilling contractusl obligations which have been systematically allocated to OCPs on the basis of key cost drivers
except where this s impracticable, where contract revenue is used as 3 proxy to activity. The provision Is cakulated as the lower of the
termination costs payeble for an early exit and the expected net cost to fulfil the Group's unavoidable contract obligations. Where a
customer has an option to extend a contract and it is itkely that such an extension will be made, the expected net cost arising during
the extension period i Included within the calculation. However, where a profit can be reasonably expected In the extension period,
no credit ks taken on the basis that such profits are uncertain given the potential for the customer to either not extend or offer an
extension under lower pricing terms.

Share-based payments

The Group operates » number of executive and employee share option schemnes. Equity-settied share-based payments to employees
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments st the grant date. The fair value excludes the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions, For grants of share options and awards, the fair value as st the date of grant is calculated using the Black-Scholes
model, Morte Carlo model or the share price at grant date, and the corresponding expense is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period based on the Group's estimate of shanes that will eventually vest. At each balance sheet dats, the Group revises its
astimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non-market based vesting conditions, Save
As You Eam (SAYE) options are treated a3 canceled when employees cease to contribute to the scheme, resulting in an acceleration of
the remainder of the related expense, Restricted shares are issied attached with a condition that the relevant reciplent continues thelr
employment with the Group for a fixed vesting pariod of time. Restrictions will remain attached to the shares If the recipient leaves
employment with the Group prior to completion of the vesting period of the shares.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Own shares

Own shares relate o shares gifted to the Employee Trust by the Company. The cash cost of own shares creates an own shares reserve.
When options issued by the Employee Trust are exercised the own shares reserve is reduced and a gain or loss is recognised in
reserves based on proceeds less weighted-average cost of shares inltially purchased now exercised.

Included In the own shares reserve are restricted shares which are issued as part of acquisitions made by the group. The restricted
shares are ssued attached with a candition that the relevant recipient continues their employment with the Group for a fixed vesting
period of time. Restrictions will remain attached to the shares if the recipient leaves employment with the Group prior to completion
of the vesting period of the shares.

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a number of defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for all qualifying employees. Payments to the
defined contribution and stakeholder pension schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

In addition, the Group operates and participates In a number of defined benefit schemes. In respect of the schemes in which the
Group participates, the Group accounts for its kegal and constructive obligations over the period of Its participation which isfora
fived period only.

For the defined benefit pension schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses on obligations, the retum on scheme assets
{excluding Interest) and the effect of the asset cetiing (if applicable} are recognised in full in the period in which they occur. They are
racognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Current service cost and past service cost (including curtaliments) are recognised in the income statement, in either administrative
expensas or other tems, whilst the net interest cost is recognised in finance costs.

The retirement benefit liabllity recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation, as
reduced by the falr value of scheme assets. Anty asset resulting from this cafcuiation ks Bmited to the present value of avallable refunds
and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The Group participates In four multh-employer pension schemes. For three of these schernes the Group’s share of the assats and
liabilities is minimal. The fourth scheme & the Plumbing & Mechanical Services {UK) Industry Penslon Scheme {the Plumbing Scheme)
a funded multi-employer defined benefit scheme. The Plumbing Scheme was founded in 1975 and to date has had over 4,000 employers,
with circa 400 remaining. The size and complexity of the Plumbing Scheme has meant the trustee is unable at this time to identify the
assets and liabilities of the scheme which are attributable to the Group. Consequently, the Group accounts for its contributions as i
they were paki t0 a defined contribution scheme.

For schemes where sufficent information is not avallable to use defined benefit accounting, nc liability is recognised on the balance
sheet, however, the obligations are disclosed as contingent Rabflities in Note 34.
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Notas to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Revenue under {AS 11 and AS 18 in refation to prior year

Revenue represents income recognised in respect of services provided during the period {stated net of sales taxes) and Is eamed
predominantly within the United Kingdom. Revenue is recognised to the extent that It is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue can be reflably measured, When revenue is recognised but has not yet been bitled accrued income
arises. Deferred income arises when the Group has billed clients in advance of recognising revenue.

All bid costs are expensed through the Income statement up to the point where contract award or full recovery of the costs is virtually
certain. The confirmation of the preferred bidder for a contract by a client is the point at which the award of a contract Is considered to
be virtually certain.

Revenue from a contract to provide services Is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract at the balance sheet
date, Revenue from time and material contracts Is recognised at the contractual rates as labour hours and tasks are defvered and
direct expenses incurred. In other cases, the Group distinguishes between the following types of contract:

Revenue recognition: repeat service-based contracts (single and bundied

Revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis unless this is not an accurate reflection of the work performed. Where a stralght-line
basis is not appropriate, for example ¥ specific works on contracts represent a significant element of the whole, revenue Is recognised
based on the percentage of completion method, based on the proportion of costs incurred at the balance sheet date relative to the
total estimated cost of completing the contractad work,

Costs incurred, after the confirmation of preferred bidder, that are specific costs incurred to ensure that the project or programime has
appropriate organisational, operational and tachnical infrastructures and mechanisms in place to enable the delivery of full services
under the contract target operating model are defined as mobilisation costs. These costs are included within trade and other
receivables on the balance sheet provided that the costs relate directly to the contract, are separately identifiable, can be measured
refiably and that the future net cash inflows from the contract are estimated to ba no less than the amounts capitalised.

Such costs may be incurred when a contract b awarded, or when there is a subsequent change in the scope of contracted services. The
mobilisation costs are amortised over the contracted period (inciuding any contracted extansion periods), generally on a straight-line
basis, or on a basis 10 reflect the profile of work to be performed over the contracted period if the straight-ine bass Is not considered
1o be appropriate for the specific contract to which the costs relate. If the contract becomes loss making, any unamortised costs are
written off and the expected loss Is provided for Immediately.

Rewvenue recognition: long-term complex contracty
The Group has a number of long-term contracts for the provision of complex project-based services, predominantly integrated faciiities
management contracts. These are contracts which are transformational in nature and usually five years in Initial duration.

In this context, transformational means that the cost to the dient over the life of the contract is reduced as a result of significant
transformations in servioe provision. Typically, these contracts are priced to average the annual charge to the client over the contract
period and involve the provision of multiple service ines, with a single management team providing an integrated service.

Where the outcome of such complex project-based contracts can be measured reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference
to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the halance sheet date. This is measured by the proportion of cantract costs
incurced for work performead to date compared to the total estimated contract ¢osts using the percentage of completion methodology.

Contract costs used to determine the stage of compietion are recognised In the income statement as expenses i the period in which they
are incurred and include transition costs, which are similar in nature to mobilisation costs under repeat service-based contracts. Transition
costs ane expenses incurmed in the performance of transitioning services provided after confirmation of preferred bidder and befre
commencement of full services under the comtract target operating moded; no profit margin is recognised for these transition costs,

Contract costs also inchude transition costs arising when there is a subsequent change in the scope of contracted services and include
budgeted cost savings. Where the outcome of a complex project-based contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue
recognised to the extent that it Is probable that contract costs will be recovered, Full provision is made for all known or anticipated
losses on sach contract immediately as losses are forecast, In a number of long-term complax contracts, the achievement of certain
key performance indicators {KPis) ks a significant milestone which enables revenue to be recognised. KPis are generally measured
contemporaneously with the performance of the service, rather than being measured over a long period or retrospectively.
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2. Critical accounting Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of consolidated finandal statements under IFRS requines management to make judgements, estimates and
assurnptions that affect amounts recognised for assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the amounts of revenue and expenses
incurred during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from these judgernents, estimates and assumptions.

The judgements and estimates which have the mast significant effect on the reported result for the period and upon the carrying value
of assets and Habilitles of the Group as at 31 March 2018 are described below,

Revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies, which are set out under IFRS 15 in Note 1(a) for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 and
under LAS 18 and IAS 11 in Note 1(b) in respect of prior years, are central to how the Group measures the work it has performed in
each financial year.

The Group’s current policy under IFRS 15

Due to the size and complexity of the Group's contracts, management is reguired 1o form a number of key judgements and
assumptions in the determination of the amount of revenue and profits to record, and related balance sheet ltems such as contract
assets, accrued income and deferred income to recognise (refer to Note 1(a)}. This includes an assessment of the costs the Group
incurs to deliver the contractual commitments and whether such costs should be expensed as incurred or capitalised.

In addition, for certain contracts, key assurnptions are made:

i. conceming contract extensions and amendments which, for example, directly impact the phasing of upfront payments from
customers which are rezognised in deferred income and unwound over the expected contract term; ar
#i. where options are granted to customers leading to the recognition of a material right,

These judgements are inherently subjective and may cover future events such as the achievement of contractual performance torgets
and planned cost savings or discounts.

The Group’s prior year policy under IAS 18 and IAS 11

The revenue recognised for certain long-term complex project-based services was based on the stage of completion of the contract
activity. This was measured by comparing the proportion of costs incurmed, which include transition costs reflecting costs incurred in
the performance of transitioning services, against the estimated whole-life contract costs. This required significant judgements to be
made in forecasting the outcomes of the long-term contracts.

Particular judgement was required in evaluating the operational and financial business plans for these contracts to forecast the
expected whole-life contract blilings, costs and margin and to assess the recoverability of any resulting accrued income through the life
of the contract. In forming the judgement around expected whole-ife contract billings, account was taken of potential deductions
from and increments to revenue arising from the application of performance related measures under contracts,

This required management to apply Judgements and estimates that drew on the knowledge and experience of the Group’s project
managers and delivery teams together with the Group’s commercial and finance professionals. Whilst there may have been a broad
range of possible outcomes based on the relevant drcumstances of the Individual contract, the Group had controls in place whereby all
significant contracts were reviewed on a monthly basis and reforecast quarterty.

The amounts recognised as revenue, profit and contract assets were sensitive to changes In assumptions, for sxample:

* Revenue measurement — in line with the Group's revenue recognition policy for long-term complex contracts, revenue was
recognised on these contracts ta the extent that the outcome of the project could be rellably measured. For Jong-term complex
contracts this required judgements to be made on which elements of the contract could be acturately foracast, These contracts
would usually comprise fixed revenue streams, variable works and project works. Project works were not included as part of a long-
term complex contract on the basis that these amounts were discretionary and consequently could not be reliably forecast.
Therefore, these projects were accounted for separately. The revenue streams that could be reliably foracast comprised the fixed
elements (for example for ongoing deaning and security services) and variable works.

* Contract profitability and costs to compiete — long-term complex contracts are transformationa! in nature and there Is 2
commitment to work In partnership with the dient from the outset of the contract to drive significant cost savings and effidencies
throughout the fife of the contract. During the mobilisation of & contract a rrget operating model is developed. This target
operating model shows how the setvices that ane part of the contract will be delivered during the contract and s subjectto a
continuous review/improvement process throughout the duration of the contract. The target operating model, cost saving
Inkiativas identified and revenue pipeline were combined into a financial plan for the individual contract. Only cost saving initlatives
that were considered to be reasonably certain in terms of timing and scale were included in the plan. Management’s ability to
accurately forecast the costs to complete the contract involved judgements around cost savings to be achieved over time,
anticipsted profitability of the contract, as well as contract specific performance KPis. Where a contract was anticipated to make a
loss, these judgements were also relevant in determining whether or not an onerous contract provision was required and how this
was to be measured.
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Notas to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2. (Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

¢ Renegotiation of terms —the Group often entered into renegotiations of existing contract terms such as the timing or the
specifications of the services to be delivered. Depending on the outcome of such negotiations, the timing and amount of revenue
recognised may have been different.

* Recoverabliity of contract related assets - linked to the profitabliity of contracts above, management was ako required to determine
the recoverabity of contract related assets, acorued income and accounts receivable. Judgement was required in determining
whether or not the future economic benefits from contracts were sufficient to recover these contract assets,

Profit before other items

‘Other items’ are items of financial performance which the Group believes should be separately Kentified on the face of the income
statement to assist in understanding the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group. Determining whether an item
should be classified as other ftlems requires judgement as to whether an item Is or ks not part of the undertying performance of

the Group.

Other items after tax of £87.2m (2017: £153.5m) were charged to the income statement for the year ended 31 March 2018.

An analysis of the amounts included in other items s detalied In Note 4,

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Impairment of goodwill

Detarmining whether goodwill is impaired requires sn estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units (CGUSs) to which the
goodwill has been aliocated. The value In use calculation invoives an estimation of the future cash fiows of CGUs and also the selection
of appropriate discount rates to calculate the present values of those cash flows.

The carrying value of goodwill at 31 March 2018 was £309.6m (2017: £343.9m); see Note 13, A sensitivity analysis has bean performed
and the Board has concluded, with the exception of the Property Management OGU, that no reasonably foreseeable change in the key
assumptions would result in an impairment of the goodwill,

Due to a deterioration in market conditions which is expected to impact the performance of the Property Management OGU further
sensitivity testing was performed. On the basis of this review the Board concluded that a further impalrment of £34.6m was required
and this has been recorded during the year as outlined in Note 13. The impacts of changes in key assumptions underpinning the
assessment of the carrying value of the Property Management goodwiil are set out in Note 13.

Recoverability of aged debtors and accrued income

The Group has material amounts of billed and unbilied work outstanding at year end as outiined in Note 17, Where balances become
aged or subject to dispute the risk of recoverabiltty Increases. As 3 consequenae there Is significant management judgement involved
In assessing the recoverability of these balances which involves consideration of Group contractual rights, work performed as well

as the status of ongoing commercial negotiations. In the curnent year the Group has recognised a valuation allowsnce of £17.3m
(2017: £16.2m) in respect of aged and disputed balances.

Provisions and contingent liabililes

The Company and vavious of ks subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to legal proceedings and claims that are in the ordinary course of
buslness. Judgements are required in order to assess whether these legal proceedings and daims are probable and the liabiity can be
reasonably estimated, resulting in a provision or, aitematively, whether the ltems meet the definttion of contingent Rabilities.

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and therefore in making a reliable estimate of the quantum and timing of
liabikties judgement Is apphied and re-evaluated at each reporting date. The Group recognised provisions st 31 March 2018 of £31.5m
{2017: £26.8m). Further details are included in Note 28,

Measurement of defined benefit pension obligations
The net pension Kability at 31 March 2018 was £56.8m (2017: £74.2m).

The measurement of defined benefit obligations requires judgement. it Is dependent on material key assumptions including
discount rates, iife expectancy rates, and future contribution rates. see Note 37 for further detall and a sensitivity analysis for the
key assumptions.

The Group also participates In four multi-employer defined benefit pension schemes, including the Plumbing & Mechanical Services
(UK} Industry Pension Scheme (the Plumbing Scheme). The Group has a potential exposure to Section 75 employer debts in respect of
the Plumbing Scheme. Due 10 the Inherent uncertainty regarding the amount of any llability this has been disclosed as a contingent
Hability, see Note 34 and Note 37.
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3. Buslness segment information

The Group manages Its business on a service division basis. At 31 March 2018, the Group has the following seven strategic divisions
which are its reportable segments and the information, as reported, is consistent with information presented to the Board. Revenue,
operating profit hefore other items and operating profit margin before other items are the primary measures of performance that are

reported to and reviewed by the Board, who Is the Group”s chief operating decision maler.

The Information presented for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been restated to reflect changes in management reporting,
implemented In 2018, of certain business unlt activities transferring between Engineering Services, Security, Professional Services and

Cleaning & Environmental Services and the splitting of Public Services into Care & Custody and Property Management.

Restated
g 20174
Oparating Operating
profit/foss) Opersting profit/{loss) Operating
balora  marginbefors beforeather  mangin hefore
Revenus other Nerms? other keme® Neverue Tems? other iverms?
£m £m % £m £m =
Engineering Services B40.7 458 54 789.1 (a.5) {0.6)
Security 432.0 21.5 64 4037 178 44
Professional Services 90.2 65 7.2 96.6 6.7 69
Cleaning & Environmental Services 4064 215 53 395.6 565 16
Care & Custody 599 19 32 46.4 2.2 47
Catering 137.1 56 4.2 1343 4.7 35
Property Management 237A 7.3 31 2577 {4.5) {1.7)
Corporate centra - (26.5) - - (35.2) -
Total from continuing operations 2,203.7 29.6 4.1 21234 (6.3) {0.3)
Healthcare - - - 59.2 {12.0} {20.3)
Total from ciscontinued operations - - - 59.2 {12.0) {20.3)
Total 2,203.7 Mms 4.1 2,1826 (18.3) {0.8)
Notes:
1. The Group has sppiied RS 15 using the cumuiative eifect method. Under this method, the comparative information & not restatec, See Note 1.
2 Other hatond e 33 described In Note 4,
3. Nosingle astomer accounted for more than 10% of external revenue in 2018 or 2017
4, The Group hiss restated 2017 income statemerst and balance sheet as pér Note 1, page 134,
A reconcliiation of segment operating profit/(loss) before other kems to total loss before tax is provided below:
s 2017
£m £m
Operating proftt/(lass) before other ltems 8/s {6.3)
Other items? (97.9) (36.6}
Net finance costy (16.4) [15.3)
Total from continuing operations (24.7} (58.2)
Operating loss before other ttems - (12.0}
Other ttems? - (123.2)
Total from discontinued operations - (135.2)
Loss before tax (2a.n (193.4)
Notes:

1. The Group has spalied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this mesthod, the comperative information i not restated. See Note 1.
2. Qther Hems are &5 desaribed in Note 4.

IFRS 8 raquires that & measure of segmaent assets should be disclosed only If that amount k& regularly provided 1o the chief operating

decision maker and consequently no segment assets are disclosed.
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3. Business segment information continued
Geographical segments

Restated
2018 2017
Oparating

proft Oparating flom) Operating

hallory margin belore befare other margin before

Roverne other Rerms* other Rems? Revenue Itarng? othar tems*

m £m % £m £m -
United Kingdorm 2,093.7 83 43 2,015.2 (4.8} {0.2}
Other countries 110.0 03 03 108.2 (1.5) {1.4}
Continuing operstions 2,203.7 89.6 41 21234 (6.3} {0.3)
Unibed Kingdom - - - 59.2 {12.0} {20.3}
Other countries - - - - - -
Discontinued operations - - - 59.2 {12.0) {20.3)
Total 2,208.7 296 4.0 2,182.6 (18.3) {0.8)

Notes:

1. The Group hes appliad IFRS 15 uting the curnaiative effect method. Under this method, the comparative information iz not restated. See Note 1.

2. Other leeans are as deseribed in Hote 4.

Disaggregated revenue

The Group disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by sector (government and non-government} and by contract
duration {contracts with a duration from inception of less than two years, and contracts with a duration from inception of more than
two years). The Group believes this best depicts how the nature, timing and amount of revenue and cash flows ane affected by
economic factors. The following table indudes a reconcifiation of disaggregatad revenue with the Group’s reportable segments.

Soctort  Contract dusstion for Mming of revenus recagnition

Lags than

Govammant FOVNIANt Totl 2yanrs 2yann Total
S tm m £m £m m
Engineering Services 330.6 510.1 840.7 876 753.1 840.7
Security 39 3481 432.0 58.7 3763 4320
Professional Services 80 22 902 61 s 90.2
Cleaning & Ervironmental Services 0s 316.6 #06.4 - 406.4 4064
Care & Custody 599 - 599 - 599 599
Catering 4.6 1325 1371 16 1385 1371
Property Management 1544 430 2374 1442 932 2374
Continuing operstions 72 14325 2,203.7 295.2 1,908.5 2,203.7
Notes:

1. TheGroup has applied IFRS 15 wing the cumulative effect method. Under this mathod, the comparative infonmation Is not restated and s therefone not presented s pirt of

this snabyels. Seq Nowe 1.

1. Sector bs defined by the erxd astomer an any conkract a4, if the Group i 3 sub-contractor O & Construcion oompany for the buliding of » pubiic: hospital, then the contract

would be ciassified &5 government,
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3. Business segrment information continued

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

The table below shows the forward order book for each segment at the reporting date with the time bands of when the Group expects
10 recognise secured revenue on its contracts with customers, Secured revenue corresponds to fixed work contracted with customers
and excludes the impact of any anticipated contract extensions, and new contracts with customers.

Toral

Laes then More then racwred

1yeer 1yewr ovenL

£m £m £m

Engineering Services 3833 1,680.9 2,064.2
Security 300.1 340.7 6408
Professional Services 218 $3.7 755
Cleaning & Environmental Services 2190 3.3 6613
Care & Custody 100.8 5693 670.1
Catering 82 26.5 34.7
Property Management 107.7 2410 3487
Total 1,200.8 3,2044 44953

4. Otheritems

Other ltems are items of financial performance which the Group believes should be separately identified on the face of the income
statement to assist In understanding the underlying financial performance achleved by the Group.

The Group separately reports the impairment of goodwill, the cost of restructuring programmes, acquisition and disposal costs
including the write-off and amortisation of acquisition related Intangible assets, the results of and costs assoclated with disposals, and
other exceptional items and their related tax effect as Other ltems:

2008
Accpulaltion & Other
mpairment of Restructure apcanl ancaptions!
poodwill costs  welnted costs Rars Total
Continuing operations £m &m £m fm £m
Administrative axpenses 34.6) {47.3) (8.4) {7.6) {97.9)
Other ltems before tax (34.6) 473) (8.4} (7.6 f97.9)
Tax - a8 0A 15 10.7
Other items after tax {34.6) {38.5) (8.0} {6.1) (87.2)
w7
Accuisition &
mpsirmentof  Restructure duposal Heshhcare
oodwill costs  relsted costs disposal Total

Continuing operations £m £m £m Em £m
Administrative expenses {15.0) {14.9) (6.7) - {36.6)
Other items before tax {15.0) (14.9) (6.7} - (26.6)
Tax - 3.0 1.1 - 4.1
Other items after tant {15.0) {11.9) {5.6) - {32.5)
Discontinued operations
Other Rems after tax (81.1) {03) {9.2) (30.4) {1210}
Total (96.1) {12.2) {14.8) (30.4) {153.5)
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4. Other items continued

Impairment of goodwill
Management has assessed the recoverability of the goodwill allocated to the Property Management OGU and has recognised an
Impalrment charge of £34.6m (2017: £15.0m). See Note 13 for further detalls.

Impakment of goodwill from discontinued operations relates to the impairment of the remaining carrying value of goodwil for the
Healthcare OGU of £nH {2017: £81.1m).

Restructure costs
The restructure costs relate to costs of organisational change associated with the Group’s Project Helix transformation programme
Inchuding the ransition costs assoclated with the outsourting of certain back-office transactional processes,

These costs are analysed below:

s Confinuing  Discorninued w17
Totah operations operations Total
tm £m £m £m
Redundancy payments (including those In respect of Project Heibx
transformation activities?) (4.8) {9.2) {0.3) (95)
Cost of change team’ (5-5) 3.4) - (3.4)
Expenditure and provisions in respect of property dosure* an {23) {0.1) 2.4)
Expenditure in respect of Project Helix transformation activities® {208) - - -
Impairment of intangible assets® (10.4) - - -
Restructuring costs 47.3) {14.9) {0.4) {15.3)
Taxation 88 3.0 0.1 31
Restructuring costs net of taxstion (34.5) (11.9) {0.3) {12.2)
Notes:

1. indudes £34.7m In respect of the Project Hellx transformetion sciivities.

2. Costs inrespect of roles madie redundant as » result of the Projact Helix transfonmation snd other phojacts to nestructure the Group's acivities.

2. incrernantal costs of tesrms involved In the design and exxecution of Project Helix transformation activithes.

4. Costs In repect of property dilepidetions, lasse tarmingtion, snd mmet impairments crystalisad following decdsions ¥o vacsts cartain of the Group's propariies s part of the
overall Project Halix trarsformation,

L 3 whmdmmmmmmm&-ummmmumumnmwmu,mmwudm

w ol kiowled ooty as part of e w erwfer of the trarssciional back-offive sciivities v & thirdeparty provider s £13.0m of profesions fes in

mdmwmmmmnmumdhmum

6. impairant of intangible sescts relste 10 systems and processes which are redundent dus to the cinges W the Group's strategy induding the autsourdng of trarsactional
badk-ofics sctiviies. Sea Nose 14,

Aoquisition and disposal related costs

Acrpisition and disposal related costs from continuing npermatinns Incude the impairment and amortisation charge for acquisition
related intangibles £2.6m (2017: £5.5m), the charge for restricted shares Issued per Note 33 of £3.4m (2017: Enll), the accrual of
contingent consideration that is required to he trested as remuneration Enll (2017: £0.9m), ather acquisition eosts £nil (2017 £0 3m),
casts of £2.2m (2017: £nil) reiating to the aborted disposal of the Propesty Management business, and £0.2m {2017: £30.4m —
included within discontinued operatiomns) relsted to the disposal of the Healthcare divison.

Acguisition related costs from discontinued operations relate to the impairment and amortisation of acquisition related intangibles of
£nll (2017: £9.2m).
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4, Other items continued

Other exceptional items
Other exceptional items are analysed below:

ms 007

£m £m
Contract termination receipt! 20 -
Settiement of contractual dispute? {3.9) -
Persion scheme past service costs (including curtailments)® {1.9} -
Regulatory investigation? (2.3} -
IFRS 15 adoption project® {0.8) -
Property dilspidations® {13} -
Other exceptional items (7.6) -
Taxation 15 -
Other exceptional items net of taation {6.1) -
Nobes:

L The toss of two major condracts in the yesr endied 31 March 2118 resulted in 2 one-off recsipt of tarmination paymants amounting to £2.0m. These amounts are decossd

seperstaly due to the size of the pyments received wid the fact that the loss of contracts of this size &5 an unususl event for the Group.

2. The settiement of 8 king standing contractual dispute for which a provision of £0. 7 was made in the yesr endad 31 March 2017, which will result in 8 cash outfiow of £4m

during the year snding 31 Mareh 2018. This amount ks isciocad saparately dus to the size of the settiement and the fact that the contract ended several yesrs ago and 50
has not contributed 1 the results in sither the cument or prior year. In the interim Finandal Saterments for the six months ended 30 September 2017 this amount was not
separstely dsdosed a3 Other items within the: “Loss from disoontinued operations”. Following the decision not to proceed with the disposal of the Property Menagement
divigion the resulis of this sctivity have bean reciassified as continuing aperations and consequently separate disdosung: of this smount as Other Rtems Is considered
sppropriste to enable understnding of the continuing results of the Group.

. As aresult of the dosure of the Mitle Group Pic Penaion Schem to fture accrual, 8 pest service cost (induding aurtaliments) of £1.5m has been Incurred. See Note 37 for

, Lagel and professionsl costs of £2.3m have been incurred in respect of the how dosed FRC irvessigation into the Comparny’s treisnent of haalihcare goodwill and acorucd

Income In the Company’s audited sccounts for the yesr ended 31 March 2015, the ongoing FCA swestigation in connmction with the timatiness of a profit waming

swwounced by the Company on 19 September 2016, the manner of pregsration snd eontent of the Company’s financial infarmation, position and results for the period

anded 31 March 2016, and regarding the Company’s own invstigation into the same matters, facts and droumstances which are subject so FCA and FRC investigation.
5. Professional fass and ingerim staff costs of £0.8m heve been incurred In respect of the project to adopt IFRS 15 Reverue from contracts with customers”.

6 As part of the retionalisation of the Group’s property portiolio a neview of the posentiel Rebilities for leasehold property dlapidetion costs has been carriad out. This review

has resulted In a one-off £1. 3m charge.
Healthcare disposal

During the year ended 31 March 2017 the Group decided to withdraw from the domicillary healthcare market and completed the sale

of the Healthcare division on 28 February 2017. See Note 5 for further details.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

5. Discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries

There were no disposals in the financlal year ended 31 March 2018,

in the financia! year ended 31 March 2017 the Board took the decision to withdraw from the domicillary healthcare market. The sale of
the Healthcare division completed on 28 February 2017. The disposal resulted in the control of Enara Group Limited (Enara) and
Complete Care Holdings Limited (Complete Care) passing to Apposite Capital LLP {Apposite] for £2. In addition, the Group agreed to
contribute £9.5m towards the trading losses of the business and the turnaround plan which was pald In full in the financial year ended
31 March 2018. A further £0.2m was incurred in financial year ended 31 March 2018,

The trading results of the Heaithcare business were classified as discontinued operations in the year of disposal as defined by IFRS 5
‘Non-current assets hekd for sale and discontinued operations’.

The net assets of Healthcare at the date of disposal were as follows:

2007

£m
Nor-current assets
Other intangible assats 15
Property, plant and equipment 11
Deferred tax assets 0.4
Total non-curremt assets 3.0
QHTant aets
Trade and other receivables 14.7
Cash and cash equivalents 17
Total current assets 164
Total assets 19.4
Current Babliities
Trade and other payables (5.3)
Financing liabllities (0.3
Current tax Rabilities {0.4)
Total curent labilities (58)
Net assets 136
Deferred contribution payable to purchaser 95
Other costs of disposal 73
Total consideration -
Loss oh dispossl {30.4)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal:

217

£m
Consideration on disposal -
Cash and cash equivalents disposad of 1.7

1.7
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5. Discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries continued

The results of the Healthcare discontinued operations in the year ended 31 March 2017 are presented below:

207

£m
Revenue 59.2
Cost of sales {48.8)
Gross profit 104
Administrative expenses (224}
Operating losy before other Rems (12.0}
Other itemns {1232)
Operating loss before tax {135.2)
Tax 2.8
Loss from discontinued operations for the year (132.4)

Of the £2.8m of tax credits Included in the above results, £2_2m relates to other tems.
The effect of discontinued operations on segment results in 2017 is disclosad In Note 3.
Cash flows from discontinued operations included in the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 are as

follows:

017
£m

Net cash flows from operating activities {after tax)
Net cash flows, from investing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities

(8.8)
(0.4)

(9.2)

6. Operating profit/(loss)
Operating profit has been arrived at after charging:

Continuing snd discontinued operations

wmn

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 15}
Amortisation of other Intangibile assets {Note 14)
impairment of goodwill (Note 13)

impairment of acquisition related intangible assets (Note 14)
impairment of other Intangible assets (Nate 14)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of subsidiary (Note 5}

Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables (Note 17)
Write-downs of Imsentories recognised as an expense
Impairment lass recognised on accrued income

Operating lease rentals

P, e, . B, EEEsE

141
238
96.1
101
30
10
304
139
14
45
32.1

1L The Group has applied 1FRS 15 using the comulative effect method. Under this method, the comparative Information is not restated. See Note 1.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statemermts continued
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6. Operating profit/(loss) continued

A detailed analysis of auditor’s remuneration Is provided below:

2008 017

£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts ~ BDO LLP 40 -
Fees payabie to the Company’s auditor and its assoclates for the audit of the Company’s
subsidiaries pursuam to legisition - BDO UP 1,161 -
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts ~ Deloitte LLP - 40
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company’s
subsidiaries pursuant to legisiation — Deloitte LLP 87 1,037
Totel audit fees 1288 1077
Other audit related services to the Group —BDO LLP 93 -
Other audit relsted services to the Group — Deloitte LLP - 70
Tax services - BDO LLP [ -
Tax services ~ Deloite LLP - 85
Other services — Delokte LLP - 15
Total norn-audit feas 9% 170
Total 1,387 1,247
7. Staffcosts
Nurnber of people 2018 017
The average number of people employed during the financial year was:
Engineering Services 8,176 8,545
Security 14804 13,441
Professional Services 6712 333
Cleaning & Emvironmental Services 2,099 24,454
Care & Custody 1,051 897
Catering 2,505 2,692
Property Management 2322 2,458
Corporate Centre 37 43
Healkhcare - 3,416
Total Group 51,666 56279
Tha number of paopie employed at 31 March was:

2008 2007
Total Group 48,978 52,798

18 w7
Adwegete rerwuneration comprised: B £m
Wages and salaries 1,000.7 1,068.9
Social security costs mi 822
Other pension costs 790 167
Share-based payments (Note 36) 12 82
Share-based payments aoquisition related costs {Notes 4 and 36) 34 -
Toual 1,1194 1,174.0
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7. Staff costs continued

Details of directors’ remuneration is provided below:

s 2017

£m £m

Directors’ emoluments 21 32
Share-based payments 0.6 13
Tokal 2.7 45

None of the directors accrued benefits under the defined benefit scheme, or were members of the defined contribution schemes for

the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.

The total amount payable to the highest paid director in respect of emoluments was £1.1m (2017: £0.5m).

8. Investment revenue

interest on bank deposits

Bzt

9. Finance costs

Continuing operations

2017

Interest on bank facilities

Interest on private placement loan notes
Bank fees

interest on obligations under finance leases
Unwinding of discounts on provisions

Loss arising on fair value hedges
Net interest on defined benefit pension scheme assets and labilities

glggﬁﬁg

V-]
[

3a
9.6
1.0
02

0.1
13

Total

B

153

10, Tax

Contiruing and discontinued operations

or

Current tax
Deferred tax (Note 21}

-—

(0.9)
(23)

Tax charge/{credit) for the year

(10.2)

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations [Note 5)

(74)
(2.8)

Tax charge/(credit) for the year

Llh B |G| &

{10.2)
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Notes to the consolidated financial staternents continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

10. Tax continued

Corporation tax is cakulated at 19% (2017: 20%) of the estimated taxable profit for the year. A reconciliation of the tax charge to the
elements of loss before tax per the consolidated income statement elements is as follows:

8 2007
Before Other Befors Dthar

ovhar kg ierms Toml  other ivem tems Torl
© ing and discontinued operath im £m im £m Em £m
(Loss)/profit before tax i 079) . @AN)  (336) (1598)  (1934)
Taoc at UK rate of 19% (2017: 20%) 139 {18.9) *.7 6.7 (32.0) (38.7)
Recondlling tax charges for:
Non-tax deductible charges o5 11 16 04 0.3 0.7
Share-based payments o) - fo.1) 08 - 08
Loss on disposal of business - - - - 6.1 6.1
impairment of goodwill - 66 66 - 19.2 192
Overseas tax rates {0.3) - {0.3} 01 - 0.1
Impact of change in statutory tax rates 0.1 02 03 1.2 0.1 13
Prior year adjustments 29) - 2.1} 03 - 03
Tax charge/{credit) for the yesar 120 {10.7) 13 (3.9) {63) (10.2)
Effective tax rate for the year 16.4% 10.9% {5.3)% 11.5% 3.9% 5.3%
Nots:
1. The Group hws applied IFRS 15 using the cucwlutive sifsct method, Under tis method, the comperstig e $10k ristated SeeNote 3.

In addition to the armounts charged to the consolidated income statement, tax relating to retirement benefit costs amounting to a
£3.4m charge (2017: £5.5m credit) has been taken directly to the statement of comprehensive income together with a £0.1m credit
relating to share-based payments and hedged items (2017: £0.3m credit).

The effective tax rate on profit before other items is generally higher than the statutory tax rate due to entertaining costs, commercial
property depreciation and sliare-based payrment diwiges not being wholly tax deductible and Lax lusses Incut red overseds, However,

as losses wene incurred in 2018 and 2017 the effective rate is lower than the statutory tax rate due to permanent differences such as

those described above. In addition the 2018 figure was impacted by prior year adjustments, whilst the 2017 figure was impacted by a
change In tax rates.

The UK corporation tax rate reduced from 20% to 19% from 1 April 2017 and will reduce to 17% from 1 April 2020. This will reduos the
Group’s future current tax charge accordingly. The UK defemed tax assets and habilities at 31 March 2018 have been adjusted to reflect
these changes. A current tax provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and R is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation.

11. Dividends

2018 2017
£m £m

Amounts recognised as distributions in the year:
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017 of nit (2016: 6.7p) per share - 233
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 of 1.33p (2017: 4.0p) per shara 48 14.1
Amourts paid in 2018 and 2017 48 374
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 of 2.67p (2017: nil} per share 9.3 -
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12. Earnings per share

Basic and diluted eamings per share have been calculated in accordance with IAS 33 ‘Earnings per share’.

The cakculation of the basic and dikrted EPS is based on the following data:

wms 2047
From ¢coniruing operytions £m £m
Net profit/{loss) before other items attributable to equity holders of the parent 60.1 (19.1)
Other ltems net of tax {872.2) (32.5)
Net loss attributable to equity holders of the parent {274) (51.6)
e 2007
F£om eontinuing and discontinued operations £ £m
Net profit/{loss) before other ems attributable to equity holders of the parent 60.1 (30.5)
Other items net of tax (s7.2) {1535)
Net loss attributabie to equity holders of the parent {27.1) {184.0)
2018 2017
Number of shares milllion millon
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic EPS 3519 3510
Effect of dilutive potential ardinary shares: share options 19 3.7
Weighted average nurnber of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted EPS 3598 54,7
s o
p j
From continuing operations:
Basic earnings/{lass) before other items per share? 168 (5.5}
Basic: loss per share (7.5) (14.7)
Diluted eamings/{loss] before other items per share? 168 (5.5)
Diluted loss per share 2] (14.7}
From continuing and discontinued operations:
Basic earnings/{loss) before other items per share? 168 (8.7}
Basik lass per share {7.6) {52.4}
Diluted eamings/(loss) before ather items per share®® 163 8.7)
Dilsted loss per share (7.6) (52.4)

Notes:

1 The Group heg sppiled IFRS 1S using the cumulative effect method. Undér this mathod, the comparsiive informetion is not restatec. See Mote 1.

. Other tems are a3 described in Note d.

3. Prior ynar dikrted bogs per share hit been restated 30 exciude the effects of snt-diiutive potantial ordinary shares.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year excludes those accounted for in the own shares reserve (see

Note 32).

The dilutive potential ordinary shares relate to instruments that could potentially dilute basic eamings per share in the future, such as
share options. The loss for the year means that the identified potentially diiutive shares are anti-dilutive for the purposes of calculating

dillited eamnings per share,
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Notes to the consolidated finandal statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

13, Goodwill

£
Cost
At 1 April 2016 4655
Change in consideration C&C Health (0.1)
Disposal of subsidlary (107.1)
impact of foreign exchange 0.6
At 1 April 2017 3589
Impact of foreign exchange 03
At 31 March 2018 3592
Accumulated irnpairment losses
At 1 April 2016 260
impairment of healthcare goodwill 811
Impairment of property goodwill 150
Oisposal of subsidiary {107.1)
At 1 April 2017 150
Impainment of property goodwill 34.6
At 31 March 2018 45.6
Carrying smount
At 31 March 2018 3085
At 31 March 2017 3439
At 1 April 2016 4395

impairment of Mitie Property Management goodwill

Taking Into account the current and forecast mariet conditions of the Property Management business, the Group has further impaired
the Property Management goodwill by £34.6m in the 2018 financial year.

Further detall on the iImpairment, including sensitivity analysis |s presented below.

impalrment of Healthcare goodwill

In 2017 the Group undertook an impakment review of the goodwill and imtangible assets associated with the Healthcare business. This
reassassment of the estimate of the recoverable smount of the Healthcare cash-generating unit (CGU) resulted In impairment of the
remaining carrying vaiue of goodwill and acquisition related intangible assets for the Healthcare OGU In the 2017 financial year.
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13. Goodwill continued

Goodwill impairment testing

Goodwill actuired In a business combination ks allocated, at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that business
combination,

Goodwill has been allocated to OGUS, which align with the business segments, as this is how goodwill is monitored by the Group
internally. The goodwill allocated to the Public Services CGU, which consisted of the Property Management and Care & Custody
activities in the prior year, related only to Property Management and has been assigned as such in the table below. The Group tests
goodwill at least annually for impairment or more frequently If there are indicators that goodwill may be impaired.

A summary of the goodwill balances and the discount rates used to assess the forecast cash flows from each OGLU are as follows:

Fratax  post-tax discount Sooduill Goodwil

discoumt rule e 248 2017

% % &m £m

Engineering Services .8 82 107.8 1075

Security 8s 82 1017 1017

Professional Services 11.0 92 15.7 15.7

Cleaning & Environmental Services 9.8 82 33.1 3131

Catering 10.4 87 15.7 15.7

Property Management 13.0 iDe 35.6 70.2

Totel 209.6 3439
Key assumptions

The recoverable amounts for each CGU are determined by the value In use which is dertved from discourted cash fiow calculations,
The key assumptions for the value In use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to
revenue and direct costs during the forecast period. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The long-term growth rates are based on forecast
Inflation. Changes in revenue and direct costs are based on past performance and expectations of future changes in the mariet,
operating model, and cost base.

Growth rates and terminal values

For all OGUs excluding Property Management the Group prepares cash flow forecasts desived from the most recent budgets for the
year ending 31 March 2019 which have been approved by the Board, extrapolated for four future years by an expected growth rate of
1% and a terminal value using a long-term growth assumption of 1.75%.

The assumptions for Property Management are set out balow.

Discount rates

The pre-tax discount rates used to assess the forecast cash flows from CGUs are derived from the Company's post-tax Weighted
Average Cost of Capital, which was 7.7% at 31 March 2018 (2017: 7.3%), and is adjusted for the risks specific to the business being
assessed and the market in which the CGU operates. All CGUs have the same access to the Group's treasury functions and borrowing
lines to fund thelr operations.
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Notes to the consolidated financlal staternents comtinued
Far the year ended 31 March 2018

13. Goodwill continued

Sensitivity analysis

A sensitivity analysks has been performed and the Directors have concluded that no reasonably foreseeable change in the key
assumptions would result in an impairment of the goodwill of any of the Group’s CGUSs with the exception of the Property
Management OGU which Is described below, In particular a 1% Increase In the discount rate or a 1% decrease in the terminal value
growth rate would not result in any change to the impainnent conclusions in any of the OGUs.

Review of the carrying value of goodwill for the Property Management OGU

During the 2018 financial year the Group was engaged In & process to sell the Property Management OGU, by the half-year this process
was sufficiently well advanced for the division to be reported as a discontinued operation. Subsequently, due to market conditions, this
process was terminated on 5 December 2017 and consequently the division was reclassified as a continuing operation. As noted in the
Operating review the Property Management business has had a difficult year with market conditions, particularly in social housing,
leading to a reduction in revenue and continued pressure on operating margins.

Inthis context the Directors have taken a conservative approach to forecasting the future performance of Property Management, with
an assumption of no growth in revenue during the period to 31 March 2023, and an improvement in margins of only 25bps compared
to the budget for the year ending 31 March 2019 over the period to 31 March 2023, An improvement in market condlitions is
anticipated after 31 March 2023, with growth in the terminal value period being in line with inflation at 1.75%.

Having considered this scenario alongside a range of other scenarios, the Directors condluded that a further impairment of £34.6m
should be made against the Property Management goodwill, resuking In a goodwiil carrying value of £35.6m at 31 March 2018.

The impairment testing described above in respect of the Property Management CGU s dependent upon the accuracy of the
assumptions made in respect of future performance, the discount rate, and the growth during the terminal value period.

The table below shows how the impalrment test would be impactad, all other factors being equal, by:

= an increase or decrease in the discount rae of 100bps;
= 3 change in market conditions such that year on yesr revenue growth increases or decreases by 100bps between 31 March 2020
and 31 March 2023;

+ a change in projected profitabiiity such that EBIT margin as a percentage of revenue increases or decreases by 100bps between
31 March 2020 and 31 March 2023;

* an increase or decrease of 100bps In the growth rate in the terminal value period.

£m £
Discount rate (5.1) 65
Year on year revenue growth FY20 to FY23 1.7 (r.7)
EBIT as 2 percentage of revenue FY20 to FY23 144 {14.4)
Terminal &_ growth rate 4.7 {3.7)
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14. Other intangible assets

Acquisition related
Totel  Software arwd
Custorner scquisition  development
relationships Other mished  ependture Tomd
£m £m Em Em &m

Cost
At 1 April 2016 884 109 99.3 731 1724
Additions - - - 124 124
Dispasal of subsidiary - - - (2.9) {2.9)
Reclassifications from property, plant and equipment {Note 15) - - - 145 145
impact of foreign exchange - - - 0.2 02
At 1 Apdi 2017 &84 10.9 93 97.3 196.6
Additions - - - 9.0 9.0
At 31 March 2018 88.4 10.9 95.3 106.3 205.6
Amortisation
At 1 April 2016 66.9 a2 761 3L7 107.8
Charge for the year 6.4 04 68 170 238
impairment of software and development expenditure - - - 30 30
Impairment of acquisition related intangible assets 10.1 - 10.1 - 101
Disposal of subsidiary - - - {14} (1.4)
Impact of foreign exchange - - - 0.1 01
At 1 Aprit 2017 834 96 93.0 504 1434
Charge for the year 2.2 04 26 109 135
Impairment of software and development expenditure - - 10.4 104
At 331 March 2018 85.6 10.0 95.6 71.7 1673
Carrying smount
At 31 March 2018 28 0.9 3.7 34.6 383
At 31 March 2017 50 13 63 46.9 53.2
At 1 April 2016 215 1.7 n2 41.4 64.6

Customer relationthips are amortised over their useful lives based on the perlod of time over which they arc anticipated to generate

benefits. These currently range from four to eight years. Other acquisition related intangibles include acquired software and

technology which are amoartised over their useful lives which currently range from three to ten years. Software and development costs
are amortised over thelr useful Ives of between five and ten years, once they have been brought into use.

During the 2018 financial year the Group has undertaken a reassessment of the useful economic ife of software and development

expenditure related intangible assets. As a result of the establishment of 2 new central database and the outsourcing of finance

transactional processes, the decision was taken to Impair software and development assets that will no longer be in use going forward.

An Impairment of £10.4m was recognised within restructure costs in ather items in the financial year (see Note 4).

Following the decision to withdraw from the domidiliary healthcare market, the customer reltionships relating to the healthcare
husiness were impairment tested and an impairment of £10.1m was recognised within acquisition and disposal related costs in other

itams In the 2017 financial year (see Note 4).

Reciassifications from property, plant and equipment in 2017 relate to completed software and development expenditure which was

held In plant and vehices whilst being developed.
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Notes to the consolidated finandal staterments continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

15. Property, plant and equipment

Frechold  lemehold  Plemand

prepertes proparties vehides Totak
£m £m £m

Cost
At1April 2016 16 188 102.0 1224
Additions - 03 144 un7
Redassifications to other intangible assets {Note 14) - - (14.5) (14.5)
Disposals (0.3} (2.3} (253} (27.9)
Disposal of subsidiaries - (0.1} {5.3} {54)
impact of foreign exchange - 0.1 0.2 0.3
At 1 April 2017 13 168 715 8.6
Additions 0.2 49 10.7 15.8
Redlassifications within property, plant and equipment - 0.2 {0.2) -
Disposals (1.2} (0.8) (2.4) (4.4)
impact of forelgn exchange - = - -
At 31 March 2018 0.3 211 79.6 1010
Accumulated depredciation snd impairment
At 1 April 2016 05 98 62.8 731
Charge for the year - 15 126 141
Disposals (0.1) 0.7} (25.1) (25.9)
Disposal of subsidiaries - - 43 (43)
Impact of foreign exchange - - 03 0.3
At 1 April 2017 04 10.6 46.3 573
Charge for the year - 17 111 128
Redlassifications within property, plant and equipment - 0.2 (0.2) -
Disposals (0.3) {0.3) 21 @n
Impacy offorei!n exchange - - - -
At 31 March 2018 0.1 12,2 55.1 674
Carrying smount
At 31 March 2018 0.2 29 24.5 33.6
At 31 March 2017 0.9 6.2 25.2 23
At 1 April 2016 1.1 9.0 39.2 M3

The net book value of plant and vehides held under finance leases induded above was £0.7m (2017: £2.8m).
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16. Interestin joint ventures and associates

The Group has a 30% interest in an assoctate, Pyramid Plus South LLP, a fimited kability partnership registered in the
United Kingdom, The Group's interest in the assoclate is accounted for In the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method.

The summarised financial information set out below for the year ended 31 March 2018 has been taken from unaudited management
accounts of the assodiate.

T ] w17
£m £m
Revenue 122 103
Operating profit 26 19
Group's share of profit of sssodate 08 06
2019 2017
£m £m
Current assets 38 2.7
Current liabilities {1.2) 0.7)
Net assets 2.6 20
Group's share of interest In associate 08 0.6
During the 2018 financial year the Group received dividends from Pyrarnid Plus South LLP of £0.6m {2017: £0.6m).
There are no significant restrictions on the ability to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or
advances made by the Group.
17. Trade and other receivables
Restated
018 n7
£m £m
Amounts receivable for the sale of services 2223 2018
Provision for doubtful debts {12.3) (16.2)
Trage recetvables® 205.0 1856
Accrued income® 131.4 1425
Accrued income on long-term complex contracts (Note 18) - $0.2
Amounts recoverable on construction contracts - G1
Mobilisation costs (Note 19) - 210
Prepayments 213 22.7
Other debtors 83 238
Total 386.0 4459
Inciuded in cumrent assets 386.0 3956
Included in non-current assets* - 50.3
Total 386.0 4459
Nokes:

1. TheGroup has anpiied IFRS 15 using the camulaiive effact method. Under this method, the comparative Informtion is not restated. See Note 1.
2. Asin the prior yesr, the Group has made use of 2 non-recourse customer invoice discouring faciity under which certain trade receivable balances are sold to the Grougp's
banks, The Group reduced the armount of involce distourtting from £110.7m s at 31 March 2017 to £76.3m as at 31 March 2018. As these: triade receivables are

sold without recourse the Group hes derecognised tham, and 5o they are not indluded in trade recehvables.

3. Accrued i relptes to recognised, but unbitied ot the yest end.

4. Non-current trade and other recaiuables comprise acorued income on long-term aomplex contracts of £nil (2017: £40.8m) end mobilisstion costs of £l [2017: £9.5m) which
are further analysed in Notes 18 and 19 retpectively.

5. The Group has restated 2017 income statement and balance sheet as pér Note 1, page 134,
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Notes to the consolicdated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

17. Trade and other receivables continued

Agring of trade receivables:

2008 wmn

™ £m
Neither impaired nor past due 163.6 1594
Not impaired and jess than three months overdue 374 268
Not impaired and more than three months overdue 213 154
Impaired receivables - 02
Provision for doubtful debts {17.3) (16.2)
Totsl 2050 18556
Movement in the provision for doubtful debts:

s 17

£m £m
At 1April 162 46
Impairment losses recognised 23 139
Amouns written off as uncollectable (12) (0.8)
Disposal of business - {1.5)
At 31 March 173 16.2
Mote:
1. The Group hes appied IFRS 15 using the aumulstive wifect method. Under this method, the comparathve information is not restyied. See Nobe 1.
The average credit period taken on sales of services was 28 days {restated 2017: 26 days),
‘The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value,

18. Accrued income on long-term complex cortracts
008 w17

m £m
At1Apal 502 70.6
impact of change to IFRS 152 {50.2) -
Amourts recognised In the Income statement = (20.4)
At 31 March - 502
inchuded In current assets - 94
Included in non-current assets® - 408
Total - 50.2
Motas:

1 The Group his sppllec RS 15 wsing the cumulathve effect method. Under this method, the

1AS 11, snvd has therefore derecognised the asset. Ses Note 1.
3. At31 Merch 2017, £21.2m of the satrved incor long-term

L
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conperstive information is not resusted. See Note 1.
2. Following the sdoption of IFRS 15, the Group no longar acaounts for long-term contracts using the percentage of complation method of

o

coniracts wes sttributalls to transition costs,




19. Mobilisation costs

nmnr

At 1 Apeil

Impact of change to IFRS 15°

Additlons

Amounts recognised in the income staternent

28.6

124
(20.0)

At31 March

o EBlse

21.0

Included in current assets
Included in non-current assets

115
9.5

Totsl

21.0

Notes:

1. The Group has applied IFRS 15 using the curmulative effect method. Under this method, the comparative information & not restated, See Note 1.
2. Mobiligation costs that did not meet IFRS 15 oriteria were deretognised ss part of the adoption of the new standend. See Note 1.
3. Under IFRS 15, mobilsation costs are incdudecd as contract sssets where they meet the oriterta to cagltalise. See Note 20,

20. Contract assets

At1April
Additions
Amortised in the year

At 31 March

Included in current assets
Included in non-current assets

Total

ples [REE . |5k

Contract assets comprises contract fulfilment costs amounting to £2.2m have been recognised at 31 March 2018. Contract assets are
amortised on a straight-line basls over the contract life which is consistent with the transfer of services to the customer to which the

asset relates.

To determine whether future economic benefits from contracts are sufficient to recover the contract assets, management has
performed an assessment of the costs to complete the contract. In comparing the carrying amount of the assat to the remaining

amount of consideration expected to be received less the costs to provide services under the relevant contract, management has

determined no impairment is required at 31 March 2018.
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Notes to the consolidated finandial statsments continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

21. Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax Rabllities and assets recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current and
prior reporting period:

Retirament Intangihle Short-aeem
Accelermed tax benef st Vrning
Losses  deprecation Babiies acuired  Shere options differences Totat
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2016 - 14 64 (4.4) 13 13 6.0
{Charge)/credit to income 0.8 54 0.7 33 (0.3} [0.3) 93
{Charge)/cradit to equity and the
statement of comprehensive income - - 55 - {0.3) 06 58
At 1 April 2017 08 6.5 126 {1.1) 0.7 1.6 21.1
Impact of change to IFRS 15 250 - - - - - 250
(Charge)/cradit to income {7.0) {0.3} 03 03 (0.1) (0.1) {6.9)
(Charge)/credit to equity and the
statement of comprehensive income — - (3.4) - 0.1 - {3.3)
At 31 March 2018 18.8 6.2 95 (0.8) 0.7 15 359

Certaln deferred tax assets and labilities have been offset, The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for
financial reporting purposes:

s 017

£m £m

Deferred tax assets 6.7 222
Deferred tax linbifites (0.5} (L1}

Net deferved tax asset 359 21.1

The Group hes unwtilsed income tax losses of £94.9m (2017: £14.2m) that are available for offset against future profits.
In addition, the Group has £0.8m (2017: £0.8m) of capital losses.

A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of certain unutilised losses and allowances to the extent that it is probabile that
taxable profits will be generated in the future and be avallable for utiisation. Deferred tax has been calculated using the corporation
tax rates disclosed in Note 10,

22. Inventories

s 2017
&m €m
Materials 6.9 68

23. Cash and cash equivalents
ms 2017
tm £n
Cash and cash equivalents 553 129.1

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an ofiginal maturity of three months or
less. The carmying amount of the assets approsirmnates thelr faly vakee.

included in cash and cash equivalents are deposits totalling £0.4m (2017: £0.6m) held by the Group’s msurance subsidiary, which are
not readily available for the general purposes of the Group.
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24. Trade and other payables

s

18
2447
843
245
171.6
476
574.5

Payments received on account
Trade creditors

Other taxes and social security
Other creditors

Accruals

Deferred income?

Total

Included in current liabilities
Included in non-current liabliities
Total

Notes:

1. The Group has applled IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the cormparstive infarmation s not restated, See Note 1.
2. Following the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group hes presanted deferred income from contracts with automers separately on the balance sheet and s therefore analysed in
Note 25,

5745
34
5779

BB Euplele

3. The Group has restated 2017 incorve staternertt and batance sheet 23 per Note 1, page 134,

Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs, The average aredit
period taken for trade purchases is 59 days (restated 2017: 72 days).

Included within the Group's trade creditors balance is £45,1m (2017 £39.5m) relating to payments due to UK suppliers which make
use of bank provided supply chain finance arrangements. During the year ended 31 March 2018 these arrangements were used by
€200 suppllers, with a maxdmum facility avaltable of £50.0m. The Group setties these amounts in accordance with each suppliers

agreed payment terms.
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables appraximates their fair value.

25. Deferred income from contracts with customers

e

n

included in current liabilities {86.2)
Included in non-current Rabilities (188}
Total (65.0)

Noke:
1. The Grovp has spplied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under shis method, the comparstive Information is not restated. See Mose 1
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

26. Financing liabilitles

2017

£&m

Bank loans — under committed facillties 153
Private placement notes 2540
Dbligations under finance leases (Note 29) 28
Total 3121

Included in current Kabllitles
Included in non-current kabilities
Total

3108
13
3121

Bl (BlcBsls

The £275m bank facility and the private placernent notes are unsecured but have financial and non-finandial covenants and obligations
wormreonly assoclated with these arrangeinents. Subsequent to the prior year end the Group’s lenders ugreed an amendment to the
covenant calcutation definitions. in accordance with the requirements of IAS 1, it was necessary to classify the drawn amounts on the
funding arrangements as current rather than non-current liabilities as at 31 March 2017, The final maturity dates of all faciiities
remained unchanged. The Group was in compliance with these covenants as at 31 March 2018 and hence all amounts are classified In
line with repsyment dates.

Included In currem financing liabilities are £0.8m (2017: £1.5m) of obligations under finance leases (ses Nota 29).

With the exception of derivative financial instruments, all financing lisbilities are heid at amortised cost. Derivative finandial
Instruments are initially recognised at fair value at the date the contract is entered into and ave subsequently remeasured to their fair
value through profit or loss unless they are designated as hedges for which hedge acoounting can be applied {see Note 27),

At 31 March 2018, the Group had available £219 3m (2017: £257.9m) of untrawn commitied borrowing facilities in respect of which
all conditions precedent had been met. The faciities have an explry date of July 2021. The loans carry interest rates which are currently
determined at 1.3% over the applicable LIBOR.

Details of the Group's contingent labilities are provided in Nota 34,
The weighted average interest retes paid during the year on the overdrafis and loans outstanding were as follows:
2007

Overdrafts
Bank loans
Private placement notes

Private placement notes

Following the issue on 16 December 2010 of US$96.0m and £40.0m of private placement (PP) notes in the Unked States Private
Placement market, on 13 December 2012, the Group issued a further US$153.0m and £55.0m of PP notes. The PP notes are unsecured
and rank pari passu with other senior unsecured indebtedness of the Group. in order to manage the risk of forelgn currency
fluctuations snd to manage the Group's finance costs through a mix of fixed and variable rate debt, the Group has entered Into
cross-currency interest rate swaps. The swap contracts have the same durstion end other critical terms as the borrowings and are
considered to be highly effective, The smount, maturity and Interest terrs of the PP notes are as shown below. US$96m of these

PP notes were settied in December 2017 upon maturity, along with the assoclated swaps.

21
12
38

Lo Bk

Tranche Maturity date Armount interest terms Swap Interest
7 year 16 Decenber 2017 USS48.0m USS fixed at 3.38% £ fixed at 3.88%
7 year 16 December 2017 US548.0m USS$ fixed at 3.39% £ UBOR +1.26%
9vyear 16 December 2019 £40.0m £ fived at 4.38% n/a
10 year 16 December 20122 UsSS76.0m USS fixed at 3.85% £ fixed at 4.02%
10 year 16 December 2022 US$77.0m USS fined at 3.85% £ fixed at 4.02%
10 yar 16 December 2022 £250m £ fived at 387% n/a
12 year 16 December 2024 £30.0m £ foced at 4.0% n/a
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27. Financial instruments

Classiication

The Group's principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and derivative financial instruments. With the
exception of derivative financial mstruments, all financial assets are classified as loans and recaivables.

The Group's principal financial kabilities are trade payables and financing Kabilities. With the exception of derivative financial
insbruments and deferred contingent consideration, all financlal Habilities are held at amortised cost.

Derivative financial instruments are measured inltially at fair value at the date the contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value through the income statement uniess they are designated as hedges for which hedge accounting can
be applied.

Detalls of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and
the basas for recognition of income and expense) for each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity Instrument are disclosed
inNote 1.

Risk management objectives

The Group's treasury department monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group. These risks include
those arising from interest rates, fareign currendies, liquidity, credit and capital management. The Group seeks to minimise the effects
of these risks by using effective control measures snd, where appropriate, derivative financial Instruments to hedge certain risk
expasures. The use of financial derivatives i governed by Group policies and reviewed regularly, Group policy & o not trade in
financial instruments. The risk management policies remain unchanged from the previous year.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s activities expose it to the financial risks of Interest rates. The Group’s treasury function reviews its risk management
strategy on a regular basis and will appropriately enter into derivative financial instruments in order to manage interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity
The interest rate sensitivity has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivative and non-derivative
instrumants at the batance sheet date. All financial §abilities, other than financing llabilitles, are interest free.

if undertying interest rates had been 0.5% higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit after tax for the
year ended 31 March 2018 and reserves would decrease/increase by £0.7m (2017: £0.8m).

Foreign currency risk

The Group has limhed exposure to transactional forelgn currency risk from trading transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of individual group entities and some expasure to translational foreign currency risk from the transiation of its foreign
operations, The Group considers the need to hedge Its exposures as appropriate and will enter into forward foreign exchange
contracts to mitigate any significant risks.

In addition, the Group has fully hedged the US dollar exposure on Its privete placement notes into sterling using cross-currency interest
rate swaps {see Hedging activities below).

At 31 March 2018 £9.3m {2017: £6.9m) of cash and cash equivalents were held in foreign currencies. Included in bank loans were
£15.7m (2017: £17.1m) of loans denominated in forelgn currency.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

27. Finandal Instruments continued

Uquidity risk

The Group monitors his liquidity risk using a cash fiow projection model which considers the maturity of the Group’s assets and
liabilities and the projected cash flows from operations. Bank loans under committed facilities, which allow for appropriate headroom
in the Group'’s dally cash movements, are then amranged. Detalls of the Group's bank facilities can be found in Note 26.

The tables below summarise the maturity profile (including both undiscounted interest and principal cash flows) of the Group's
financlal Kabiiities:

Whhia Inthe saconsd Alw
omeyssr o fithyeers five yours Totsd
Finencial Rabiltes at 31 March 2018 £ Em £m Em
Trade creditors 1813 - - 1913
Other creditors 292 - - 292
Financing liabilities 5.6 198.9 s 296.0
Financial llablitles* 286.1 1989 a5 5165
* Financing Eabilities rity profile s exciusive of the £6.1m derivative asset which would ratursily offset the settiement value of rsturing privabe plscement nobss.
Within  inthe second Aver
oneyesr  toMth vews five years Total
Fnancial Sabiiities at 31 March 2017 £m £m £m £m
Trade creditors 44,7 - - 244.7
Other creditors 24.5 - - 245
Financing llabiiities 106.2 70.2 1812 3576
Deferred contingent consideration 03 - - 0.3
Financia! liabllities® 375.7 70.2 181.2 627.1
* FAnencing lisbilies maturity profile s enchusive of the £35.8m dervative asset which would neturslly offset the settiement value of maturing privete plecermnent notes.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk ks monitored on an ongoing basis and formally reported quarterly. The value of business placed with finandial
institutions s reviewed on a daily basis.

The Group's credit risk on Hquid funds and dertvative financial instruments is imited because the external counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies and are managed through regular review.

The amounts presented in the balance sheet In refation to the Group's trade receivables are net of provisions for doubtful debts.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributabie to its trade receivables. Before acoapting a new customer, the Group uses external credit
scortng systems to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and define an appropriste credit limit which is reviewed regularly.

In determining the recoverabilty of a trade receivable, the Group considers the credit qualtty of the counterparty. An allowance for
impairment is made where there ks an identified loss event which, based on previous experience, Is evidence of a reduction in the
recoverability of the cash fiows. The Directors believe that there Is no further provision required in excess of the provision for doubtful
debits st the balance sheet date,

The maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to trade receivables at the balance sheet date is the &ir value of trade receivables. The
Group’s customer base is large and unrelated and, accordingly, the Group does not have a significant concentration of credit risk with
any one counterparty or group of counterparties.

Capital management risk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns while madmising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity. The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt per Note 30
and equity per the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Group’s capital structure is reviewed regularly. In 2013, the Board approved a share purchase policy to maintain share numbers at
a broadly consistent level year on year with the aim of ensuring that the interests of shareholders sre not diluted by the lssue of shares
that support the Group’s various share schemes, nor by the Issue of shares as consideration for earn outs under the Mitle model.
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group bought back 9,1m shares at a cost of £24.4m and subsequently cancelled these
shares. The Group has ceased its practice of buying back shares to offset shares issued under the Mitia Model or future LTIP
arrangements and nil shares were bought back in the year ended 31 March 2018B. Further detalls are provided in Notes 31 and 32.

The Group Is not subject to extemnally imposed regulatory capital requirements with the exception of those applicable to the Group's
captiva Insurance subsidlary, which is monitored on a regular basis.
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27. Finandial instruments continued

Hedging activities

Cash flow hedges

The Group holds a number of cross-cufrency interest rate swaps designated as cash fiow hedges on US$153.0m of PP notes. Biannual
foued interest cash flows denominated in US dollars arising over the periods to December 2022 from the US Private Placement market

are exchanged for fixed interest cash flows denominated in sterling. All cash flow hedges were assessed as being highly effective as at
31 March 2018,

Fair value hedges

As at 31 March 2017 the Group held a number of cross-currency interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges on US548.0m of
PP notes. Fixad interest cash flows denominated in US$ from the US Private Placement market were exchanged for floating interest
cash flows denominated in sterling. These fair value hedges were assessed as being highly effective as at 33 March 2017 and up unt§
their maturity date in December 2017,

Hedge of net investment In foreign operations

included in bank loans at 31 March 2018 was a borrowing of €9.5m (2017: €59.5m) which has been designated as a hedge of the net
investrnent in the Republic of reland business of Dalkia FM, and is belng uzed to hedge the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange: risk
on this Investment. Gains or losses on the transiation of the borrowing are transferred to equity to offset gains or losses on the
translation of the net investrment.

Derivative financial instruments
The carrying values of derivative financial instruments at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Aty Assets

s 2007

m £m

Cross-ourmency interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges 6.1 270
Cross-curmancy interest rate swaps designated as falr value hedges - 8.8
Derivative financlal instruments hedging private placement notes 61 358
Included in current assats - 358
Included in non-current assets 6.1 -
Tota) 61 358

Derivative financial Instruments are measured at fair value, Fair values of derivative financial instruments are calculated based ona
discounted cash flow analysis using appropriate market information for the duration of the instruments.

During the year anded 31 March 2018, a number of cashflow hedges were settied and all fair value hedges were settied.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

27. Financial instruments continued

FAnandial instruments fair value disclosure
Fair value measurements are classified into three levels, depending on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

* Leve! 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices In active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

» Levet 2 fair value measurements are those derived from other observabie inputs for the azset or liabiiity; and

« Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques using Inputs that are not based on obsarvable
market data.

The Directors consider that the derivative financial instruments fall into Lewel 2. There were no transfers between levels during the
year. All contracts are gross settied.

28. Provisions
Deferrec Contract
Lagel Hedithcare: contingant npurance spacific
] provision  Restructuring  consideration esarve ooty Diapiciations Tolal
£m Em £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 April 2017 20 6.0 - 03 125 6.0 = 6.8
impact of change In
accounting policy - - - - - (0.2) - (0.9
Amounts recognised in the
baiance sheet - - - - - - 34 3.4
Amounts recognised in the
ncome statement 32 - 12 - 40 {1.3) - 74
Utilised within captive
insurance subsidiary - - - - {0.1) - - {o.}
Unrwinding of discount - - - - - - 0.2 02
Utiised In the pertod (1.1) {L1) - {0.3) {1.1) (2.1) - {57
At 31 March 2018 4.1 4.9 1.2 - 153 24 3.6 3LS
Inchuded In current flabilides 41 49 12 - 9.0 24 36 252
Included in non-curmant
Rabilities - - - - 63 - - 6.3
Total 4.1 49 12 - 153 24 3.6 3L5

The provisions balance includes the following items:

The legal costs provision refates to professional fees payable and the potential cost of settlement of outstanding daims against
the Group.

The Heaithcare provision relates to the anticipated costs of separation of the Healthcare business from the Group, that are anticipated
to arystallise during the yesr ending 31 March 2019. See Note 5 for more detall on this disposal.

The restructuring provision relates to costs of organisational change associated with the Group’s Project Helix transformation
programma including the transition costs assoclated with the outsourcing of certain back-office transactional processes.

The Insurance reserve provides for the self-insured slement of fleet and liability claims that will typically settle over three to five years.
This includes a provision for ciaims that are expactad but have not yet been reported,

Contract specific cost provisions relate to variows obligations arlsing in the ordinary course of providing services In line with
commerdial contracts.

The provision for dilapidations relates to the legal obiigation for a leased property to be returned 10 the landiord in the contracted
condition at the end of the lease period. This cost would include repairs of any damage and wear and tear.
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29, Obligations under finance leases

Minimum lease fresem vilue

payTnents of loase payments

2018 2017 2018 2017

£m £m £m £m

Amounts payable under finance jeases:

Within one year 08 17 08 15
In the second to fifth years Indusive 0.5 1.2 0.5 13
13 29 13 28

Less: future finance charges - {0.1} - -
Present value of lease obligations 13 28 13 28
Less: amount due for settlement within 12 months {0.8) {1.5) (0.8) (1.5)
Amount due for settiement after 12 months 05 13 0.5 13

The average remaining lease term Is 20 months (2017: 22 months). For the year ended 31 March 2018, the average
effective borrowing rate was 1.4% (2017: 1.8%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leasas are on a fieed repayment basis
and no arrangements have been entered Into for contingent rental payments. All lease obligations are denominated in sterling.

The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations approximates their carrying amount. The Group’s obligations under finance leases are

protected by the lessors’ rights over the leased assets.

30. Analysis of net debt

2008 2017

£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents {Note 23) 59.8 129.1
Bank loans {Note 26} {54.3) {153}
Private placement notes {Note 26) (203.8) (294.0)
Derivative financial Instruments hedging private placement notes (Nate 27) 6.1 358
Net debxt before obligations under finance loases (192.2) (144 .4}
Obligations under finance leases (Nate 29) {1L3) {2.8)
Net debt {193.5) {147.2)

Net debt excludes amounts in respect of customer invoice discounting referred ta in Note 17 and amourts in respect of Supply Chain

Financing referred to in Note 24.
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Naotes to the consolidated financial statements continued
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31. Share capltal
Nurmber

Ordingry sheres of 15p rilon ™
Allotted and fully paid
At 1 April 2016 3721 93
Share buybacks {9.1) {02}
Issued for acquisitions 6.0 01
Issued under share option schemes 0.1 -
Ar1 Aprit 2017 369.1 9.2
Issued for acquisitions 4.6 0.1
At 31 March 2018 373.7 9.3

During the year nil shares were purchased (2017- 9.1m ordinary shares of 2.5p were purchased at a cost of £24.4m and

subsequently cancelled).

During the year 4.6m (2017: 6.0m) ordinary shares of 2.5p were aliotted In respect of the acquisition of non-controlling interests at an
issue price between 266.3p and 278.8p (2017: 244 4p) giving rise to share premium of £nil {2017: £2.9m) and mesger reserve of
£12.4m(2017: £11.7m).

During the year nil ordinary shares were aliotted in respect of share option schemes (2017; 0.1m ordinary shares were sliotted at 2.5p
at a price between 201.0p and 260.2p giving rise to share premium of £0.1m).

32. Reserves

Share presium account
The share premium account represents the premium arksing on the issue of equity shares {see Note 31).

Merger reservwe
The merger réserve represents amounts relating to premiums arising on shares issued subject to the prowvisions of Section 612 of
the Companies Act 2006.

The merger reserve increased by £12.4m {2017 £11.7m} In the year ended 31 March 2018 a3 a result of the issue of 4.6m (2017: 6.0m)
ordinary shares of 2.5p for the acquisition of non-controlling interests,

Own shares reserve

The Group uses shares heid In the Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy conditional awards under the Group's LTIP, CSP and DBP share
schemes and shares held In the SIP Trust to provide matching shares under the SiP scheme. During the year the trust distributed 0.7m
(2017: 1.4m) shares at a cost of £1.6m {2017 £3.4m) to satisfy awards under those schemes.

The Company uses Treasury shares to satisfy share options under the Group’s ESOS and SAYE share schernes. Proceads from the Issue
of 1.5m {2017: 1.2m) Treasury shares to satisfy options under the Group’s share schemes In the year were £34m {2017: £2.4m) ata
cost of £4.3m (2017: £3.4m). The loss of £0.9m has heen recognised in retained eamings.

The other movements In the own shares reserve comprise £8.1m {2017 £nif) to recognise the restricted shares issved as part of the
acquisition of non-controlling interests per Note 33 of which £1.0m (2017: Enll} has been released against the share-based psyments
reserve when restrictions explred during the yesr.

The own shares reserve 3t 31 March 2018 rapresars the cost of 13.0m (2017: 15.2m} ordinary shares in Mitke Group plc, with a
weighted average of 13.8m (2017 16.5m) shares during the year, as wel as the £7.1m value of the remaining restricted shares issued
as consideration e acquire minority interests that ks neguined to be treatad as remuneration.

Other reserves
Other reserves are comprised of the share-based payments reserve of £10.4m (2017: £9.4m), the revaluation resarve of £{0.2)m
(2017: £(0.2)m), the capital redemption reserve of £0.9m (2017: £0.9m) and other reserves of £0.2m (2017: £0.2m).

Tha share-based payments reserve represents credits in respect of the vesting period of equity-settied share-based payment
transactions (see Note 36) and credits in respect of the vesting period of restricted shares Issued as part of the acquisition of
non-controfling interests per Note 33,
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32. Reserves continued

Hedging and translation reserve

The hedging and transiation reserve of £(7.3)m {2017: £(8.0)m} includes balances in respect of the Group's cash flow hedges (see Note 27)
and transiation reserves of £{0.5)m (2017: £(0.6)m). A net cash flow hedge credit during the year of £0.1m (2017: £4.8m charge) Is
included within Other comprehensive income. The hedging and translation reserve also includes balances arising on transiation of the
Group's foreign operations and in respect of net investment hedges of which the combined movement was a eredit of £0.6m during

the year.

33. Acquisitions

Current year acquisitions — purchase of non-controlling interests

On 19 July 2017, the Company purchased the minority 49% shareholding in Source Eight Limited. The consideration paid was £4.0m,
satisfled with £3.0m In cash and £1.0m In unrestricted shares. A further £5.1m of shares were Issued which were subject to sale
restrictions related to continuing employment. Regarding shares issued, 2,196,708 ordinary shares were Issued, with 4 nominal value
of 2.5p per share in Mitle Group plc {Mithe shares) at a fair value of 278.8p, of which 1,838,028 Mitie shares were subject to sale
restrictions refated to continuing employment.

In addition, on 20 October 2017 the Company purchased the remaining minority shareholdings in five Mite Mode! companies,
The consideration pakl was £3.4m, satisfied through the Issue of unrestricted shares. A further £3.0m of shares were issued which
were subject t sale restrictions related to continuing employment. Regarding shares issued, 2,296,381 Mitie shares were issued
2t a fair value of 266.3p, of which 1,139,697 Mitle shares were subject to sale restrictions related to continuing employment.

The shareholdings purchased, primarily held by certain of the employees and senior management of the relevant subsidiary
companies, are detalled below:

« Mitie Care and Custody Limited (MCCL) - 6.86% of the lssued share capital, comprising 42,505 B ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for a
consideration of £0.4m satisfied by the issue of 169,328 Mitie shares;

* Mitie Events & Lelsure Services Limited {MELSL) — 24.08% of the issued share capital, comprising 205,000 B ordinary shares of £0.01
each, for a consideration of £0.4m satisfied by the issue of 144,555 Mitie shares;

» Mitie Facllities Management Limited (ireland} {(MFML) —5.63% of the issued share capital, comprising 146,000 B ordinary shares of
€0.01 each, for a consideration of £0.2m satisfied by the issue of 72,228 Mitie shares;

¢ Mitie Catering Services Limited (MCSL) — 18.55% of the issued share capital, comprising 333,677 D ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for
a consideration of £2.9m satisfied by the kssue of 1,072,416 Mitie shares; and

* Mitie Waste & Ervironmental Services Limited (MWESL) — 27.71% of the issued share capital, comprising 332,500 B ordinary shares
of £0.01 each, for a conskleration of £2.5m satisfied by the issue of 937,854 Mitle shares;

The above acquisitions have been completed based on transfer of consideration of the fair value of the shareholdings of the
respective entities. As part of the above transactions Mitle Group issued unrestricted and restricted shares. The restricted shares are
attached with a condition that the relevant recipient continues in employment with the Group for a fixed vesting period of time.
Restrictions will remain attached to the shares if the reciplent leaves employment with the Group prior to completion of the vesting
period of the shares.

As a result of the acquisitions outiined above Mitie Group owns 100% of the issued share capital of all of the above entites.

Prior year acquisitions — purchase of non-controlling interests

On 24 August 2016, the Company purchased employee minority shareholdings in three of s successful ‘Mitle Model’ businesses:
Mithe Business Services UK Limited {MBSUKL), Mitie Technical Facilities Management Limited (MTFML), and Mitle Care and Custody
Limited (MCCL) in accordance with the respective articles of association and shareholders” agraements of those companies.

The total maximum consideration for all three purchases amounted to £16.1m. This was satisfied with £1.4m In cash and as to the
remaining £14.7m by the issue of 6,015,255 Mitie shares valued at 244.38 p per share. This was the average of the dosing middle
market price for the five banking days immediately preceding 26 July 2016. Earlier in that financial year ended 31 March 2017,

the Company purchased its own shares in the market to offset this share issue. The purchased shares were cancelied following
their acquisition.
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33. Acquisitions continued

As a result of these acquisitions the Group owned 100% of the issued share capital of MBSUKL and MTFML, and 93.14% of the issued

share capital of MCCL. The sharehaldings purchased, primarily held by certain of the employees and senior management of the
relevant subsidiary companies, are detalled below:

* MBSUKL — 27.29% of the Issued share capital, comprising 116,000 B ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for a consideration of £0.8m.
The consideration was satisfied by £0.1m In cash and £0.7m by the issue of 275,428 Mitie shares;

o MTFML—8.93% of the issued share capital, comprising 952,000 B ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for a consideration of £12.1m.
The consideration was satisfied by £1.0m in cash and £11.1m by the issue of 4,563,029 Mitie shares; and

* MCCL— 27.42% of the lssued share capital, comprising 170,022 B ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for a consideration of £3.2m.
The consideration was satisfied by £0.3m in cash and £2.9m by the issue of 1,176,798 Mitie shares.

34. Contingent Kablilities

Contractual disputes, guarantees and indemnities

The Company and various of Its subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to contractual disputes that arise in the ordinary course of
business. There s an ongoing contrattual dispute with a client of Mitie’s Property Management business which is potentially of a
material nature (sithough formal iegal proceedings have not been commaenced). Discussions are ongoing batween the Company and
the counterparty to determine both liability and potential quantum. The Directors do not anticipate that the outcome of this dispute
will have a material adverse effect on the Group's financial position, other than as already provided for in the accounts. In appropriate
cases, # provision Is recognised based on best estimates and management Judgement but there can be no guarantee that these
provisions (which may be subject to potentially material revision from time to time) will result in an accurate prediction, due to the
uncertainty of the actual costs and liabilities that may be incurred. The Directors will continue to monitor events as matters progress.

In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries have provided gusrantees and Indemnities in respect of performance, issued by financlal
institutions on its behalf, amounting to £21.7m (2017: £23.8m} in the ordinary coursa of business. These are not expected to resuit
In any material financial loss.

Multi-employer pansion schemes

The Group participates in several industry multi-employer defined benefit schemes, including the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (UX)
Industry “Pension Scheme” {Plumbing Scheme). The total contributions to these schemes for the financial year ending 31 March 2019
are anticipated to be £0.1m. The size and complexity of the Plumbing Scheme has meant the trustee is unable at this time to identify
the assets and liabiiities of the scheme which are atiributable to the Group. Consequently, the Group accounts for its contributions as if
they were pald to a defined contribution scheme.

When the Group {or a subsidiary of the Group) exits such schemes (typically by ceasing to have any active employees In the scheme),
pension legisiation may require the Group to fund the Group’s share of the totsl amount of net liabilities with a one-off cash payment
{a Section 75 debt under the Pensions Act 1995).

On 27 March 2018, the trustee of the Plumbing Scheme provided participating employers with a summary of the draft actuarial
vakiation of the Plumbing Scheme as at S April 2017. That summary detalled the results of the valuation on three measures:

e technical provisions - the amount of money the Plumbing Scheme needs to meet all its obligations and pay benefits in respect of
past service as they fall due, based on tha scheme assets and the aconomic position as #t 5 Aprit 2017, This measure showed a
surplus of £45m on liabiiities of £1.885bn;

* Pension Protection Fund [PPF) - the samount used to sat the Plumbing Scheme’s PPF levies. The benefits under this bashs are lower
than the scheme’s own benefits and the assumgtions are prescribed by the Pension Regulator, This measure showed a defick of
£412m on llabilities of £2.342bn; and

* solvency —this Is an estimate of the cost of insuring all of the Plumbing Scheme’s benefits as st 5 April 2017 with an insurer and Is
the basis required for Section 75 debt calculations. This measure showed a deficit of £658m on liabilities of £2.588bn.

The trustee of the Plumbing Scheme has recently conducted an employer consultation regarding the allocation of Section 75 debts
Including orphan liablities {i.e. liabilttles in respect of Plumbing Scheme members whose employers or former employers are no
longer members of the Plumbing Scheme or are insolvent). This is the second employer consultation carried out by the Plumbing
Scheme in respect of the aliocation of Section 75 debts, Tha trustee has stated that it is unfiely that any Section 75 debt natices will
be Issued before early 2019, as the Plumbing Scheme’s actuary cannot be instructed in this regard until the calculation methodology
has been agreed.

Given these uncertalnties it has not been possible to estimate the Group’s potential exposure to Section 75 emplover debts in respact
of the Plumbing Scherne within a reasonable range and so the Issue is disclosed as a contingent Habllity as set out in Note 37,
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34. Contingent liabilities continued

Employment claims

There are currently two enquiries being carried out by HMRC in respect of the Group's compliance with the National Minimum Wage:
both enquiries are at an early stage. At this time due to the nature and complexity of assessing compliance, it is not possible to
estimate the potential exposure. In common with other UK businesses with a large number of employees operating near the minimum
wage, the Group Is at risk of potential deficlency in respect of current and past employees. Work Is ongoing to enhance the Group’s
payroll systems and processes to reduce the risk of non-comphance in future.

In addithon to specific enquiries in respect of compliance with the National Minimum Wage, the Company and its subsidiaries are,
from time to time, party to employment disputes, claims, and other potential liabilities which arise in the ordinary course of business.
The Directors do not anticipate that any of the current matters will give rise to settiements, either individually or in aggregate, which
will have 8 material adverse effect on the Group's financial position.

Finandal Conduct Authority

On 29 August 2017 the Company announcad that the Financial Conduct Authority {(FCA) had informed the Company of its investigation
in connection with i) the timeliness of a profit waming announced by the Company on 19 September 2016, and ii) the manner of
preparation and content of the Company’s financial Information, position and results for the period ended 31 March 2016.

The Company continues to fully co-operate with the FCA during their ongoing investigation. At this time, the Directors have not received
any notification from the FCA that they will exercise their regulatory enforcement powers against the Company. Accordingly, the Directors
ane unable 1o determine whether the investigation will lead to the impasition of any fine or other penalties against the Company.

35. Operating lease commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total outstanding aggregate commitments for future minknum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

s 2017

£m £rn

Within ane year 237 247
in the second to fifth years inclusive 392 30.6
After five yaars 132 76
Total 76.1 62.9

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties and hire of vehicles and other
equipment. These leases have average durations ranging from thvee to ten years, No arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments.

Operating kase commitments have increased during the year, mainly due to new leases entered inta as part of the rationalisation of
the Group's property portfolio.

36. Share-based payments

The Corpany has sk equity-settied share schemes, The Grougp has also awarded performance-related bonuses for Exscutive Directors
which are deferred in conditional shares under the Mitie Group plc 2010 Deferred Bonus Plan {DBP) and are accounted for as a share-
based payment charge.

Discretionary share plans:

The Mitie Group plc Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The LTIP was introduced in 2007. The conditional awards of shares or rights to acquire shares (the awards) are offered to a small
number of key senior management. Where offered as options the exercise price is Enil. The vesting period is three years, although for
awards granted in 2015 and subsequantly some are subject to a holding period of up to a further two years. #f the awards remain
unexercised after a period of twelve months from the date of vesting the awards expire. The awards may be forfelted If the employee
leaves the Group. Before the awards can be axercised, performance conditions must be satisfied which are based on movements ina
range of market and non-market measures over a three-year period.

The Mitie Group plc 2001 Executive Share Option scheme (ESOS)

The ESOS exertise price is equal to the average market vake of the shares over the five-gay period immediately preceding the date of
grant, The vesting period is three years. If the options remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant the options
expire. Options may be forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.
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36. Share-based payments continued

The Mitle Group plc 2011 Executive Share Option scheme (ESOS)

The ESOS exercise price is equal to the average market value of the shares on the business day preceding grant or, if the Remuneration
Committee decides, the average market value of shares over 2 number of preceding business days (not to exceed 20). The vesting
period is three years. if the options remain unexercised after a perlod of ten years from the date of grant the options expire. Options
may be farfelted If the employee leaves the Group. Before options can be exercised, a performance condition must be satisfied; the
performance condition is finked to the percentage growth in eamings per share over a three-year pericd.

The Conditional Share Plan {CSP)

The CSP was introduced in 2014, The conditional awards of shares or the rights to acquire shares {the awerd) are offered to a small
number of key senior management. Where offered as options the exercise price is £nll. The vesting period is determined at the
discretion of the Remuneration Committee and is generally two or three years. if the swards remain unexercised after » period of ten
years from the date of grant the awards axpire. The awards may be forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.

Non-discretionary share plans:

The Mitie Group plc 2011 SAYE scheme

The SAYE scheme ks open to eligible UK resident employees. The exercise price I nat less than 80% of the market value of the shares
determined using either: the share price preceding the date on which invitations to participate in the scheme are issued or an average
share price over five days preceding the invitation date. The vesting period is three years. If the options remain unaxercised after a
period of six months from the date of vesting, the options expire. Options may be forfeited If the employee leaves the Group.

The Share Incentive Plan (SIF)

The SIP was introduced in 2011 and is open to all eligible UK resident employees. Under the scheme, eligible employees are invited to
invest in partnership shares which are purchased in the market on thelr behalf and held in a separate UK trust. One conditional
matching share is awarded for every ten partnership shares purchased and has a holding period of three years. Matching shares are
funded by way of market purchases.

Restricted Shares

In addition, in certain cases restricted shares are issued to individuals. The restricted shares are attached with a condition that the
relevant recipient continues thelr employrmestt with the Group for a fixed vasting period of time. Restrictions will remain attached to
the shares if the recipient leaves amployment with the Group prior to completion of the vesting period of the shares.

Details of the awards and share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

28 w017 018 2017

Number of Number of Walghiad Weighted

conditional conditionsl of werage Number of warage

share sumrds shaeswards sharmoptions  ewaeciee peice share options enarche price

{milllion) (rwilion) [ | ) {wiliion) [ 2]

Qutstanding at 1 April 9.0 83 119 258 131 262
Granted during the yeat 43 4.6 27 29 29 221
Forfeited during the year [4.5) (2.5) {49 267 {2.9) 258
Exercised during the year {0.7) (1.4) {L5) 29 {1.2) 210
Outstanding at 31 March 3.1 9.0 8.2 247 119 258
Exercisable at the end of the year 3.2 240 35 213
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36. Share-based payments continued
The Group recognised the following expenses related to share-based payments:

Share-based payments acquisition related costs

2ans 017
£m £m
Discretionary share plans 0.2 4.8
Non-discretionary share plans 10 14
34
4.6

6.2

The movement on the share-based payments reserve, which is part of other reserves, relates to the charge to the income statement
for the year of £4.6m (2017: £6.2m). This comprises of I) £3.4m In respect of the vesting period of restricted shares issued as part of the
acquisition of minority interests per Note 33 and i} £1.2m of equity-settied share-based payment transactions. The share-based
paymants charge for the year is net of income statement credits of £2.9m relating to changes in assumptions relating to the fikelihood
of options vesting.

tn addition, there has been 1) a release of £1.0m against the own shares reserve on the expiry of restrictions attached 1o restricted
shares issued and i} a release of £2.7m to retained eamings regarding shares options that were previously exercised, lapsed, forfelted
or cancelled.

The weighted average share price at the date of exerdse for awards and share options exercised during the year was 252p (2017: 234p).
The conditional share awards and share options outstanding at 31 March 2018 had exercise prices (other than nil in the case of the
LT, C5P, DBP and the matching shares under the SIP) ranging from 201p — 254p (2017: 201p - 319p) and a weighted average
remaining contractual iife of 3.6 yeers (2017: 4.0 years). In the year ended 31 March 2018, options were granted in respect of the
SAYE, LTIP, CSP and SIP. The aggregate of the estimated fair values of the options granted on those dates was £10.6m (2017: £11.1m).

The fair value of options s measured by use of the Black-Scholes and Morite Carlo models.
The inputs Into the Black-Scholes model are as follows:

) o7
Share price (p} 258-318 276-318
Exercise price (p) 0-260 ©-319
Expected volmifity (%) -9 23-3
Expacted life (years) -4 3-4
Risk-free rate (%) (03)-11 013-11
Expected dividends (%) 16-47 35-47
The inputs into the Monte Carlo madel are as follows:

mia 2017
Share price (p) 180-267 247-319
Average correlation with TSR benchmark (%} 23-27 26-35
Expected volatility (%) 4-37 13-
Expected life (years) 3 3
Risk-free rate (%) 0.22-068 0,16-129

Expected volatility was based upon the historical volatility over the expected life of the schermes. The expected life Is based upon
histarical data and has been adjusted based an management’s bast estimates for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

The axceptional, every day [ www.mitie.com 185



Notes 10 the consplidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

37. Retirement benefit schemes

The Group has a number of pension arrangements for employees:

* Defined contribution schemes for the majortty of its employees; and
» Defined benefit schermnes which include a group scherne and other smaller schemes,

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension schemes for qualifying employees. The Group has a defined benefit
pension scherne called the Mitie Group pic Penslon Scheme (Group scheme) whese Mitle Group plc s the principal employer.

The Group participates in a number of other defined benefit schemes (Other schemes) in respect of certain employees who Joined
the Group under the Transfer of Undertaldngs (Protection of Empioyment} Regulations 2006 (TUPE] or through the acquisition of
subsidiary companies.

Defined contribution schemes

A defined contribution scheme is a pension scheme under which the Group pays contributions. to an independently administered fund;
such contributions are based upon a fbed percentage of employees’ pay. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions to the fund once these contributions hawe been paid. Members' benefits are determined by the amount of
contributions paid, together with investrnent retums eamed on the contributions arising from the performance of each individual's
chaosen investments and the type of pension the member chooses to take at retirement. As a result, actuarial risk (that pension will be
lower than expected) and investment risk (that the assets invested In do not perform in line with expectations) are borme by the
employee.

The Group’s contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due.

The Group operates three separate schemes: a stalsholder defined contribution plan, which i closed to new members; a seff-invested
personal pension plan, which |s closed to new members; and s group personal pension [GPP) plan. Employer contributions are payable
1o each on a matched basis requiring employee contributions to be paid. Employees have the option to pay their share via a salary
sacrifice avangement. The scheme used to satisfy auto-snrobment compliance is a master trust, The People’s Pension.

During the year, the Group made a totai contribution to the defined contribution schemes of £8.0m (2017: £8.9m) and contributions to
the muto-enroiment scheme of £4.3m (2017: £4.3m), which are included in the income statement charge. The Group expects to make
contributions of a similar amount in the coming year.

Defined benefit schemes

Group scheme

The Group scheme provides benefits 1o members in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payable for life. The jeve] of benefits
provided depends on members’ length of service and thelr final pensionable pay.

The Group scheme ciased t0 new members in 2006, with new employees able to join one of the defined contribution schemes.
The main Group scheme has now been dased as of October 2017,

Pensions In payrnent are generally increased In ine with RP! inflation, subject to certain caps and floors. Benefits are payable on death
and other events such as withdrawal from active service,

The Group scheme |s operated under the UK regulatory framework. Benefits are paid to members from the trust-administered fund,
where the Trustee is responsible for ensuring that the scheme is suffidently funded to meet current and future benefit payments. Plan
assets are held in trust and are governed by pension legistation. If investrnent experience Is worse than expected or the actuarial
assessment of the scheme's liabilites increases, the Group's financial obligations to the scheme rise.

The nature of the relationship between the Group and the Trustee ks also governed by regulations and practice. The Trustee must
agree a funding plan with the sponsoring company such that any funding shortfall is expected to be met by additional contributions
and iInvestment outperformance. In order to assess the level of contributions required, triennial valuations are carvied out with the
scheme’s obligations measured using prudent assumptions (which are determined by the Trustee with advice from the scheme
actuary). The most recent triennlal valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2017 and is pending approval.

The Trustee’s other duties Include managing the investment of the scherne’s assets, administration of plan benefits and exercising of
discretionary powers. The Group works closely with the Trustee to manage the scheme.
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37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Other defined benefit schemes

Grouped together under Other schemes are a number of schernes to which the Group makes contributions under Admitted Body
status to dients’ (generally local government or government entities) defined benefit schemes in respect of certain employees who
transferred to Mitie under TUPE, The valuations of the Other schemes are updated by an actuary at each balance sheet date.

For the Admitted Body schemes, which are largely sections of the Local Government Pension Scheme, the Group will only participate
for a finite period up to the end of the relevant contract. The Group is required to pay regular contributions, as decided by the relevant
scheme actuaries and detailed In aach scheme’s Contributions Certificate, which are calculated every three years as part of a triennial
valuation. In a number of cases contributions payable by the employer are capped and any excess is recovered from the entity that the
employees transferred from. In addition, in certain cases, at the end of the contract the Group will be required to pay any defich (as
determined by the scheme actuary) that is assessed for its notional section of the scheme.

Multl-employer schemes

As a result of histork: acquisition activity and staff transfers following contract wins, the Group participates in four multi-employer
pension schemes. The total contributions to these schemes for the finandial year ending 31 March 2019 are anticipated to be £0.1m.
For three of these schemes, the Group’s share of the assets and liabifithes Is minimal.

The fourth scheme is the Plumbing & Mechanical Services {UK) Industry Pension Scheme (the ‘Plumbing Scheme’} a funded muiti-
employer defined benefit schame. The Plumbing Scheme was founded in 1975 and to date has had over 4,000 employers, with drca
400 remaining, The size and complexity of the Plumbing Scheme has meant the trustee is unable at this time to identify the assets and
Kabiiities of the scherme which are attributable to the Group. Consequently, the Group accounts for its contributions as if they were
pald to a defined contribution scheme.

The April 2014 valuation of the Plumbing Scheme indicated a surplus on a technical provisions basis of £19m, on liabilities of £1.47bn.
The Annual Member update issued by the Plumbing Scheme in October 2017 stated that an irterim valuation prepared as at April 2016
indicated a deficit, however the draft triennial valuation as at 5 April 2017 continues to show a surplus on a tachnical provisions basls.
Details of the draft triennial valuation as st 5 April 2017 are set out In Note 34.

As set out in Note 34 the Group has a potential exposure to Section 75 employer debts in respect of the Plumbing Scheme, which has
been disclosed as a contingent Hability.

Further information in respect of the Group scheme and Other schemes
The table below sets out the details of the latest funding valuation of the Group scheme as at 31 March 2017.

The Group made a total contribution to the Group scheme of £4.4m during the year (2017: £2.0m), including an additional payment of
£3.0m In relation to paymernit on a letter of credit against the funding defiit. The Group expects to make contributions of around
£5.6m 1o the Group scheme in the year ending 31 March 2019, including £4.2m against the funding deficit. Empioyees’ contribtition to
the cost of the schema ks generally settied through a salary sacrifice arangement.

The Group made contributions to the Other schemes of £0.3m in the year (2017: £0.3m). The Group expects to make contributions of
around £nl| to the Other schames in the year ending 31 March 2019,

Details of latest funding valuation

Group scherme
Date of latest funding valuation 31 March 2017
Assets at valuation date £178.7 million
Funding Babiities at veluation date £225.3 million
Daficit at valuation date £46.6 milllon
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. Retirernant benefit schemes continued

The total contribution rate is between 40.5% and 44.9% of annual pay for the remalning active members. The employer contribution
rate Is the balance of the total cost after the deducting the employee rate, which ranges depending on status and eamings. The total
contribution excludes any allowances for expenses met by the scheme.

To eliminate the funding deficit the Trustee and the Group agreed that additional contributions (i.e. over and above those required to
covet benefits being accrued) will be pald into the scheme of £58.0m by 31 March 2027, of which £11.9m are due by 31 March 2020,
On 27 November 2017, the Group paid the first of these additional contributions amounting to £3.0m. Under this recovery plan, if the
assumptions made are borne out in practice, the deficit would be elimnated by 31 March 2027,

The following table sets out detalls of the membership of the Group scheme at 31 March 2017:

Group scheme
Active membets - by number 182
Active members — by propartion of funding liability 20.4%
Total pensionable salary roll pa. £8.4m
Deferred membets — by number 853
Deferred members — by proportion of funding liabiiity 52.0%
Total deferred pensions p.a. (at date of leaving scheme) £4.6m
Pensioner members — by number 640
Pensioner members — by proportion of funding liabiiity 27.6%
Total pensions in payment p.a. E2.7m

Accourting sssumptions
The assumptions ysed in calculating the accounting costs and cbligations of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes, as detailed
below, are set after consultation with independent, professionally qualified actuaries.

The discount rate used to determine the present value of the abligations is set by reference to market ylelds on high quality corporate
bonds. The assumptions for price Inflation are set by reference to the difference between yields on longer-term conventional
govermnment bonds and index-linked bonds. The assumption for increases in pensionabie pay takes into account expected salary
inflation, the cap at CPI, and how often the cap ks lkely to be exceeded.

The assumptions for life expectancy have been set with reference to the actuarial tables used in the latest funding valuations, with a
ower ‘best-estimate’ atliowanoe for future improvements to mortality.

Principal accounting assumptions at balance sheet dates

Group scheme: Other schisnas
wia m7 008 2017
% % % %

Key assumgtions used for 1AS 19 valuation:
Discount rate 2.60 2.65 2,60 2.65
Expected rate of pensionable pay increases aw 2.00 3.30 340
Retall price infiation 3.10 340 3.10 3.40
Consumer price inflation 10 2.40 210 240
Future pension increases 3.40 3.40 340 3.40
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37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Group scheme
2018 017
Vears Years
Post retirement life expectancy:
Current pansioners at 65 — male 88.0 B88.0
Current pensioners at 6S —famale 890 90.0
Future pensioners at 65 — male 29.0 83.0
Future pansioners at 65 —female 90.0 91.0
Life expectancy for the cther schemes Is that used by the relevant scheme actuary.
The senskivity of defined benefit obligations to changes in principal actuarial assumptions ks shown below.
Sensitivity of defined benefit obligations to key assumptions
impact on defined benefit cbgations
Change In Increase/{decrease) in Incema/idecrease) v
asmplion obligetions abligations
% £m
Incraase in discount rate 0.1% (2.0p% {5.0)
Incraase in RP! inflation* 0.1% 1.5% 38
Increase in CPt inflation {excluding pay) 0.1% 0.7% 18
Increase in salary growth 0.1% 0.0% -
Increase In life expectancy 1year 3.9% 9.8

*  Including other inflstion-linked asswmptions {CP1 infiation, pension increscas and sslary growth)
The senshtivity information shown above has been prepared using the same method as adopted when adjusting the results of the
latest funding valuation to the balance sheet date.

Some of the above changes In assumptions may hava an lmpact on the value of the scheme's Investment holdings. For example, the
Group scheme holds a proportion of its assets In UK corporate bonds. A fall in the discount rate a5 a result of lower UK corporate: bond
yields would lead to an increase in the value of these assets, thus mitigating the increase In the defined benefit obligation to some extent.

The duration, or average term to payment for the benefits due, weighted by lability, is around 22 years for the Group scheme.

Amounts recognised In financial statements
The table below outfines where the Group's post-employment amounts are included in the financlal statements.

018 a7

Group Othes Group Other
schane schames Toul schame schemes Tota
£m om £m £m £m £m
Current service cost 1.7) (0-3) (2.0} (3.2) {0.3) {3.5)
Total administration expense (1.1} - {11} 0.8 - {0.8}
Amounts recognised in operating profit (28 0.3) {3.1) (4.0) {0.3) {a.3)
Past service cost {including curtaliments) (1.8) - (1.9} - - -
Net Interest cost (19) (0.1) (2.0} (1.3} - {1.3)
Amaunts recognised in profit before tax {6.5) (0.4) (7.0} {53) {0.3) (5.6}

The past service cost {including curtailments) is as a result of an increase in liabllities driven by the closure of the main Group scheme.
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37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Amounts recognised in the consofidated statement of comprehensive income are as follows:

2008 2017
Group Other Group Other
schana schames Toul schame: schames Totd
m £m m £m £m £m
Actuarial (losses)/gains arising due to changes in
financial assumptions 86 os 94 (52.5) 3.7 {56.2)
Actuarial (losses)/gains arising from liability experience {3.1) os {0.3) (15} - 08
Actuarial gains due to changes in demographic
assumptions 59 02 6.1 - - -
Effect of asset celling - {0.5) {0.5) - - -
Return on scheme assets, exciuding interest income 4.6 04 50 18.7 13 200
18.0 17 19.7 {33.0} {2.4) (35.4)

The amounts included in the balance sheet in respect of the Group’s defined benefit retirement benefit schemes are as follows:

018 2017

Grop Othar Group Othar
achame achamas Totad schama schames Total
£m L] m fm £m £m
Fair value of scheme assets 1823 121 194.4 1778 113 1891
Present vakse of defined benefit obiigations (237.1) {14.1) (251.2) (248.5) (14.8) (263.3)
Net pension liabiiity (54.8) (2.0 (56.8) (70.7) {3.5) (74.2)

All figures above are shown before deferred tax.

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations in the year in respect of both the Group and other schemes were
as follows:

2008 2007
Sroug Othar Group Other

schame scharmes Towl scherne schames Total

m Bn £ £m £m £m

At 1 Apdl 485 WMs 2633 1913 10.6 2019

Current service cost 17 03 20 32 03 s

Interest cost 65 o4 69 6.8 04 12

Contributions from scheme members - 01 01 0.1 0l 0.2
Actuaria) (gains)/losses arising due to changes in

financial assumptions {8.5) {0.8) (9.4) 525 7 56.2

Actuarial fosses/{gains) arising from experience 11 2] 03 {0.8) - (0.8)

Actuarial gains due to changes ih demographic

assumptions {s9) {0.2) {6.1) - - -

Effect of asset celling - 0s 0s - - -

Benefits pald &1 {o.2) 8.3) (4.6) (0.3) (4.9)

Past service cost (including curtaiiments) 19 - 19 - - -

At 31 March 2371 4.1 2512 248.5 148 2633
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37. Retirement benefit schamas continued

The defined benefit obligations of the Group scheme are snalysed by participant status below:

018 m7

(] £m

Active 483 85.0
Defesred 1233 1031
Pensiohers 65.5 60.4
At 31 March 237.1 2485

Movements in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:

201 2017
Group Other Group Cther

schame whemas Total scheme schemes Totad

£m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 April 1778 113 189.1 156.9 95 1664

Intarest income 4.6 03 49 55 04 59

Actuarial gains on assets 4.6 0.4 50 18.7 13 200

Contributions from the sponsoring companies 44 0.3 47 2.0 03 23

Contributions from scheme members - - - 0.1 o1 02

Expenses paid (2.0 - {1.0) (0.8) - (0.8)

Benefits pald {8.1) {0.2) [8.3) (4.6) (0.3) {49}

At 31 March 182.3 12.1 194.4 177.8 11.3 189.1
The history of experience adjustments Is as follows:

Group scheme

ams 2017 2016 2015 2004

£m £m £m £m £n

Fair value of scheme assets 1523 1778 1569 162.2 1438

Present value of defined benefit abligations (237.1) {248.5) {191.3) {197.1) (160.8}

Defidit in the scheme {54.8) (70.7) (34.4) {34.9} {17.0)

Experiance (losses)/gains on schewne liabilities {11) 08 3.1 12 01

Percentage of scheme liabllities 0.5% (0.31% {1.6/% (0.61% (0.1)%

Experience gains/(losses) on scheme assets 4.5 18.7 {6.2) 13.0 36

Percentage of scheme assets 2.5% 10.5% (4.0)% 8.0% 25%

Other schames

2018 2017 016 s 2014

£m £m £m £m £m

Fair vaiue of scheme assets 121 11.3 95 95 16.2

Present value of defined benefit obligations {24.1) {14.8) (10.6) {10.4) (18.3)

Deficlt in the scheme (2.0} {3.5) {1.1) {0.9} 2.1

Experience gains/(losses) on scheme liabiktles 08 -~ - {0.1} 03

Percentage of scheme liabllities (5.61% - - 0.9% (1.8Y%

Experience galns/{losses) on scheme assets 0.4 13 (0.8} 08 {0.3)

Percentage of scheme assets 3.3% 11.5% (6.1)% 8.4% {1.9)%

The exceptional, every day | www.mitie.com w1



Notes to the consolidated financia staterments continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Fair values of the assets held by the schemes were as follows:

218 2017

Group Other Groug Other
schama schames Total scheme schemas Totd
m im im m £m £m
Equities 66.3 7.0 733 664 7.6 740
Government bonds 269 - 269 268 16 284
Corporate bonds 20 38 253 217 0.8 225
Property 85 09 104 16.2 0.8 17.0
Diversified growth fund 456 - 456 46.6 - 46.6
Cash 120 0.4 124 0.1 0.5 0.6
Total fair value of assets 1823 12.1 194.4 177.8 113 185.1

The investment portfolios ane diversified, investing in a wide range of assets, in order to provide reasonable assurance that no single asset
or type of asset could have a materially adverse impact on the total portfolio. To reduce volatility, certain assets are held in a matching
portfolio, which largely consists of government and corporate bonds, designed to mirror movements in corresponding llabliities.

Around 67% (2017: 73%) of the assets are held in equities, property and pooled investment vehicles which seek a higher expected level
of return over the long term.

£nll {2017: £7m) of the property assets represent freehold property; the rest are quoted property investments.
Risks and risk management

The Group scheme, In common with the majority of UK plans, has a number of risks. These aneas of risk and the ways in which the
Group has sought to manage them, are set out In the table below.

The risks are considered from both a funding perspective, which drives the cash commitments of the Group, and from an accounting
perspective, Le. the extent to which such risks affect the amounts recorded in the Group’s financial statements:

sk Description

Asset The funding llabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to government bond yiekds, with allowance

volatility for additional return to be generated from the investment portfolio. The defined benefit obligation for accounting ts
calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond ylelds. The Group scheme holds a large proportion
of 1ts assets (67%) in equities and other retum-seeking assets {iwincipally diversified growth funds {DGFs) and property).
The retumns on such assets tend to be volatile and are not correlzted to government bonds. This means that the funding
level has the potential to be volatile in the short term, potentially resulting in short-term cash requiremnents or
altemative security offers, which are acceptable to the Trustee and an increase in the net defined benefit liablity
recorded on the Group’s halance sheet. Equities and DGFs are considered to offer the best retuns over the long term
with an acceptable level of risk and hence the scherne holds a significant proportion of these types of asset. However,
the scheme’s assets are well-diversified by Investing in a range of asset classes, including property, government bonds
and corporate bonds. The Group scheme holds 25% of Its assets in DGFs which seek to maintain high levels of retum
whilst achleving lower volatiity than direct 2quity funds. The allocation to return seeking assets is monitored to ensure It
remains appropriate given the scheme’s long-term objectives. The irvestment In bonds Is discussed further below.

Changesin  Falling bond yiekis tend to increase the funding and accounting obligations. However, the Investment in corporate and

bondyields government bonds offers a degree of matching, L.e. the movement in assets arising from changes In bond yields partially
matches the movement in the funding or accounting obligations. in this way, the expasure to movements in bond yiekds
is reduced.

Inflation risk The majority of the scheme’s benefit obligations are inked to Inflation. Higher Inflation will lead to higher liabikities
{sithough caps on the level of inflationary Increases are In place 10 protect the plan against extreme inflation). The
majority of the Group scheme’s assets are elither unaffectad by Inflation (feed Interest bonds) or locsely correlated with
inflation (equities), meaning that an increase in inflation will ako increase the defict.

Life The majority of the scheme’s obligations are to provide a pension for the Iife of the member, so increases in life
axpectsncy  expectancy will resuk in an increase in the obligations.
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37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Areas of risk management

Although investment decisions in the scheme are the responsibility of the Trustee, the Group takes an active interest to ensure that
pension plan risks are managed efficiently. The Group and Trustee have agreed a long-term strategy for reducing investment risk
where appropriate.

Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) is a portion of pension that was accrued by individuals who were contracted out of the State
Sacond Pension prior to 6 April 1997, At present there ks an inequality of benefits between male and fernale members who have GMP.
The Government intends to implement lagislation to equalise benefits, which could result in an increase In the value of GMP for males.
This would increase the defined benefit obligations. At this stage, it is not possible to quantify the impact of this change, and therefore
no provision has been made,

Certain benefits payable on death before retirement are insured.

38. Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation
and are not disclosed in this Note.

During the year, the Group derived £0.8m (2017: £02m) of revenue from contracts with joint ventures and assocated undertakings
and received £0.6m {2017 £0.6m) of dvidends. At 31 March 2018 trade and other receivables of £0.2m (2017: £nil) were outstanding
and loans to joint ventures and assodates of £nit (2017: £nll} were included in financing assets.

Mitie Group pic has a related party refationship with the Mitie Foundation, a charitable company. During the year, the Group made
donations and gifts in kind of £0.3m {2017: £0.3m) to the Foundation. At 31 March 2018 £nil (2017: £nil) was due to the Foundation
and the Foundation had £nil (2017: £nil) held within creditors as an amount owed to Mitle Group pic.

No material contract or arrangement has been entered into during the year, nor existed at the end of the year, In which a Director
had a material interest.

The Group's key management personne! indude the Executive Directors, Non-Exacutive Directors and the Executive Lesadership team.
Detalls of the Directors’ remuneration is included in Note 7. The underlying remuneration for other key management personnel,
including the share-based payments charge Is £5.6m (2017: £4.1m}.

In the Annual Report and Acoounts for the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company noted that, as a consequence of prior year
adjustments to the accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Remuneration Committee would determine what rights
might be available to the Company to recover the bonus and other awards made to each of Ruby McGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter
in raspect of FY16. The matters which gave rise to the prior year adjustments are now the subject to the on-going investigation by the
Financial Conduct Authority {the “FCA"), which the Cornpany disclosed In its announcement on 29 August 2017. in that announcement,
the Company reported that the FCA had commenced an investigation In connection with the timeliness of a profit waming announced
by the Company on 19 September 2016 and the manner of preparation and content of the Company's financlal information, position
and results for the period ending 31 March 2016. The Company has been advised by its external lawyers that as any claim against
Ruby McGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter would cover the same matters, facts and circumstances which are the subject of the

FCA Investigation, any formal steps to recover bonuses or other awards should be deferred unti after the FCA have reached their
findings. it is cumently anticipated that the FCA will conclude is investigation during the course of FY19.

Detalis of transactions with Mitie Group plc Pension Scheme, and other smaller pension schemes, are given in Note 37.
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Notes to the consolidated financial staterents continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

39. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

2017
Contiruing  Discontinuad Comtiwing  Dlsrortiwed
aparations operstions Totsl operstions operations Towd
£m m m Em £m £m
Cash conversion
Operating loss {a3) - (8.3) (42.9) 3s2) (rmy)
Depreciation 128 - 12.8 136 05 141
Amortisation 135 - 135 224 14 23.8
impairment of goodwill and Intangible assets 450 - 450 18.0 91.2 109.2
Eamings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (EBITDA) 63.0 - 63.0 111 (42.1) 310}
Cash (used in)/generated by operations {r.9) - (2.9) 1599 {8.8) 1511
Free cash flow
Cash {used in)/generated by operations (7.9) 1511
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {15.8) (14.5)
Purchase of other intangible assets (o.0) {12.4)
Disposats of propesty, plant and equipment 16 10
Income taxes receivad/{paid) 116 (15.3)
Interest paid (13.5) (12.7)
Free cash flow {33.0) 97.2
2018
Othar non-
Opeing  Total cash Maclassification Total Rt Totml fair walue cash Closing
balence movemant ofsaniordebt  movements cangss  MOwTANE balence
m o fm ™ " [ &m
Cash flows Morvcash changes
Long-term borrowings - bank loans - (383) (15.3) (0.3) - (04) (54.3)
Long-term borrowings ~ private placement
loan notes - - (216.8) - 131 0.1) (203.8)
Short-term borrowings — bank loans {15.3} - 15.3 - - - -
Short-term borrowings — private
placement loan notes® (294.0) s 2168 - 54 - -
Finance lease obligations (2.8} 15 - - - - (1.3)
Financing Rabilities 312.1} 350 - {0.3) 185 0.5} {259.4)
Derivative financial instruments* 358 {10.6)} - - {18.1) - 6.1
Net financing Rabfities (276.3) 234 | - {0.3) 04 0.5}  {253.3)
Note:
* Cah flow MOvenent on thast Rems induces both repsymant of privte ple 108n notes and settiernent of sasociated hedges with = ret caslh fiow of £50.2m (2017: Enll).
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40. Subsidiaries

The companles set out below are those which were part of the Group at 31 March 2018.

% voting mﬁ smu::
Compary Country of incorporation ownership inderest value cwnad
Care & Custody (Health) Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Cole Mators Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Creativevents Limited® Unlted Kingdom 100% 100%
Direct Enquiries Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Jabez Holdings Umited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Aviation Securlity Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Belgium BVBA Beigium 100% 100%
Mitie Belgium Security BVBA Baigium 100% 100%
Mitie Buikt Erwironment Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Business Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Bysiness Services UK Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Care and Custody Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Catering Services Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Cleaning & Environmental Services Umited United Kingdorn 100% 100%
Mitie Clsaning Services Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Chent Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Company Secretarial Services Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Comphance Ltd* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Deutschland GmbH 1 Germany 100% 100%
Mitie Document Solutions Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services {Bristol) Limitad* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Enginsering Services (Guernsey) Limited Guemsey 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services Jersey} Limited Jersey 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Servioes {Northern Region) Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services {Wales) Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services Limited” United Kingdom 100% 200%
Mitie Erwvironmental Umited* United Kingdom 10036 100%
Mitie Espafia, S.L. Spain 100% 100%
Mitie Events & Leisure Services Limited®™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Facilities Management Limited* ireland 100% 100%
Mitle Facilities Services Limited United Kingdomn 100% 100%
Mitie France SAS France 100% 100%
Mitie Group Penslon Scheme Trustee Company Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie HoldIngs Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Infrastructure Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle integrated Facilities Management Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie international Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Investments Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Justice Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Landscapes Limited Uniked Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Limited Unlted Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Local Services Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Managed Services Limited*® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Nederiand B.V. Netherlands 100% 100%
Mitie Norge Aksjaselskap Norway 100% 100%
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Notes to the consofidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

40. Subsidiarias continued

% woting mﬁ s-::
Compeny Country of Incorporation: ownership interest valus owned
Mitie Pest Control (London) Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Pest Contral Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie PFI Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Polska Sp.z 0.0. Poland 100% 100%
Mitie Property Management Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Property Services (UK) Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Reinsurance Company Limitad Guemsey 100% 100%
Mitie Resources Umited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Schweiz GmbH Switzeriand 100% 100%
Mitle Scotgate Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Security {London) Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Security Holdings Umited® Unhed Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Security Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Services (Retall) Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Shared Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Suomi Oy Firdand 100% 100%
Mitie Sverige AB Sweden 100% 100%
Mithe T S 2 Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Technical Facllities Management Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Technical Facliities Management Limited United Kingdomn 100% 100%
Mitie Tilley Roofing Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Transport Services Limited* United Kingdom 200% 100%
Mitie Treasury Management Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Trustee Umited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Waste & Environmental Services Limtted® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Work Wise Umited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Parkersell Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Procius Uimited** Unitad Kingdom 200% 100%
Robert Prettie & Co Limied* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Service Management International Asta Pacific PTE. Ltd. Singapore 100% 100%
Source Eight Umited®™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Source8 Africa Limited?® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Source8 Delivery (Nigeria) Umited Nigeria 100% 100%
Source8 Services FZLLC United Arab Emirates 100% 100%
UK CRBS Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Asset Management Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Asset Managemem Projects Limived® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Brokdng Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utllyx Healthcare Energy Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Holdings Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Litiyx Limited United Kingdom 1009 200%
Utilyx Risk Management Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Wealthy Thoughts Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%

¢ Thase entitias wers dormant during tha yesr ended 31 March 2018 snd will taks th

2018 oy virtum of waction 448A vf the Companies Act 2006).

ey Fors

W Lok

d fiing firancial strrnents for the year ended 31 March

% These subsiciaries have talen advartage of the sudit euemption undar 35794, of the Companles Act 2006 for the period ended 31 March 2018, As sich, Mitie Group Pic hes
provided a guarantes againgt all deins and labiifties i these subsiciaries as st 31 March 2018,

+ Huld diractly by the Company.
X Tha Company holds direce minority interast it thete companiss.
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40. Subsidiaries continued

The registered office of all subsidiaries is The Shard, Level 12, 32 London Bridge Street, London, SE1 95G with the exception of

the following:

Companty Registered office addness

Mitke Belgium BVBA Regus Brussels South Station, Marcel Broodthaersplein 8 (box 5), 1060 Brussels
(Sint-Giilis), Belgium

Mitie Belgium Security BVRA Regus Brussals South Station, Marcel Broodthaersplein 8 (box 5), 1060 Brussels
{Sint-Gillis), Belgium

Mitie Deutschiand GmbH MeRstetter StraBe 8, , 70567, Stuttgart, Germany

Mitie Engineering Services (Guernsey)
Limived

Mitie Engineering Services (Jersey) Limited

Mitie Espafia, S.L

Mitie Facilities Management Limited
Mitie France SAS

Mitie Ni Limited

Mitie Nederland B.V.

Mitie Norge Aksjeselskap

Mitle Polska Sp. 2 0.0.

Mitie Relnsurance Company Limited
Mitie Schweiz GmbH

Mitie Suoml Oy

Mitie Sverige AB

Service Management Interational
Asia Pacific PTE. Lid.

SourceB Delivery [Nigeria) Limited
SourceB Services FZLLC

Martello Court, Admiral Park, St Peter Port, GY1 3HB, Guermnsey

13 Castle Street, St Helier, JE4 S5UT, Jersey

Osborne Clarke, Avenida Diagonal, 477, Planta 20, 08036, Barcelona, Spain
108 Q House, Furze Road, Sandyford, Dublin 18, Ireland

259 rue St Honore, 75001, Paris, France

Clara House , Office BS, Dunmurry Office Park, 37A Upper Dunmurry Lane, Belfast,

Northem iretand, BT17 0AA, United Kingdom

Hoofdweg 52A, 3067 GH Rotterdam, P.O. Box 8540, 3009 AM Rotterdam, 3003 AM

Rotterdam, Netherlands

Kongensgate 9, 0153, Osio, Norway, Norway

Solec 22, 00-410, Warsaw, Poland

Maison Trinity, Trinity Square, St. Peter Port, GY1 4AY, Guernsey
Brandschenkestrasse 90, CH-8027, Zurich, Switzeriand

¢/o Ov Visma Services Infocon Ab, Pormestarinrine 8, 00160 Helsinki, Finland
Kungsgatan 55, 111 22 Stockholm, Sweden, Sweden

65 Chulla Street, #38-02/03, OCBC Centre, Singapore, 049513

235 Ikorodu Road, llupeju, Lagos, Nigeria
17 The Iridium Building, Um Suquelm Road, Al Barsha, Dubai, PO BOX 391186,
United Arab Emirates

No subsidiaries have non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

The Group has a 30% Interest in Its associate, Pyramid Plus South LLP, a limited liablitty partnership registered in the
United Kingdom with its ragistered office at The Point, 37 North Wharf Road, London, W2 1BD.

41. Events after the reporting period . ’

There are no material post balance sheet events that require adjustrnent or disclosure in the annual report.
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Company balance sheet
At 31 March 2018
2018 wm7

Nates £m £m
Non-cuorrent assets
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 44 5570 5895
Daferred tax asset 46 [} ] 03
Total non-gurreint asiats 5578 589.8
Currant assets
Deabtors 45 9382 369
Total current assets 982 369
Total assets 656.0 626.7
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 47 (82.2) (44.6)
Total current Rabliities (82.2) (44.6)
Net current ascets 16.0 (2.7
Neat assets 573.8 582.1
Caplital snd reserves
Share capital 3 93 92
Share premium account 32 130.6 130.6
Merger reserve 32 104.2 918
Own shares reserve 32 {83.4) (42.2)
Qther resarves 29 253
Loss for the year (127 (42.6)
Retained aamings 3629 410.0
Equity shareholders’ funds 573.8 582.1

The Company reported a loss for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 of £12.7m (2017; £42.6m).

The financlal statements of Mitle Grougp plc, company registration number SCD19230, were approved by the Board of Directors and

suthorised for issue on & June 2018, They were signad on its behalf by:

Phil Bantley
Chiaf Exgastive Officer
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Company statement of changes in aquity

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Share Profic
Share presmium Merger Own shares Orher and loss
capital accoumt resarve resenve resarves actount Tol
£m £m £m £m £m £m im
At 1 April 2016 93 122.7 80.1 {48.8) 211 474.4 6638
Loss for the year - - - - - (42.5} (42.8)
Shares issued 0.1 29 11.7 - - - 147
Share-based payments - - - 68 38 {2.5} a1
Share buybacks {0.2} - - {0-2) 04 {24.4) {24.4)
Dividends paid - - = - - {37.5) {37.5)
At 31 March 2017 9.2 1306 918 {42.2) 253 3674 5821
Loss for the year - - - - - (12.7) {12.7)
Share-based payments - - - 6.9 (2.4) 03 48
Acquisitions and other movements 0.1 - 124 {8.1) - - 44
Didends paid - - - = {4.8) {4.8)
At 31 March 2018 93 130.6 104.2 {43.4) 229 3502 5738
As at 31 March 2018, the Company had distributable reserves of £117.5m (2017: £137.3m).
Details of dividends paid to shareholders are given in Note 11 of the consolidated financial statements.
L
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Notes 1o the Company financlal statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

42. Significant accounting policies

{a) Basis of accounting

The separate financial statements of the Company are presanted as required by company aw. They have been prepared under
the historical tost convention and in accordance with applicable Unlted Kingdom Accounting Standards and law. The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ as issued by the Financial
Reporting Councl,

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure examptions available under that standard
in relation to share-based payments, financial instruments, presentation of a cash flow staternent, impairment of assets, standards not
yet effective, and related party transactions.

Where relevant, equivalent disclosures have been given in the Group accounts.
As more fully detalled in the Directors’ report, the Company’s financial staternents have been prepared on a going concem basis.

(b) Principal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies are summarised below, They have baen applied consistently throughout the year and the preceding
year.

Investments
Fixed asset investments in subsidiaries are shown at cost less any provision for impalrment.

Investments in subsidiaries are reviewed on an ongoing basis for any indication of impairment and, If any such indication exists, the
Investment’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement whenever tha carrying valus
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obliigation {legal or constructive} as a result of a past event and it Is
probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a reliable estimate
<an be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some or al of 2 provision to be reimbursed, for example
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement Is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expeanze reiating to any provision is charged to the profit and loss account, net of any reimbursement. if the effect of the
time value of monay is material, provisions sre determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting s
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time Is recognised as a borrowing cost.

Taxation

Cuyrrent tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheat date.

Deferred tax Is provided In full on temporary differences that result in an obligation at the batance shest date to pay more tax, or a
right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they trystallise based upon tax rates and legislation that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Temporary differences arise from the inclusion of tems of income
and expenditure in tax computations in periods different from those in which they are Includad in the financlal statements. Deferred
tax is not provided on temporary differences, or on unremitted earnings of subsidiaries and associates where there is no commitment
to remit thase earnings. Deferred tax assets are recoghised to the extent that it Is regarded as more likely than not that they will be
recovered, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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42. Significant accounting policies continued

Financlal instruments

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value. Appropriate allowances for estimated imecoverable amounts are
recognised In the profit and loss acocount where there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.
Interest bearing bank inans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, induding

premiums payable on settiement or redemption and direct isus costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the profit and loss account
and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Trade payables ara measuned at amortised cost.
Equity Instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

linancial assets and financial Habikties are recogniscd on the Company’s balanee theet when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a number of exacutive and employee share option schemes. Equity-settied share-based payments to employees
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value excludes the effect of non-market based vesting
condilons. For grants of share options and awarus, U fair vahae as at the date of grail b udiculated using the Black-Schukes w Munle
Carlo models ar the share price ot grant date, and the cormesponding expence i recogniced on a straight line bazic over the vesting period
based on the Company’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest. At each balance sheet date, the Company revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non-market based vesting conditions. Save As You Eam (SAYE}
options are treated as cancelled when employees cease to contribute to the scheme, resulting In an acceleration of the remainder of the
reisted expente,

The costs of options and conditional awards over the Company’s shares granted to empioyees of the Company’s subsidiaries are
accounted for as a capital contribution within the canrying value of investments in subsidiary undertakings.

Pensions

The Company participates in the Mitle Group pic Pension Scheme. All group companies account for the contributions to the defined
benefit schemne In respact of thelr employees and as part of a group arrangement one of the Company’s subsidiaries accounts for the
other costs, incorme, astets and Kabilities of the scheme. Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements sets out detalls of the 1AS 19
‘Employee benefits’ net pension iabifity of the scheme amounting to £54.8m (2017: £70.7m).

43. Loss for the year

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own statement of comprehensive
income (Induding the profit and loss account) for the year. Mitic Group pic reported a loss after taxation for the financial year ended
31 March 2018 of £12.7m (2017: £42.6m).

The auditor’s remuneration for audit services to the Company was £40,000 (2017: £40,000).

Detailed disclasures of Directors’ remuneration and share kvterests are given in the audited section of the Directors’ remuneration
report on pages 101 to 109,
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Notes to the Company financial ststements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2018

44. Iwestmems in subsidiary undertakings

Shares at cost

At 1 April 2017 6309

Restructuring 4973

Acquisitions 73

Capital contribution re share-based payments 10

Disposals {580.0)
AL 31 March 2018 6165

Provision for impalrment

At 1 April 2017 1014

Charged to income statement -

Dispasals (41.9)
Az 31 March 2018 59.5

Net book value

At 31 March 2018 557.0

At 31 March 2017 5895

Alisting of subsidiaries is given In Noke 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, the Company underwent a process to rationalise and simplify the corporate structure which included the acquisiiion
of minarity shareholder interests in the remaining Mitle Model compianies (see Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements), The
reorganisstion was faciitated through Mitie Treasury Management Limited (MTML], an existing entity held by the Company acquiring
the majority of the Compaity’s investments, including s principal holding companies, through share for share exchanges. In addition,
minority interests heid by the Company In other Group companies were transferred to the majority shareholder for consideration left

outstanding on intercompany account. No galn or ioss arose in the Company as a result of these steps.

45. Debtors
e ] 07
£m £m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 263 312
Other debtors 13 0.7
Prepayments and accrued income 0.1 02
Corporation tax - 4.8
982 369
The Dircctors consider that the conrying amount of debtors approximatas thelr falr value.
46. Deferred tax
Shary-hemd
Pt
thning
ANerence
im
Deferred tax asset at 1 Aprl 2017 03
Charge to income statement 0S
Deferrad tax ssset at 31 March 2018 04
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47. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2m7
£m

54
22
5.2
0.2
150
12.6
44.6

Overdrafrs

Trade creditors

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Corporation tax liabillty

Other taxes and sodal security

Accruals and deferned income

Provisions

BEcEalsElsE

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand. The Directors consider that the carrying amount of creditors
approximates their fair vaiue.

The Company’s bank overdrafts are part of the Group's banking arrangements and are offset against credit balances within the Group.
The Company has adequate Tiquidity to discharge all current obligations.

For details of Group borrowings, see Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

48. Contingent abliities

Per Note 40, Mitie Group pc has taken the audit exemption for a number of subsidiaries by virtue of s479A of the Companies Act.
A parent company guarantee has been provided for these entities under $479C of the Companies Act:

49. Share-based payments

The Company has six equity-settied share schemnes as described in Note 36 to the consclidated financial statements.

The Company recognised an expense of £0.4m (2017: £2.4m) related to the share-based payment charge for discretionary
share option schemes.

The fair value of options is measured by use of the Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo models. The inputs Into the Black-Scholes and
Monte Carlo models are as described in Note 36 to the consolikiated financial statements.

50. Related partles

The Company makes management charges to all of its subsidiaries, whether they are wholly-owned or ctherwise, and receives
dividends from its subsldiaries, according to their abiiity to remit them. Other detalls of related party transactions have been given in
Note 38 10 the consolidated financial statements.

Under FRS 101 the Company & exempt from disclosing key management personnel compensation and transactions with other
companies wholly owned by Mitie Group pk. There were no other related party transactions during the year ended 31 March 2018
{2017: €nil}.
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Appendix - Alternative Performance Measures (APMs)

The Group presents APMs as the Group has applied IFRS 15 In the 2018 finandal staternents. Lsing the cumulative effect method through
an adjustrnent to the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2017 and has not restated the comparative Information for the 2017 financial
year. in addition, there were 3 number of significant restaterents recorded in the 2017 financial statements. The Group presents various
APMs as the Directors belleve that these are useful for users of the financlal statements in helping to provide a balanced view of, and
relevant information on, the Group’s financial performance. These APMs are measures which disclose the adjusted performance of the
Group without the adoption of IFRS 15 [see Note 1 {a)) and excluding specfic ltems which are regarded as non-recurring. The Group
saparstely reports the impairment of goodwill, the cost of restructuring programimes, acquisition and disposal costs, amortisation of

acquisition refated intangible assets, exceptional items and other specific items in the income statement which, In the Directors’

judgement, need to be disclosed separately (see Notes 3, 4 and 5 ) by virtue of their nature, size and incidence In order for users of the
financial statements to obtain a proper understanding of the finandial information and the underlying performance of the business.

Pestated
s omr
APMg prasented im £n
Revenue
Adjusted revenye 2,991  2,140.0
kmpact as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15 4.5 -
One-offs:
Adjustment to accrued income on long-term complex contracts - {20.4)
Accrued income, debtors, prepayments included In trade & other receivables - {7.4)
Effects of foreign currency - 11.2
Other ane-off ftems - -
Befare other bams 2,203.7 2,123.4
Other lems - -
Total revenue a3 reportad 2,208.7 2,123.4
Operating profit
Adjusted opersting profit 71 820
Impact as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15 125 -
One-offs:
impalrment and amortisation of intangible assets (Note 14) - (10.5)
Adjustment to accrued Income on long-term complex contracts - {20.4)
Accrued Income, debtors, prepayments included in trade & other receivables - (36.4)
impairment of mobilisation asset - 5.7
Other provisions 8 accruals - (4.6}
Other one-off items - (10.7)
Bafore othar ks 2.6 {6.3)
Adjusted other itams {209.0) (36.6)
Impact as a result of the adoption of [FRS 15 S1 -
Other itams as reported {92.9) (36.6)
Total operating proftt & reported {8.3) (42.9)
The total adjustmants presented above impact business segments as follows:
-
Adjustments to0 revenue [ £m
Engineering Services (6.9) 146
Security (03) -
Professional Sevvioes 0.6 —
Cleaning & Environmental Services {0.9) 36
Care & Custody A -
Catering - (16)
Property Management 0.5 -
Total adjustments {4.6) 16.6
1. The Group has d 2007 income and balance sheet s per Nate 1, page 134.
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Appendix — Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) continued

2018 2017
Adjustments to operating profit £m £m
Engineering Services {10.3} 375
Security {2.3) 38
Professional Services 0s 26
Cleaning & Environmental Services wn 144
Care & Custody 13 0.7
Catering {0.6) 06
Property Management a.6 16.8
Corporate Centre - 119
Total adjustrents {12.5) 883
018 2017
bvpacts of Adjusterd One-olf Adjusted
As wported msis cashflows  As reported foems cash Bows
Adjustments to cash flows &m £m £m £m £m £m
Operating loss - continuing operations (8.3} (17.6} {259} (42.9) 883 454
—discontinued operations - - - {135.2) - (135.2)
Adjustments for non-cash and non-operating iters 75.5 - 755 187.2 {88.3) 989
Operating cash flows before movements
In working capital 67.2 (17.6} £9.6 9.1 - 9.1
{Increase)/decrease in Inventories 0.1 - (0.3 32 - 32
{increase)/decrease in receivables (43.2) 131 {30.1) 602 - 60,2
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets {2.3} 23 - - - -
(Decrease)/intrease in deferred income arising
on contracts {12.8) 128 - - - -
{Decrease)/increase in payables {21.2) 5.1 (30.3) 73.0 - 73.0
{Decrease)/Increase In provisions 4.5 (0.2} 43 56 - S&
Cash {used in)/generated by aparations (7.9) 13 {6.6) 1511 - 1511
Income taxes, interest and acquisition costs
received/(pald) (L9) - (1.9 (28.3) = {28.3)
Net cath [outfiow)/inflow from operating activities (9.8) 13 (8.5) 128 - 1228
nvesting activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (15.8) {0.2) {16.0) (14.5) - {14.5)
Purchase of other intangible assets (9.0} {L1) {10.1) (12.4) - (12.4)
Other investing activities {7.3) - (7.3) - - -
Net cash outfiow from investing activities {321) {1.3) {33.4) {26.9) - (26.9)
Net cash inflow from financing activities {27.8) - {27.8) (60.3) - (60.3)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash aquivalents {69.7) - {68.7} 356 - 356
Adjustments to the balance sheet are shown in Note 1 on page 140,
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Shareholder information

Ovarview

HY 18/19 half-yearly results 22 November 2018

Dividends

FY 17/18 interim dividend (1.33p paid) 7 February 2018

2018 final dividend (2.67p proposed):
— ex-div dete 21 June 2018
—record date 22 jJune 2018
— last date for receipt/revocation of DRIP mandate 9 July 2018
— payment date 6 August 2018

Annysl Gengrel Meeting

2018 Annual General Meeting 31 july 2018

Registered office Ragistrers

Mitie Group plc Link Asset Services

35 Duchess Rd The Registry

Ruthergien 34 Beckenham Road
Glasgow Beckenham

G731AU Kert

Telephone: 0117 970 8800 BR3 4TU

Emall: group@mitie.com Telephone: 0871 £64 0300°

Website: www.mitie-shares.com
* calls cost 12p a minute plus network

Website: www.mitie.com
Registered in Scotiand under

company number: SO019230 extras, lines are open 9.00am — 5.30pm
Mown = Fri.
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Dividend relnvestment plan (DRIF)
Mitie has set up & dividend relnvestment
plan {DRIP) to enable you to bulld your
shareholding by using your cash dividends
under a standing election to buy
additional shares in Mitie. If you would
Fe to recelve further information,
Including detalls of how to apply, please
call Link Asset Services on 020 8639 3402
or contact them by sending an email to:
shares@linkgroup.co.uk

Mhtis online share portal

Mitie has launched a shareholder portal
where shareholders can register and can:

. Information on shareholdings
and movements;

* update address detalls;

* view dividend payments received and
register bank mandate instructions;

* soll Mitie shares;

= complete an online praxy voting form;
and

* vegister for e-communications allowing
Mitle to notify shareholders by email
that certaln documents are svallable to
view on Its website. This will further
reduce Mitle's carbon footprint as well
as reduoe costs.

If you wish to register, please sign up at
www.mitie-shares.com

Corporate website

This report can be downloaded In PDF
from the Mitie wabsite, which also
contains additional genersl information
about Mitie. Please visit www.mitie.com




Cautlonary statement

Certaln statements contained in this document constitute ar may constitute ‘forward-looking statements’.

In some cases, these forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forwardHocking terminolagy,
Indluding the terms ‘believer’, ‘estimates’, ‘projects’, ‘alms’, ‘plans’, ‘predicty’, ‘prepares’, ‘anticipates’, ‘expects’,
‘intends’, ‘may’, ‘will’ or ‘should’ or, In each case, their negative or other variztions or comparable terminology,
or by discussions of strategy, plans, objectives, goals, future events or Intentions. Such forward-looking
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertalnties and other factors, which may cause the actual
results, performanoe or achievernents of the Group to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achieverments expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such forward-ooking
statements are based on numerous assumptions regarding the Group's present and future business strategies
and the erwironment In which the Group will operste in the future. These forward-ooking statements speak
only as at the date of this document. Except as required by applicable law, rule or regulation, the Group
expressly disciaims any cbiigation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-
looking statements comtained In this document to refiect any change In Its expectations with regard thereto
or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statament is based, By their nature,
forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they retate to events and depend on
cirmmmstances that may or may not occur in the firture or are beyond the Group’s control, ForwardHookdng
statements are not guarantees of future performance. Mitle’s actual results of operations, financial condition
and the development of the business sector in which the Group operates may differ materially from the
expectations disclosed or implied by the forward-ooking statements contained in this document. In addition,
even if the Group'’s actual results of operations, finandal condition and the development of the business sector
in which the Group operates are consistent with the forward-looking statements contained in this document,
those results or developments may not ba indicative of results or developments in subsequent periods. The
forwand-looking statements contained in this dacument speak only as at the date of this document.
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MITIE GROUP AT A GLANCE

Investing in our strengths
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Registration number:
S$C19230

Mithe Group ple
Registered Office
35 Duchess Road
Rutherglen
Glasgow

G73 1A0

UK

Head Office

The Shard

Level 12

32 London Bridge Street
tondon

SE1 956

UK

T: +44 (0} 330 6780710
E: info@mitie.com




